
OCTOBER 8, 2018 - City Council Regular Meeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

1'       Q  `       Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

Clty COunCll 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Mark Elliott, Vice Mayor Appeals

Referrals and Reports from
Paul Akinjo

Commissions and Committees
Steve Dresser All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action

Martha Salcedo
Items

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City Staff
7• Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative, or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may
Cari James, Finance & Administrative only speak once to each item. At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Mark Meissner, Community
Development Director Consent Calendar

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Director routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion and one vote. There will be no separate

James Hood, Police Chief discussion of these items unless a Councilmember
or interested resident so requests, in which case the

item will be removed from the Consent Calendar

and considered separately.

OCTOBER 8, 2018 - Consolidated Meeting Agenda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor.  Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name,
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and
address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by
the Mayor for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each
speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to

new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a

proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to
the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so
under the Citizen' s Forum section.  Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker
cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s

Forum will be called upon to speak.  Please be aware the California Government Code

prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear
on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the
length of your presentation  ( see instructions on_ speaker form)  and each speaker may only
speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, ci council@ci. lathroa. ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide
Web Address: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the

City Council Page or use the URL www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ council/    

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre

Drive,   Lathrop,   on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

Supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City
Clerk' s office. This agenda was posted at the following locations:  City Hall, Community Center,
Generations Center,  Senior Center,  and  " J"  Street Fire Department.  The meetings of the

Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or

accommodations to this meeting. [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II] Interested persons must

request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting
the City Clerk at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City' s business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF L. ATHitOP

CITY COU111CIL REGdJLAR MEETIIVG

MOIdDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2018

7: 00 P. M1.

C011IVCIL CFI 4P7 ER, CITY Hi4LL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

4GENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There will be a C/ osed Session coenmencinq at 6: 00 p. m.  The Receu/ ar MeeQ in

wi// reconvene at 7: 00, v. m., or immediatelv fol%wine the C/osed Session, whichever is/ a#er.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b)

4 Potential Cases

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property: 99 West Louise Avenue ( APN 191- 190- 18)

Agency Negotiator: Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Negotiating Parties: Richard Castleman

Under fVegotiation: Price and Terms of IVegotiations

RECOIe1VEIVE

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROI I CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUIVCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PREESEfVT TIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING OCTOBER DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

AWARENESS MONTH

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



2. 2 NATIONAL NIGHT OUT COMMUNITY PARTNER AWARD

2. 3 CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO ORGANIZERS OF THE ANNUAL

COMMUNITY BBQ HONORING PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICERS

2. 4 RECEIVE INFORMATION RELATED TO THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

REVIEW FOR THE NEW LATHROP POLICE STATION

2. 5 RECEIVE INFORMATION REGARDING FISCAL OVERVIEW OF THE CITY' S

GENERAL FUfVD AND MEASURE C FUND

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do
so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards,
or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be

called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can,
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond

to statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or

report on his or her own activities.

See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)). Unless directed otherwise by a
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered at the meeting will be
responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND
PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item

will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIOfVS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Consolidated Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting and Special
Meeting of the CFD No.  2006- 1 Board of Directors of August 13,  2018,

and the Regular Council Meeting of September 10, 2018

4. 3 2018- 2019 REQUESTS FOR FEE WAIVER

Adopt Four ( 4)  Resolutions Approving Facility Fee Waiver requests from
the Lathrop Lions Club,  Lathrop Little League,  Lathrop HS Theater Arts
Boosters, and the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 4 ISU SALE TO LOUISE AVENUE PARTNERS

Adopt Resolution Approving the Sale of 15 ISUs to Louise Avenue Partners
for Proposed Tru by Hilton Hotel at 161 East Louise Avenue ( APN 196- 27-
023)

4. 5 ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

Adopt a Resolution Approving a Precise Plan Line for the Stage 2B
Segment of River Islands Parkway,  and Common Use Agreement with

Reclamation District 2062

4. 6 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 38 LOTS IN TRACT 3938 VILLAGE Q" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE

DISTRICT

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3938 Village Q" within

East Village District,  Totaling 38 Single- Family Lots and Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 7 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 50 LOTS IN TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3989 Village ' U" within

the Lakeside East District,  Totaling 50 Single- Family Lots,  Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,    LLC,

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina Drive from Dell' Osso

Drive to Oberlin Avenue and Annexation No.  X for City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District for Villages T, U, T, V, Y, AA and BB

4. 8 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 51 LOTS IN TRACT 3994 VILLAGE T" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3994 Village " T" within the
Lakeside East District, Totaling 51 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 9 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  11 WITH 4LEAF,  IIVC.  FOR PLAN CHECK

SERVICES

Adopt a Resolution Approving Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf, Inc. for Plan

Check Services in the Building Division

4. 10 2018 WINTER HOLIDAY AND 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULES

Consideration of Proposed 2018 Winter Holiday Closure and 2019 City
Council Meeting Schedules

4. 11 FUNDING FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II AND A UTILITY OPERATOR

I/ II/ III IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Adopt a Resolution to Approve Funding for a Maintenance Worker I/ II and
Utility Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works Department

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



4. 12 AGREEMENT WITH CONDOR EARTH FOR ENGINEERING SUPPORT

SERVICES

Adopt a Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Condor Earth to
Provide Engineering Support Services

5.       SCWEDULED ITE{MS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER THE 2019 SJMSCP

DEVELOPMENT FEE ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT

Council to Consider the Following:
l.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt a Resolution Approving an Annual Adjustment to the
San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and
Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) Development Fee for 2019

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO UPDATE THE WEST L 4THROP

SPECIFIC PLAN REIMBURSEMENT FEE

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt Resolution Approving the 2018 West Lathrop Specific
Plan ( WLSP) Reimbursement Fee Update

5. 3 AUTHORIZE TERRAVERDE TO CONDUCT A COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS

FOR PHASE II OF THE CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT

Adopt a Resolution Authorizing TerraVerde Energy,  LLC to Conduct a

Competitive Bid Process for Phase II Project Installation,  Procurement,

and Financing for the City of Lathrop' s Solar Energy Project GG 12- 14,
and Approve the Minimum Projected Cost Savings for Phase II

5. 4 CREATE CIP PK 19- 02 FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS AT SANGALANG,
MOSSDALE, AfVD VALVERDE PARKS

Council to Discuss and Consider a Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PK 19- 02 for the Installation of Outdoor Fitness Equipment at

Sangalang Park,  Mossdale Park,  and Valverde Park,  and Authorizing
Related Budget Amendments

5. 5 CREATE CIP PK 19- 03 FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS AT MOSSDALE SOUTH
NEIGHBORHOOD PARK, AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Council to Discuss and Consider a Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PK 19- 03 for Mossdale South Neighborhood Park,  and Authorizing
Related Budget Amendment

5. 6 CREATE CIP PK 19- 04 FOR CITY- WIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS

Council to Discuss and Consider a Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PK 19- 04 for the Installation of Additional Amenities at Various City
Parks, and Authorizing Related Budget Amendments

5. 7 CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS APPLICABLE TO CITY OFFICIALS

Adopt a Resolution Approving an Ethics Policy Applicable to Elected and
Appointed Officials, City Manager, City Attorney and Department Heads

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Set Application Deadline for Appointment

of One ( 1) Member to the Senior Advisory Commission with Term Expiring
June 30, 2019, due to Unexpired Term Vacancy

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITfEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Salcedo/ Akinjo)
Council of Governments ( Dresser/ Dhaliwal)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Elliott)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission ( Dresser)

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Dhaliwal/ Elliott)
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo/ Dresser)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Elliott/ Dresser)

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

i//

Ter sa Vargas, CMC

Clerk

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



8



Il'EP7 402

CITY OF LATHR P

CITY COIDNCYL ItEGULAR MEETING

COMI UMITY FACILITIES DISTItICT NO. 2006- 1

OARD AF DIRECYORS SPECIAL NIEETING

MOiVDAY, 4UGUST 13, 2018

7: 00 P. NI.

COUWCIL CH IMBER, CITY 1- Ip LL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

COIVSOLIDATED W1If l1TE

PLEASE' NOTE: There was a C/ osed Session which commenced at 6: 07,, m.  Ti e / teou/ar
Meetinc reconve ed af 7: 11 p. m.

1.       PItELIN9INARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Vice Mayor Elliott called the meeting to order at 6: 07
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL Anticipated Litigation -
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

5 Potential Cases

Mayor Dhaliwal arrived after closed session.

IZECON iENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 11 p. m.

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador fVavarrete reported that direction was provided; no

other reportable action taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Elliott;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Dresser, and
Salcedo.

Absent: None

1. 4 INVOCATIOIV - Pastor Jason Tacderan, Thrive Church, provided the
invocation.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Pastor Jason Tacderan led the pledge of
allegiance.

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



At the request of Mayor Dhaliwal, Pastor Tacderan provided an overview

of the back to school backpack giveaway event provided by Thrive Church
on August 4, 2018.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

Mayor Dhaliwal commented on recent issues raised by residents regarding
high utility bills. The City Council agreed to hear an informational item on
the matter at a future City Council meeting.

Mayor Dhaliwal introduced Assistant Sheriff Philip George,  Sheriff Elect

Pat Withrow, and County Supervisor Tom Patti.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

2.       PItESEI IT/ TIONS

A motion was made by Councilmember Akinjo to remove Item 2. 2 and
Item 5. 4 from the Council Agenda. There was no second.  Motion Failed
due to lack of second.

2. 1 CERTIFICATIOIV OF APPRECIATIOIV PRESENTED TO CITY BEAUTY SALOIV

Councilmember Akinjo, on behalf of the Lathrop City Council, presented a
certificate of appreciation to City Beauty Salon.

2. 2 RECEIVE INFORMATION FROM SHERIFF ELECT PAT WITHROW
REGARDING LATHROP POLICE SERVICES

Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow and the City Council agreed to move Item
2. 2 and 5.4 before Item 5. 1. See Item 5.4 for minutes related to the
presentation pertaining to Item 2. 2. Public speakers on this item a/so
provided consensus to move their comments to the scheduled items
portion of the agenda.

2. 3 GENERAL PLAN UPDATE - LAIVD USE REQUEST ANNOUNCEMENT

Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided an overview of
the general plan update land use request process available for all property
owners within the City of Lathrop;  announced that applications will be
accepted through September 28,  2018;  and acknowledged receipt of a

public comment letter received for Item 2. 3 submitted by Martin Harris,
Terra Land Group, LLC. City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed distribution to
the City Council and copies for the public.

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) reported her attendance to a San Joaquin
Commission on Aging meeting held  ] uly 2,  2018,  in which Medicare and
Medicaid programs were discussed. Jim Hilson ( Lathrop, CA) expressed various
concerns with the City' s street sweeping schedule; commented on Proposition 6,

the 2018 voter approval for future gas and vehicle taxes and 2017 tax repeal
initiative.  Gloryanna Rhodes  ( Lathrop,  CA)  commented on the order of items

listed on the agenda, thanked the City Council for consolidating Items 2. 2 and
5. 4.  Meghan Torres  ( Lathrop Chamber of Commerce)  reported on upcoming
Chamber of Commerce events.  Debbie Rock ( Lathrop, CA) commented on the

newly installed pedestrian railing on Lathrop Road and Interstate 5;  requested

the installation of a three- way stop sign on Lathrop Road and Manthey Road.
Margaret Luevano   ( Lathrop,   CA)   requested information related to the
construction activity on Lathrop Road; expressed concerns with speeding, trafFic
safety,  and commercial trucks on Lathrop Road.  Kati Bradley  ( Lathrop,  CA)
expressed concern with a recent water utility bill;  expressed concern with high

water usage charges and requested that the city investigate further.  Reverend
Lu Davis  ( Lathrop,  CA)  requested to speak on Item 5. 4;  expressed various

concerns related to the previous postponement of the decision related to police
services;  requested to know if San Joaquin County administrators provided
approval of the proposal from Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow;  and commented on

rising costs related to the current contract with San Joaquin County.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar,  by the following roll call vote,  unless

otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Dresser ( Item 4. 2 only)

4. 1 WAIVIIVG OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2     ** APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of June 11, 2018.

4. 3 UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Approved write- off of uncollectible utility and miscellaneous accounts for
Fiscal Year 2017/ 18.

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4. 4 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 9 FOR GENERAL PLANNING SERVICES WITH
J. B. AIVDERSON LAND USE PLANNING

Adopted Resolution 18- 4433 approving Task Order No.   9 for

professional planning services with J. B. Anderson Land Use Planning.

4. 5 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMEIVT
SIA) FOR 24 LOTS IN TRACT 3914 VILLAGE " O" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE

OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4434 approving final map for Tract 3914 Village
O" within East Village, totaling 26 single family lots and a subdivision

improvement agreement with River Islands Development, LLC.

4. 6 APPROVE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE SPRAYFIELD LEASE AGREEMENT
DATED JUNE 2, 2006, BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND CALIFIA, LLC

Adopted Resolution 18- 4435 approving a second amendment to the
sprayfields lease agreement dated June 2,  2006 between the City of
Lathrop and Califia, LLC with option to purchase sprayfields.

4. 7 TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

Pulled by Councilmember Dresser. A question and answer period ensued.
Assistant Public Works Director Michael King and City Manager Stephen
Salvatore responded to questions from the Council.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4436 authorizing staff to install speed humps on
Argillite Avenue, between Pipestone Street and Galena Street, associated
with CIP PS 18- 02 traffic calming measures.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

Council consensus directed staff to hear Item 2.2 and 5,4 before Item 5.1.

5. 1 APPROVE AN AGREEMENT FOR THE RESTRUCTURE OF COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2006- 1 SPECIAL TAX BONDS

City Attorney Salvador IVavarrete provided the presentation.

Mayor Dhaliwal stepped down from the dais at 10: 07 p. m. and returned at 10: 09 p. m.

A question and answer period followed. Jeffrey M. Wilson ( Saybrook Fund
Advisors, LLC) provided additional information related to the project.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Vice Mayor Elliott, the City
Council:

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



Adopted Resolution 18- 4437 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop
acting as the legislative body of the Community Facilities District 2006- 01
to approve a restructuring agreement related to Community Facilities
District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure),
authorized certain action by the bond trustee related thereto, authorized
an alternate form of prepayment of special tax obligation for parcels

within such community facilities district, and approved related documents
and actions; and

Adopted Resolution 18- 4438 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop of
intent to establish a community facilities district and five improvement
areas therein and levy a special tax, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities); and

Adopted Resolution 18- 4439 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop of
intent to incur bonded indebtedness in and for each improvement area of
a community facilities district,   City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities); and

Adopted Resolution 15- 4440 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop of
intent to establish a community facilities district and levy a special tax,
City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities); and

Adopted Resolution 18- 4441 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop of
intent to incur bonded indebtedness in and for a community facilities
district, City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities), by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING    ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)   TO CONSIDER VESTING

TENTATIVE MAP TRACT 3967 FOR THE STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 2
PRO] ECT

Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided the

presentation.  Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing. There were no

speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the
City Council consider the following:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopted Resolution 18- 4442 affirming the Planning

Commission' s recommendation to approve the Vesting
Tentative Map for the Stanford Crossing Phase 2, Tract 3967
Project ( VTM 18- 46), by the following roll call vote:

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

4bstain: None

5. 3 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION

Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided an overview of

the previous request to Council by the San Joaquin County Economic
Development Association provide economic development services to the
City of Lathrop, and requested Council direction on the proposed item.

Economic Development Director of the Economic Development Association
of San Joaquin County Steven Lantsberger provided additional program
information and potential program incentives available for future
development in the City of Lathrop.    A question and answer period
ensued.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott,  seconded by Councilmember Akinjo,
the City Council directed stafF to agendize the approval of a potential
funding agreement with the San Joaquin County Economic Development
Association to provide economic development services to the City of
Lathrop at a future meeting, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 4 APPROVE CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF TRACY FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES

Council consensus directed staff to hear Item 2. 2 and 5.4 before Item 5. 1.

Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow provided an overview of Item 2. 2,  which

included his proposal to provide continued law enforcement services and
transition the city to its own police department;  commented on taking
office January 8,  2019,  and his commitment in providing cost savings
solutions to the City of Lathrop. A question and answer period followed.
Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow answered questions of the Council. City of Tracy
City Manager Randall Bradley commented that the Tracy City Council
would have to determine if they wish to continue with the process to
participate in potential law enforcement negotiations at a later time.

Public speakers for Item 2. 2 and 5. 4,   included:   Michele Anderson

Lathrop, CA) spoke in favor of postponing Item 5. 4 to January 2019 after
Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow assumes office;   invited the public to the

community BBQ event honoring first responders.

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



Gloryanna Rhodes   ( Lathrop,   CA)   spoke in support of the proposal

presented by Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow; spoke in favor of postponing Item
5. 4 to January 2019 after Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow assumes ofFice.
Debbie Rock ( Lathrop, CA) withdrew request to speak. ] ose Garcia Martin

Lathrop, CA) expressed appreciation to the San Joaquin Sheriff' s Office
and supported the proposal provided Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow.  Brandy
Brown ( Lathrop, CA) read a letter to Council; spoke in favor of postponing
Item 5. 4 to January 2019 after SherifF Elect Pat Withrow assumes office.
Christina Campoy  ( Lathrop,  CA)   read a letter to Council;   spoke in

opposition to the law enforcement agreement with the City of Tracy.
Michelle Maddon  ( Lathrop,  CA)  spoke in support of considering the law
enforcement service proposal by SherifF Elect Pat Withrow;  spoke in

support of transitioning into Lathrop' s own police department.  Brandy
Perkins ( Lathrop, CA) same speaker card as Brandy Brown. Candice Vega
was called to speak; speaker was not present. Doug Clough ( Lathrop, CA)
spoke in support of proposal provided Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow. Tom Patti
San Joaquin County Board of Supervisor)  provided a letter to the City

Council on behalf of County Counsel Mark Myles;  commented on his

support to the proposal provided Sheriff Elect Pat Withrow.

Councilmember Akinjo commented on remarks made by Supervisor Tom
Patti;  and spoke on the importance in moving the city forward and
making prudent decisions.  City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced that a
letter from Steven Gutierrez was received for public comment on Item 5. 4
copies were distributed to the public and Council.  Minnie Diallo ( Lathrop,
CA) spoke in support of using social media as an avenue to communicate
to the public.  Councilmembers commented on the matter and thanked
those who provided public comment.     

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Dresser, the     
City Council approved to postpone Item 5. 4 to a date uncertain,  by the
following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

There were no presentations from City staff as previously scheduled and
indicated on the published agenda related to Item 5. 4, consideration of a

resolution approving a contract with the City of Tracy for law enforcement
services.

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of Two ( 2)  Members to the

Parks and Recreation Commission with Terms Expiring June 30, 2021
Three ( 3) Applications for Consideration

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



Parks & Recreation Commission Terms Expires
Michele Anderson June 30, 2021

Romi Bhinder June 30, 2021

On a   motion by Councilmember Akinjo Dhaliwal,   seconded by
Councilmember Dresser,  the City Council approved the appointment
made by Mayor Dhaliwal as noted above:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of Three ( 3) Members to the
Measure C Oversight Committee June 30, 2021

Five ( 5) Applications for Consideration

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

Measure C Oversi4ht Committee Terms Expires
Michelle Maddon June 30, 2021
Ash Ralmilay une 30, 2021
Brandy Perkins June 30, 2021

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo Dhaliwal,   seconded by
Councilmember Dresser,  the City Council approved the appointment
made by Mayor Dhaliwal as noted above:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 3 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of Two ( 2) Members to the

Youth Advisory Commission with Terms Expiring May 31, 2019
Five ( 5) Applications for Consideration

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

Youth Advisory Commission Terms Expires
Angelica Gomez May 31, 2019
Zaiba Fazli May 31, 2019

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo Dhaliwal,  seconded by Vice
Mayor Elliott,  the City Council approved the appointment made by
Mayor Dhaliwal as noted above:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



6. 4 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:    Consider Ordinance Revision to Chapter
2. 20 " Youth Advisory Commission", to Increase the Number of Members

r'

1

Eligible to Serve on the Commission

Mayor Dhaliwal provided an overview and requested Council to consider
amending the Youth Advisory Commission Ordinance to increase the
membership from 13 to 15 members. Council consensus directed staff to
agendize the public hearing to a future council meeting.

6. 5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITi' EE REPORT( S) - None

6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo thanked those in attendance and expressed the
importance of unity amongst the Council and the community.

Councilmember Dresser commented on previous discussions regarding
law enforcement services and the Central Lathrop Specific Plan project.
Councilmember Salcedo thanked those in attendance.  Vice Mayor Elliott

commented on the National Night Out event, and expressed appreciation
to staff involved in organizing the event and community volunteers.
May.or Dhaliwal thanked those in attendance and commented on the
importance of providing public comment during the meetings.

7.       AD,70URNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 10: 45 p. m.

G2%

eresa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

August 13, 2018 Consolidated Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was no C/ osed Session. The Re4u/ ar Meetina commenced at 7: 03 a. m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Vice Mayor Elliott called the meeting to order at 7: 03
p. m.

1. 2 ROLL CALL -   Present:       Vice Mayor Elliott; Councilmembers:
Dresser, and Salcedo.

Absent: Mayor Dhaliwal and Councilmember
Akinjo

CouncilmemberAkinjo arrived at 7: 05 p. m,, after roll call.

1. 3 INVOCATION - Pastor Trinity Neilson, New Life Church, provided the
invocation.

1. 4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Elliott led the pledge of allegiance.

1. 5 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER - IVone

1. 6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 NEW EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTION

Joel Madrigal, Meter Reader I

Assistant Public Works Director introduced Joel Madrigal, Meter Reader I,
for the Public Works Department.  Councilmembers welcomed the new
employee.

2. 2 RECEIVE INFORMATION FROM REPUBLIC SERVICES REGARDING RECENT
RECYCLING MARKET CHANGES

City Manager Stephen Salvatore introduced Kevin Basso,   General
Manager for Republic Services,  the City' s residential and commercial
garbage collector.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

18



Assistant Public Works Director gave a brief overview of the item.  Mr.
Basso provided the presentation,  which included an explanation the

China Sword"  development;  China' s changes in acceptable criteria of
imported recyclables and ban of mixed paper;  market impacts to local
jurisdictions;   and long term plans to provide public education and

outreach.

Councilmember Akinjo stepped down from the dais at 7: 13 p. m., and returned at 7: 14

p. m.

The presentation continued.   A question and answer period ensued

through the presentation.

2. 3 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones reported on various past and
upcoming committee events and programs,  some highlighted events
included:

Mother's Day " Tea Time" Themed Brunch

Held May 11, 2018, at the Lathrop Senior Center, sold out event in
recognition of Mother' s Day, over 60 attendees.

Father's Day Luncheon
Held June 15,   2018,   at the Lathrop Senior Center,   special

presentation provided by the Department of Fish & Game, over 40
attendees.

El Concilio Senior Legal Service

Free paralegal services provided at the Lathrop Senior Center for
seniors 50 years and over, include:  wills, restraining orders, small
claims,  public assistance, social security forms,  Medicare,  housing
and consumer affairs, grant deeds, evictions, elder abuse matters,
durable power of attorney, and advance health care directives.

Seniors Walk with Ease Class

Six- week program held three times per week: Monday, Wednesday,
and Friday, August 1 to September 12, from 9 a. m. to 10 a. m.

New Art Party Program
Senior Paint Day with Kat' s Painting, over 12 attendees. Next class
scheduled in November.

Junior NBA Program

Three division offered in the program with 14 teams,   140

registrants ( 41% increase from last year).

For information on future programs and events, please contact the
Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department at ( 209) 941- 7372.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

19



3.       CIl'IZEPI' S FOttl1M

Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) reported her attendance to the September
4,  2018,  San Joaquin County Commission on Aging meeting,  in which opioid
abuse amongst elderly citizens was discussed.  Ms.  Zavala also announced the
Caregiver Conference scheduled for fVovember 10,  2018. Jim Canale  ( Lathrop,
CA) expressed concern with the city' s water quality and utility rates.

4.       CONSEI!'T C 4LENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council approved the Consent Calendar by the following roll call vote,
unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott.
IVoeso None.

Absent: Dhaliwal.

Abstain: IVone.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of June 25, 2018, and
the Regular Meeting of July 9, 2018.

4. 3 TREASURER' S REPORT - JUNE 2018

Approved Quarterly Treasurer's Investment Report for June 2018.

4. 4 2018 COIVFLICT OF INTEREST CODE BIENNIAL AMEIVDMENT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4443 adopting an amended Conflict of Interest
Code.

4. 5 OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR THE 2018 SAN JOAQUIIV AREA
FLOOD CONTROL AGEfVCY ( SJAFCA) WASHINGTON, D. C. ADVOCACY TRIP

City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed receipt of a public comment letter
received for Item 4. 5 submitted by Martin Harris, Terra Land Group, LLC.;
and confirmed distribution to the City Council and copies for the publica

Marin Harris ( Terra Land Group, LLC.) read a letter to Council; expressed
various concerns related to levee modifications, drainage pathways, and

storm water runoff.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

20



Adopted Resolution 18- 4444 authorizing out- of- state travel for Council
Member Dresser,  representing the City of Lathrop as a S] AFCA Board
Member, to attend the 2018 fall advocacy trip in Washington, D. C., from

September 25, 2018 to September 27, 2018.

4. 6 AGREEMENT WITH SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ASSOCIATION

Pulled by Councilmember Dresser. A question and answer period ensued.
Economic Development Director of the Economic Development Association
of San Joaquin County Steven Lantsberger responded to questions from
the Council.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4445 approving an agreement with the San
Joaquin County Economic Development Association to provide economic
development services to the City of Lathrop,  including amending the
proposed agreement to provide quarterly progress reports to the City
CounciL

4. 7 APPROVE STREET NAME RECOMMENDATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
SOUTH LATHROP COMMERCE CENTER PROJECT

Pulled by Councilmember Dresser. A question and answer period ensued.
Community Development Director Mark Nieissner provided additional

information.

Marin Harris  ( TufF Boy Sales,  Inc.)  spoke on the matter;  requested to

keep his current address.   Community Development Director Mark
Meissner clarified that the proposed change would not affect the
numerical portion of local addresses.   Mike Brown   ( Lathrop,   CA),
expressed support for the matter.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4446 approving the following:   street name

change from  " Guthmiller Road" to " Yosemite Avenue";  and replace the

sufFix of Yosemite " Avenue" with Yosemite Court".

4. 8 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR CIP PS 02- 24 LATHROP ROAD WIDENING
AND PS 17- 12 HARLAN ROAD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION FROM
TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION, INC.

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced revisions to the proposed resolution
for Item 4. 8, to update the budget allocations for CIPs PS 17- 12 and PS
02- 24,  relating to the increase in expenditures for each project.  Ms.

Vargas confirmed that the budget amount requested did not changed
from the originally published agenda item.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4447 accepting improvements from Teichert
Construction,  Inc.  for PS 02- 24 Lathrop Road Widening and PS 17- 12
Harlan Road pavement rehabilitation;    authorized related budget

amendment; authorized the filing of a notice of completion and release of
contract retention.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

21



4. 9 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISIOIV IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 39 LOTS II TRACT 3903 VILLAGE " H" WITHIIV EAST VILLAGE

OF RIVER ISLAfVDS

Adopted Resolution 18- 444 approving Final Map for Tract 3903 Village
H" within East Village,  totaling 39 single family lots and a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC.

4. 10 APPROVAL OF ANIVEXATION NO.  7 OF VILLAGE  D" TO THE CITY OF

LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  2013- 1 OF THE RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AT LATHROP

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo.  Glenn Gebhardt provided additional
information.

Adopted Ftesolution 1- 4449 approving the Seventh Amendment to the
IVotice of Special Tax Lien for the City Community Facilities District No.
2013  ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities)  Annexation No.  7

Village ' D' at River Islands Development at Lathrop.

4. 11 ACCEPTANCE OF SOUTH LATHROP COMMERCE CENTER ( PARCEL MAP 17-

01) OFF- SITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed receipt of a public comment letter
received for Items 4. 11 and 5. 1 submitted by Martin Harris, Terra Land
Group, LLC.; and con rmed distribution to the City Council and copies for
the public.

Nlarin Harris ( Terra Land Group, LLC.) read a letter to Council; expressed

various concerns related to flooding and storm water drainage.  Jeff Hill

Applicant  -  South Lathrop Land,  LLC)  provided additional information

related to the South Lathrop Commerce Center project improvements.
City Manager Stephen Salvatore and City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt
provided additional information.

Adopted Itesolution 18- 4450 accepting South Lathrop Commerce Center
Parcel Map 17- 01) off- site public improvements.

5.       SCI- IEDULED I'TEMS

5. 1 APPROVAL OF PARCEL MAP 17- 01,    SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT,   MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR JOINT USE WITH

RECLAMATION DISTRICT 17 ( RD 17),  EASEMEIVT DEED TO RD 17, AND
JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS FOR SOUTH LATHROP COMMERCE

CENTER

During the Consent Calendar, City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed receipt

of a public comment letter received for Items 4. 11 and 5. 1 submitted by
Martin Harris,  Terra Land Group, LLC.; and confirmed distribution to the

City Council and copies for the public.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

22



City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt provided the presentation. A question and
answer period ensued throughout the presentation.

Jeff Hill   ( Applicant  -   South Lathrop Land,   LLC)   provided additional

information related to the project; expressed appreciation to staff for their
assistance in moving the project forward;  and thanked City Manager
Stephen Salvatore for making himself available for commercial companies
looking to interview Lathrop for a potential site location.  Marin Harris
Terra Land Group,  LLC.) expressed various concerns related to flooding

and storm water drainage;  read a letter received from the Department
Water Resources related to flood risks near his property.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded by Vice Mayor Elliott,
the City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4451 approving the South
Lathrop Commerce Center Parcel Map 17- 01, totaling nine  ( 9)  lots,  and

approving Subdivision Improvement Agreement,    Memorandum of

Agreement for Joint Use with RD 17,  Easement Deed to RD 17,  and

related joint escrow instructions.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott.
Noes:    None.

Absent: Dhaliwal.

Abstain: None.

5. 2 FISCAL YEAR END 2017/ 18 BUDGET REPORT AND RELATED
AMENDMENTS AND AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 BUDGET

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari  ] ames provided the
presentation.  A question and answer period ensued throughout the
presentation.   City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional
information, and announced that stafF would bring an item to Council in
October to provide an overview of the General and Measure C funds,
including a summary of projects funded by each fund. The question and
answer period continued.

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser,  seconded by Councilmember
Salcedo Councilmember Salcedo,  the City Council adopted Resolution
18- 4452 amending the Fiscal Year 2017/ 18 and 2018/ 19 budget as
adopted on June 13, 2017 by Resolution No. 17- 4249.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott.
Noes:    None.

Absent: Dhaliwal.

Abstain: None.

5. 3 GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided the presentation.  A question
and answer period ensued throughout the presentation.

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

23



Relating to Grand Jury Finding 4. 1,  Council consensus directed staff to

draft an ethics policy,  as a supplemental to the adopted City Council
Handbook,    affirming compliance with State and Federal ethics

requirements for the City Council and Department Head level positions.

Relating to Grand Jury Finding 7. 1,  7. 2. 1,  and 7. 3,  Council consensus

approved the proposed response, respectfully disagreeing with the Grand
Jury findings relating to code enforcement in the City of Lathrop.

Lt Toby Farnsworth responded to questions from the Council concerning
parking citations.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Dresser,
the City Council accepted Grand  ] ury Report and directed the City
Attorney to submit a letter to the Presiding Judge of the San  ] oaquin

County Superior Court responding to the findings and recommendations
of the Grand Jury report.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott.

Noes:    None.

Absent: Dhaliwal.

Abstain: None.

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) - None

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S) -

Councilmember Akinjo acknowledged celebratory events for City Clerk
Teresa Vargas and Vice Mayor Elliott.  Councilmember Salcedo echoed
comments provided by Councilmember Elliott;   thanked those in

attendance.   Councilmember Dresser announced the community BBQ
event honoring first responders, scheduled for September 12, 2018 at 5

p. m.; commented on the recent peace march in the City of Manteca. Vice
Mayor Elliott commented on recent crime activity throughout the city and
homelessness activity in local parks.

7.       AD70URNMENT - There being no further business, Vice Mayor Elliott adjourned
the meeting at 9: 58 p. m.

L
T resa Vargas, CMC

ity Clerk

September 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

24



ITEM 4.3

CITY MANAGERS REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:    2018- 2019 REQUESTS FOR FEE WAIVER

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Four  ( 4)  Resolutions Approving
Facility Fee Waiver requests from the
Lathrop Lions Club,    Lathrop Little

League,     Lathrop HS Theater Arts

Boosters, and the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary
Club.

SUMMARY:   Review and approve resolutions for fee waivers for the use of City
facilities in accordance with the City of Lathrop Fee Waiver Policy.   The Parks and

Recreation staff have reviewed these requests and found the requested waivers to

be of public benefit, de minimis in nature and not subsidized from other facility fees.

BACKGROUND:     Annually staff receive requests for fee waivers from local

organizations for the use of City facilities in support their local activities.   Each of

these organizations are local 501( c) 3 non- profit organizations who are active in the

Lathrop Community.   This report includes facility fee waiver requests in support of
each organization in the amounts listed below:

Lathrop Lions Club 569. 00

Lathrop Little League 7, 971. 00

Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters 168. 00

Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club 270. 00

RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends Council find the requested waivers would

provide a public benefit to the community and that the amount of the request is de
minimis in nature and not subsidized from other facility fees, and approve the fee
waiver for the organizations listed above.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values through cost reduction to promote public benefit
activities of a service club.   The requests are from local non- profit organizations

whose efforts continue to give back to the residents of Lathrop.

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fees associated with the facility fee waiver request total
8978. 00

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution to approve the Lathrop Lions Club Fee Waiver Request
B.  Lathrop Lions Club Request for Fee Waiver and Facility Usage

Calculations

C.  Resolution to approve the Lathrop Little League Fee Waiver Request

25



CITY P ANe4GE92S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBEI 8, 201 CITY COUIVCIL REC; ULAR MEETING

201- 19 F EQUESTS FOR FEE WAIVELZ

D.  Lathrop Little League Request for Fee Waiver and Facility Usage
Calculations.

E.  Resolution to approve Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters Fee Waiver
Request

F.  Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters Request for Fee Waiver and Facility
Usage Calculations

G.  Resolution to approve the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club Fee Waiver
H.  Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club Request for Fee Waiver and Facility Usage

Calculations

26



CITY MAN GERS REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBEI , 2018 CYTY COUNCIL REf9ULe41t MEETING

2018- 19 REQIJESTS FOR FEE 1! I/ e4IVER

APPROV/ LS:

2Gr ' ZO l

achary J o n s Date

Parks Re ea ion Director

Cari James Date

Finance Dir c or

f  _'—   Z 7 _

Salvador avarrete Date

City Attorney

qS

Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

27



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM THE LATHROP LIONS

CLUB FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES TOTALING $ 569. 00

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Lions Club has requested the use of City Facilities;
and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Commission voted at their October 4, 2018

meeting to recommend City Council approval of the requested fee waiver; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this request provides a public benefit to
the community, that the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the Council finds direct public

benefit will be provided by the Lathrop Lions Club to the City of Lathrop. The City
Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize waiving facility fees for the use
of City Facilities in the amount of $ 569. 00.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October
2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18-    

28



Aftachmenf B

Lathrop Lions Club
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request for Use of Facilities

Facilitv Month Rqstd Dates Requested Purpose Total Hours Rate/ Dav Total Price

Scott Brooks G m Janua 1/ 19/ 2019 Basketball Game 3 14. 00  $      42. 00

LSC Senior Center June 6/ 15/ 2019 Murder M ste 7 25. 00  $     175. 00

LSC Kitchen June 6/ 15/ 2019 Murder M ste 7 5. 00  $      35. 00

LCC Multi Pur ose Room Janua - November Meetin s 10 5. 00  $      50. 00

Generations Center Februa 2/ 11/ 2019 S eech Contest 3 25. 00  $      75. 00

Scott Brooks G m November 11/ 10/ 2018 Craft Fair 8 14. 00  $     112. 00

LCC Multi Pur ose Room November 11/ 10/ 2018 Craft Fair 8 5. 00  $      40. 00

LCC Kitchen November 11/ 10/ 2018 Craft Fair 8 5. 00  $      40. 00

TOTAL a:: UO

CITY OF LATWROP - REQUIRED STAFF
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request Staff Time Associated with Fee Waiver Request

Event Title Hourlv Rate Hrs Rqstd

Basketball Game Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 4 55. 28

Murder M ste Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 8 110. 56

Meetin s Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 20 276. 40

S eech Contest Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 4 55. 28

Craft Fair Facility Attendant    $    13. 82 9 124. 38

TOTAL 45 621. 90

1, 190. 90

29



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM THE LATHROP LITTLE

LEAGUE FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES TOTALING $ 7, 971. 00

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Little League has requested the use of City Facilities;
and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Commission voted at their October 4, 2018

meeting to recommend City Council approval of the requested fee waiver; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this request provides a public benefit to
the community,  that the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council finds direct public

benefit will be provided by the Lathrop Little League to the City of Lathrop. The City
Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize waiving facility fees for the use
of City Facilities in the amount of $ 7, 971. 00.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October
2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18- 

30



Attachment D

Lathrop Little Leaque
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request for Use of Facilities

Facilitv Month Rqstd  "       Dates Requested Purpose Total Days Rate/ Dav Total Price

Mossdale Baseball Field # 1 1/ 12, 1/ 19, 1/ 26 Saturda T outs 3 1. 00  $       3. 00

Valverde Baseball Fields# 1 Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Frida Practice 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

Valverde Baseball Fields# 2 Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Frida Practice 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

San alan Baseball Field Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Frida Practice 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

Mossdale Baseball Field # 1 Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Saturda Practice/ Games 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

Mossdale Baseball Field # 2 Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Saturda Practice/ Games 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

Mossdale Baseball Field # 3 Februa 4- June 7 Monda - Saturda Practice/ Games 123       $ 1. 00  $     123. 00

Concession Stand Februa 4- June 7 Sunda - Saturda Concessions 976       $ 5.00  $   5, 630. 00

Facilitv Room Dates Requested Hours Purpose Total Hours Houriv Rate Total

LSC Main Room 1/ 28/ 2018 5: 00- 9: OOpm Draft Day 4 25.00  $     100. 00

LSC Main Room 10/ 8, 10/ 22, 11/ 5,    6: OOpm- 8: 30pm Meetings 60 25. 00  $   1, 500. 00

11/ 19, 12/ 3, 12/ 17, 1/ 3,

1/ 14, 1/ 28, 2/ 11, 2/ 19,

2/ 25, 3/ 4, 3/ 18, 4/ 8,

4/ 22, 5/ 6, 5/ 20, 5/ 29,

6/ 10, 6/ 17, 7/ 8, 8/ 5, 9/ 9

TOTAL 7, 9a,=r9: 0;

CITY OF LA THROP - REQIJIRED ST'AFF
Fee Calculations for 2018 Request Staff Time Associated with Fee Waiver Request

Event Title Houriv Rate Hrs Rqstd

Lea ue Meetin s Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 89 1, 229. 98

TOTAL 1, 229. 98

9, 200. 98

31



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM THE LATHROP HS
THEATER ARTS BOOSTERS FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES TOTALING $ 168. 00.

WHEREAS, the Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters has requested the use of
City Facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Commission voted at their October 4, 2018

meeting to recommend City Council approval of the requested fee waiver; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this request provides a public benefit to
the community,  that the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the Council finds direct public

benefit will be provided by the Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters to the City of
Lathrop. The City Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize waiving facility
fees for the use of City Facilities in the amount of $ 168. 00.      

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October
2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18-

32



Attachment F

Lathrop Theatre Arts Boosters
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request for Use of Facilities

Facilitv Month Rqstd Dates Requested Purpose Total Hours Rate/ Dav Total Price

Scott Brooks G m October 10/ 24/ 2018 Murder M ste 5 14. 00  $      70. 00

Scott Brooks G m Octaber 10/ 27/ 2018 Murder M ste 7 14. 00  $      98. 00

TOTAL r 6:80

CITY OF LATHROP - REQUIRED STAFF
Fee Calculations for.2019 Request Staff Time Associated with Fee Waiver Request

Event Title Hourlv Rate Hrs Rqstd

Murder M ste Facilit Attendant    $    13. 82 6 82. 92

Murder Mystery Facility Attendant    $    13. 82 8 110. 56

TOTAL 193. 48

361. 48

33



Attachment G

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM THE LATHROP

SUNRISE ROTARY CLUB FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES TOTALING $ 270. 00

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club has requested the use of City
Facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Commission voted at their October 4, 2018

meeting to recommend City Council approval of the requested fee waiver; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this request provides a public benefit to
the community,  that the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the Council finds direct public

benefit will be provided by the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club to the City of Lathrop.
The City Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize waiving facility fees for
the use of City Facilities in the amount of $ 270. 00.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8t'' 

day of October
2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18-

34



Attachment H

Lathrop Sunrise Rotarv
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request for Use of Facilities

Facilitv Month Rastd Dates Reauested Purpose Total Hours Rate/ Dav Total Price

LSC Senior Center November 11/ 22/2018 Thanks ivin Da Event 9 25. 00  $     225.00

LSC Kitchen November 11/ 22/ 2018 Thanks ivin Da Event 9 5. 00  $      45. 00

TOTAL 70. Q 

CITY OF LATHROP - REQUIRED STAFF
Fee Calculations for 2019 Request Staff Time Associated with Fee Waiver Request

Event Title Hourlv Rate Hrs Rastd

Thanksgiving Day Event Facility Attendant    $   13. 82 10 138. 20

TOTAL 138. 20

408. 20

35



36



i

i I' EM 4.4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ISU SALE TO LOUISE AVENUE PARTNERS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving the Sale of 15 ISUs to
Louise Avenue Partners for Proposed Tru By Hilton
Hotel at 161 East Louise Avenue ( APN 196- 27- 023)

SUMMARY:

Louise Avenue Partners ( Applicant) is interested in constructing a new Tru By Hilton
hotel located at 161 East Louise Avenue ( APN 196- 27- 023) in the City of Lathrop.
Tru By Hilton has submitted a written request; application, and application fee for

the purchase of fifteen ( 15) ISUs from the City.   The Applicant has agreed to pay
the cost in the amount of $ 126, 990 to purchase the ISUs.   Staff is requesting that
Council adopt the attached resolution,  authorizing the sale of 15 ISUs to the
Applicant.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop received a written request from Louise Avenue Partners to
purchase fifteen ( 15) wastewater interceptor service units ( ISUs) for a new Tru By
Hilton hotel proposed to be located at 161 East Louise Avenue, APN 196- 27- 023.

The property is currently allocated 30. 77 ISUs.  

In accordance with the Policy for Allocating,  Reallocating,  and/ or Transferring
Wastewater Treatment Capacity ( ISU Policy) adopted by City Council, the applicant
has formally submitted a letter of interest to the City of Lathrop for the purchase of
ISUs,   and has a formal project application submitted with the Community
Development Department, and has paid the City administration fee.

The cost to purchase the 15 ISUs is  $ 126, 990.    The money received from the
purchase of ISU' s will be deposited into Sewer Connection Fund 6030.   The funds

will be used for sewer related projects and to pay back the General Fund which
fronted the cost to expand the Manteca Water Quality Control Facility ( MWQCF).

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Applicant has submitted a written request to secure fifteen ( 15) ISU' s for their

project, and meets the criteria for the allocation in accordance with the City' s ISU
Policy.  The Applicant has paid the administration fee of $ 500. 00 and has agreed to

pay for the ISUs within thirty ( 30) days of approval from the Council.   Per the ISU

Policy,  if payment is not received within 30 days of this Council approval,  the

transfer will be void.   In addition,  if a building permit is not obtained within one
year, the transfer will be refunded at the City' s discretion.

37



CITY P ANAGER' REPOItT Page 2

OCTOBER 8, 20 8 CITY COUNCIL REGl1LAR NIEETIN( 9

ISU SALE TO LOUISE A\/ ENUE PAItTIilE1 S

FISCAL IMPACT:

The $ 500 administration fee required to cover City staff time to facilitate the ISU
transfer and prepare this report has been' paid.   The $ 126, 990 to purchase the 15

ISU' s will be due within 30 days of City Council approval and deposited in the Sewer
Connection Fund 6030- 5030- 318- 0450.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Sale of 15 ISUs to Louise Avenue Partners for
Proposed Tru By Hilton Hotel at 161 East Louise Avenue ( APN 196- 27- 023)

B.  Written Request for ISU Transfer

C.  Wastewater Treatment Capacity Policy

D.  Project Description

E.  Letter of Authorization

38



CITY MAN GER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBEIt 8, 201 CITY COUIVCIL iwEETING

ISU SALE ' TO LOUISE AVEfVUE PARTNERS

APPROVALS:

2 J Fs'

Greg Gibs Date

Senior Civil Engineer

i- lo — l — lL3

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

Q — z — l
Cari Ja s—    Date

Director o Fi ance

Z  " f

Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l0•Z•!

Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

39



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING THE SALE OF 15 ISUS TO LOUISE AVENUE PARTNERS FOR

PROPOSED TRU BY HILTON HOTEL AT 161 EAST LOUISE AVENUE
APN 196- 27- 023

WHEREAS, Staff has received a written request from Louise Avenue Partners
Applicant) to approve the purchase of fifteen  ( 15) wastewater interceptor service

units  ( ISUs) to the property listed in the Assessor' s Parcel Book as APN 196- 27-
023, located at 161 East Louise Avenue in the City of Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, the property listed in the Assessor' s Parcel Book as APN 196- 27-
023 currently has 30. 77 ISUs and requires a total of approximately 45 ISUs for the
proposed hotel project; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has met the criteria as outlined in the City' s Policy
for Allocating,  Reallocating,  and/ or Transferring Wastewater Treatment Capacity
ISU Policy)  and has paid for the City' s administration fee for processing their

transfer request; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has paid the $ 500 application fee and agrees to

pay $ 126, 990 to purchase the fifteen ( 15) ISUs within 30 days of Council approval

of the ISU transfer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop approves the Agreement for the sale and purchase of fifteen  ( 15)  ISUs

requested by Louise Avenue Partners to be transferred to APN 196- 27- 023 in the
City of Lathrop; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approve the following budget Amendment to reflect the revenue of $ 126, 990.

Increase Revenue

6030- 5030- 318- 0450 126, 990

40



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of October, 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPRO\/ ED / S TO FOR o

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

41



r cH r°    

o       -.-C      

September 27, 2018

Louise Avenue Partners

103 E Louise Avenue

Lathrop, CA 95330

RE: ISU Reques# for APN: 196- 27U- 23/ 161 E Louise Avenue, Lathrop CA 95330/ PA- 18- 74

Dear Public Works pirector:

We are requesting to transfer/ purchase 15 additional ISUs for our new hotel project, Tru by Hilton in Lathrop CA.

We currently have 30 ISUs, but in order to build our projected 79 room, 4- story hotel, we will need these additional ISUs.
Please consider this request using our ISU application provided, along with the project description & elevations

provided.

Please feel free to ernaif or call me with any questions.

Thanks,

Anand Kotecha

Louise Avenue Partners

Email: cklathrop@comcast. net Tele: ( 209) 679-] 073

42



3
r li u i  ,  

U

CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

PURP SE: To Allocate, Reallacate, and/ or Transfer Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

Introduction:

This poficy covers the ai{ ocation,  reallocation,  and/ or transfer of wastewater treatment

capacity for users utilizing capacity in the Manteca Wastewater Quality Control Facllity
MWQCF)  or any available wastewater treatment capacity in the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( LCTF).   The wastewater kreatment capacity is commonly allocated as an
Interceptor S2rvice Unit" ( ISU) for both the MWQCF and for LCTF.  For the purpose of this

policy, an ISU is equivalent to 260 gallons per day of treatment capacity and the allocation,
reallocation, or transfer of existing ISUs between customers or between properties shall be
cansldered a " transfer".

Generai Guidelines:

1.    All transfer requests shall be in the form of a written request to the Public Works

Director.    The transfer is required to be approved by the City Council unless
otherwise permftted by khis policy.

2.    A Pully executed copy of Exhibit " A"  ( attached) shall be submitted wlth the written

request.   Exhibit " A" establfshes minimum elig( bility criteria for a transfer.

3.  Transfers of availabfe ISUs rnay be made to or from a property located in any zoning
district within the servlce areas of the wastewater treatment facilities ( NIWQCF, LCTF)

aFfected by the transfer at the discretion of the City Council,  or to or from property
orvned by the City.    Undeveloped and underdeveloped private property must retain a
minimum number of ISUs, general{y one ( 1) per parcel, to permit future development

unless the application is accompanied by an offer to dedicate all development rights with
respect to a parcel in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

4.  The cost of purchasing ISUs from the City or obtaining City approval oP a " parcel to
parcel" transfer shall depend on the original funding source of the capacity but, shall
generally conform to the following guidelines:

a.  If the capacity is located in the existing MWQCF collection area, the cost shall be
the Sewer Capital Facilities Fee ( CFF) adopted by the City Counci! at the time
the transfer or purchase is approved by the City or when the payment is made to
the City, whichever is greater.

b.  If the capaciCy is located in the existing MWQCF collection area, AND, wlthin an
Assessment District ( AD) or Community Facilities District ( CFD) which paid for the
original capacity, the cost shall be the higher of the Sewer Capital Facilities Fee
CFF)  ar the AD/ CFD payoff amount at the next bond redemption period,

whichever is greater.

c.  If the capacity is located in the West Lathrop Specific Plan Area,  or the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Area, the cost shali be the higher of the sewer CFF
or the AD/ CFD payoff amount at the next bond redemption period ( whichever

Is greater) and the Pond and Sprayfield fee.

d.  The fee shall be paid to the City by the applicant upon approval of the
transfer by the City Council.   Upon receipt and verification of funds of finaf

1 of 12

43



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

payment by the applicant, the originaE owner of the ISU will be relmbursed
the purchase price less the City' s administrative fee,

S.    The City' s purchase of capacity shall be effective upon mailing of a letter from the
Public Works Director or designee to the address on file for the applicant. ISUs may not
be purchased for or transferred to undeveloped land unless a proposed project exists

for that land. If ISUs are purchased for a prop sed project and a building permit,
parcel map or Final map is not approved within one ( 1) year from the City Council' s
approval af the transfer, the City may, at its sole discretion, repurchase the capacity
from the applicant.   The repurchase price shall be the same as the cost paid by the
transferee at the time the transfer or'iginally took place, less the City' s administrative
Fee.  riginal owner or recipient may request a Form 1099 to document income
received from the City for the purchase of sewer capacity.

6,    For the purposes of this Wastewater Transfer Policy, a " propased project" shall include,
at a minimum, a farmal planning applicatian submitted to the Community Development
Department. The application number assigned to the project by that Department shall
be clear{y indicated on Exhibit " A" and on all other forms and communications with
respect to a transfer applicatiQn. A planning pre- application submittal or verbal project
description does not constitute a " proposed project" and is not sufficienk to initiate a

transfer per this Policy.

7.    An applfcant may apply to the City to firansfer ISUs either before ar after the City has
taken action on a proposed project.    l'he transfer must be obtalned before

recordation oF a parcel map or final map. At the discretion of the Publlc Works Director,
the transFer may be required before final approval of a proposed project.

8.    Any transfer of ISUs may be subject to a " Right of First Refusal" agreement at the

option of the transferor.   Such an agreement shall specify that capacity may be
transferred to the original transferor upon its written request to the City only when
alternate, permanant capacity is avallable to the original transferee.   A Rlght of First

Refusal Agreement shall aiso specify that the cost to repurchase the ISUs shall be
equal to the original price paid, kess any administrative fees or charges levied by the
City.  All such agreements shall be subject t City Council approval concurrently with
the transFer that is subject to the right of first refusal but a transfer authorized by such
an agreement may be approved by the Publfc Works Director, without further action by
the City Council.

9.    Applicant, upon approval of the transfer by City Council, may become responsible for
ongoing operations and maintenance assotiated with the capacity being transferred,
regardfess of whether the proposed projects builds or not. This responsibility will end
upon repurchase of the capaclty by the City, The responsibility to pay for operations
and maintenance cost incurred prior to any repurchase oP capacity by the City will not
end upon that repurchase at the City' s discretion, the repurchase cost maybe reduced
by the value of any operations and maintenance unpaid by the applicant.

2of12

44



cin o tA rxROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Apg licatio Process:

The applicant should contact the Public Vl/ orks Department to determine if there are

unaflocated ISUs available for purchase, or iP it is possible to transfer ISUs from undeveloped

or underdeve oped property.   If the applicant wishes to purchase unallocated ISUs, ar to

transfer ISUs from undeveloped or underdeveloped property,  the following process shall be
followed:

1.    The applicant shal! make a written request t the Public Works Director to

transfer ISUs.

For a same owner, parcel to parcel transfer request which does not include the purchase

of unallocated ISU' s, the request shall include:

a.     An executed capy of Exhibit " A", Wastewater Transfer Criteria.

Exhibit  " A"  establishes a list of  " Faundational Criteria"  establishing the
eligibility of the ISU transfer. The " Land Use Criteria" does not apply

b.     The number of ISUs requested.

c.     An application fee to cover the cost of staff efforts,  including the
preparation oF stafF reports for Council action which shall be established from

time to time by resolution of the City Council.

d,    A commitment signed by one authorized to bind the applicant to

construct any sewer line extensfons and other facflities necessary to utilize
the ISUs.

For a transfe r re qu est,_ hich does, not Aqu al fyr;,as a sam wner,bgarcel to percel
transfer,

st,
he: re quest s h̀all incliicle:

a.     An executed copy of Exhibit " A", Wastewater Transfer Criteria.

Exhiblt  " A"  establishes a list of  " Foundational Criteria"  establishing the
eligibility oF a propased project to recelve ISUs. Additionally,  Exhibit " A"

estab{ishes a list. of " Land Use Criteria" ta establish prioritles oF prajects for

allocation of limlted ISUs. Projects must receive a mfnimum score of seven

7) to be eligible for a transfer.

b.     An executed copy of Exhibit  " B",  Purchase of FSU Agreemen[.    The

Agreement establishes the fact that the cost per ISU is under review and not

yet finalized.   The Applicant must agree to pay the City the final cost of
the ISUs, as established by City ordfnance, when that cost Is determined.

c.     The number of ISUs requested.

d.     A description of the proposed pro} ect in suFficient detail to identify the
potential impacts and benefits oF the proposed development. This description

should ident fy the planning application number assigned by the City' s
Community Development Department, If applicable, and/ or the parcel/ tract
map number.

3of12

45



r.

CITY OF tATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

e.     A commitment signed by a person authorized to bind the applEcant to obtain
a building permit, parcel map or final map within one ( 1) year from City
Council' s approval oF the transfer. At the City`s sole discretion the ISUs shai{
revert back to the City at the end of one ( i} year unless the City Cauncil

approves an extension of time. Any request for an extension of time must be
provided in writing and addressed to the Dire tor of Public Works.  The

repurchase price shall be the cost paid by the transferee, less the City' s
administrative fee.

f.      An application fee to cover the cost of staff efforts,  including the
preparation oF staff reports for Council action which shall be established from

time to time by resolution of the City Council.

g.     A commitment signed by one authorized to bind the applicant to

construct any sewer line extensions and other facilities necessary to utiiize
the ISUs.

2.    Upon an applicank' s completion of an application pursuant to paragraph 1

immediately above, and after determination that the minimum eligibility criteria for a
transfer have been met, the Public Works Director will prepare a report for City Council
action.    The City Council may approve or deny the applicant' s request in its sole
discretion. IP approved, the City Council may authorize the City Manager to execute an
agreement, approved by the City Attorney, with the applicant.

3.    If the City Council approves a transfer of ISUs between parcels, the applicant shall
pay all costs to prepare and record an agreement( s)  for the transfer.     The

agreement( s)  shall run with the land and be recorded to give notice to future

property owners oF the transfer and Iimitations on future development arising from the
transPer.

4.    The fully executed agr eement( s), and payment in the amount of 100% of the cost of

the units, shall be submitted to the Public Works Director within thirty ( 30) days oF the

City Council action or the transfer will be void. The Public Warks Director will cause
the funds to be paid to the transferee or deposfted with the City and will record any
agreement( s). The applicant may then obtaln a building permft,  parce! map or final
map if all other necessary permits and approvals for their proposed

development/ project have been issued,

5.    If a transfer of units is to City property,  the Public Works Director shal{ prepare a
report for the City Council.  The report should include:

a.     A brief description of the reason for the request. b.

The number of ISUs requested.

c.      The source of the ISUs.

6.  ISUs transEerred shall be limited to units that are currently available.

7.  ISUs on City property, or public rights- of-way held by the City, may be reallocated to
other City property by City Council action.

4 of 12

46



CI1Y OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

EXHY IT /

CI 1( OF " T' BiRO

APP. ICATIO( V Oat WAS' fEV6 ATE t CAPACITY TRA dSFEFi

This is a request to allocate, reallocate or transfer wastewater treatment capacity. defined as
Interceptor Sewer Units ( ISUs} for service to the fol( owing real property;

Address:       6   t.  jlik. rC, 111+p,     Q'   53

AP v{ s:
96 2 6 f 23

Praject Planning Application No.:      
a$^ t

gundatio l , Cj$ eri

For a same owner parcel to parce! trans#er request w ich does not include the

purchase of unallocated ISU' s, the applicant must meet a! I six ( fa) of tFoe

followi g Founcfational Criteria before the City will process this request for an ISU
trarasfer:

1.  Is the request in violaCion of any applicable Federal, 5tate, County, or City laws,
regulations or ordinances?

YES _       _ NO 1/

2.  Prior to filing thls request, has the applicant reimbursed the City for all iSU allocations
previously approved by the City Council, and paid the administrative fee required for
processing this application?

YES_   NO

3.  Is the property receiving the ISU transfer zoned for commercial use?
YES            NO

4.  Wilf the transfer request resuft in the receiving property having ten ( ia) or

less ISU' s? 

YES NO V

5.  Are there any pending and/ or unexpired planning approvals on the property where the
ISU' s are originating that require the use Qf the ISU' s to he transPerred?

YES NO     !

6.  Has the applicant provided proof of ownership or evidence they are a representative
oF the owner, in the form of a Grant Deed, Title Report, or other documentation

signed by the owner, clearly evidencing the legal right to act on behalf of, or otherwise
affect, the ISU originating and receiving properties?

YES            N

lndicates the answer required in order to meet" Foundaiion Crrceria"

47



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY P LICY

For a ransfer req es# whach does not qualify as a sar ne ovuner parcel to arc l

transfer the appiicant rroust meet 11 sox ( 6) of the foEOowing Foundational
Cr6teria ef re t City wi8l pcocess this request for an Y U transfer:

1.  Is the request in violation of any applicable Federal, State, County, or City laws,
regulations or ordinances? 

YES NO

2.  Prior to filing this request, has the applicant reimbursed the City for all ISU allocations
previousfy approved by the City Council, and paid the administrative fee required for
processing this application7

YES   NQ

3.  Has the applicant signed the City of Lathrop Purchase of ISU Agreement?
Exhibit" B")

YES           NO fV/ A

4.  Is the proposed development consistent with the Historical Lathrop Guidelines, if
appllcable?   _ /

YES V NO N/ A

5.  Is the proposed development consistent with the City' s General Plan, Zoning
Ordinance and Utllity Master Plan?

YES      /     NO

6,  Has the applicant provided proof of ownership or evidence they are a representative
of the owner,  in the form of a Grant Deed, 7itle Report, or other documentation

signed by the owner,  clearly evidencing the legal right to act on behalf of,  or
otherwise affect, the subject property?

YES v'  NO

lndicates the answer required in order to meet" Foundation Criteria"

6of12

48



t

CITY OF LATHR P

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Land Use Criteria

After apptying the fo! lowBng Lanci Use Criteria, this request must achieve a total of
seven ( 7) points before the transfer may be recommended to th City Council for
approvaf:

1.  Does a health and safety condition exist necessitating an immediate need for capacity?

YES = 1 point

NO = 0 points Criteria # 1 Points: 

2,  eased upon Commercial and Industrial priorities established by the City Council, the
applicant' s request is ranked as follows:

a.  Commercial = 10 points

b.  Industrial = 7 points

c.  Residential = 4 points

i 0d.  Institutianal = 1 point Criteria # 2 Points:

3.  Is the development a High Density Residential project?

YES = 1 paint

ONO = 0 points Criteria # 3 Points:

4.  If this is a residential development, will the development include at least 5a% of the

units guaranteed for low income persons7

YES = 1 point

QNO = 0 points Criteria # 4 Points:

5. ls the project requesting two ( 2) or fewer ISUs aC build out?

YES = 2 points

QNO = 0 points Criteria # S Points:

6.  Will the development result in permanent { not construction) jobs being
created?

0- 10 = 0 point

10- 25 = 2 polnts

L
25- 100 = 3 points Criteria # 6 Points:

7. Nas the CEQA process been completed, and if so have mitigation monitoring measures
and/ or canditions of approval been agreed to and/ or funded by applicant?

YES = 1 point

NO = 0 points Criteria # 7 Points:

3
Total Project Points

7of12

49



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Since the City Cauncil has declared that priority will be given to comrnercial development,
no proposed development with a score of fewer than seven ( 7) points will be considered

for allocation of any remaining ISUs.  For a parcel- to- parcel transfer,  the Land Use

Criteria are not applicable.

For parcel- to- parcel transfers, if this request is approved by the City Council, then the City
shail record in the County of San Joaquin Recorder/ Clerk` s Office, a Notice of Transfer of

Interceptor Service Units Affecting Certain Real Property { Exhibit " C"}. The Form oF this

Notice will be provided by the City; however, before the Notice is executed, acknowledged
by a notary public or recorded, the applicant shall provide the City an accurate legal
description of the subject property.

I, the undersigned, owner and / or agent declare under penalty oP perjury under the laws
of the State of California that:

1.  The information provided by the undersigned to the City in suppQrt of this
request is true and correct.

2.  For ISU transfers requfring a proposed project the applicant will make best
efforts to obtaln a building permit, parcel map or final map within one ( 1} year
from C(ty Council` s approvaE of the transfer and recognize$ that the ISUs will revert
to the City it the applicant does not obtain a building permit, parcel map or final
map in that time unless the City Council grants an extension of time.

3.  The applicant will consCruct any sewer Iine extensions and other facilities necessary
to utillze the ISUs to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director and in

compliance with applicable City standards prior to obtaining a building
permit, parcel map or final map.

4.  The appkicant agrees to accept responsibility for paying any ongoing maintenance
cost associated with the ISU' s being purchased/ transferred/ reassigned, beginning
from the date the transferred is approved by the City Councif.

SaGiVA' 9' UF ES

a[ 6( tg
Signature pate

tt wrl d Ko- ec 10.     c' ,

Print Name Date

As agent for:

Applicant ( if the Applicanf is an entity, prrnt Its legal name here)

8of12

50



CiTY OF LATHRClP

WASTEWATER TRFATMENT CAPACITY P LICY

Concurs:

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

Appr ved for Counci Action:

Stephen J. Safvatare pate

City Manager

9of12

51



CITY OP LATHROP

WASTEWATER TRF ITMENT CAPACITY POLICY

E3SF9FBIT B

CITY OF LATFiR i PURC6- Ie4SE

OR T6ZAiVSFER OF Y.' slD

AGi2EEfWIE{ 9T

This PURCHASE OF ISU AGREEME( VT (" Agreement") is entered into as of this

day of 20 by and between The City of Lathrop (" City"} and

1- 0 5 f}1r. Qari(' S   (" Builder").

RECITALS

A.      City has certain reserved capacity For sewage disposal in the joint
Manteca- Lathrop Water Quality Control Facility (" MVVQCF"} as well as the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCl"F).

e.  ThaC reserved,  but unused,  capacity is expressed,  for purposes of this

Agreement, as a certain number of Interceptor Service lJnits (" ISU") of 260 gaflons per day
of sewer treatment capacity in the MWQCF or the LCl' F.

C.      Builder desires to purchase, and City desires to sell,
1 S ISUs.

fVOW THEREFORE,   for valuable consideration,   receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Builder and City hereby agrees as follows:

1.  City hereby sells to euilder IS ISUs for use on the property identified as ( street
address or APN) (° the Land).  • 6i  „  , r,,  e 9533     AP=   Igb— 2' b Z'_

2.  6uilder understands and agrees that the price oF an ISU that is serviced by the
Manteca Plant includes two  ( 2}  components:  a Capacity Cost and a Collection
5ystem Cost.    The jrent Capacity Cost f r sewer s rvice ln the Manteca Plant
WQCF is ( 7'' bvs'" 17 i t($  2- ; The Capacity
Cost is due within thirty ( 30)  days of Councll appro f e ISU purchase. The

current Collection System Cost is project- specific and is bas d upon the slze of the

water meter( s) utilized for the project. Collection System costs can be found on the

City Website under utility rates.  The Collection System Cost is collected during the
Building Permit process and is due from 6uilder prior to the issuance of Building
Permits and Builder agrees City will not issue building permits For structures to be
served the ISUs sold under this agreement until Builder pays that Collection System

Cost to City.

3.  Ff the builder wishes to purchase or transfer capacity that is serviced by the LCTF, the
total cost including capacity and collection system charges will be ($_ per gallon x

260 galfons per ISU} _ $       per ISU.   For purposes of this agreement, the

Capacity cost is 50% of the total cost of an ISU and the collection system cost is 50%.

7he capacity cost is due within 30 days of Cauncil approval oF the ISU purchase and
the Co{ lection system cost will be due prior ta the issuance of the building permit.

4.  Builder acknowledges that the transFer of ISU' s from the MWQCF or

LCTF) requires the new owner to pay operations and maintenance costs from the date

ia oF i2

52



CI1Y OF I.ATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY P LICY

the capacity is approved by the City Council until the date the proposed project is
vccupied and payment of wastewater monthfy fees begin. The City estimates the
annual operations and maintenance costs for this transfer to be $_ year.

S.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereflF and supersedes all prior understandings or

agreements.   Thls Agreement may be modi ed only by a writing signed by both
parties.   This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
the laws of the State of California. If any term,  covenant, condition or provision

of this Agreement, ar the application thereto to any person or circumstance, shal! to
any extent be held by a court of competent jurisdiction or rendered by the adoption oP
a statute by the State of CaliFornia or the United States invalid, void or unenforceable,
the remainder of the terms, covenant, conditions or provisions of this Agreement, or

the application thereto to any person or circumstance, shall remain in Full force and

effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

6.  A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the City of Lathrop Director of Public
Works, and shall run with the land and City shal! record a notice of this Agreement
against the Land in the form aCtached hereto as Exhibit C.

7.  This Agreement may be terminated only in accordance with the City' s then- current
pollcy regarding the transfer of ISUs between persons ar properties.  If the Clty
agrees to terminate this Agreement pursuant to that policy, City shall record a release
of this Agreernent as to the Land.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  Buifder and City have executed this Agreement as of the
date first set forth above.

ca-rv:

5alvador tVavarrete Date

City Attorney

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

APPLICl YV' P:

a Kb.    z j
Signatur Print Name Date

Signakure Print Name Date

11 of 12

53



CITY OF LATHROP

WAS TEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY PQLICY

CHIBY' i' C

tdOTICE OF TRA@VSFER OF

IfVT R EPTC3 t S 1NER fJNI' T5 ( ISUs)

A FECTING CE tTAItd REAL PROPER' TY

Notice is hereby given that C M  °' C' P owner/

grantor) hereby transfers to   .. o    ' Se     _ _  _  buyer/

grantee) Interceptor Sewer Units ( ISUs) pursuant to an Agreement/ Approved

Application with the City of Lathrop dated
20       , which A reement/ Approved plication affects the real praperty commonly known
as    /{ 0   5—  I P lRG- 2'- D29
City of Lathrap, County of San ] oaquin, State of California, and the legal description of the
real praperty from which the ISUs are transferred is attached as Exhibit" 1" and incorporated
by reference herein.

fVotice is given further that the real property to which the I5Us are transFerred is commonly
known as

City of Lathrop, County of San Joaquin, State oF Cafifornia, and the legal description of said 
real property is attached as Exhibit" 2" and incorporated by reference herein.

This notice shall be duly recorded in the records of the County of San Joaquin Clerk
Recorder' s Office.

Dated: 
2'    20 1B

Owner/ Granto gnature

pY cj  
t(/"`

Print fdam

12 oF 12

54



H6 N° ,.  °

w

U

Date September 17, 2018

Community Development Department

Planning Division

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Architect:      David Burkett

License# C33260

RED Inc Architects

1217 J Street

Modesto, CA 95354

209) 247- 0448

david@redincarchitects. com

Project: Tru By Hilton
APN: 196- 270- 23

161 E. Louise Avenue

Lathrop, CA 95330

Re:       Project Description Letter

The proposed project is to build a 4- story hotel, with a patio, fitness room, ( 80) parking
stalls and associated on-/ off-site improvements. The existing site is an empty lot

between an existing hotel to the west and a commercial development to the east. The
hotel will be operating 24 hours a day and will have a total of 4 employees. Hotel room
types are as follows:

1.   ( 44) Standard King rooms with 222 sqft;
2.   ( 32) Standard Double Queen rooms with 270 sqft;

3.   ( 4) Accessible Kirig rooms with 360 sqft;
4.   ( 3) Accessible Double Queen rooms with 390 sqft;

For a total of 79 rooms with a 56: 44 K/ Q ratio.

David Burkett, AIA

Architect

1217 J Street o P odesto CA 95354 e 209. 522. 89C0    www. redincarchitects. com

55



n
NOI1Vn3"1315b'3   

c
Ya

o.o  .,

mv.w.o,r      .:...  
re.7    E  .,.::. 5r"T-:...       Y;=?  S

SNOLLV/313EW07
a

1
iss (-       

L.9

ei

r     

6

113PyO'O  ¢3rYn

rli

a{*" .^      ;.....       .      

O   -  
S

SrNI'IVJX   •rwntla
F

F

L      .   A7M`Pd.  (fY

ay,  p..       

fi

wnnm    uva1..

1        ir  
t   ,:,

ki'+,     '

i.' i
o

T.___ 

rt.

ccoc-qe    .w   
a+       fi„- ,  —-      :      y..   k.

0--'.      ..  

a-.k

t=   .
y_......-      

C',5C3d  t.   -,..,C=.,,.     ,..,...., ._.,- .   ... .   
Cc; 

f%r     
0

F,S
i         

i

k     ' -oo '`   x   ,+   —          _"' ..__      Y _ '; 
b        

sw         

r  

s 

S.;

s         

Gr—
w       :   .       aoz

fO °     '*.S`      ,';.
at 

3 

x     .        .:       Y'.
s  k -+"3

r-
p     ,      -:<,

n'-.wPqT 'vr! ___,.

r"       

ixwv     

awroc-'--4 ...--- i
o

p.+'
9'q'r''i

r+   t     *. 

i
4  

d       $iG  
hY_    

tr '   ,        +'  F
1,

i;7+Gr`..r!

y,  

v    

r  _           ,  '   .   I . -     i ,     .i :      a,,.•  ^xtt. ;       :    
o=,.=-    .,,.  b    o000     oo      o00o     '-.    -.    

I       , iCS9YI21Ct       'YI       'il01

m        1 
0 -       NOIlV/3153M  '   6

c        

N

mornn.       t: i"fT.
C   

o---—    -       _..       r`       "       

ry.
o

Y

s

F, _      y `-

r     ,
y.      _^      

o       
r     ;     ,,,    _; 

4.   ;.
a, tti,       

r
w

a

S'•   
3.  

k

r

Pp

a.  .. ..
y', T

Az•

r-      
N      i _     _    o-o-;oo- n.,,o- Q_`         

a

y  ,e

J —    
L      

C:q""•"u""'

o'; =,' -_.,       :..:    - ,.;.:...:.-,     _,..—.     -p    .     p,.j0  . _   _,. .0 '-• _• :1. 0.,. .   -.`!      
r

r

t       n` F

s     '..     1 
s-    .E'!     3

4  '     

a

fi

rrnavww     . r.n
g

r,,   { 

r-s       e-s      .      czY 1. I __ "'+T

ro{-+a.'tt.      
T

e*     
y     -+-r  

u

x

j

fR!'
f,'"'

A

pS3
d6

i._- 
t.: Al

j1'"

fd-.f
a"`

JF:}    .      

F
a    ." .  i     v   :  

r     _:       {y,W
s•-     a tk+fl3-w'   Ln

h        t-    
7j

1(`,.,',   

s  .   .n

f`  
f    .             

r`
I     .:°O'             °       00      -.:'QV

e,

lJ      .~ ''
i     _ .        

Y
m.-n.y   wo«,.oa. 

0

M. 

0

v,...a.,„    ,,

o
d,'

v,...m   ,
o

o„u=,,w.us

vo

yo..z,..a,.a,..sm,.sm.d  

vausarvsaroa+u ornasaawva'CK` S

iwsmau. xrve

No

y
N

56



i

I'    PROJEGT

INFORMATIONan.      
N

vu

IC I E. LOUISE VENUE

LATHROP, G G5330
aaE,,,

s•

aK.      

is,.   i ,  
P

t     

A,.,      

re g
sr+'° 

Y;
H a;:.   en.     a. i . om

4
5

d-    ,__    _   _     _ ::      . '     ,  _-   ....  -.:,.... " .....     ..

s  . a    :..   "'+   

s.
1 " 

vrz wcs wo roro- a.

w e

m j
Il tf . 

s 

N,    P '  i'   

rann. c    .     v.+. .

n..    Y    
a.

I

6
5  ,'.       '—___     .__  _     .      - r ,'   

v....c..,       . KK

a„4 i+ ;.:

j,,
Y      (--

m  — o- c9—  r.       —. o_       .    

nw«.     •   

F   '

3 s` 

5   

as,
r, 

t?   ""        ,     .    i`       uv.,. z S... R.. o

3;,     -  _ c.       _    `  ,    

m.   ..
fi,,,>...

s r".v :_.    ._.       

n.,.«< t. 4

r       ±:  ' „       -          
Y ,'       

M1i6 V ,.' 9'.. S:$ 3r      

2
PROJEGT TEAM:

ARC. HIiEGT

aw. wwaezrt an+ r. r+nrcn w

rartw. 1a+ ia V

GIVIL EN61f X LI611TIN6 OE516tJ

earmep no

Rua mwaxf w eaan` n+  ewt. r a annwlcr

Q
I nurr A A I T

h
oY...`    ' e

e"•""" e.wo. 

INDEX OF DRAWING SYMBOLS VIGINITY MAP INDEX OF DRAWINGS
v

K

r        °-,   

o    -

n,;  

3'  
o 

m.. 

o  --       6    

TM

uw+ v., c..,.....

rt..      

p-- g s rsun crurzn,R

o`„      

5

xivewaan
Gk

ue
w         T-

N3          
I

LI6MTIN6 DE: a16N

w

V,  

L    .,    

t;  

b ce+ r. w raan. oar  

r I AT

Fee
wo-na

1

S

hq
s wcm+ia ewo

v 0 wcour6

naan o n+ vcwnori I  /
1'       

COYERSHEETPRDIECTINDE%
n. w a, mvwm,       

SHEET P'OE%

rc.. n.  

N QO

57



i

HARLAN ROAD

a.,_-     ,_"-----------
r

LL_._._-':_-'•.       

r    .  .   -  -   

J___,.,
a i     ,. 

a y

t...... "' ---     

l -.. 

f --  ''.

r  i i
S•

ii r    
i

fa

M.....,.........,.,,..,,.,,

z@      *": i

S i     
E l.:;    ; `    i f  \

f i 7 i:;   p  }    i S
r..:. c

i
K hy    =  4 i4 0:      

S    —__ i f„
I    `.      

i     .......,,,.....,:     
I E-    i•;`   9'     I w.........

B

Y 6 I

i
a

I

S     ...    I       .    
Yw

e._i
t... "

1""'"""""" i I

S

a v  .
r..'.x     

I  i
s     •   

i i
i---••---"---'---"'

2 i      

I

t      .... J
f

i       

i fl

z

s

i
o

S,       
i y

i m

i o
I.'".   t

c

f           
y

I

6 t

i      ---;---, .  
s.    

I i

i     ,  ,  I__......._      
i,.. ;   

i
i ci.:     

i  '   !,""          ", 8       

@

f i

E.., r

i 6 b     =  m        

1'  

v, 

I  
is... r............... .... 

i
ii

1

O I  .,
u...    ..._.._._.. i_  

s.: 
v'  ."""_."._' :._.._ f........ n

0"

E. LOUISE AVENUE

5

n    

R RFR Xp9 d a;    & enx ^      
R    

FE EB `' a g     A g yM

a
je t "  p $ 

9  

z  a 

A

m
E F i) qg

p  ;• E¢ 9 p
Ed 

aq .
S  ;

zg` 

C    <

g
L

a 4
a aq,

aj 3!     
iqpd    n

2t It

N         

l 9
0p 4 y  

4
t+  

z  ° S@
3 r

II         C
JI 

M g )   6 i >   
S

ll       
n   ^ q5 a' 

q Aa    . 
Q 6,7 A 

q   Z

E  <aF      e p       9 s r
d a 3 o zq      e iaq F       —

y ;
Ooatt'[ i I u' KINY a. CGfOA

n. -= n PREL[ MINARY SITE PLAN EXHIBIT
t HAWKINS& ASSOCIATES g  aEw:°    

0.CE a rs'
F   

J•
ENGINEERING, INC.       .,

F  

E

r        '      

PRELI IWARY APPLICAT( ON EXH gIT FOR  • 476 MI" fCiIELL ROAll
r

q,  TRU BY HILTON i MOD[ STU, CA. 9575JO l61 E. LOUISE AVENUE rEcc2o sis- az9s 0.
LATHROP CAL. IFORNIA 95710

T'' FX:( 209) 578-. i295 I I    
58



yl      
v..       

yL an    ........._.___,__.   

RPJLUI."""'     g diw

Y
S s

L' a
3

y
J

o 4
l    '   

y m- wl
e w'---"--•'

k      .
Fc

i n

y       
a           __'-      

4.

r   . ..   _      
L

P        yIiARLAN ROAD y •
F      . -.. .

C
9

Y
y a """'       

C   _     

H' 11'.'_" Y     - '.   t       .v :- 

C

rt^ u 

p- t w . .       ._
p itil"

1-_•'= K. 14 ;::      ,::•.      .' y;.'    . 
I..:   

p

5.:.

t. f '       , T  '
P

oY.    

r1
M " `'_`"°'

c   -

3F je -  -, in

I

r   =    .....?. "''- o 
m  .%

6

I   .
3b s..,    ,    t

r      

1..
ro

w..,,, M,,,.. .

s     --      s

s    --       
I

j f
s I .,_.,..,...:     

i i ti----'
c .      i

j     ... 
ht i

4, 

I
u. u...... w

1a

S  .    .
i

J

r

i   '       r. m      .,,

f      , r

S   •   

i

fj i"" l'"""""""""""""""`      _   - 
f

IS   
4    

r

RS

I

r       

a c
r

I

r I £ i

t:.     

0  
n

3      ....• 

f•''.        _      _      _  
t'< i s

r    ' '  

4 e:s.

I

25
s«i  

t'       

i  _ -_

S'  

o
TY   

r.._. .....      

r i__....... J

t   _.

t,-•   I

t     .....     •-.  yA     +
n\  

o    /      i
I

Y
r   ` f'6y

f 9       
9

P s

a  d
i,.,........  --- -.•-"-_-'.--—--—-

rs a

r --...    ,.
k

k`   1;.''   r. 3`    kNS i
t a e

e

E. LOUISE AVENUE

3    

R FA Rq  a R r gse  o

g '    
a o   

jpp

A
a

h    8 ` u

j `
4

Ay z  7a r       m

L 04 B
E 

A, S R4 t      <4     
E sa

52 0   ' za   
M      n

a

N       m  
q

q
R

YB 4   F 9Gy Z  j

c p ,  ;    =;  ; x' a      
o a          R a g  4 ,   >

a              
qp Re  

e 

z  . 5° 
d     a5A a          

6     , ; 
a 4a '      9 R" ia 

R     a  a zq      aln aa

a, o,

PRELIMINARY GRADING EXHIBIT
r HAWKINS& ASSOCIATES     s o<"'       .. E.,,,

n '      s a. c. e iwo r. snw

F   ENGINEEEtING, INC.       
e z

N       ' y PRELI tINARY APPLICATION EXlIIBIi FOR: f 436 MITCI IELL ROAU

q TRU BY HILTON MODL•STO, CA. 95JSJ

161 E. LOUISE AVENUE q
1,   Pu:( ao9157s- az9s I  ,,,,,„ d

LATHROP. CALIFORNIA 95J30 g. q{
F.('- 09) 57R- 4295

59



d
d .,.

a—     T{AR A1V ROF:D—————    .- _      -      -    

x     _2      .  r.       , .    . ..     ..   .    
a

r-  ...       ':.  

x      ..   

r

4   

Z:.,.,   _' M1 --', ...  : --- ....    

r  ^.} .-, 

I x    

eµ
µ...,       ---      

T\ `\`   i        @ 3 

d:. i.. Y_`_. i
sw...,......,....'._.£ .

s
f    ... ....

I
i  '

9.,,..,,..

9
f

f  ' f  ' C-- _.
i t--     i

t..............., I

r M

i•-------••-•----  

i.  '----.'

I r• 2'
E

M.       

t f
v

I

6

2      ...  I Y

i    __

f   
3;   

C    -   

L
Y°:   9y  pi r

f       -   

N
v;+  

Ima

s     ,..•         ; ;   

i:.,..... ....;    I

s;:,    6
i

i t     ;    ;     ..._  a   

t   .  . 

i—....••-ri  

I i'-       

i••- 

3.   
i

1  ........ m n` va

I a

p

a E.LOUISE

AVENUE
fH R B

x

z    ea€ Rg 
Z

c$°+
y Q;

RA    ("] C

p 
a06 ffYa   

5
g3^     

E¢ a A6 E ' i 5 qE z S 7a
72       4 IY Eg Aq C R  9

O p
p  

5
d9:48 R T  $ R%i     <4

A s(   q5 yp7g p
a   >

a

w         

x9°" 49;     9 8[' l z

a,    

b
4   ,  

R   ;
a

Z 
4 >    >

v A;° a'
p °    

z 
n

o 
9 $  z   

9 t

E R ap :
a

g, t 
m x d 9a 9 o a      SiG ' IYq

a r HAWKINS& ASSOCIATES ' S

9       "'°"' n.     PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN EXHIBIT              E i"
P".' W

n       ENGINEERING,

INC.       ,
W PRHLIMINARY APPLICATION HXIIIBI? FOR:  a36 M17CIIELL

ROAD
9, p TRU BY

HILTON

f MODESTO, CA.

9535J 16l E.LOUISE AVENUE rti: zo> ns- a29s
I

IN  ,,,,,,,I.ATHROP CAI.IFORNIA957J( I F:('_OY) 578-

60



PRELIMINARY PLANT PALETTER

P• rAw.. P...,.
a aa.

ue..,., a:' ar°  

HARLAN RDAD
aws e " m... rur mnN'0 è. e.

W qw^ neati. eose. avmc. Mao. dn

p
nnb aa     aa 4nmrnp er leaMEamyev'. a

D 9 a Tme9

N ucsK

3 p  /             a. a.+. v Sam Harned

y  r Landsca e

3 q„„ o„ 

T

Archi[ ec[ ure

e, nmor... o. awrm-     _— r. q.. me. pw\ e         

3,,

f''`    
w.,. wxm   ri.... e.. m..

w n.! m /\    —     

V+.
ar.      uo. v na. ta.. '

e.. oe.. 
v. n u w. e:.      r+ we•

I. q+ WM—    waei. e> c
e

eamr.

3 J e.. c....... v g.,.   

e."

v u,.,
a

m.

nnroaaw..,.   

cae. m. M

w.. ro..

s:.< w      s.. m..    r,

I  .    

ww.. n., e v..      3' f

Z Erva W   \   —       _.     
MuipTrw      a s

t' 

I I_

S+ul

eawn q4 OVM+ e

Q ry       

I
u4Mu w Hni Sorw WiNv

5
d. ww rm. a     I

3.   I,    
I

w.,.. w.   m. w.

sniueas aGrwnamwr.

v.

I

1 o I__—     i   -  
a.,,;  ,..,, 

s

3 s°":°.".e'°""",

o--     . e. e,. a., a    

e

tl

9

T..

u.a.:°'       ma. n

A'+ 9F reme b       ap On

n w           Ponweum bp amNe      Fwnu„ tsreu

e+. row. `   w..aM.

mn.
w   '    ms..    

Q7 
0.

r... m... tm.. w. r une. u. eue

p

o. u.      '°      us+ onruh"'

o"... w° w."'.."

I      ,   . `--  
ww.y du     rm: ir."„    

a.. m.. a..  

e

a
1--      

o

EKNOl6I

I

uw m' vVew+ m

d',°• YO a

N MWII
m^     

w iw I n uI  _  _ _ -."_.____'.__   '
I

a.. K.+O b o en TptlP 1
o    — 

r..  w. v.. a A..

e m°,',.<".`",u` ! 
e Mew. ec m

g m.   ;

w r n

9 t   

I .
v.... bv... eo<  

n d..

Q a eo

o. nnc m. l  '-      
w, a. wn

uY

n

w o+   ,       """    
c...   

v'
m"

i
o

yl nw.' u+

VYuab
i   .     

z" upnn^ G vra. n'

aJemn. iwMu     Oe. n.^ YUu. uw

m
U

i1    u
w^"' qw' a°"" r      E cRatell

n ,. m  9 o
p y. 0... 9.. w `  

II
a..    Fw

c.. rvn.,

w,+ e..  0./ w
6 V mv c m. n9 wPa f" 

SJ
Y a

e   /   —   w°°°^  i          Tuw• mnav•   
amms. A' ameu aemuN Vue. n. n snmM

a
ave.+.... mee s„ e rc.. ra

I m" r"°" a"'° w"° 

a. w ti d,.. am. v..,.,. r

3 e.. a.. baa. e. e..  aw.
v. m.- m.... wA.+ n„ n.. m,.

e w..

1       — m,,, p,,,     
SITE CONCEPT NARRATIVE

9    ' I   —

d an. a

qwbo+. aobaMesne. qtiauP nr wsria cwas4^ vw

I
enwq. am b.. n. aM aec P= Tm a. qnr+ n.

I

oom cw mm w n+ awddw9 wwvn. Pmbeda.  uwuq u

ektmaw. a. cnY` N'. me. nvvw esi op..

B. anm mue

ewfw rwciamp Mnwxhve pa MuwwMaN p4+ n. a
a      —      

OiehiO' 9      .. I .  mbm mowaMw¢ oo-.`

ara web.. o. n+ W' 9a+ b•   
o..   nwo

r n aum. eee...`     

c•

d Ewa. anneaw. b^ o      . 
1—

S p  "-""°'"
0    

m    IRRIGATION DESIGN
a

su, a       —     i I . annpnv., aov... 

P. m_ a S.. W:° E"°`..

me.,, p m n.. W. nmM,. N

1
I . 

V<v w Mn01.

I
V tiaP q

f

o      —     

i LANDSCAPE AREA CALCULATIONS

9 r:.. wa K

a d   ' ;   -°',." o`'

Oc       _     i m. a..., n o. e.     

1 .     1,„ 3, m. a

o  
p: d. sm....:    . M.. s.,

o

J,.;----- Q i PARKING LOT TREE REQUIREMENTS
i r    w°m:.; m,°'

a. wa     
T

w...`'"

e°'   
a"

e.,¢...

w. o x i- i: w nad., i
7

Prelimtrary

E`" P'°""'°°"- BICYCLE PARKING RE UIREMENT y
a pe

TM_.    __     
II   Plan

e

k a"i: F i

we.wsxww.. wm, c. o. an
o.... a:

i-w LOUISE AVENIJE
uo°""°"°"°'°'°""'°""     

ey:° v-° wnwa. a       y-

p
LI

E

rv

elwrs\ z. wla vn< lomnxrs nuVr ee f\ u- m- wn. am.+ ulr. asaolwn. l m._, e- oosrrre. eR+- r-.... J. ay ea. wer

61



mh o-a.Hg. r'. a Q oo-a,. ee. n ue, py' yJm p. ope. 5 w a, n ar we ac. ma o- g q oi e a, ap. ae.< a o rapre,. m wi w p sw r e. e kw i ac P M,. n b. v., r.n... m. a.. ,,., a,=:=-

j,          —  i    ;    ;  ,  ,  ;  ;  I L II    I__ i_  i i    ! J i ij  ,       

il
i

I
I i

I__      
I I

i

I  
i      - -- I jl

EXISTIN6 HOTE1     . 

I       I II

I   . i I i I Ii
I      _—_ __    I I I

I _  i I I'

O            -- -      -- T-      ---  r  .--- T I---- -- r------ 7--    I I I

U1
9

a.-_-.....,  ,    

I I        !           
I       J

ffl I I I  !  i L  '       L J I I      
I I        

z ..{-!   iI I I I

i
I

fi       .  .     i

j    '  I I  '  ;  ;
E ..'    i  '  i i i       i    .   _ _

I i j 3 I j      I    I  ,     I 1    ;       I i
r: :z.=:::.•>   t :::;:< t;:>::•:>::;      i i

x.....  ........:..:.-....... :=:.   : t•::•:::•>:•:•::•::•:>;:•>:;::•::• s:.:;:::.- r 3:
r...      

s:•. a '•:;>;;.:

f    f r....,. .....,.,.

u. .... .......:  • ...    • ...:_.

I i   
I I I I ' I I I I— I I I I I I _. I. I_. I. I-- I I I I I I I  '  I I— I I   ° I I I I I I      --- i—  i

i   , i   
0

Y
3   4 3       d/ a      - T'

I
S g

i     

t   -;:   ,             
s   

a 

z    
I 1

t i:  n     :, e

i 1     `  ., `     {     
3          4 i i ! Cl

r       ^_ a

i  -`=-•:.  I      
a

4 -  
r - ..      

u
a I I

j:;" 3   i       ` i::;:  
t}'      /

2`;' I
I 4.•       i       

f , ;  ``_ i       

Q  i

r
J•: iK',

y  

O
r  `       -      

s K.. d s.  

I      I

a   
r i

Qi`.   " -.
q._

C,:..  _     
I,,. I,,.         

4 s:;;        j   
I

Im

1 P,.::>::•:>: 

r

4:    I.   :      i
x%+;: a;:

j
7 1,: r:: v::. v. v. v:..::::::::::' v..::.:.

1 .........      '-'_-"._...._.-.........' _'    _-_-  

4":-''_..__
srs`.-..-

vn.: n;vn?

i. qy.• y:   ':•: 4:•:~'':!

4 §       i '   

I

I    '

1 I I

u'      f!   
i

exisride

4 alitDi   i   
i

p

I

z l  

I.              
i`r--,

I
i  '  i i

I  '  . I I.. I i     --- I    
i  , I i

i  !  I_ I      ,_ _   i/

i j

i  --  -       --     -  -    i

ag

F s$  q

p F3        
T

6k t x  e'

6          

F

k

F d L y 7 
p

5
a4g

S     

d7      3S y    6 YS 3 4i  '

iI y e ad
F

0 I C< KC

r

c srM oa. s.. rr w+.

o     a    Y°   
a q     

o a l   
g 9 9 . L 181 E 64VE.      
9

F A r, w.+   aa H}   N

62



0
00 0 0 000

0
00 0 0 000

r s r•ra5 ta     sr s r a ts

jjljr -      ;:  _    __._ _  _ _.. ._   1       .   1 1'` d11 "___
t     '* F! l i'      

O   .       a        4 J.:;    O

IIIIIIIII      J IIIIIIIII   / II    i, 

n    ,  i 1    —. u.•

q

1    I   .=     
i:.   4 a    ;  1`

t1      v r6    -.,..? 

T..: l    •: iv s,: i== H I: 1.,:    Z .-'

e.    

0

J'^`    ', , I  G;  
i 0

I
1  =    w I:::

o q     ' '       `,    \\    _      '    o
u.      

I          
r

a
h

po  • n=  f    __  •_,-i.i

i.    K'  i    t   ,   
G Wi

A;    F r<<    .      

r---      o
r--,-:I,• i  ,    ,  il -   '—    

oal      
I    :::_' jr a    ;. I'1i :

i 1   i'    `,  l: 
si:      - if 1n1 ni`       r    ,

j''  
u a. F1      , y., i     o _..--    .,_    \_,     i

0t _ . a:  .
J. n      

t  
n

II
n

a'

J

i• u u 1: 1 + u'              : :    v  i fi:  iv 
rrllr     IY  : r i l\ , S:      Il i, l.• 

i

v.'     "
i i' 11 Y1   rt;    0    -  t"

I `

I    7'
r ,'.     

0

11    n:     n

I-   C-   ..
L 11  !« i 1 1 ..   P    ,  t.:

I   . i •         •i O
u--     '    ,..   — •     

r i-..  O

n 

L•7 ,i n
0 Jt. O

1     11 i,    "' '.
y

f i!-- r e i. .
6

niiu   e,    : P ,.    

z     .,       -          
a      1:a: r

e
i `_      

Nr_  _, : I\ ,?    i
9Y v    :        rr     ° jII 11I f:)  • v

f`       
r : j wi'   r      `    ,'  I

r    .  ,..       
o .,      

L '
N 1 ._...;   

O

IIaJ 1  ,    

I,     

7 ri/     _
e w. y-     z  ,,,,,    

r
e

1} t l``

i    ,. a

y          .:.. ''_`'
i:;    y '• .

Y     ' 
n ria    -..-.    ,.,       r n. .     i .,_.;.'.

i       ._.,..... _.„

I if      v

I   _  ..!. i    ,, 
8

1_.. ;:    ',;` ;          1_ I° -    '    ;;  ,
F;,

1
i r  r   I\. T    4. Il, r-,.. 7.;

ll'    ,'` `    111 ;      I)j ._=,` 
e

A           A A A

I!    1:  r31      . It j  `!'    , li  ' '
r         r'    r 1 L    ,   

I
a,       

V .  CJ

I

s, y..' u._. . . 
F. 

e.._  4 `._.__.-.._,  
ti_.__y        .,.

a .^
V. - 

0
M   in       i_   ;;:,      

e
iiiiititt       , i .     =0000      ' IIL. _      :    ` l

T   

III III`    :   :
i r.--,,,: f.I

d.. _ .. ..

A A1110m •',      o
illOm

iIIII
Sess i  

0  !

t; t, i:' !€ 1: R3 ry Ì

63



mn o-v+. y. P" ea o-oW ee. h th mPf h P° Pd l o a. teu arhtt i.t x. me truyq may rot a nrAreprmc' t r copre wrt ve p m wi r a.+ee rrd, e ve    .,,.,. o,... r.... m A..,.. 2.. 0..   ---"--

F

qD

Aa
o        i

Z i    

m I 4     n,

i i iii

i

N

T n
r    o -.\         O

I i

Zi   
L    _,    - ,    

i

r—         i i         I   nii

I I   
I      ,       I I   ,;

L_ J      — i i    
ui

cu

F

qDz

i

i
g q'  n

i i
rn

i i

p i i u

r iz

4

N

rn I  ' jr j
LJ

J
i   

rn
SJ    (_— --  _  i i rf  '— I"

1','

m         I
I  — I    /  I

I  i
L_ J       '  '    '

go g     -        4 l i9 g    g RaF  ; D

k        169 . L 6Bi E dV.      t;,''   
d e  ' u. mc cnuForinin IaN  p,  1-'

64



mh aao-g. Pmled Q W n+. ee. y the c° Pf' 9i1e4 P' J or 6. ken MrAMeet x. ra trn. ng nq rot be r,4 rcpraerea re rnpiea wrtrat tln pumraun a Brteu arMeu Pc    ..:« e,.,, r..r.„ e..  -..= K..—

sgda'

i       '' p i i i i
6

i

I t r''   

O       

I I
I i I
I I 1

r";_-     
p

1 I

L J'=+         
I I I

i
r,       

I1 II I

iirt—.   .. 
l -     

r .

p I i '       I I I

i I i

II
r,   

I    i I

I     '

r__    , '..    -- —_    

I

i

i      
I

I r 7

I 

I I

i       I  , I L:  I I I p

r;    —
e_     ,     

i•_I
i!       r

ii i 1       I I I
II

I i

J_    
iyl r=__       

i i i l i

ji I I I

u    ;  
i i i

i i
5 O i i  ii        

u             -;4O
r."i     --

A-   
i        -      -   i  -     -

D I i

Z
i i i

ii i     -   i i i • i

i i i--     a      ---     -       -   

i        i

i    
l

4 I L..       I"

c   

i,I i"

i•      
r c   _     _     _   

Y

i i      r-- r - ir  i i       i
I t i L_ Jl__ J 1

i
1       -!      

I
J    

y
I ;

r

l7 I r^        i j._.I" _
JL_ r_;L._ LJI. J I I       "

O I 1LJ
1I t-   __

f_' i 4- f'^

I I 1 L__ JL_ r   
I  _

L_ S      -     
j'.; ___

1_ I     _      '

i r-- ir-- r  
o r- r--

I       __.! L__' JL._      _._ ...__     
f

j I I

I       ._'

I _

I

i i___    

e_   
I

I

I L     I I 1 I

i'   
I I

I       ,i e

i  - iJ-     - O

I i__    
I   

I I i
I I J

I r^  I O I I
I        

Ii  _—_           
I

I       

II I    _
lf"' 7__ 

I I I

1
l JL__ Jl__'r

1—

LJ         I

il I
L       

I

i,,,.:...,..-;.  O

I      _____     ___  _   I

LF 4P6 } D

u,-   -      -   ,  g 9a$ 9
e e e  

i '¢
4

9 F a

W

o                 9 4  
F

gy 4 9 1 E. 60UISE AV.     
L     

N O   LATWOP GALIFORNIA M y+`   

65



mh o-arg. a' nee o-w,. m. i ue wpy ae a'av rtY or a. teu x uui x. ne aw` g rot r 4. p. m m o rapbe we` o.rt ne p, d a« u kr. i ac    M. n.., s.. d. A..-,.=='
T

a     
eN eH a av

4

o O
4 

I I I I I I I y
I    A

I I I I I I I
4

D
m

I I   ,   rr 1t             

I_.,:;   :. 1.., I:   ----0 a

I:.=`,:;:};;. 7;>  < i`';;;;:>x:;?:°:
g          I" ;;: lt

0r

f  , ,    ,     t

a   

5    

I 1'    ---- 0

a     ,   
l'       

l  l`      1-    ---- 0

6
X        Id     IV..„ f    ,:
r,  {.  , :     

r    ----
u f I .     f.

o  
t,      ;       #

y      Q: 0
I I I I I I I I

ki        

I I I I     I I    I I $ '
Y

0 ti I I I I I    I I I I R '
i   . I    i i ii    ii ri   

a       i     i. 
m"   

i;    --- s    f i I I i I .    -:.-    ----
o

M

F     ( 

g  

d
rn t. .,  C     __ 

i'o   ,$     

v

t             D i; t 71U1,     •.

l I      I 3    ---- 0 0 j G    `  ,

i 1 I`             :     

z     
t

I F
r ,!'     "

I.
Q

t.

5  „      ' v
Y w     ?., II II lY      

I

r   I
I

Z i

i   •   ••  i.  .   '       —__    

v

I
I'  g      '' a-.•    

JI
d

r ":            : i:
y ilY,

l
14     —"_- 0 f

I       i ili         
I

I i t f.          

F

1

II    ' Y,       ;
i      '    

xr            
k g        6 p g Y g 

i.     
g

r  
yy

6 0 i     c Y     

s z      
i ,' o ,' e

F

lt     A      3c      ad
5

I  
T..

z Y. i '           I a A
i,

7' a a a a e r R  

ai..,:
w... 

i..
li .,. .`..,` . .. 

q.    
9 E
q     '+, a y d y i i     § L { i

i  '   .  I  :^ I  . .. i
r    ,...:  ---

b    .'..';'. ....'.-.: )`

b

g            g oo   o 0 0   auo g
p

d

4  !     

g     

A
a a e

a       <         
s       a d         a  9        q  g g    

F £

4 7       , a    6 4 ` a, ; § 3 a9 '   e
4

4 > > 
c   

D    
y[+     se cauar En FarL

F

a      

p i ai.   n   e   
o              .    8,'    p," cp.,'.,   a  „.   

x

Il''` l l  
e=

9
e    

iF

g1  
4 161 E. L UIS AV.      

N O   IAiNFOP GPLIF00. N A 1•'  q

66



j
o.,.  .,.,  

o   , ,    .  .,.      

Nr! 
ro., w.   .     

o.     ..

µ...       Q       Q Q Q        o,.. _
wH     , i i i i i i o     .aaro,.

o       4
o

A:,,

a.   . o   .,.

a   ...  o.,.., .,    
ff

o
w q L i'  - R•'

r
go-

a sr r'
Y

t S

r

Y

a.., a   

f"

i m.,+

t. ,

b.    

i'       

Y'

ss

sa

h a. r..

wnawn)

J 1NORTHE

LEVATION

w

a oI6 oI5 oI
oII]  oIt o110 oI 4

o] I oI o5I oI 4J 4t
oI 1 I I I I I I 1 1 I I 1 I I I

I

i I I I I I I I I I I I I I
I

ao  
I to

nwre   

P
O

n'_   
J.   

1.  `       

r rw.

wce
i

5- 

J"- a o  • 
r...•:...:  ' a, ,.,            

T

O1

x r

k:: 3'       

s',    

F,.      .

a       

i  . s-       '+,  ..  . 4._ . . ,. ,-     . ..;..     . .;     ' f   ., . ..    
e     

x. 2 r -.    .. ;-..   ..,... 
i.     . i...:>..:.. ,.. r. +   ; t:     .,..:   

r.

5 x

c

r

r.  t
j

r t       :   
s

Tn       .  g
ss

r

i .     

h yE%

iERIORELEVATI0N5 EA ST

ELEVATION
A401

J KEY

67



m t  :°:':»
m        

Y
4      I— r

I
Z I

i•.•'.

r jE

O    ' i .
1•..

c

o    

o       

q.  ;°    i::...

a:::.

I_...
0 i

l ..

1

I

J'      .`: E, :

t
J

Q
I...

p

i:•::

i:

i,,:

1 q

t Rt
a

i1. 7

I
i1

B

i
t:::_

B

B
j y:

ii:

gs
5 p

i..• r

Mi

a  ` d
7

i

c i

c
2 f  m

iq

C e 5 Li

z Z S O
F R R C

5 3 3

O 1:" I      r     ...    

S

S i  g t  
o   = E;;   TRU BY HILTON

o m   3' 161 E. LOUISE AVE

4
p      

s

68



o:: sq: g::; j: a::: i:%:i:ti ri a:  :: a:'  a  a    ;{:'. i::; i}; i; t;

a m °   
f   . 

i- r-; 4-€=:=  . q.,:.._:.;.,:;;;,

4 : i  

Q T, rq'` q r c•. . ,- '.

i
4 q r'.::     I:':';':':'} Y.}:

aql-: q' y r1 rl rq c5 at:;

4 }: c•:::   —      r- : i; a q y• q s; o q l rl q•• i• :.

Q   =: rq!('::    S rql 4 4 4 4 4 4 R ri zi S l" l :

O  ' 
S;, a;:

rql;<
q rq q: q q I r. el r('{ i      oy a

i: S} q 4 Y 4  + 4= 4 v; a sl r u{.

4I'  
r r aq a i;.>    . t. o

RI 4. ry:. q< q cq cq. q rq ey o} o e.   .  ... F ti. U o

t:• y      , rl vq e y: r. a vq    .  ni

ti. l. i. y
z

t: q• q C% q PG vq eq• l     . lii:c: oq ai
n 7 ti I q  .   .

L.
q• qrlel l 4oG l I,    ^ c

L

4' 4 7 iY' 4 4 l el' S    - 1 aq a

Q ,       tq q y Qq ` ` { ; 05
F .. i oq ai

D4 ; L'     Qrq ra ry ep r e oS e; S .`. i o; o.

C 4"    o       . 4 q c r, eq rc n:    sp... , o

C 4
q      '  M1`' Y l lotit; t t1.- aqac.

4..   

4 . 4 4' 4 4 a4^: l   ' ' : £; ay cc

q G 4° t rl• 1 rl r eq e.' j vq o4WW

a      
4 4' 7^ 4 1': l . t      '' 04^ 5

i',    q' qeyrlrlrl> l        u4

q
s, cq.; . q vr, q a; P' r.    _.'  

I q. qc' ` .
a

1       . 
qP' lo:• i S ' la' t

aC' a4 9

I      
S 4 eq c a: .   

r  .

q pq

l;..  3 eq c ct c{ o; c i   y oq

l ;:"

I
Y 1. '   °. al l:  '. . 1_.; oqaq

4' 4 a'
l l' S t s l      ; 7

4 4.   sa` 4° 4: l+
li    .:'';

4" 4

4<  <' ° 4` M1 4 lr' l l? i' tsl  [",% Say

4 '    4 o4e4al' l l'
t i l  [•' a4aq

q .    4 I  I 4 ' t G  +'   f. 4> C 4
a : s f  i, 3: i r 5. y a5 os f; oo a

4 :       q c M1 1 r7 eo e;<    +  f 1

o
pY

S .  n 3 tr5" 4 o4 7<' l l i{' l el I e. 7'.°
4 :.:.    r7

c'
3 s4+ 4• 4 l l> l h, 9

05
9 ::    39d.     M1 4 9 e5 al•   ' r ':.

q a

S        Q i
q o5 q e. a,  

f,::

sq_ q cq w •  r`    
t. o,   :

4 '       4 r     : 7 7 a4 4 l l l   r' S' t

i         '•:•.•.•    .    q. q sq. q uy q o  .    .;;:  

i` 4°° 4' 4' qia° 4' 3.° 4_' i_S

4L'    - 
a' 4` 5` t'` s°    °'

c

3= 4 4 oM1:   .   .'•' 4[:

AS:? ry:.:.. 1Y.',_.'_'= a c_'- q c    '. 
Y L.....•' vq rq o, . 5 i;. c. ' t".

aS. oq..     : q c ey cq c rq t < q o q eq r i       ,. d. q o

EQ•:   _. 4 rq c c¢ <' 4 i ' 4 .   s v 4° Q oq' l+ l S'; l
a • G Q' i; i::    

f

a. q. q, q cq q r; c q r c q. q. q s q r q u y i v. t v r r .'.,

y o

i 4 p,
o c9' i.•   .' S ar qsq. q. q. q. qrq. arq. qrqvq Qeqr v v;. s   • I :^ 4

a:: t.•.'•4 1 4' q' a° 4° a` 4` 4s4° 4° 4`     ° Z°' l t' l^ C S { . M1^ 4

4?:     . q rq. y rq rq q eq. q rq. q r• vq e rq. y, r   •    i} 7 4

i 4`;` i

c
l l rl rq y q e

1 l: l r l t
t

a
l {

l}' 
7 Qi

I4 4_{ t' lstc itiy lr

L'    ,     lcl= l' l G 4
v.<{ u+'

s l' l  . ti-!{.}:(..     • 1 0l sl 1 l l I oY< q,, n n uy
i.: 'ai!1 f_ G.: rl l t e, eG r( oS l', rl• l        .  ' a4

9'' '.' l':` S'`` I l`:' l' l   - 6 r5° G` S" + 1 1' 1 ' '' t:  , 3

S':  a.
rc4- ur l° t' l' lst l'[ it`

1

o(

vS(. r, ; r. e rSt;.

lt .
1.: 4 i 't1:: j i o e e' v r: r a{ c    Lli. ; S.° S°

T_ 

iq. o;. 

ti:•'  . TT' t l 4 , PS 4- a4 e5f r= i i o:«. rC rl n' G c5. 5 0; r'     ' v0.
y.. .

q; e''
l cl T rl; S rCYti'.  .

j}   ,  
i o a,. .-  ,  y..,..:

q oyi
ii: i<' S- l= l^' la: lrl l G SaL S< < a; r{ eqsqi r,. nqeq.{ eq aq. y t a4
r:.' uq r i r<- r vl" 4 4 4- 5 c} v     , S^':<' l l     '. t   : i^ i

Iq':+  ' l' l l l l' l l tl el SC. C{ t  

s
r{. t a. S';+' 4 cl rl o G I rq: q° G

r' cl l' l l l t      '   `; S* i i' t= l l' l+ l^ cs' l 4    ' ioi

i'

2c 
s c a... c[       .

6 0 o.. , v c' r s'« T [, .«: 1 4
it y1- i4i§' S 1' l l l '  ' C'{• CI''      , l.s- 1 97 9-

4' l l* l°'{•' L 4

9.° S tl r{ i; s c o a      

4 4

l :     " l l l- 1'' l 1 uM1
5:+'• v'•

T: S•'` l^ 4' 4'

4o-       
4a '    l-' 1[ r s r( rSrir4   ; 4° 4

5':  ' G` i aL sl' l e7` 4° 4° 4° 4°' 4'   ' q`   • y° t r rl' i t: 7 a
i ry: i r c{ i e,- r o e q e4: q rq Y4 rq. o.    , 

t 4 4 4 l
9 l R: i l   . 4^ 7

q, ii . l vl' l o'
l ai r4 ra r4 sp 9. 4 r9.   . q s4 sq+ q ry s o i     :  

a7
r,". .... .

q rq cq cq o rQ vy rq o, s l c

i

a . c$ ti•w+•<} r: j         e    ,? 

n

r:•.  Y  4' • 4 1 y. aq
i,  i5:"•`. q v rq q q    ;; r: : rq: 1 0a

i
x 8    cCf 4 0

f € ! y
a    

c
e ea m

aE
Z

Ri 
o

s a

m

i•' t2'    
f

Y

t
v O   Si  

o   :;'!;   TRU BY HILTON

9        ;'!

i 161 E. LOUISE AVE

4       

69



c

ClTY OP LATHRO

L. E' TER OF AUTHORiZAT ON

This document shall serye to notify the CEty oE lathrop that the undersigned are the legai awner( sy of the

property descr( hed in the attached appiicatian and do hereby authorize the person/ firm identified

belaw to file and represent my/ our interest in the application( s) listed below.

Authorized Persan:

Name/ Firm d l' K Q !   Q°' S

Adciress 43 E...  C S.. vc'  t,A l• oQ  CA 95 330

CityJState/ Zip

Phone Z' q 4 3

AppUtations:   lA # F to.' lol     Q101' pN  - C T('t/  ( i'

Legal Owners:

The unders( gned are the legal owner( s) of the sald property; have read the foregoing letter of

authorization and know the tontents theraf; and do hereby certify that the same is true of my/ our own

knowledge. i/ We certify f or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Californla
that the information contalned in the above referenced applicatlon{ s) is true and correct.

nn  K ch      a u ta

Applitant Sign ture Print Name Date

Balubhai G. Patel os/ 2712018

Prnperty Owner Si natuse Print Name Date

70



ITE M 4. 

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  ,

ITEM:       ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B

PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving a Precise Plan Line for
the Stage 2B Segment of River Islands Parkway, and
Common Use Agreement with Reclamation District

2062

SUMMARY:

The proposed project involves a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving a Precise Plan
for River Islands Parkway for Stage 2B of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 3694, from the
terminus of Stage 2A to the terminus of Stage 2B area of Phase 1.   The proposed

2018 Precise Plan Line ( PPL) for River Islands Parkway (" 2018 Plan") sets the right-

of-way alignment for River Islands Parkway.   The 2018 Plan is very similar to the
previous ( 2007 & 2014) approved plan lines in that it sets right of way widths, lane
alignments,  cross- sections and other details necessary for the City to accept
dedication of right- of-way and improvements regarding River Islands Parkway.
Common Use Agreement ( CUA")  was necessary to delineate the obligations and
duties of the City and Island Reclamation District No. 2062 (" RD 2062") for a portion

of River Islands Parkway that shares right- of-way with RD 2062 for its interior levee
protecting the Stage 2B development area

Staff recommends that the City Council approve a Precise Plan Line for Stage 2B
Segment of River Islands Parkway ( Attachment B), and a Common Use Agreement

with Reclamation District 2062 ( Attachment C).

BACKGROUND:

In 2003, the River Islands project received various major entitlements including the
certification of a subsequent EIR  ( SEIR"),  revised West Lathrop Specific Plan

WLSP"), Urban Design Concept ( UDC") and Phase 1 Preliminary Development Plan
PDP").

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map Tract 3694
VTM 3694") and on June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to VTM 3694,

Phase' 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of approval for new
development within Phase 1.   The conditions of approval require a PPL for River

Islands Parkway, Lakeside Drive ( arterial section) and Golden Valley Parkway. PPL' s
have been approved previously for other segments of River Islands Parkway,
including for the Stage 2A segment in April 2018.

71



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND COMMON USE AGREEMENT WITH

RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at the request

of River Islands Development, LLC ( RID").

As discussed above, the applicant is proposing a precise plan line for River Islands
Parkway as it transverses the Stage 2B portion of Phase 1 area of the River Islands
project ( Attachment D).  The River Islands Parkway segment from McKee Boulevard
to Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge was adopted in 2007.   In 2014, the River Islands

Parkway Precise Plan from Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge to Somerston Parkway was
adopted.

The City Council approved a Resolution on April 9,  2018, approving a number of

entitlements within the Stage 2 sub- planning area of River Islands at Lathrop Phase
1 development.    Among the approved entitlements was a revised Preliminary
Development Plan ( PDP) for the Stage 2B portion of the development area. The PDP

provided a revised circulation plan for the Stage 2B area, including the location of
River Islands Parkway.  At the time of the April 2018 approvals, the Council approved

a precise plan line ( PPL") for the Stage 2A portion of River Islands Parkway.   The

Stage 2B PPL was not proposed for approval at that time because a Common Use

Agreement (" CUA") was necessary to delineate the obligations and duties of the City
and Island Reclamation District No. 2062 ( RD 2062") for a portion of River Islands

Parkway that shares right- of- way with RD 2062 for its interior levee protecting the
Stage 2B development area. Staff and RD 2062 have negotiated a CUA for the Stage

2B portion of River Islands Parkway.

The overlap of right of way between the RD 2062 interior levees and the proposed
extension of River Islands Parkway is a fairly common occurrence in the Delta as    
roadways are constructed adjacent to and over levees.   This overlap occurs in two
locations along River Islands Parkway.   For the entire length of this section of River

Islands Parkway, the levee easement extents into the 24- foot area between the edge
of right of way and the curb line.  The second area is where River Islands Parkway
travels up and over the interior levee, to make a future connection with Paradise
Road.

MBK, the District Engineers for RD 2062, have assured the City in a letter dated March
9, 2018 that the easement overlap with River Islands Parkway will not negatively
impact either the FEMA approval for 100- year protection, which has already been
received, or the 200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection which RD 2062 will soon

certify ( Attachment E).  This is because the longitudinal overlap still allows RD 2062
to view the base of the adjacent levee for any seepage during high water events, and
because all utilities in River Islands Parkway will be constructed above the 200- year
required freeboard where the roadway crosses in the internal levee.

72



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND COMMON USE AGREEMENT WITH

RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

The applicant is making this proposal in accordance with Condition # 59 for the Phase

1 VTM 3694, which requires a Precise Plan for River Islands Parkway prior to approval
of a final map that abuts the roadway.   Since the applicant will be proposing final
maps for recordation in the Stage 2B sub- planning area of Phase 1 next year, the
segment from terminus of Stage 2A to the western edge of Stage 2B is necessary.

For consistency, the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 12. 12. 120 also requires a Precise
Plan Line prior to the dedication of lands for street or highway purposes and prior to
the issuance of building permits.   Staff is recommending passage of the attached
Resolution adopting the Stage 2B River Islands Parkway PPL.

In accordance with the West Lathrop Specific Plan, new developments within River

Islands are subject to review by the Stewart Tract Design Review Committee ( STDRC)
for consistency with the General Plan, West Lathrop Specific Plan, and River Islands
Urban Design Concept. Per the Draft Minutes of the STDRC on- line meeting held on
March 8, 2018 previously provided to staff, the STDRC recommended approval of the
PDP for all of Stage 2B, which includes the circulation plan and the Stage 2B segment

of River Islands Parkway.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant,  RID,  has provided a proposed PPL for the Stage 2B area of River

Islands that is consistent with the approved Phase 1 Tract 3694 vesting tentative
map and revised Preliminary Development Plan. The PPL will set the future right of
way of this major street and provide eventual vehicular access from the Phase 1 area
of River Islands to the future Phase 2 area.

RD 2062 has also provided a proposed CUA that protects both the District and the

City from future improvements and maintenance activities that affect RD 2062' s levee
and the City' s street ( River Islands Parkway). This CUA is required in order for the

City to approve the PPL for the Stage 2B area.

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. RID is providing funds necessary to defray any
staff time required to process their request.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving a Precise Plan Line for the Stage 2B Segment of River
Islands Parkway  ( Vesting Tentative Tract Map 3694,  Phase 1 of River

Islands at Lathrop)

B.       Stage 2B Segment of River Islands Parkway Precise Plan Line

73



CITY MANAGER'§ REPORT Page 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND COMMON USE AGREEMENT WITH

RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

C.       Common Use Agreement with Reclamation District 2062

D.       Vicinity Map, Stage 2B portion of River Islands Phase 1 Area

E.       MBK Letter and Utility Penetration Exhibit

74



CITY M/ NA GER' S REPORT P ge 5

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REC; ULA R iVIEETING

ADOP 6ZESOLUTIOIeI APPItOVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FO1S

RIVER ISLANDS PARKVUAY AND COMMOtV USE AGFZEEMENT VI/ ITH

ItECLAM TIOiV DISTRICT 2062

APPIZOV 4LS

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City E• ginee

o     
Cari James Date

Finance Dire    

o --  z- r

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D' Z• l

Stephe.   alvatore Date

City anager

75



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR THE STAGE 2B SEGMENT OF

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND COMMON USE AGREEMENT WITH

RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

WHEREAS, the Applicant, River Islands Development LLC ( RID), has filed an

application for a precise plan line ( PPL) for the Stage 2B segment of River Islands

Parkway; and

WHEREAS,  staff has reviewed the PPL and believes it is conceptually
consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan,  the River Islands Urban Design

Concept, and Vesting Tentative Map VTM Tract 3694; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 21, 2018
for review of the Preliminary Development Plan ( PDP) for the Stage 2B planning area
of River Islands the project and voted unanimously to recommend its approval; and

WHEREAS, the PDP contained a circulation plan for the Stage 2B development

area,  including the Stage 2B segment of River Islands Parkway and the PDP was
approved by City Council action at its April 9, 2018 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the longitudinal overlap of the proposed River Islands Parkway
right of way and the RD 2062 levee easements allows RD 2062 to view the base of
the adjacent levee for any seepage during high water events, and all utilities in River
Islands Parkway will be constructed above the required 200- year freeboard where
the roadway crosses in the internal levee; and

WHEREAS, MBK, the District Engineers for RD 2062, have assured the City
that the easement overlap with River Islands Parkway will not negatively impact
either the FEMA approval for 100- year protection, which has already been received,
or the 200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection for the Stage 2B levees which RD

2062 will soon certify; and

WHEREAS, the Stewart Tract Design Review Committee ( STDRC) reviewed

the circulation plan with the PDP and recommended to the City approval; and

WHEREAS, the potential environmental effects of the River Islands project as

a whole have been considered in detail in a Subsequent Environmental Impact Report

SEIR), which was first certified by the City of Lathrop in 2003 ( SCH 1993112027)

and has been updated periodically through the adoption of 6 addendums,  most

recently in 2018; and

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that no further environmental review
under CEQA is required for adoption of the PPL since the previous River Islands SEIR

and adopted addendums adequately provide project level review of the PPL; and

76



WHEREAS,  portions of the PPL transverse portions of the Stage 2B levee

easement of Island Reclamation District No. 2062 ( RD 2062); and

VVHEREAS, RD 2062 has provided a Common Use Agreement ( CUA), which

provides for the obligations and duties of the City and RD 2062 regarding the
construction and maintenance activities either party may undertake within the areas
of public right of way that overlap with RD 2062' s levee easement.

NOW THEREFARE,  BE IT 12ESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the Stage 2B River Islands Parkway Precise Plan Line
as included and incorporated in the October 8, 2018 staff report as Exhibit " B".

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop, based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings,  its findings

above,  including the staff report and associated attachments,  and pursuant to its

independent review and consideration, finds that adoption of this resolution does not

require any additional environmental review pursuant to adopted CEQA guidelines
since it does not propose changes in the approved project, cause any new significant
environmental impacts,   creates no substantial changes with respective to

circumstances under which the project is undertaken that will require revisions to the

previously certified River Islands SEIR and that there is no new information that was
known or could not have reasonably been known at the time the previous SEIR was
certified.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approves the Common Use Agreement ( CUA) by and between the City of Lathrop and
Island Reclamation District No.  2062  ( RD 2062)  for the portion of the Stage 2B

segment of River Islands Parkway that overlaps with the levee easement recorded in
favor of RD 2062, as included and incorporated in the October 8, 2018 staff report

as Exhibit C".

77



Pp SSED / ND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a regular
meeting on the 8th day of October 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONI Y DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

78



ro

RIVER I SLAN DS 2       

Y   

4. K

p

s

r

s    

STAGE 26 RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
y,= 4 4

PRECISE PLANS
Fv

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

y%,    L,    JJJ /; II       \

Y

ENGINEER7NG

FJ.,\?   \    
N   

C NLIAGE LL      '       
X,   

I \`,   O

f('   \,`
y,    

Modas o Paloqlto Pleasanlon

6200StonerkgeMaONoadSuna] 30

o Pleasanlon CA9C58B

j/',(j   </ r3.  
q     1\

1.

r VIC INITYMAP

1     

r    

f   .  VILIAGE HH'    
F i      \    

5,^       qpCVILIAGE GG.  j       5 :   ;    ;

VILIAGE MM/  
a

7S,/`  l             
Z-. ,

l;
i /    /

s

Ny 1  

r               
coumrarsns `"-\

v?,`/ 
NMULiI- FAMILY      J .; w.; 

N+E 13, y,

y

y
CA

PARK OZJ
j        /

i lJ' Q
z

i y
i P'./(?

lIl    v L u,r, J J
v

J y y'/  o      

Q Q a z 

c w C,    ' i  ..?       --      Nun E NN     I G
Y`       

SHEETINDEX z J n. 

a\\
i NLfAGE FF..       ,"'   "_\ __

r rl I  wr r oeunwnon p W 

j  >      1 Ii v             o w r

S a

y
i    ,\\$!

wce iz
1 4

z oEra s w W'
L"S'F` A     p 3 IdYfA 19ANOS PPAkWRY( 08 95— Ia5iJ5)      w ¢a

r  l i,

w R s,. xos P, Kw. oaH, s- zs. so     W a
0  q$.;     /    — 

l         
e `      l      wuace o o

j       0;`:`'
Po'( !—( CC'

r   

eIJ    1  .    m g
VILIAGE EEi      rtVILIAGE D o

o o`U'''      
0``.

Po A.    '.  PARK

r \ O, i l.   T      °< DJ 
zo  ,< 

y1   .    RiMR0`:. S
F

ro   ' v      ,` j.

o t    /       SCHOOL

q s    

C
A j  •`      coveesxe r

I  
r

v Lu c Z, Ay'    (//[
y\//—/, 

SQ      

s2t,

y/.   Y VILI{AyGE, Y .`?;/' C(     9P       

i l       '  Y.   '

j  /

C{/
V ILlA GE M 4J       . Y' J,.    P

V . 

C
i       ."

W1LJ      I-

Y
a lj    P

pwrnsrox.

ansK `    '   

1  ' i       _ N u a,;`'.      

p ,,,

n     VILIAGE X  ,\

3%q\  
i    ,  

IAKE 1a i
J   .,\•.    

i
lyk C/     `       l, 

COUR' iYARDS\      —      
NLIAGE P

uveovm:

VILIAGE 66 PARH    \ 

VILIAGE W                  
I rt'' 1

s'

i

fGp'`.       
gp{--       I----}-{    o¢ exEn iu

V L lIJ1111'  Y

1 I `,'?
l\

C j.
COURIYAROS

PARK        ( N,,,, a,¶ Tf (
IAGE   

c e m.      . a
F

y'; l`        I LLn1 l pI I IJi U_ LU
E

p xi.

J `%       
r

wex x:

s- xaie

h..
j     .,(}{/,p  —      

o:
r,

o

E( j`SL/ y  
J'_       

rxe xo.:       ivoi. owc

A Y i.r      C./ N      I
NLIAGE V LAKE 1 I'       VILlAGE Il

I I              SHEET N0.
C<<  ` 5.,'' VILIAUE T GE  

T
IAKE a? .

r,('
y'(^

I,(
Y

S'    

s ""`^
p

I i

Y. CY: __ J OF

4

79



v

w.

F
s_, 5

II
ry

r

E
i s c

I
J  :

I CWnIN 0 C C anl lr 1PaVEt l lE    . kRtft W   AVEL 1R U5UCC i OE fiEx F

T T           EI
E              

I
ENG1NEEft1NGi

µ"    PLL

d t' LJ i',_..  _._-+-....     M tleslo PaloAl o

Pleasanlon
I  `-.:,'""  y ..     ,.,,,„

ry.,,,,.,,\    +%:] ,.,_.
z 
r. ỳyy rrLL-

i.'' C I fi2005ione

k9aMalifloaq5uie330 Pleasanlon

CA9458B F i[.C NB   Pnass. ax3s'

ua n
GilnCx

iv7 rcLxCG4tE P.

L TYPICAL RIVER ISLANDS
PARKWAY STA 88+ 85-STA 98+

00) xor m su      

o

vJ } 4

Q A w I

f',,
J

z 
F

E Iry

I
pr[ Q

Q 

o,
u a I 

e« a J     
g i. miu+ is m Fmuccs oorm ro: reoE.r wrwgrnas ro ttouvm rt ron omiarzo rr-nmx vao ns.       I

wl   I`" E"" Z (n O W
3 nvc omiano mar- nnw voan is wa mrn raa n E vsrewm munc. n¢oEu o n oaxMw+      5 Z( no

Z ISLax05 PAWtw T Ni0 SUiOiSiaN PA Icp i/PMP IIlM05 PAPllW4T

NiER4CMR
I

I I:    ; w     ( 

O tALK L: i05[ oPf     [  k+Sl L4.   m4YEt W!   i.6Uiu IFi: D N. 1 ll I: W E iFnuEl lu[  b. 0 pt: p5[ n
C  —      +I       6 6.  I

1
I      ISF C 1 I   .    Q

d

v_   s  ,       rs

ts_     ;
I

Q .,.

L„.,. Xli 
UfitJ 9' LL< Un6

4C y'. (
IrYI cx[ GtiC

6asE

S

O TYPICAL RIVER ISLANDS
PARKWAY STA 98+ 00-STA 124+

60) xar ro

scac

DEfAILS
fliw     __      —_—      ___—     

126'     

w

r
I   ---       –      

il-       —      —       _    _      =

I.    
a0

i'      '`

PR: Iz _—     _            

til   .. .. .. ... r rt< ve w.    ¢i wie m i    mn ti u¢  s a> u/     -,'' i
I '` I s o[u•

i[
7^' I       T i odcr n:      

nz
I    ,t 

I`

s I
I I

I%>,

u     r?-  
I oar.. N:       

iu

CHECNFD

i- 

I
I

y.  ..     
I

JAI I SGlL

MS

r.—   Lt<! .., ..    ft> 1-   OPIE 5

3018 JOBN0. F£

N0: RIVER ISLANDS
PARKWAY STA 124+ 60-STA 126+

50)     SHEEf

N0. xor ro su     

2

OF

80



i  {      i;,{„      Pw+ xmsioxs:

i       ;  d/       '     vms u so e

1      
V1LIACE FF

j.

t..      /-,

r,      

L_    '-     
1 

RAIiY4GE sWqLE.  _'_'__' '_--    _,-__.        ... . _._. .  .'.__    

a1

r     _ `

l•

ee. exisw xisu+osreaxvnt
i.-•,-'

iow0000 u sm- t[r 1 v"' d
P,    YER

R= 3161op
1

zii': U I I  z sxoo w os•<< ass     _'     
m--__   iS-   -  

m
w

i ENG1NE61i1NG
rv l' w g» y

I     ..:
I      '   ,     

Motlesto PatoAlto Pleasan on

1 1 fi2U05tanerdgeMallRaatlSVle O

T     '
L

9  '
WI' 465 I         , Pleasantan CA9d5BB

e9 oo      ~_   Waa   I
I

lei00____\     _ —_  `--_. J Eri      9i           I-.;. I
1

I
ap_ 93rW

I
i Ei

m-
T i—   -      9] U]—               

91' 00—      
ss. o—    

v

m z

I
1 96, m   -    _     ^  i m INDEX MAP

Z -

fm"     
i 10 E

i--

i tl  ...._
I U

4
I

y+   
P 4015. Q0 G= 00J1 tl t• iB5l..:      ..       '       '

T_—    - m
I I I     

0
9

NShl6' S) 
506 9 _ _ __-_-    

I    

Q Ya
s 1
f 

STACi 2B LEVcEFUTURE M STREE7

r.   - ---.    --   m Q ¢ Z i
a J g '

sZ  
a

N
oW

T__-------________    --      --  _  -       

w wa

ai     _    i     -- 
VILIAGE FF

sc.uc. i . o

o

lj
I    --__  _    

D1'
u swa. _`   --___-- -       

s
4

a,.   i z
F 71/ RfP g E  

i        ....    
CFNIFAtIxE IWE IABIF L012PLwE pMVE tABtF

i

n

urt oaErnw xcTM  va w. nus o¢ r c x

m 1 va p   

i  `_~i _  Po  __ v.aa e. o ri. scz z FIVER ISLANOS PAFKWAY

l: u,-       ,_ BBt85- 105 75)

a
ro xma

1 I POP110N CG ME EpSTHG Si GE 1B IR' EE wA1 BE REuOVED N 1NE NNPE

I
tU FCttNYODniE FOR LHE fUNPE P SiFE£ i INIEPYLIIWI INRRYCNIC al

SLP. 9& 2166 10 PNONOE CCF55 i0 ME SdI1HERN POPPM Of' A 4A

n '  _    

v'— --

103 0=—     
I

f

IYANOS PAPNW4Y.

t o. ao— m pva ss o" c
se v

ioyoo    _

Ll v   Di m   
98t] J66 PIHA IAANDS PMkWAY -   y     \\     fOriI

100lQ000 P SiPFEi       _

rZ A       \
1 A NeJW E_ 0 u' os

m

0
urawm:

1

b
vcxm iu

S7AGE 2B E ro. xx

5

p

ssuc i o

eo'       muum:

o
b- _ _ _    

roaxo.:       

sssoo30
n¢ no_

5 0.I HEEf N

3

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY( 88+ 85- 105+ 75)       oF

scn: r= ao'     4

81



r i:      PVN RENSIONS:

t`p
YII15/ FriNYS

f 2y
J

VILIAGE EE

V KE 12

li J

i

i\   sw,

I   ; fl 2rsj. 1/    £
rs

i
I   

r

i F

DRNNAGE SWALE     —...
1\       

FUTURE A STREET
E.ai

I      ___--_'-'--_-       
I

I  ' k}` 2 ENGINEERING

I I 1       '     
Modesto PaloAl o Pleacanton

r 51 5' 19' w 9R6BY tc_ .

s.:   -   ofi2005 one qga Ma Noad Sule

r
PkasantonCA9i5BB

f 1

W

o     F I     

II
1' ;  

avin

J     — — _ — — _ — — _       
00

I i

x- os. 00 io aoo me.     ioe oo uoioo p u w nx oo n3 oo a_:   us. 00 r m
w F--—-      -      - —-      --

i—--—----—- -   -=-—       -      -     - i v ari- mF i r o- 1-s- ---    Io IPIDEX MAP
xorioscuc o

w    — — — — — — — — —  T_ _    — —_  im
t. ----   -------    Eor—   ---   ------   — l;          J!

N51 519 w 9M 8Y

b  /-    I         Q
3 ao R,      

i I

i I     i`      i., b Z
i.._,_ _ _......._...._.. __-_._     ,_,  _._..___.._   . ... ._.._ .._.__ _   `._ .  _.      . .___ _ .. ._     -._____.._   ._. ._..-._ _... ._..-     

ioo+ a 0 a 

1

s
s w  , osPaAx.., I a J

p
000 SIREEL

S7AGE 2B LEVEE 5
Z  

p W -Z[/ l ' o
i  __ - _  _      w g U o

F Q  C¢ 

i I       i p  

E Qi I i

I• W

i

Q

i

c

95

gxEiPBI£     [
EntEAO

Ec' PKiAaIF

g
I

W'E pPECiION WRyt RI. ONS OEliA I£ NGM

Li G6I0' II] 53'

i
V1LlAGE EE 

ci

NOIESi • PORIIM of ME EnSixC SI GE 2B lLlfE wLL BE PEuavf W M N1LAE
i ctfauv00 lE F0.i MC NNRC SMLi WIQfAt d11N1FAY[ ING Ai

SiA115 6flt3i0 avOEAttES5101HE50UiHEPNPOHTONOFPiKP

ISAlIDS YYYCWAY. FP

DRAIW.GE SWALE   _._....     

x
V

1 xsaos ' w sosn I p= oo L I m
PNE`

105«75

1ffiAR
KYVA

1  '-. 1 vI.  u      ..:"-      -._

ma
i_   

Isi=-  -  — — — —  I — — — = — — — — —  
z E, o„,

r

ys.

m I_=_  in. oa,.   _      _ ie« oo,
d_-'--  

us. 00 izo oo__       iz ao    -—- z

s --—- 
na-—--      --    ixsi ao ao _      

la m
p

m",`+
n      

Wi —_- - - - - - - - -    - - - - - - - - -   -   r  -  z,     
NNPf.       I s

l _
EDE iR - 

r

r .   
BPNCE"      ';. i   ' C

F Lvl p
Of t1.

I       ....:.  .':-  '       :' S1' OS 5)"      -:'. ..
t:  ly   rsPawID:

fl] 3) Oa d 015945 l p6. il IZ

pELChEP.      J/ Z

n_——___ _' __ __.—_— —_ '_ _._ __ _ _ .__ _. —_———__....__-_—_  _'_ —_ 
w

pUw l.       JLL

CNfCNm:       LI

y STAGE 28 LEVEE
srsye 10'

e      wrz s xs

doe xo..       xssoo

n¢ xo.:

u_._-- - _ _   .____-_ _'-__.---- __     ___,      
S 0.HEEf N

4

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY( 105+ 75- 126+ 50)
OF

sca r= ao'     4

82



COMMON USE AGREEMENT

FOR THE STAGE 2B PORTION OF RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

BY AND BETWEEN THE

CITY OF LATHROP

AND

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

This COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR THE STAGE 2B PORTION OF RIVER

ISLANDS PARKWAY, associated with Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, entered into on this
8th day of October, 2018 (" Agreement ") and is made and entered into by ISLAND
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062, a reclamation district organized under the laws of the

State of California ( the " District"), and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the

State of California( the " City"), together, " the Parties".

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement relates to certain real property to be dedicated to City for public right of
way purposes known as River Islands Parkway; a major arterial street within the River Islands at
Lathrop Master Planned Community, (" River Islands Site"), being developed by River Islands
Development, LLC, (" River Islands").

B.       River Islands has proposed a precise plan line for the portion of River Islands Parkway
from the boundary of the Stage 2A sub- planning area to Paradise Road (" River Islands Parkway
Stage 2B Segment") to set the future right of way of River Islands Parkway as it transverses the
Stage 2B area, as depicted in Exhibit " B" to this Agreement and the proposed precise plan line

Stage 2B River Islands Parkway Precise Plan Line") shall be incorporated herein as Exhibit

C" to this Agreement.

C.       On May 31, 2018, the District recorded easements across properties owned by Califia,  
LLC and River Islands for the right to control and maintain the levees constructed by District for
flood protection purposes to protect development of both the Stage 2A an Stage 2B sub-

planning areas of the River Islands Site (" Levee Easements").

D.       Since the Levee Easements have been recorded to provide appropriate legal access and

authority to District for its flood protection works (" District Works") in accordance with the

State Water Code and applicable FEMA regulations, and these levees are designed to provide

200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection ( ULOP) in accordance with approved State

Department of Water Resources Standards, prior to the approval of the Stage 2B Precise Plan

Line and the dedication of right of way for the River Islands Parkway Stage 2B Segment, it is
necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to outline the duties and responsibilities of
each Party, for the betterment of the public and to avoid conflicts in each Party' s individual
obligations under applicable law to those portions of River Islands Parkway right of way located
within portions of the Levee Easements (" Common Use Area").

1-

m   ` G
r

83



AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants

hereinafter set forth, City and District do hereby agree as follows:

1. City hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by District of
the District Works located within the Common Use Area which is more particularly described on
Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

2. District hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by City of
the River Islands Parkway Stage 2B Segment within the Common Use Area which is more
particularly described on Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

3. District and City acknowledge the priority of title of each other wherever applicable to
the Common Use Area.

4. District has reviewed the Stage 2B River Islands Parkway improvement plans for surface
improvements, underground pipelines, street lighting, landscaping and joint trench construction
prepared by O' Dell Engineering and Power Systems Design, and has no objections to the design
and proposed construction of the facilities on these improvement plans that are located within the

Common Use Area.

5.       In the event that the future use of the River Islands Parkway Stage 2B Segment shall at
any time necessitate rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the District' s works
within the Common Use Area, City shall notify District in writing of such necessity pursuant to
applicable sections of the Water Code and City agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement,
relocation or reconstruction of District' s works following approval of all plans and specifications
of said rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the District, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

6.       In the event that the future use of the District Works shall at any time necessitate
rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the River Islands Parkway Stage 2B
Segment within the Common Use Area, District shall notify City in writing of such necessity and
District agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of River
Islands Parkway Stage 2B Segment following approval of all plans and specifications of said
rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the City, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

7. City shall pay the cost to maintain, repair or replace City' s facilities located in the
Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction, rearrangement, modification,

alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by District, except for damage resulting from
maintenance, repair or replacement by District.

z-

84



8. District or its assignees shall pay the cost to maintain, repair and replace District' s
facilities located in the Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction,

rearrangement, modification, alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by City,

excepting damage resulting from maintenance, repair or replacement by City.

9. District, when working within the Common Use Area shall comply with the following
provisions:

a)      Except in times of emergency, including during a high water or flooding event,
District shall provide reasonable notice to City before performing any work in the Common Use
Area where such work will be performed in or on the traveled way or improved shoulders,
sidewalk or landscaping of the roadway or will otherwise obstruct vehicular and/ or pedestrian
traffic.

b)      In all cases, District shall make adequate provisions for the protection of the

travelling public and provide such barricades and safety devices as are required by City
standards, and in cases of non- emergency, provide a Traffic Control Plan as required by City
standards and specifications.

c)      All work shall be planned and carried out so there will be minimum

inconvenience to the traveling public.

d)      All work shall be replacement in kind, conform to the existing facilities as to
width and depth of surfacing thereof, meet all applicable City standards and specifications as
determined by the City Engineer and shall be subject to inspection by City.

10.      District and City shall use said Common Use Area in such manner as to not unreasonably
interfere with the rights of either Party.

11.      District shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to the City facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the District' s maintenance, construction or

reconstruction activities, or from its flood control facilities located on or near the Common Use

Area. All costs for repairing such damage to City' s facilities shall be borne by City.

12.      City shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to District facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the City' s maintenance, construction or
reconstruction activities of its right of way or improvements on or near the Common Use Area.
All costs for repairing such damage to District' s facilities shall be borne by District.

13.      District is responsible for maintaining the aesthetic, structural integrity, and safety of its

pedestrian bridges constructed by District that may transverse City right of way, including the
River Islands Parkway Stage 2B Segment, including, but not limited to the bridge decks, piers,
foundations, railings, abutment walls, and ramps. City shall not be responsible for the inspection,
maintenance or repair of any District pedestrian bridges, including safety inspections of the
bridge structure, footings, or abutments.  Prior to construction, the District shall enter into an

Encroachment Agreement with City for any pedestrian bridge constructed over River Islands
Parkway Stage 2B Segment.

3-

85



14.   District shall be responsible for the vegetation and weed control activities of its levee

slopes and adjacent areas that may transverse the Common Use Area. City shall be responsible
for any landscaping and irrigation improvements within its right of way, including within the
Common Use Area.  The City or its assignees shall become responsibility for weed control
within portions of the Common Use Area that are landscaped by the City.

15.      This Agreement shall not have a prescribed term. Termination of Agreement shall only
occur if the Common Use Area ceases to be in existence and the need for this Agreement and its

rights and obligations contained herein cease to be necessary. Either Party may provide written
notice of such termination, subject to review and verification of the other Party.

16.      Notices. Any and all notices required to be given hereunder will be deemed to have been
delivered upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to either of the

parties at the address hereinafter specified or as later amended by either party in writing:

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: City Engineer

Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: President

17.   This Agreement, and all terms, covenants, and conditions hereof, will apply to and bind the
successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Neither Party will assign nor sublet this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.

18.      This Agreement is governed by California law.

19.      This Agreement may not be modified or amended except 1n wrlting slglled by both
parties.

20.      Each party must, in all activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, comply and
cause its contractors, agents and employees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws,
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

21.      It is expressly understood that this Agreement does not in any way whatsoever grant or
convey any permanent easement, fee or other interest in a party' s real property to the other Party.

22.      This Agreement, together with all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.

4-

86



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have signed this Agreement effective as
of the Effective Date.

CITY OF LATHROP ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT

A California municipal corporation NO. 2062

a California reclamation district

By:       By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Susan Dell' Osso, President

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Municipal Seal)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

B y:
Salvador V. Navarrete, City Attorney

5-

87



EXHIBIT " A"

COMMON USE AREA DEPICTION

6-

88



CALIFIA, LLC

7RACT 39 (])

PARCEL 24 Co9iVF9
DN 2001- 046177

N

ir

I
TRAC7 d0 ( 1l

7r Acr a i      

STAGE 2B RID, LLC

RIVER ISLANDS
DN 20R6-004077

PARKWAY

RID, LLC
7RAC7 4   

DN 20 6T 63962 I
I

CALIFIA, LLC

7RACT ] 2 ( 11 P HAS E 1
7RAC7 39 (] 1

PARCEL 24

I
DN 2001- 045177

c
li<. I

2p T t
6 rc  \  

AIRCEL 2 I
s„

9
DN 2016- 004077 1

6 

SEE SHEET 2 i'  /\   9i
0,,2q,     

F9

os    c

STAGE 2A4
s LEVEE EASEMENT

7RAC7 13 1] l

STAGE 2B

LEVEE EASEMENT 7 d 

LEGEND

SHEET LAYOUT RID, LLC

IRD 2062 LEVEE EASEMENT PARCELB
R1, LLc

STAGE 28 RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
DN 2016- 004077

PCL s

LOT LINE DN 201- 004D77 0

COMMON USE AREA
7      

o
J

DENOTES RECORD DATA o
PER 35 SURVEYS 142 7RAC7 15 11)

DN DOCUMENT NUMBER

IRD ISLAND RECLAMA ION DISTRICT

RID RIVER ISLANDS DEV., LLC NOlE:

THIS EXHIBIT DOES NOT REFLECT

ALL EASEMENT OF RECORD

OVERALL MAP o 500'    000'      2000'

SCALE: 1 _ , 000    RIVER ISLANDS
DRAWN BY: PK STAGE 2B LEVEE& RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY-  

FILE: z5500- STAGE2B JUA. DWG COMMON USE AREA EXHIBIT

DATE: 9/ 19/ 18 SHEET: 1 OF 2 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA
N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

T:\ 25500- RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 1A\ DWG\ PLATS\ STAGE 28 LEVEE\ 25500- STAGE2B JUA. DWG

89



7R,4c7 a 11 J

N

STAGE 2B

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
RID, LLC

r      PARCELI

DN 2016- 004077

7RAC7 41 ( 1)

RID, LLC

LOT 2

DN2016- 063962 PHASE 1i i x i

TRAC7 12 ( 11

STAGE 2B

LEVEE EASEMENT        

ca RID, LLC

O
y   

l``
R       PARCEL 2

c'p> OT>
c

GF,p DN 2016- 004077
6 s

os
96 

Aq
qy

STAGE 2A

LEVEE EASEMENT
i

i

T F

o rc
i   

y
s

7RAC7 13 ( 1)'

LEGEND
SHEET LAYOUT

IRD 2062 LEVEE EASEMENT RID, LLC

STAGE 2B RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY PARCELB

LOT LINE
DN 2016- 77 

COMMON USE AREA

DENOTES RECORD DATA

PER 35 SURVEYS 142

DN DOCUMENT NUMBER

IRD ISLAND RECLAMAl10N DISIRICT

RID RIVER ISLANDS DEV., LLC

0 250'     500'      1000'

SCALE: 1 = 500     RIVER ISLANDS
DRAWN BY: PK STAGE 2B LEVEE& RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

FILE: 25500- STAGE2B JUA. OWG COMMON USE AREA EXHIBIT

DATE: 9/ 19/ 18 SHEET: 2 OF 2 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA
N G 1 N E f 1 N G

T:\ 25500- RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 1A\ DWG\ PLATS\ STAGE 26 LEVEE\ 25500- STAGE26 JUA. DWG

90



EXHIBIT " B"

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B AREA

91



I`

I

STAGE26-.      
l    \   ~`` 1

o oR ER   OLD RIVER ROA i 1 i
STAGE 28 AREA

DISTRICT c     1

R

STAGE 2B 4  
LAKESIDE WEST 1  

DISTRICT j l

tl q'` q

s

1 q2

O

i   "9
Fq

RIVER ISLANDS PKWY.  f
STAGE 2 8 STAGE 2A 1

SEGMENT AKESIDE EAST
I     -= I rowN cENrEa

DISTRICT DISTRICT I 

E,    
W     

r  
f tl_i v.          

i I
4_

1(.           I
r - - - -  _r     '   , .

r    

W

I I  z.--   I 1
3I ui.    /

1 STAGE 1      I

EAST VILLAGE  `::  
s   .. 

I      ---
r--  DISTRICT      

I

Y_— — _

L c I
1 uKE,   

1  _  i

t.
1

m°`"   - ,  _      __ 

PHASEI 1
EMPLOYMENT

REMAINDER CENTER DISTRICT

FUTURE EMP. CENTER)   I
I lP PO

I
PPC\F\ C

Wc._.: reava. o      I

I

N

i
oì       

y1Ps
P

ATTACHMENT g
VICINITY MAP NG1NEEi 1NG

Modes[ o Palo Alto Pleasanlon

STAGE 2B/ PHASE 1  — RIVER ISLANDS
s°° s`° e" d9eMa" H° ad s" e33°

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Ph 925. 223. 8310 odellengineering. com

92



EXHIBIT " C"

STAGE 2B RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY PRECISE PLAN LINE

s-

93



s

F ztE

j
r      - I    y_  ,«, w

i
W- C i[ P/. tll i[— I fll. C tA-  IknVltLw[    t  [ FLE tG: f M L IWt- vlr T C D ) T T       ! u T ITI I I I I

ly
E G1• EER7NG

i

i

r'     Modos o PaloAllo Ploasanlon

L_ 
i.. y       .

1 i. l..,       -    i      ._..- J     .:...:   '__.,._ `....   ,      4rf_ 1
1.:_. i.\.,. 

1

I G200Sioice tl9aMaAfloadSuiie]] 0

Pleacanlon, CA eJ50e

I 1iF1. t(. i_/     PLL NVtlJ
r

a 4iI1Lu Iily-
uz++[G+ t( F+ C

TYPICAL RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
STA BB+ BS- STA 98+ 00) 

nm, o w[

vJ

q

7

Q
FJ.       L F'

i_   I   1 Q a 
xoi¢    

i
w'   I -'` ra-.      z

J 
w "i u. w ivea unurrs oow m• erc i wrzagrnovs io. aovum. rt rce om c+ rzn rn- nmx vau rrs.    z

z . iz wtt omc. rzn ewr- nnx roun is vaawco rau ixc uneaw munc e ra o' osu owr M n
i'   5       -- g ! J (/ '

o

61. W05 P IdW Y l fd SdpiSidl PAWWA/ FINR 14iLIDS P/. 91tw< 1 WhRffCTWS.  
I W V O

Q  Q 
I

dE  u   [   66. E 144. t tirt iGa} LL L S uf      mA£ lu:E— b.[   .' OSC: i[ 

i lE

I
I(

n

i I,:    w n.
II

t=   
f  

iu
I...   _.-`

I
I cw6    ,....

i      -: 

F

s u1 Ev I rl

l

L. FEGt[ F F
s

TYPICAL RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
STA 98+ 00- STA 124+ 60)

xor io scut

oera s

v    

Ip
i

orEss, o„r.

0i-    ' r    '_-  ,    —  ,

I  = I     =-  7
U=_.          __ 

t. I     -- _        >    > -     y              ,

I`\     -   =_-  ,.       ° j'. E    ,:    
F I'-.

r    ,        i rv. u, a-` cu....      , u, u  r,. a wz   '    i

I    `  
lu.[ iurt       

l

II .!,  

x-` 

I            omcNmGn1x L ILLo:       

r:._ E       ,

j I
ssl y.,., 1_     o, a

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
STA124+ 60- STA126+ 50)    

SHEEf N0.

rwr ro scue 2

OF

4

94



A o,:

i

1 ti.:_VIIlAGE FF

ri;:%';''     .r L    /^h     %
avl/      

N4GE SWALE
L i,.; ._-

e. ez s w w+ suxo rAvxw r    ;       
iowm s En\   .   

W   -  _.  _

J

s

ri:;   wirn

e  5
0'  

l IIII (     n- oor: os i. ass. 

r

i    {-.  
9          iR•'  

t.      , .      NG7NEER7NG

l.        MOEec a PaloAAo Pba anlon

r

u1519 11 s. lY

I I   
g 620051one tlgaMa FoaE SuloJ] 0

asnm e- wr, s  .
uzso I        

f :
9 Pieacamm CA6150Ba

e9 a  _  ,   so. a ,,- f-    

i
i----\\   -    

s       -      =
i= 1- y-`..  sa oo   _   I

i     _.=:.. y
i-       

I=  •` --       --'—
s oo—       m I      '__'_

ssi    m sm

s• _ I: i m INDEX MAP
r-

1m ioffuE o

4

I  

e   
P NY5. 00 C• Ml' 2 W l- eSB.      —_--  _-__—   -    __

r.      I II I  - N.ihl6' ST  .
8 Q "'

F

p RE M
STREE7

5
zB

erE s"      _ Z 

g 
N ow 

i._
J

Z a
U

T_--.-------___-__   -    ---   --- .    

Q  Q 
I

d w Qw
i

a
VILIAGE FF

x.u. i

l.:.  

1  ;::  l

iI       
r   •        

5'/ / 

ll I' ;    _ 
RAIf' q+ E SWALE

14.      '._.,.
F

l7UdFPsr 
G',.   

wce iz

Rf
f.     

sl ar+mv rc nc nac ml anK uea

I
le E oiNFcnW tExcm nm£    oFlu lFxcM

w

m -   9dlq)   Z      "''
n

i            '  `  =
a. isiroo a. ouorn i...:.       R       __.. -____'____._           flIYEpISIAN SPARNWAY

rv  _     I_- '  B8& 5- 105' 7

t ci;,

I ry o

Nv
ROu v40AIIEf4R5M NIIFE P SIFFfT Mi[ FYC Ri

WiIX4CiMGu
I --   ''  —___`; I       — 

101._

IOz. T" i, N Y, S P xxAY

I/       
i u. ve. v cc io vxovac u¢ ss ro nc w. ww vwna a a rn

aorocisia.r.r
h,   

iw. 00-= i=   ia oo

iosi
o0

1 I
o' m

f
r_    b

2

mm   \      
90 21. 66 P L£ A 4Al95 PIAMx. 1Yl I— — — — —= y     \\     

P','

wl,,'`

A

a!

IW100 W P StFRi      -, .   

Z A
a=xww i.      m

l4' O110559 L.) OOb'    
MPPPID:

I 1

V

S7AGE 2B
E

w xm

u

o m m mcam.       iu

y sruc r- w

i_     
i f mre

a'-,,.___" ___ __'-     
pe xo..       

xssoomi
mt rw_

I
SHEEf N0.

3

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY( 88+ 85- 105+ 75)       0°

scn: r= ao 4

95



4ir P u a xsroxs:

F; y;  

I i i i irc

v uacE ': j j i
4,,,   -." y

u e iz

I j i i i
F

i I I J I
t     ,

f
c; '     .

n+: 3w` b a, w
I i   !  Y<       a-    :.-

owwwr, sw,vt     -...       FUTURE A STREET       °      I

ry        

I H  '      o so ao o asa oo

R slnsls' a s: ser
0

t      

Glp EER NGI
i

I    -.:'' ' .     
62 Sionerd9lMa1p05S' a

Pbaw CA C BB

I 

W

41

II     .
S_'= i;.  

unn

J     _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _      _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   
2- 106100 l0) 100 1 00 T S

I

IIW00=   II 00 li3' m IH00 II5 00 116rp0 m

o---- i-      --------- f--- - w- iw' ari- m. va e-_ s-     INDEX MAP
y

y rmrios    o

iw. m
e r  - i       

r 

W„,    — — — — — — — — — — — — — —  _  — — — — — —=— — — — —_      — —      i     
n:      

T    --  -     -

n    ---   ---

or—     --   ---     —     --     --  J       x :
rvxs• irw sner 

I N V J 

I I          —._ . . I  ''      
L i 1

I
t i

Q ¢1    C     ¢
a s

ns sa x xr, rx ivnxos vcnxWnr Z J  
STAGE 2B LEVEE

iaaao, 00 n sm¢ r  ' 
W z

Z ' a

C i-- i    -__--_-_--_-___-__--_---_---   w S U ` o
i CC  ( n 

v7

l.'/      

I---__----.__ _ ___.     
i r.u . w  

m

aww
l.      I _-_.__-_--_--__--_-_-___      

i

RNIWM IIxF iI& F CEnRP ME[ NM T/& C sRP M

I
i IFNGM MM1E RAOA15 OF11A IFN4M s

i j 1
I

i-'      u us m i9v isso. u•   n : ioaro m w• nnsr o
Ii I

I
I VILIAGE EE' I i r

1 I___  __
nma

vmnax a msme s r.¢ u u mi ec rnm w nc unwe

ro. ccouvro. rt rm m[ run c s am wrmgrna wrmgcmc r

sn ns. carz to vxmu uau ro n¢ munvsx vmimv rc wrw

J'       
isu.msvuar r.

i
RAIWGE SWAIE   --...  

75 1  )
xs osis' x sasr I x z oo a oo s' r i. nz.•`   y

rm

FI Y

Im

F

3' Lq:"'
Y" t .:.  - ':

IC')[ n

VEHISIAN SPARNWA

105. - 26. 50

1m a

i I s'
aamu: o„

I=_ _ III Oo:[
5' lffl- IUFN IU[ nCi_

IIB UO_'__  119 00 _ IID D]_   

F

im oo  - - _ ixx aa Z ___   iss m-_ -_ - a ao_ - - 2-°°      -,.--°__   - -

la m
m ,"

w i - - - - - - - - - -   - - - - - I 5
a. o

NNPE
N

PEM 1m. W'      Z C
tl oI c i

ry
ew° c's. S'   .`.+   

Ia
y

uPaam:
N510519 O S y

i I i  __
J W

359 L D6. li IZ
I

A--------'---   ---------\------  
P

wu, i- w      
omc an:      u

auna u

acam:       ia

r       STAGE 2B IEVEE     
swr: o•

wtc s- zs- zoie

t-_'- oe xo.:       usooT—_,--_ r_—_—     —_—__\/----   \, 
r._.---_ r\//-----_'_`,    

F4fN0_       6a DWE

I _'_-     - I--___-_I____-- _
1' __ 

I-_----_

SHEEf N0.

4

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY( 105+ 75- 126+ 50)       
oF

scuc: r m. o•     4

96



I r

i, `         j*'   {

STAGE 2B   y     ;1      1

o pR EA   OLD RIVER ROAD`     7 :      
1- i

5 ;   STAGE 28 AREA
DIS RICT"''.:.;/

l,,

j"4
f.:;/

i      '       

I :    

STAGE 2B 11

LAKESIDE WEST   

DISTRICT—,  `   "  '
k I
t

t .nt s`\    " -   OHrbFqy;       `   .  ...     

s
r:, q

1

y

p9
J             

Gi

y, (,/      r i   y9cF
f,' c` E y,,       

9

r

RIVER ISLANDS PKWY. t  I    „   

STAGE 2 8
1     ". rL ,  <:     r   

STAGE 2A 1

SEGMENT
p

LAKESIDE EAST     '      I
r `,      i     i      

TOWN CENTER a

D RICT
I r    ' DISTRICT I'

y7     --

y   

Ea s;.,    - -       u E,         

I I
a    E.,,  

r
j l          

z  _ 

F=: .. .           _         I
r —    —   o

i If
o

a 
I

r     
r  ,      

I ii, l ,      I,    /

y STAGE 1      '  _ `     y/'  '

a

11'     l

I 1          r j.7- :
r     EAST VILLAGE r       .  

s'

C'—  DISTRICT    ., r r1 r  ' '. I  ;--

i       — —         = -      Y._,

y `     —--    u,       :      

l
i

i'_      

t
1.  

PHASEI EMPLOYMENT J   
I

REMAINDER CENTER DISTRICT            

fUTURE EMP. CENTER)   I       `      
I.       .. ..      PpGF\GPP\ AOPt

p\ONI 
COMMEPCELJTaPWD. 

U

N 9,     /      

iF /n    

I S'lp- .
F,P

ATTACHMENT D

VICINITY MAP
NG1N fZ1NG

Modesto Palo Alro Pleasanton

STAGE 2B/ PHASE 1  — RIVER ISLANDS
sz°° S`° e`' d9eMa" R° ad s" e33°

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Ph925. 223. 8340 odellengineering. com

f,`' '' '97



g,' A-  "
s

Water Resources • Fload Con[ rol • Water Rights

GILfIFRT COSIO, JR., P. E.    ANGUS NORAfAN MURHAY

M. ac V,w Ca r, P. E.    1913- 1985

W, L R BOURF. z. III, P. E.

RiC REiNtiae r, P. E.

G.\ RS' KIF.;ILEN, P. E.       CU SULTiW'i5:

DOV TRIEU, P. E.   OSEFfI l. BL'R S, P. E.

D. RREN CORDOVA, P. E.     DON.\ 4D E. IVGNLfN, P. E.

NATHA h{ F.RSHF.Y. P. E., P. L.S.

LEE G. BERGFLLD, P. E.     

BEN TUSTISO, P. E.

March 9, 2018

Mr. John Zhang, Principal
O' Dell Engineers

6200 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 330

Pleasanton, CA 9458

Subject: River Island Parkway Design Alorag 2S Y. evee,
ltaght- of- Vay and Penetratioras UL17C Review

Dear Mr. Zhang;    

This let[ er is response to the City of Lathrop' s request for MBK Engineers to review
Urban Levee Design Criteria (ULDC) for che River Island Parkway, utilities, and Lake 12
adjacent to the non- project 2B levee, stations 88+ 82. 15 to 126+ 00, as shown in the Stage 2 River

Islands Parkway Precise Plans.

Aevie v Itein 1: Landside levee right- of-way and proximity of roadway concerns, ULDC 7. 11.

tesponse: The roadway along the landside levee toe and slope of the 2B levee meets the right-
of-way criteria under ULDC. The city right- of-way provides clear, unobstructed access to the
landside of the levee for any flood fight or maintenance activities relating to the levee system.
No structures or encroachments will limit access to this section of the levee. Excavations that

would otherwise threaten the integrity of the levee will be prohibited. The sidewalk and
landscaping within the approximate 24- foot buffer from the roadway do not limit access or
visibility of the levee.

12evi w Item 2: Utility penetrations adjacent or throu h the 2B levee, ULDC 7. 13.

1Zesponse: Review of the plans and penetration exhibit show that the utilities under the River

Island Parkway do not intersect the 2B levee within the Minimum Top of Levee or ULDC levee
section. As per ULDC, pipes and culverts shall be designed with guidance in Chapter 8 of EM

1110- 2- 1913, United States Army Corps of Engineers levee design standards.   

IZevievv Item 3: Proximity of Lake 12 to 2B Levee between stations 99+ 00 and 115+ 00, ULDC
7. 4, 7. 5

laesponse: ENGEO has evaluated the seepage, stability, and settlement conditions for the Stage
2B levee at the southern portion of Lake 12, and their results were considered in the design of the

project. The underseepage analysis was similar to the Lake Stability Technical Memorandum
that ENGEO prepared for the Stage 1 levees. Based on their analysis, the proposed Lake and

455 University Avenue, Suite 100 • Sacramento, Califomia 95825 • Phone:( 916) 456- k4QQ • Fax:( 916) 456- 0253 • www. mbkengineers. com

ti l  °
1

98



Mr. John Zhang March 9, 2018

River Island Parkway Design Page 2

levee should be in conformance with the ULOP findings and criteria following construction,
assuming they are built per the latest O' Dell Engineering grading plan.

If there are any questions, please contact us.

Sincerely,
MBK ENGINEERS

Michael 1Vloncrief, P

MIVI/ nl
4450. 0/ JOHN ZHANG 2013- 03- 09

cc:    Ramon Batista, Trustee, Reclamation District No. 2062

I
i

99



M STREEf
m

lr   ¢
4 I 

a

ona, :./'      
i. J 

y      z.
r     .     

s_ aol.-—_ '      _ 
si. 00      - —     i.o'ol a

C        
1

0 m

N
j81 0900': _- 1.—

C 32.   ._.._ 1- _,+ g -     .      .     .
1    a r fn

m 5.  .. 1.   .      i ¢ j
y

wviiy J'____{"'.. _"__''_" 7,.. y

9
iy'..    

i L Pti[ v i-
i  . .       /.      p\'

w5: i  

gaoj,. 

x o_ a'    ..   .._    -—  --—

1

ao P\/      l a
V   $       `   

T_
Y      R, v si., 

FU7URE
SiREEf       \    x aa90 roc

8
Y

nEv ir=

1

i \    

m    -----

t7 

i/       

e       

II 1
Z

65      .

r rue    u_ 

o
o o a

w'. er s

Y. rru. i       .....

n. vi
4 4

c cew,,,  

y 3

I  

w, e.,

da    p€ } d

u wu„
J     

Y

i3

I  '

d _ 9
J""'-."___" '_'I__"'.--_"__'Z.. w..o    "

sweJ----------  --------- 
Cw w..    omvo. r.. °, ao,    

1

v6ttiNL  = 5'

T(n.. 5

s rnw n- n

ft vER stANos 2 kwh4 acfu. W+ eEwx6
SECf a l B- 8

av. a: il i e
RIVEP ISLPNDS} 1RKWAY STq 91i50

i NEER vG

a.e, i/'u/' ie

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

STAGE 2B LEVEE PENETRATION EXHIBIT    '   '
ENGINEERING

RIVERISLANDS szoos oneda¢ eraauAoaa, sw eaao

PleasanWn, CA 945BB

CITY OF LATHROP SANJOAOUINCOUNTY CAIIFORNW
A, az, m. saa  ea a a= ro. mm

DATE: FEBFUMY Y2, 2018

v. x... c w... v- an-, nx a..... eiw. n e. s:. u uwin w,,. nn.

100



ITEM 4. 6
I

J

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT   ( SIA)   FOR 38

LOTS IN TRACT 3938 VILLAGE  ' Q"  WITHIN

E 1ST VILLAGE DISTRICT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for
Tract 3938 Village  Q"  within East Village

District,  Totaling 38 Single- Family Lots and
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with

River Islands Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map No.
3694  ( VTM 3694),  which included a Neighborhood Design Plan,  Architectural

Guidelines,  Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks Master Plan for the East Village

neighborhood located west of the CSRB neighborhood with River Islands

Development,   LLC   ( RID).   The AG/ DS and NDP were amended by Planning
Commission action on September 13, 2017.

This proposed Tract 3938 is the second of two final maps within the Village Q" area
for Anthem United Homes.  The map encompasses thirty- eight  ( 38)  60'  x 100'

single- family lots. A Vicinity Map of Tract 3938 is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3938,
Village Q" and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Attachment C) with River

Islands Development, LLC (" River Islands").

BACKGROUND:

The land for Tract 3938 and Village " Q" is within the geographic boundaries of VTM

3694 approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with
updated conditions of approval. Tract 3838 as proposed by RID, the Subdivider,

complies with the amended conditions of approval of VTM 3694.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. With the previously approved Tract 3838 for Village Q," bonds were

posted for the entirety of Village " Q."  Subsequently, River Islands Public Financing
Authority ( RIPFA)  provided substitute security for a number of tracts within East
Village including Village  " Q." As a result,  the SIA requires that this previously
provided security remains in place to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within
Village " Q."

101



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 9, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRACT 3938 VILLAGE Q" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALIIVG 38

SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AND SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off- site Agreement") that was approved by City
Council on September 30, 2013, to the extent that agreement is still valid for certain

improvements. Tract 3938 will not trigger any additional off-site improvements and
the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3938 as it has to all previous final maps in
River Islands with no additional security for off-site improvements.

Also, as required by the Tract 3938 SIA, security for unfinished public streets, utilities
and other public improvements has already been provided by RIPFA for all of Village
Q" improvements in the amount of $ 190, 800  ( performance bond)  and  $ 95, 400

labor and materials). These bonds were replaced with a Letter of Guarantee from

RIPFA; see Exhibit H of the SIA. This security will remain in place with the City until
all punchlist items identified by the City' s inspectors are fully completed.  Acceptance

of these improvements will be processed by staff at a later date. At that time, RID

will be required to post one- year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

An Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Easement for Public Roadway Purposes for
Mulholland Drive  ( IOD)  was required for the recordation of Tract 3838. This IOD

provided secondary access to Garden Farms Avenue. The SIA requires that the IOD
remain in place until subsequent final maps dedicate right- of-way for Mullholland
Drive in which the IOD can be rejected. A recorded copy of the IOD for Mulholland
Drive is included as Exhibit G to Attachment D ( SIA).

Access to Tract 3938 and Village " Q"  in general is dependent on streets within

adjacent tracts,  therefore the IOD as described above will be necessary for
Mulholland Drive to connect to the existing right of way of Garden Farms Avenue.

Finally,   RID has paid all appropriate fees and completed nearly all public

improvements. Completion of offsite improvements required to serve the CSRB area

were guaranteed in the Off-site Agreement approved by City Council on September
30, 2013.  Finally, before the final map for Tract 3938 is recorded,  RID must also

satisfy the Escrow Instructions ( Attachment E) that guarantee all required fees are

paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has substantially completed the street and utility improvements within
the entirety of Village " Q", and posted security for 120% of the estimated cost to

complete the unfinished improvements. Prior to acceptance of public improvements

within Village " Q", RID shall provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee the full

improvements ( completed and uncompleted) for one year.

102



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 9, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRACT 3938 VILLAGE Q" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALING 38

SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AND SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.   Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.   Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.   Performance Bonds - provided by Letter of Guarantee by
Substitution of Security Set- Aside Letter," dated April 23, Completed

2018.

4.   Labor and Material Bonds - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Miscellaneous Improvements-   provided by Letter of

Completed
Guarantee by Substitution of Security Set- Aside Letter,
dated A ril 23, 2018.

5.    Street Improvement,  Landscape,  Street,  Joint Trench
Completed

Plans

6.    Geotechnical Report Completed

7.    Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication,  Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Street and Public Im rovements

8.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development Agreement

that guarantees creation of CFD for City Maintenance and
Completed

Shortfalls,   and Guarantee of Developer CFDs for

Develo er/ other ublic a enc maintenance

9.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

10.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

11.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance Completed

12.    Submitted Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Guarantee of Title Completed

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement. Plans - Plan check and Inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

103



CITY MAIVAGEIt' S REPORT Page 4

OCTOBER 9, 2018, CITY COUNCYL REGULAR MEETYNG

TRACT 393 VILLAGE Q" V1lITHIRI E/ T VILLA GE DISTRICT, TOTALING 38

SIIe1GLE- FAMILY LOTS AIVD SIA lNIl'H RI\/ E! t ISLANDS DE/ ELOPMENT, LLC

Extensive off-site improvements to serve Village ' Q" and Tract 3938 have already

been completed, including construction of levees, participation in the construction of
a Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage
ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility

infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract.  Also,  Village  ' Q"  has already been

annexed to the three Community Facilities District ( CFD' s) for maintenance ( Annexed
with Final Map 3838).

UDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City by this action. All City costs are covered by
development fees and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are
covered by the Community Facilities District ( CFDs) for maintenance; Village " Q" has
already been annexed to the required districts. RID is also providing funds necessary
to cover any staff time required to process their request.

TT C Fi M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3938 Village " Q" within East Village
District,  Totaling 38 Single- Family Lots and Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.  Village Q" Vicinity Map

C.  Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, for Tract
3938 Village Q" within East Village

D.  Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3938

104



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

OCTOBER 9, 2018, CITY COUIOICIL REGULA R MEETING

TRACT 393 VILLACE ` Q" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALIIVG 3

SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AIVD SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMEI IT, LLC

APPROVALS:

1
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

i 1, 1
Cari Jam s Date

Finance ir ctor

Cj z6 `'/'
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

G• 2•` 3
Ste n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

105



TT" ACgIPVIENI"°'

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPFtOVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3938 IN VILLAGE ' Q" WITHIN

EAST VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALING 38 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AND
A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3938, the proposed subdivision, is part of the East Village

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 39 lots covered by
VTM 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in its review of tracts within Village " Q" in the East Village District,

including Tract 3938, the Stewart Tract Design Review Committee recommended

approval of Tract 3938 on September 14, 2017; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3938, as identified
on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion

of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID

and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements associated
with Tract 3838, including full street improvements are required prior to final map
approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190, with said Agreement

attached and included herein as Exhibit A to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Mulholland Drive has already
been recorded and is included as Exhibit G of the Agreement to ensure access from

Tract 3938 to Somerston Parkway via Mulholland Drive; and

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by RID
and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS, upon acceptance of all improvements, including in the Subdivision
Improvement Agreement as complete, a one- year maintenance and repair bond will

be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or

correct any defective work; and    

106



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  off- site improvements were guaranteed with the Dedication,

Inspection and Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements ( Off- site Agreement),

approved by City Council on September 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed Tract 3938 as proposed by RID,
the Subdivider, complies with the amended conditions of approval of VTM 3694, is

technically correct, and complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act
and Lathrop Municipal Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, all of Village " Q", including Tract 3938 has been annexed into the
three Community Facilitates District ( CFD' s) for maintenance established by RD 2062,
River Islands Public Financing Agency ( RIPFA) and by the City of Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3938; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute Final Map Tract
3938 ' Q" and is hereby approved as submitted as part of the public record
with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office.  The

recorded executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute and file with the
City Clerk the Subdivision Improvement Agreement that guarantees to

complete improvements of all streets dedicated within Tract 3938 along with
improvements of Somerston Parkway from Marina to River Islands Parkway as
included and as attached to the October 8, 2018 staff report.

107



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8t" day of October, 2018,

by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

108



i`..       
m....-,,,,

r
i   ',    

s 4 ,,,//     /`  
t`.\

AI' o  

e       

f"  ,

e O
0`   qG

W            o      .,  F9

c     ,    
Q

TRACT 3838 PQ``    `°       

Z= 

7,   ?,    7r,   ' 3    ,    i+.       21
24

y G'.       ;     .    
e C?    

o iU

a-    a%    G 5?    53 SS V

t 0 5;       

2fi q         °'. 4
MULHOLLAND DRIVE TRACT 7 H

3 s;_    7'   5C        «  a'      i

sc
L

s."    UQ     ' 

S     O g

O 1
0

3    ;;> 1

a   . i
d

o
1

3 I I e.-

s R T 38 7--  e

e
4 i 1

3

w          I   j@' n(;      
s'' s'-' j          

c

cb_
43  ,_;

ty.      

1,

A ,,

LAKE 9 m.-      °.

e

a
r

a__ A

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

NOTE: TRACTS 3838 AND 3938 COMPRISE VILLAGE Q

ATTACHnlIER1T B

illage „ C
n

Vicinity Map
OCTO ER 20 7

109



ACHMENT10v'"

CITY OF LATHROP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

River Islands ( East Village District) - Tract 3938, Village " Q"

River Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
8th day of October, 2018, by and between

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")
and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company  ( hereinafter

SUBDNIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and
CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve the Village" Q" area of River Islands,
which includes both Tracts 3838 and Tract 3938. However, SUBDIVIDER has substantially
completed the public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts 3838 and 3938 and only
needs to provide performance and labor and materials bonds (" security") in the amount of

286, 200 as required by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act for
unfinished improvements. SUBDIVIDER posted such security with CITY and this security was
released with the posting of replacement security from River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") as provided in Exhibit F. This security shall remain in full force and effect as required
by this Agreement until all improvements within the Village " Q" area are fully completed,
inspected and ready for acceptance by CITY.

C.       Access to Village" Q" is required via an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Easement for
Roadway Purposes (" IOD") for Mullholland Drive. This IOD was required with Tract 3838 and

shall remain in place with approval of Tract 3938 in order to provide access to Village " Q." The

IOD was recorded on November 30, 2017, and is included as Exhibit G to this Agreement.

D.       SUBDIVIDER has substantially completed the joint trench improvements for Tracts 3838
and 3938, and as noted in Recital C security has already been posted by SUBDIVIDER for all
unfinished infrastruciure for Village " Q."  Joint trench improvement plans and street light plans

prepared by O' Dell Engineering, Inc., have already been approved by CITY with nearly all street,
sidewalk,  underground utility,  storm drainage,  street light and joint trench improvements

hereinafter " Improvements") have been constructed as part of the required infrastructure for

Tracts 3838 and 3938, with minor punchlist items remaining. The required security as outlined in
this Agreement shall remain posted until the Improvements are accepted as required by this
Agreement, but shall be released upon the discretion of the City Engineer once the Improvements
are accepted by CITY.

110



Subdivision Improvement Agreeinent ( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village " Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 2 of 16

E.       The 3` d Amendment to the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement by and
Between the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC, required SUBDIVIDER to provide guarantees for
wastewater treatment and recycled water capacity  (" Utility Capacity Guarantees")  prior to

approval of final maps.    SUBDIVIDER has provided the Utility Capacity Guarantees for
Village " Q."

NOW T' I3E1tEFORE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s

construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all the lots within the East Village neighborhood, to

the limits identified on Exhibit A, including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CTTY' s

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the first home constructed in Tract 3938 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3938 associated with the filing of
Tract 3938 or prior to the completion and occupancy of the first production dwelling unit
associated with Tract 3938, or December 1, 2019, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy shall
be documented by CITY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CTTY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CTTY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDNIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDNIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done, and from any defects in materials furnished.

111



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 3 of 16

Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and maintain the Iinprovements in good condition and in
accordance with CITY specifications for one  ( 1)  year after CITY' s acceptance of the

Improvements. As required by the Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Tract 3938, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 489, 800 equal to 10%  of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the entire area($ 4, 898, 000), to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance

of the Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall
be released at the end of the one-year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are
then outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recital D were required to
provide access and required utilities to both Tracts 3838 and 3938 as otherwise described in this
Agreement, as well as backbone roads associated with the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection
and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements referenced in Recital D, the security required

by the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements
shall remain in place until the backbone improvements associated with that agreement are

complete and accepted by CITY, or as is further described by the conditions below:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the

limits of Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" is guaranteed by a performance
bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed prior to release of

security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace,  and/ or reconstruct the

Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair
and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All

administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499. 4, incurred by CITY, in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such

improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

i

112



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 4 of 16

10.      Because the Improvements are not fully complete, SUBDIVIDER was required to only
post Performance and Labor &  Materials bonds to guarantee the deferred and unfinished

improvements associated with Tracts 3838 and 3938, as included and described in Exhibit F to

this Agreement. The security shall remain in place until such time that all Improvements have been
completed, inspected and been accepted by CITY for use. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also
comply with CITY' s insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

11.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out

of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

13.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

14.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDNIDER' s
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the
negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

113



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 5 of 16

15.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are, or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

16.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until
after the City Engineer has made a written detennination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDNIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.
SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees ofSUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

20.      SUBDNIDER shall,  at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary

permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

21.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3 93 8.

22.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and

construed by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

114



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 6 of 16

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act
of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have

no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all documents

which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding

upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall
remain in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns.   Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the
successors and assigns of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its

provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall

be computed by excluding the first day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be
performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time
for performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue.  In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that
trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.    

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A:  F1NAL MAP - TRACT 3938

EXHIBIT B:   ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3938

EXHIBIT C:  CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE— VILLAGE " Q"
EXHIBIT F:   LETTER OF GUARANTEE— EAST VILLAGE TRACTS

EXHIBIT G:  IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION— MULHOLLAND DRIVE

115



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 7 of 16

IN WIT'NESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this gtn

day of October, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTE T: CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPI OVED AS TO FOlaM:

y 2 6 
BY:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

SUBDIVIDEl, River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

116



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 8 of 16

E HIBIT A

F'INAL 1VIAP- TRACT 3938

117



TRACT 3938
PROJECTSITE 5

RIVER LAIHROP R

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
NF

VILLAGE Q 4
NR       

SqN o LOUISE AYE

OWNER' S STATEMENT
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, 6EINC f        z

A SUB IVISION OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH} Of TRACT 1878( 43 MkP 12) 0 2 
CITY OF LAiHROP, SAN. I AWIN COUNTY, CAIIFORNiq f

THE UNOERSICNED, OES HEREBY STATE THAT THEY ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAND OELINEATED
SEPiEA18ER 2018

AND EMBRACED WITHIN THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LINE OF THE HEREW EMBODIED FlNAL MAP ENTITLEO,    
RO   .,,  /`   _

7RACT 39} g, RNER ISLANDS, PHASE IB, VIILACE 0', Cltt OF IATHROP, CALIFORNIA, CONSISTING OF Nq
EIEVEN( 11) SHEEfS, AN WE HEREBY CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND FILINC OF THIS FlNAI MAP qa
M THE OFfICE OF THE COl1NTY RECOROER OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA o F120

4ir ftp0.

kOP   f'q
THE UNDERSIGNED OES HEREBY OEDICATE AN EASEMENT TO THE Cltt OF IATHROP FOR Pl1BLIC E N G l N' E E fZ 1 N G o 4"

RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES, THOSE PORTIONS OF SAID lANDS DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP AS 60WLING QP   

COURT AND MINARET COURT, AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.   y oe

TME UNDERSIGNEO DOES HEREBY DEOICATE TO THE Cltt OF LITHROP A NON- EXCWSNE EASEMENT
TOCETHER WRH TME RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN, POLES, WIRES,    
CA6LE5, PIPES, AND CONOUITS ANO THEIR APPURiENANCES UPON, OVER AN UNDER THE STRIPS OF E,
LAND AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP DESIGNATED A$" P. U. E."( PUB IC UTILItt EASEMENi).       S

THE UNOERSIGNED OOES NEREBY DEDICATE TO THE CIiY OF IATHROP A NON- EXCWSNE SLOPE
GRANT LME RD

a

EASEMENT TOGEfHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONS RUCi, RECONSTRIICT, REPAIR ANO MAIMAIN, SLOPES
5

O
THEOUND RSIGNEO OOES HEREBY REIJN UISH

TOI
THENCItt OF LATNROAPEALLA BUTfERS RIGHTEOF vTERESCV

ERAK S STA
KEMo NRK OF THE Cltt COUNCIL OF THE Cltt OF IATHROP, VICINITY MAP

ACCE55 TO LOTS 10, 11. 16, I9, 20, 22, 24, 26, 27, 32, 34 AND 38, PLONG THE LOT LINES AS STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DO HEREBY STATE THAT THE HEREM EMBODIED MAP ENTITLED' TRACT 3938,       NOT TO SCALE

INOICATED BY THE SYMBOL//////// AS SHOWN ON THIS RNER ISLANOS, PHASE IB, VILLACE 0, CIiY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, CONSISTING OF ELEVEN
FINAL MAP.       11) SHEEfS, THIS STATEMENT WAS PRESENTED TO SAID CITY COUNCIL, AS PROVI ED BY LAW, AT

OWNER: RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMEM, LLC, A CAUFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.  AN ETHATRSAIDECItt COUNC L

OHDL
H REUPON 6Y R SOLU TION N0.    201O11LY SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT

PASSED AN ADOPTE AT SAID MEElINC, APPROVE SAID IAAP, AND AUTMORREO ITS RECOR ATION,
AN ACCEPTEO ON BEHALF OF THE Cltt OF LATHROP, FOR PUBLIC USE, THE DE ICATION OF ALL THIS IAAP CONFORMS TO VESIING TENiAP4E MAP N0. 3694 APPR04ED 8Y THE PLANNINC COM1IMISSION.

Pl1BLIC 11TILITY EASEMENTS, SIOPE EASEMENTS, AN THE RELINOUISHMENT OF ACCE55 RICHTS TO DATED hilS_ AY OF 401_,

LOTS 10, 11, 16, 19, 20, 22, 24, 26, 27, 32, 34 AN 38, ALONG THE LOT UNES AS INDICATEO
BY:    BY THE SYMBOL/////// AND ACCEPTED THE OFFER OF EOICATION OF ALL STREEfS, AVENUES
NAME:   SUSAN OELL' 0550 OATE

pN WAVS AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP SU& IECT TO THE IMPROVEMENiS BEINC COMPLEfED IN
fIS:     PRESIOENT

ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 16, TIiLE 16. 16 OF THE CITY OF IATHROP MUNICIPAL COOE.    
1ARK MEISSNEfl, COMMUNIIY OEVEIOPMENi ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

CITY OF LAhiROP

I Fl1RiHER STATE THAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY lAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITHIN MAP HAVE

BEEN APPROVED BY THE Cltt COl1NCIL OF LATHROP AND FlLED IN MY OFFICE.

DATED THIS OAY OF 201_

OLD REPUBLIC TRLE COMPANY, AS TRUSTEE, UNOER THE OEED OF TRUST RECOR ED DECEMBER CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT22, 2016, AS DOCUMEM Nl1MBER 2016- I60886, OFFlGAL RECORDS OF S4N JOAOUIN COUNIY.    
TERESA VARGAS

By.    
Cltt CLERK AND CLERK OF THE CIIY COUNCIL OF THE Cltt OF LATHROP, COUMY OF SAN I, CLENN CEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE THAT I AM TME CRY ENCWEER OF THE CIiY OF lA7NROP,

NAME:  
JOAOUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA CAUFORNIA FND THAT I HAVE E%AMINED THIS FlNAL MAP OF' TRACT 3938, RIVER ISLANOS, PHASE

ITS:     
IB, VILLACE 0', Cltt OF LATHROP. CALIFORNIA, AND THAT THE SUBOIVISION SHOWN HEREON IS

SUBSTPNTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE VESTING TENTATNE MAP N0. 3694, AN ANY

APPROVED ALTERATIONS THEREOF. I FURTHER STATE THAT THIS FlNAL MAP COMPLIES WITH ALL

APPLICABLE OROINANCES OF THE Cltt OF IATHROP, AND ANY AMEN MENTS TMEREfO. APPLICABLE

AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VESTING TENiAiNE MAP.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER' S) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)      
DAIED 7HI5_ DAY OF zo_

Q` 0.0 G3
A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHEft OFFICER COMPLEfING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMP EfING THIS CERTI ICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IOENTItt OF THE INDIVIOUAL WHO SICNED THE OOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFlCATE IS
ATTALHE, AND N0T TME TRU7HFULNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOI7Y OF THAT DOCUMENT. ATTACHED. AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VAl1DIlY OF TFiNT OCUAIENT.    

GLENN GEBHARDT, R. C. E. 34681 s No. 34fie1 m
CIN ENGINEER OF THE CITY OF LATMROP, CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CAl1FORNIA

COUNTV OF SPN JOAQUIN     COUNtt OF SAN JOIAQUIN     F 0({. U Q'

ON 201_ BEFORE ME,    ON 201_ BEFORE ME,
A NDTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,     WHO A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,     WHO
PROYEO TO ME ON THE BA515 OF SATISFALTORY EVIOENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) WHDSE NAA1E( S)  PROVED TO ME ON THE BA515 OF SATISFACiORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PEft50N( S) WHOSE NAME( S)      RECORDER' S STATEMENTIS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRIIMENT, AND ACKNOWLE GEO TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY
EXECUTEO THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACIttQES), AND THAT BY HIS/ NER/ THEIR E% ECl1TE0 THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR AUTHORRED CAPACItt( IES), AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ iHEIR FlLEO THIS OAY OF 201_, AT__ M.
SIGNATURE( 5) ON 7HE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON( 5), OR THE ENiIiY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE SIGNATURE( 5) ON THE INSiRUAIENT THE PERSON( S), OR THE ENTIIY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE IN 900K OF MAPS AND PlATS, A7 PAGE AT THE REOUEST OF
PERSON( S) ACTED, E% ECUTED THE WSTRUMENT. PERSON( 5) ACTE, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.     OLD REPUBLIC iITLE COMPANY.

I CERTIFY UNDER PENALtt OF PERJURY UNDER THE UWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAi THE I CERTIFY UNDER PENAIN OF PERJl1RY UN ER THE lAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FEE:$
FORECOMG PAl2AGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORREC7. FORECOINC PARACRAPH IS TflUE ANO CORRECT.

WITNESS MY HAND:  WITNE55 MY HANO:  BY:

STEVE J. BESTOLARIDES. ASSISTANT/ OEPUtt RECOR ER

SICNATURE:       SIGNATURE:   
ASSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNtt CIERK

NAME( PRINT):     NAME( PRINT): 
SAN JOAQUIN COUNiY, CALI ORNIA

PRINCIPAL COl1NN OF BUSINESS: PRINCIPAL COUNtt OF BUSINE55:
AY COMMISSION NUMBER:      MY COMMISSION NUMBER:

MY COMMISSION E% PIRES:      MY COMMISSION E% PIRES:   E% EMPT FROM FEE PER GOVERNMENT CODE 27388. 1; OOCUMENT

RECOROE IN CONNECTION WITH A CONCURRENT TRANSFER

SUBJECT TO THE IMPOSITION OF DOCUMENTARY TRPNSFER TA%.

SHEET 1 oF 1 1

118



TRACT 3938
NOTES RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
1.  RIGHT TO FARM STATEMENT:     SIGNATURE OMISSIONS VILLAGE Q

PER Cltt OF IATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE 15, CHAPTER 15. 48. 04, THE Cltt OF
LATHROP PERMITS OPERATION OF PROPERLY CONDUCTED AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS WIiHIN THE C tt PURSUANT TO SECiION fi6436 OF hiE CALIFORNIA SUBOIV SION MAP ACi, iHE SIGNANRES OF THE FOLL0 51NC A PORiI N OF FANCHO EL PESCAOEftO, BEINC
LIMITS, INCLU ING THOSE THAT 11TILIZE CHEMICAL FERiILRERS AN PESTICIDES. YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFlED PAR71E5 HAVE BEEN OMITIED:  

p SUBDINSION OF PARCELS 1 iHftOUGH 3 OF TRACi 3838( 43 M& P 12)
THAT THE PROPERiY YOU ARE Pl1RCHASING MAY BE LOCATED CLOSE TO ACRICULTl1RAL WJDS AND 1. flECLAIAIE IAANDS LANO COMPANY, RESERVAPON FOR OIL, CAS, MMEftAlS, AND OiHFR HYOROCARB N CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAQIIM COUNTY, CALIFORNIA
OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SU& IECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR OISCOA7FORT ARISING Fft01A THE IAWFUL AND SIlBSTANCES LYING BELOW A DFPiH OF 500 FEET, PER OCUMENT NUMBFR 2001- 046177, S. J. C. R.   SEPTEM6ER 2018
PROPER USE OF ACRICULil1RA1 CHEMICALS ANO PESTICIOES AND FROM OTHER AGRICULTURAL ACTIVRIES,      p. PUBLIC Ulilltt EASEMENT M FAVOR OF iHE CITY OF IATHROP PER TRACT 3838( 43 MAPS AND P1A75 12),
INCLUOINC WITHOUT LIMITATIONS, LULTIVATION, PLOWINC, SPRAYING, IRftIGATION, PRUNING, HARVESTING,   S. J. C. R.

Bl1RNINC OF AGRICULTURAL WASTE PROOUCTS, PROTECTION OF CROPS AND PNIM4L5 FROM DEPREDATION,    
AND OTHER ACTIVITIES WHICH MAY GENERATE O115T, SMOKE, NOISE, OOOR, RODENTS ANO PESTS. BE AWARE
AL50, THAT THIS PROPERtt MAY BE LDCATED A JACENT TO AGRICULTURAL OPERAl10N5 OUTSIDE THE Cltt' S

N G 1 N E R 1 N GJURISOICTION. CONSEOUENTLY, DEPENDINC ON THE LOCATION OF YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE NECESSARY
THAT YOU BE PREPARED TO ACCEPi SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR DISCOMFORT AS NORMAL AND NECESSARY REFERENCES
ASPECT OF INING IN AN AGRICULTURALLY ACTNE REGION.

RECORD OF SURVEY FILED AUCUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 142, AS CORRECiE BY

2.  A SOILS REPORT ENTRLED" GEOTECHNICAL E% PLORAPON, RNER ISl. WDS PHASE 1, LATHROP, CALIFORNIA',      RI)  CERPFICATE OF CORRECTION RECOROED JULY I5, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUTABER 2005- 171264, SJ.C. R.
REFERENCEO AS PROJECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 ANO DATED JULY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THIS 35 SURYEYS 142)

PROJECi BY ENCEO. INCORPORATED, JOSEF J. TOOTLE, G. E. N0. 2677, AND IS ON FlLE WITM THE CIN OF R2) GRANi DEED RECOROED APRIL 24, 2015. AS D. N. 2015- 046193, S. J. GR.
IATHROP. R})  iRACT} 704, FILEO OECEMBER 20, 2013, IN BOOK 42 OF IAAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 4, S. J. C. R.( 41 M& P 4)

3.  ' TRACT 3938, RNER ISLANDS, PHASE I8, VILLAGE 0", CONTfJNS: 38 RESIDENTIAL LOTS, CONTAINING 7. 86
R4)  iRACT 179fi, FILEO FEBRIIARY 27, 2015, IN BOOK 42 f MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 7D, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 30)

ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLUDING ROAOWAYS TMAT ARE BEING DEDICAiE BY THIS FINAL MAP, ALL AS
RS)  iRACT 3791, FILED MAY B, 2015, IN BOOK 44 OF IAAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 36, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P S6)

SHOWN ON SAID MAP HEREIN.( PLEASE REFER TO THE AREA SUMMARY TABLE BELOW):  R6)  GRANi OEED RECORDED IAARCH 30, P001, AS O. N. 2001- 046177, S. J.C. R.

R7)  iRACT 7876, FILEO IAARCH 31, P016, IN 800K 42 OF IAAPS AND PLAiS, PACE Sfi, S. J.C. R.( 42 M& P 56)

RB)  iRACT 383Y, FILEO AUCUST P4, 2016, IN BOOK 42 0 IAAPS ANU PIATS, PAGE 66, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 66)

TRACT3938AREASUMMAFY
R9)  TRACT 3834, FILEO OECEMBER 2I, 20I6, IN BOOK 42 0 MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 7P, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 71)

RIO) TRACT} gZ9, FILED ECEM9ER 21, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 71, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 71)
38 RESIOENTIAL lOTS 7. 04 ACt RI1) 1RACT 3836, FILED MARCN 15, 2017, IN BOaK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 84, S. J. C. R.( 42 AIkP B4)

RI2) iRACT 3838, fILED NOVEIABER 30. 2017, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE II, S. J. C. R.( 47 IA& P 17)
SIREET OEDICA710N5 0. 82 ACf

R7}) iRACT J837, FILED JUNE 19, 2018, IN BOON 47 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 1B, S. J. C. R.( 4} M& P 38)

TOiAL 7. 86 ACS

LINETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEETS3THROUGH50NLY CURVETABLEFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEET53THROUGH50NLY

LINE TABLE LME TABLE IINE TABLE Cl1RVE TABLE CURVE TABLE

4.  BASED ON INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PRELIMINARY TIRE REPORT OROER NUTABER 1614020004- KB
L1NE OIRECTION IENGTH I1NE OIRECiION LENGiH L1NE DIRECTION LENGTH CURVE ftMIUS DELTA LENCTM CUftYE RAOIUS OELTA LENGiHVERSION 1), DATED JULY 12, 2018, PROVIOED BY OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY.

LI EAST 744. 00'   L27 N80' 39' S7' E 393. 24'   L45 NBI51' 31' E 29. 82' CI 280. 00 46' 07' 24' 225. 40'    C16 730. 00 IB' O6' O6' 104. 26'       

l2 EAST 4Y9. 00   L24 N73' 21' 09' W 295. 70'   L46 N1631' 21' E I76. J8' C2 250. 00 2P' S9' 74' 100. 32'    tl7 410.00 fi' 73' 00'  46. 87'

L3 NORiH 1290. 00'   L75 N55' 02' 09° W 409. 34'   L47 N3628' 39' E 140. 18' C3 450. 00 23' 07' S0' 100. 93'    CIB 220. 00 6' 44' S2°  25. 91'

CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
4 NOR7H 721. 00'   L26 N55' 36' 09' W 260. 59'   L48 NO' 04' 75' W 34. 61' C4 380. 00 }' 7B' 34'  8817'    C19 S60. Oa P3U6' S2' T25. 92

LS NOR7H 1Y90. 00'   L27 N) 4' S1' S1" E 717. 85'   L49 N23V7' S0' E 76. fi8' CS 780. 00 873' 13'  S4. 51'    C20 220. 00 2051' 17'  B0. 08'
I, LAWRENCE COSSEfT, HERE6Y STATE iHAT I HAVE E% AAIINED THIS FINAI MAP OF' TRACT 7938, RNER
ISIANDS, PHASE IB, VILLAGE, CI7Y OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, AND THAT THE SUB NISION SHOWN HEREON 6 EASi 1173. 00'   L28 N4539' S4' E 194. 84'   LSO M679' 19' E 40. 03' C6 350. 00 278' 4I'  16. 16'    C21 280. 00 p0'} 6' 16' 100. 69'

COMPLIES WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF THE CAIIFORNIA SUB IVISION MAP ACT, AS AMEN E,
AN TIiAT THIS FINAL MAP IS TECHNICAILY CORRECT.  NOR7H 693.00'   L29 N44' 20' O6' W 1. 37 L51 N4J' S2' 36' W I41. 99' C7 750. 00 37' 44' 17' 230. 53'   C22 220. 00 636' 36'  25. 38'

ATED TMIS DAY OF ZOl_. 
ag0iC55loq

B NORiH 663.00'   L30 N45"39' S4' E 60. 00'   L52 N28' 34' O6" E 99. 37' CB 350. 00 28' OS' IS' 171. 59'    C23 310. 00 1773' IB  94. 98'

o  [ v t
t.       L9 EAST 555. J0'   L31 N4470' O6' W 9. 63'   L53 N66' 21' 48' W 59. 69' C9 530. 00 12' 45' 07' 117. 96'    t24 500. 00 17' OS' 16' 236. 38'

IAWRENCE GOSSEff, P. E. 31695 Na. SI695''       
LIO EASi 534. 00'   L32 N75' 18b5' W 5. 83'   L54 N79U2' OB' E 90. 00' L70 570. 00 33' T2' I7' 308. 69'   C25 350. 00 6028' 13' 418. 26'

y y L11 EAST 509. 00'   L33 NOR7H 245. OD'   L55 N43' S2' 36° W 117. 77' C11 250. 00 p0' S1' 17'  91. 0'    C26 560. 00 5' 10' S8'  S1. 9fi'

sl t flYll P
0( A 

z FAST 579. 02'   L34 N4' 41' S2° W 35. 05   L56 EASi 2. 15' C12 300. 00 26' 31'}' 138. 89'    C27 560. 00 28' 25' S0' 277. 87'

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
L14 N4352' 7fi' W 14 1. 99'   U6 N59' 07' 32' E 706} g'   L58 N0BO9'} 7'{ y 9}. fi3' C74 280. 00 46' 0724' 22540'   C29 30000 I62 205 44. 18

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY A1E OR UNDER MY DIRECiION AND IS BASEO UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN
5 EASi 127. 72'   L37 EASi 12J. 72'   L59 N7476' 31' W 91. 89' CIS 317. 00 4' 41' 00'  25. 91'CONFORMANCE WITH THE REOUIREMENiS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL OR INANCE AT THE REOUEST

OF RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, ON AUCUST 1, 2017. I HEREBY STATE AlL THE MONUMENTS ARE OF THE
LI6 N6979' 13' W Y71. 79'   L38 N30' 03' 39' W 40. 03'   L60 N50' 00' 12' W 60. 96'CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INOICATED OR THAT THEY WILL BE SEf IN THOSE POSITIONS BEfORE

OECEMBER 71, 2022, AND THAT THE MONUMEMS ARE, OR THAT THEY WILI 9E, SUFFlCIENT TO ENABLE THIS L17 NORTH 68. J7'   L39 NP3' 07' S0' E 36. 68'   L61 EASi 155. 26'    CURVERADIALTABLEFORCOUflSESSHOWNONSHEET54THROUGH50NLY
SUMEY TO. BE RETRACEO, AND THAT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONOITIONALLY APPROVEO
iENTATNE AIAP. 

L18 N43' S9' 07' E 51. 65 L40 N4J' S9' 07' E 107. 79'   L6P N4}' S2' 36' W 141. 99'
RAOIAL IABLE RADIAL TABIE RAOIAL TABLE

DATED THIS DAY OF 207_. NF LAND L19 N43' 52' 76' W 170. 75'   L41 N46' OD' 53' W 60. 0'   l63 N39' 10' 22" E 97. 96'     
RAOIAL  eEARING RA IAL B BEARINC RAOIAL  6EARINC

Wya`
P'

1 CR9

Lc RI N40' 48' O6' E R6 N4579' S4" E R71 N1378' 34' Ea
i

L20 N23' 07' S0' E 99. fi0'   L42 N89' S6' 45' W 74. 69'   L64 N5070' S0' W 60. 00'

R2 N6B77' S6 W R7 N46' 1554" W R72 N2470' 2B" EL21 N39' 48' 10' E 236. 11'   L43 N43' S2' 36' W 114. 61'   Lfi5 N43' S9' 07' E 56. 14'
DYIAN CRAWFORD, P. LS. NO 778B

L12 N697B' S1' E 169. 00'   L44 N13' 00' 3YE 91. 39'   l66 N6Bl)' S6" W 30.00'       R3 N6' J3' 00' E R9 N39' 30' 48' E R13 N17' 41' 34' E

fOFCPUf
Pc

R4 N6' 44' S2' E R9 N23' 07' S0' E RI4 N12' 45' 07' E

RS N4038' S4" E fl10 N76' 43' 21' W

SHEET 2 oF 1 1

119



BASIS OF BEARINGS

TRACT 3938iHE BEARINC OF' EASY BEMEEN FOl1ND MONUMENTS ALONG IHE AIONUMENT LME 0 AL0. 0EMY ORIVE
AS SHOWN ON TRACT} 79, GILED MAY 8, 2015, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 76,  

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 BOFFlCIAL RECOROS OF THE COUN7Y OF SAN JOAOUIN, WAS TAKEN AS iHE BASIS 0 BEARINGS SHOWN

ON THIS lAAP( ZONE J, NAD83). ALL OISTANCES SNOWN XEREIN ARE GftOUND OISTANCES. VILLAGE Q

EASEMENTS
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

Ol PUB IC UiILITY EASEMENT IN GAVOR OF iHE Cltt OF LAiHROP PER iRACT 3838 A SUBDIVISION Of PARCEIS 1 THROUCH 3 OF TRACT 3838( 47 M& P 12)

43 MAPS AND PLAiS 12), S. J. C. ft.  
CIiY OF LAINROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNTY, CALIFORNIA

SEPTEIABEft 2018

THIS SHEEi SHOWS iIES TO iHE

p
VEA

NOTES 6AS15 OF 6EARINGS AND OTHER MAPS

O  I. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOIPONAL NOTES, REfEREIJCES, ANO FOR RiE
OF RELORD. REFER TO SHEET 4 FOR

2 15 0. ft,Z f\16 LME TABLE AND LURVE TABIE OF CWRSES SMOWN ON SHEETS 3
7HE BWN ARY OF TRACT 7938

N
R    f

rtiRoucn 5 au v. E N G 1 N E fZ 7 N G
f .50151     

O
PARGEL 4  J> ..

Ik121      `?  9>   9j" 2' 0 20  400'      800'
lP y _   

cEJ SCALE: I= J00

e

LEGEND
J Pi

r9J
J I caIJFlA, LLc

PAFlCEL 24, DN 2o01- a46177 O WND MONUMEN7 STAIAPED' PLS 7788' PQ2( R3)
9,\  I 7RACT 3B( Ril

n   

c       S      FOUND MONUMENT STAMPEO' PlS 7788' PER( RS)

qp
N

MONUMENT LO BE SET PER( R11)

q1f
A

Fq MONUMENT i0 BE SET PER( R12)

I I     \   Z}  f/     f MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R73)

I
I I 1 SET 3. 00' WI7NESS COftNER( W. G), UN ESS

I       O7HERYASE NOIED, MEASURED ALONG LOT IME,

O RADIAL LINE OR PERPEN IWIAR TO SiREEI

TAACT 5937     o CENTERLINE AS NOTED. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W/
PARCOL 6 I     -       ---      

n

IR131       
i

PLASTIC PLUG" PLS 7788°
N 20i6- OOA077 E 9

10 MONUMENT i0 BE SET PER( R9)
GARDENF RMSA ENUE iI L 1 2( M- M J( R 1 1)      L—y 30. 00'    3/ 4' I R O N P I P E YA T H C A P S TA M P E O' P L S 7 7 8 8'

LI1( M- M)( R11)  L10( M- MJ( R11)    L9( R11) SEE OETAIL A TO BE SET PER( R12) AND( R13), RESPECTIVELY,

TRAGT 3836 LOT 3 UNLESS O7HERINSE SHOWN
s      R11    

M- CL INi%)\ i J SHEET 5 pN 2015- oA51B1
SEE DETAIL B f

FOUND 5/ B' REBAR N11H CAP STAMPED' PLS

SHEET 5 g
7788' PER( R7)

o

7RAGT 3a12 PAflCEL 3

P /       

MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R3)

Ift131 7AAC7 eee6 IRtil    I m osQ /    0 2- 1/ 2' 8RA55 OISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788 TO

RNER ISLANDS PARKWAY   

i PNEQ,`
4+      

BE SET PER( RI I)

x---__-__-=-'/ BOUNOARY

I --------   
l0i LINE OR RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE

EASEMENT L1NE

MONUMENTUNE

CENiERLME

IJ
2U0. 00'( R1)      MEASURED AND RECORD OATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

I MARINA RNE R
DENOTES REFERENCE( Rl)-

T L6( M- A1J( R3)( R4)    -  

SEE REFERENCE IIST ON SNEET 2

MARINA RIVE I M- M)       MONUlAENT 10 MONUMENT

I
M- C INT%)     MONUAIENT i0 CENTERLINE INTERSECPON

I
R) RA IAL BEARINC

I i) TOTAL
V

I      
B) BOUNOARY

I CL CENTERLINE
M

I       
DN OOCUMENT NUTABER

OR OFFICIAL RECORD

In I
J

OI EASEA7ENT REFERENCE NIIMBER- SEE hi15 SHEET

IJ
I OO 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788 ON I FOOT OFFSET

TO BE SET PER( R12)

I 0 1. 17' BRA55 DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' i0 BE SET ON

I ACA EMYORIVE          CONCRETE SI EWAII( 1. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHi- OF- WAY, ALONG

PROLONGATION OF SIDE LOT LWES TO BE SET PFR( RI7)

L2( M- IA)( RS)     L1     )      3/ 4' IRON PIPE W11H PLASiIC PWG' PLS 7788' PER( R13)

I 04 5/ B' REBAR YA1H CAP' PLS 7788 PER( R12)
TRACT 3782 Q 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WI1H PLASiIC PWG' PLS 7788" PER( R11)

I m      QA DENOTES WITNESS CORNER ON 3 FOOT OFFSET ALONC THE

I
7AAC7 a701' 7TRA' CT 3706

9 E PROPERIY LME PER( RI2)
I
uJ'         

SHEET 3 oF 11

120



s9'  

TRACT 3938J

b
o

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE iB
9    VILLAGE Q

PAFGEL A

TRACT 35` s5 IR121 SEE DETAIL D b 6 1•   A PORTION OF RANCHO El PESCADERO, BEMG
SHEET 5   _   J  A SUBDIYISION OF PARCELS 1 7MROUGN 3 OF TRACi 3838( 43 M& P 17)

1        J CITY Of LAiHROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA

P,

ll   \     B;,      

9rc^       SFPTEMBEft 1018

j'j 9
J

s ,.y9' T Y < i
aa

U2 Ba''oD.      S,  
NGIN ERING

S 9ry
0

N

36I

R6 90G

O
0'   40'  80'      I60'

92 1 p 29//       SCALE: 1"= 80'

3a

o\\'
9

BOUNDARYSHEET
ae Las

r— P ,
y THIS SHEET SHOWS THE BOUN ARY OF

w F
31 30      =   

O Jy,  TRACT} 9} 8 BEINC PARCELS I

O       .  sj`       1HROUGH 3 OF 1RACT J838

2    
U

37 E'       43 M& P 12)

O U

Q r cyf,N
2e            27 ze ze p 99}'.,   

Oeo NOTES

ag     .

45

ao, b 1. SEE SHEET 2 fOR ADDITIONAL NOlES, ANO FOR THE UNE

TABLE AND CURYE TA6LE OF CWRSES SHORN ON SHEEiS

0
0'       

9      
3 IHROUCH 5 ONLY.

2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR lAAP AND DOCUMENi REFERENCES.
9  _

y- y    
CZfi

o-       

3. SEE SNEET 3 FOR LECEND, EASEMENT REFERENCES AND
255. 00( MSM)( R12)    

OUTRIGGERLANE q K4, \ P     BASISOF9EARINGS.

PARCEL3
4. 1H15 SUBDINSION LONiAWS 7. 96 ACRES, MORE OR LE55.

TMCT 3838( Po2)       o'     

w 23 22 21 20
1a

7
J

9
9\   S. SOAC

yiJ

f=A YFAC7303 wm

e       B•       

W 9     \       6Sy
BW

a,,    .\    .   /
12 13 1J 15

js     `!

I   \   ./ p ` 

A
yo \    

vl
n    

i.

y^'   
l   . tl i `

to• sv

U}( T)( R72)
v

3'
S    \ 

L42. !   Y

PARCEL2 R12
MULHOLLAND DRIVE

1J
40 A h o-. 

i   hJ 1

B 8 7 s      ,   

81` 
e/ Q,4i° i     Q,Q, i

ti 

JO-   
a0

o          
c,    , , t,  i i 0

c;  // i
el       \

9   \!_          /
y,'b

05

11

Y      
Q      

LJ TO:(}

62 C2       /      THAC7 5537 IR131 10
CAI   so 6'  ' p       i    /

i:r      / m/            /     
R     /

C2 R3           a

R9   

l37_—__
6

J '     

C  12

oA CI81 c ol CI7     '     6

3_ L75 C4( R13  \       
Qs

t—_-_—_ E'_—)_ `
5

6
Os

1 4\ I^    7 O=
9 y Q 3

5..       
b g

PARCEL 7( R72)    56
1PAFCEL D IR121 0.966 AC

a \   
2 1

6 R1, 7\    

59

J   

PAflCE

L58
a I r s R12

SEE DETAIL C      /   

QE

A

J

C

1

SHEET 5 ao

SEESHEET3 SHEET 4 oF 1 1

121



Z TRACT 3938
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

W VILLAGE Q
Q

7F7ACY d637 1'       A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, 6EING

q{ 3)   N
A SUBDINSION OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 3 Of iftACT 3839( 43 A7& P 12)

I
CITY OF LAiHFOP, SAN JOAWIN CWNiY, CALIFORNIA

O
SEPTEMBER 2019

i
v

i

P

i 1 ENG1N iZ7NG

7HAG7

w  r ud37

L9( M- CL INTX)( R1I)      IR131 NOTES
I. SEE SHEET 2 F R ADOITIONAL NOTES, AND FOR 1HE LME iABLE AND

GARDEN FARMS
o

PAfiGEI_ E O CIIRVE TABLE OF COURSES SHOWN ON SNEEiS 3 THROUGH 5 ONIY.

AVENUE           
1 I

7FlAC7 v6': B IH1` lJ g I=   2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR LEGEND, MAP AND O CIIMENT REFERENCES.

y    3. SEE SHEET 3 FOR EASEIAENT REFERENCES AND BA95 OF BEARINGS.

T\   o
x

I=     p

Z   

I
n

a 
o

o- 

w I      10IM-! A) IRI7)     —— L9( N- CL IN71()( R11)

a I      GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

4r

I
4a   DETAIL B

NOi TO SCALE

FROM SHEET 3)

DETAIL A

NOT TO SCALE

FROM SHEET 3)

PARCEL3 OO 5' P. U. E.
R12)

i   2°      

aas'
a,,y a

N6877' S6' W R   / '  /      
J}

j, `
J

C6  `

h  J9•  J       

PAflGEL' 1 yl
OI 10' P. U. E. NO6' 33' OD° E R p5hQ 7RACY 5837 S

y s(
ql Q 5

IA131 Osey( Ri 7HAC7 3& 36 IAi`L)    
P1L

L37

0  

C•
r'SG    .

ti`    ZJ  .       n
ti0l

R10= R= 300'    
N40' SB' 54' E RLI5( M- M)( R72) 

n     

C4( RIJ)     ^ `  
R11= R= 380

c

N45' 39' S4" ER)     9/qci'

MULHOLLANDDRIVE
S R 3 h astai2i

0.
0,      

s       ,

z

yp1, 
b

4sfRia ca
f

n0

PARCcL 17
ap.

2 PARCEL3
p,     

7RAC7 3"07& fR71

7AAC7 3838 1 TRACT3838( R12)       ° 6'i  J
1R12)      6J

PAFCEL 0,' 9%9
B rj 2

PAFCEL D DETAIL D

NOi TO SCAIE

DETAILC rROM snccr a)

NOT TO SCALE

FR01A SHEET 4)

SHEET 5 oF 11

122



pp
VER TRACT 3938

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
VILLAGE Q

A PORTION OF RANCHO El PESCADERO, BEING

A SUB IVISION OF PARCELS 1 THRWCH 3 OF TRACT 3BJ8( 43 MkP 1P)

CIi7 OF LAIHflOP, SAN JDAWIN CWNtt, CALI ORNIA

SFPTEMBER Y01B

PAFCEL 4

TRAGY 3638 IR121

N
ENG1N EfZING

0 60'  I ZO'   240'

SCALE: I'= I20'

SHEETINDEX
3A

3E    ,       S

3z

q19
w

33

39 U j 36    ' 

QG'
Y

o
9/

31 30
U 8 C9

ss zs o z,   ze ze    °    

a7   O
20  ,`    

9'
c  

LEGEND
o 7 O l yJ

39
V'      e 2 i  LOT LME

9
s tv 9C`, y'   RICHT-0E- WAVLINE

OUTRIGGER LANE PQ'     

2 26   "` a 2ooj°  BOUNDARY

za za zz z   zo 1B          ` _  p2

ar o

y•  
SHEET LIIAIT LME

19 '   
ZS Q LOi NUMBER

7RAC7 38u3 5 Z  ',
23 1

14 G O SHEET NUMBER

PAHCEL 11       13 14 15 16 ZQ     \     
38 i'A n' 13

O      28 ii i iiiiiii RESIFICTEO ACCESS
0

MULHOLLANDDRIVE Q    12 29 37   .

O
8

11   ,     30 36    `
Q     

PA CEL
1°    e e       s 6 9       ,  5'

Q

lo  t1O 2
c 4

S
6

c       
31 35   /

SQ.    

3
11

3 Q

5
0 32

33 34 _   
io

4      /     \      

4 9

4
O 5

E

12

3
e        13

w 2 MU y o

o

a 2 1

as     
NppRi F      "  15

n
ie  

e
m as

z9

O PARGEL B aa 43 ig
42

p IAKE 9 i

ARR WBq00P:; CEI D
7RAC7 3537

KCT

az ei ao 2e 2g 27

PA;; CEI_ _ F

83 34 85 36 37 36

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE SHEEi 6 oF 11

123



NOTES TRACT 3938
1. 1. 17' BRASS ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788° TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

ja SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, AIONC PROLONGAPON OF RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
N8437' q" w 65. 80'      

SIOE lOT lINES, OR AS NOIEU.      V LLAU'E Q
Q N75; 7p    

2. 5/ B° REBAR W1iH CAP° PLS 7768" TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOi

Q 30'
y 64g

CORNERS, UNLESS OIHERWISE NOIED.

Q jS 7. SEE SHEEi 11 FOR LWE AND CURVE TABLES: A PORiION OF RANCHO El PESCAOERO, BEING

YFiAG7 oao5f 121 4. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADOIPONAL NOTES ANO REFERENCES.    A SUB MSION OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 3 OF 7RACi 3838( 43 MkP 11)

N6 5. SEE SHEET} FOR E% ISTING EASEMENiS, EASEMENT REFERENCE L15T ANO CIN OF LAh1ROP, SAN JOApIIIN COIINTY, CALIFORNIA

iu

67'

4BW5g6grB) Q 11

BASIS OF BEARINGS.      SEPTEMBER 2018

1E

L16 Nssy
17 i 6

B iy
E N G 1 N E{ 1 7 N G

N
o 13

R= 310. 00'  ry} s       

O
0 20'

d q. 36,
s'   

2
7. 384 S. F.   

sy
SCALE: i'= 40'

1,
z796. 0°'     

B

9 T     a

0'    t \    4.L, T8a_
46p'

4'
t,      °',.° jA\      

o     

12
LEGEND

R ZSop 
d_

96p'
2q•

C`       ?
ZSqorM,

J

JJ,
B(

9\ 

2

6, fi4Y S. F.,   a    : S Q SEi SiANDARD CITY OF LA7HROP MONUMENT WFLL STAMPE' PLS 7780'

QZzs. 98.      9''       , 11, o SET 3/ 4" IRON PIPE WI1H PLASiIC PLUC' PLS 7788",
TJ e S  

uNiEss on{ ERvnsc NorEo

6    l
S-     

MONUMENT TO BE SEi PEft( R12)

r,    

i ''
s:     `

a`
ti 11

Q           s      
QJ.   9 9 J MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R13)     

0 6, 248 S. F.   `     ' rbQ, 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PWG" PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( R12),

c    ' i    
j      ' ys J•       

o              UNLESS O7HERYASE NOTEDs 1  ( B  / n' o, v C o h 
r?"

C` o,`
O     •         

a.s\     

Q1R"   
oS

s, `

o . 1/  

o, `  v O SET 3. 00' W1TNE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOlEO, MEASUREO6`'
j J y.

1 yAJ    y'          
r'
J   '

O' b `  

o m o    o 1
ALONG LOT LINE. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788'

S2.    J3,   \     o.
h 2 4 '    4i

ti    6,    G   ` rs•    j
c; y       

y

q yJ.
s'

TB B 200. 00'( RI)  MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

p , 5,   sy s          7. 328 S. F.      
v

v  p, o• 

N69C0' p.
W

Z' 9

j

6
j,

J ! 99     , yJ 5•
P             ti ..

y

SB       NBB' 14' 10" E

M') IA MON UMENT TORMONUMERNT

SEE ftEFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

S J     OO fi. 373 S. f.      
l   

c.

y2O     99 J:dJ\\ 9J09     . UP 3p. yy   v a 
Pl fi5A3'     

ly B,       M

9,
5     s\

p : 9 09 
J

pl           /  Jp S.
P

M- B) MONUMENT TO BOIIN ARY

e
yE' J G(C \             E( R7p M- PL) MONUTAENT TO PROPEftTY 11NE

2s, 96'       o     i h 
c`
f •   

lfi       :,/ 

l

T) TOTAL
a•          y-   32 33 3 S

5 9    / \

hy'.
F 9, 96 S. F.    5, 915 SF.     B) BOUNDARYO 5, 990 S. F.     `

1  .   v      s CL CENiEftLINE

6S
9'       , i, NO6' 44' S2' E( R)  

I L24 N. DOCUMENT NUMBER

p1"   J
1

M- BC) IAONUMENT TO BEGINNING OF CURVE

N2}' 07' S0° E R
56. 57'  fi5. 00'

C8  O p. LLE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
4      ` nsr iza. n'(T) 

6, 086 iF.   1°+  L
1  

C
2

R.
1

M\       

nI I    ~ LDT LINE
a''  0    \   e4p P( M- M

w

0 4, EAST 123. 72' M-! A I w
5 J, 1       

a
4

yy      _     (  )       y._=
RICHT- OF- WAY LME

Cy°„

g,     
dti      

o      \     

6

24``
z

I w BOUNOARY LME

j`     I7 ZS. qO'()   I I    
EASEMENT LINE

2

sy.   3       " C70

I O     ST 123. 72'( T)( RI2)       
CEN7ERUNE

J 7. 5235. F.        

v
L5

RES7RICiED ACCESS

ro 1Q 1, 17" BRASS ISK STAMPED PLS 7786' ON 1 FOOT OFFSET

BBSB      r

z o TO BE SET PER( R12)

8, 181 S. F.      W
Z Q 1. 17" 8RA55 ISK STAMPE" PLS 7789 TO BE SET ON

PAHC I_ I       2 CONCRETE SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO 1HE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONC
7, 911 S. F.   PROLONCATION OF 90E LOT LMES TO BE SEi PER R12TRAc7 3asal- 12)    p

n

O OO 3/ 4` IRON PIPE Yr1TH PLASTIC PWC" PLS 7788' PER( R73)z TFiAC7 59 3( ni)      

Qq 5/ 8" REBAR N1TH CAP' GLS 7788" PER( R12)
N

416J
Wg

g9,    o
O 3/ 4" IRON PIPE WITH PLASiIC PWG" PL5 7788' PER( R12)

O

N88' 19' 37' W 93, 63'       NB6' 26' 27" E 65. 13'   N89' S4' JB' W 65. 00' QA OENOiES Yn7NE55 CORNER ON 3 FOOT OFFSET ALONC 7HE
SI E PROPERTY IINE PER( R12)

SHEET 7 oF 11

124



NOTES TRACT 3938
i. 1. 17" BRA55 ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788 TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGATION OF RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
sioE or uNcs, aR ns Na o.      VILLAGE Q

2. 5/ 8" REBAR INiH CAP" PLS 7788° TO 9E SET AT ALL. REAR LOT

CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTE.

7. SEE SHEET 71 FOR LWE AND CIIRVE TABLES. A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

4. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADOIiIONAL NOTES AND REFERQJCES.    A SUB IVISION OF PARCELS 1 7HROUCH 3 OF TRACT 3838( 43 AI& P 12)

5. SEE SHEEi 3 FOR E% ISTINC EASEMENiS, EASEMENT REFERENCE LIST AND QTY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAqUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

BASIS OF BEARINGS.      SEPTEMBER 2018

9F
Oos, ENG1N+ Z1NG

J!       
N

s>>. ,°
r

O
i 9j BJrJ 0 2D'  40'       80'

70 h y .   SCALE 1"= 40'
C(   

m: soa
j 1

s  ° o.   
FARG I] 7

G ti       A, , 7 Ac7 3E75 IR71

3a
R= zao.00'    pA`  

rs
s

o,  LEGEND6= 20' 14' S3' 2

L= 99. 77'( T)      /  LB      
f''/'     

S

16 Q    yy 15, 412 5..     v'   N44' S1' 21" E( R)       OO SET STANDAR CITY OF LA7HROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED" PLS 7788'

P    92p,  o SET 3/ 4° IRON PIPE WIIH PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788°,JQ

a    ';,  
J>,      

J UNLESS OMERW6E NOiED

Cp SC G czo sa•      r+ sn7i' az' E( R)          ' Jo

Op     •\ O   S/ r o S•     Jsiy
9J

2 1     o ry'    y, 
oo, MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R12)

d>
2\      6p

o

o C.       
yy.  :

L     ) S,     y,     g pq. 06'      \       ' O
MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R77)

0g2z•   a.  O T9    •     F      s•  sz. o s000' a= z.   .          '' s,.

C  C

193y'4.       ZJ06S.   / o

ti`

Q_       o`'  
s      / q 

R       JzOj. \      . 8.(    3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASiIC PLUC" PLS 7789' i0 BE SET PER( R12).

2 E,    s.       UNLESS OTHERWISE NOiED
d,    o:    o m r     2

g     a 2      /    r.\      s d, s

8

Aypp
8,0092S. F.          9J       

e'

rb, >• /    w o\      y4}  C S6B  SET 3. 00' YniNESS CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS OTHER ISE NOTED, NEASURED

BOJ R v      pe'       

s.

i 2 2• I L  ' rs ej/       ALONG LOi LINE. 3/ 4' x 24" IRON PIPE W1TH PLASPC PWC' PLS 7788°
18 0  ` Sp0 po,   

H
J, 7259      P    ej 25 syo 

n.

p 1     ` l4 iP̀j 02. J
SJ       q" 0      s 7. 923 S. F. y S1B

J OO
p       FE, SJ,  200. 00( RI)  MEASURED AND RECOR DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)

0. 7'      R
S

7y.  ll         ' L°' h9 OS,  s0. f v 9    \

90p OSjs JO \ 
f,

pj      \    
yA

ap'    
2
j

o/

s J r       ,
1 g',

f,      >     
R1) OENOTES REFERENCE( Ri)- SEE REFERENLE LIST ON SHEET 2

A"' 15 s6 o'     a'  s. 2.    po  \,       u I yl   r

0

6, 6} 5 S. F:      o,

o

2J
0

cCiB   
i
q   ' U     /   y a M- IA) MONUMENT TO MONIIMENT

oo

9
66JB

JJ

2

SS•      
g      

C19 8, 10635. F.          
y'

T,'
s

p
sop

f  /  
C   \\      //      14. 158 S. F. M- 6) IAONUMENT TO BOUNOAftY

e N a 0       `       •.-        

00

s iy ~ yro     
J'

JJQ
F1- PL) MONUMENT TO PROPERTY UNE

N6 6677Q 74
B'

rg s  d i       
1q',    IPJ 

uti\    

o.  
1

y
o0

67J'
q

B{V 2    fi fi01 SF.      0  \ 2•       
y  /      \

9       9>,     
p0-    

hh   C28 aj. ' S/

Y l`p: 

pry0   
T) TOTAL

BW 65)
B'    a 4,    ! y       "    l 4 P'  C27     9•  9       ' L 2

5969( B°   Q \ s
G.,     ?°   ` P`   C21 a a   ,

e`  iB, /      oti; 8) BOUNDARY

1     O NSS.
4A ti p \     Bd h j  \ 

9' S2Js•      QJ"   

7 79345. F.   y   Q     ry' p2' ^ 1 4'\

Qp
9y      a

3B
CICENiERLWE

7AAG7 3838 A J y.       o b   J    / D c:'       G U. N. DOCUAIENT NUMBER

IF)     sq     . rh      

13 2. 75'     2J6, ; s, \     

O
Q

F

AI- BC MONUMENT TO BEGINNING OF CURVEg  

6. Bfi3 S. F.    
p9       / J.   rs jo Sp   

s

y'"'

o 

C     
s '

Y>,   6. 6818iF. P. U. E PUBLIC UPLITY EASEMENT
7

Zy
Db'      \

ssyJ
9/

nj j,   .>'f    oS-\   ' G`^ a
O,(.'

O e!
1

0      o  /   J02 o9
B

a

S.  L4 o0,' T2' C`\              J,      h       LOTLINE

j o     
fr CC      

ij    . v,  
0aa'' i1`    ,         Bh " 4

s

6     
a i LI2

J

h5^

6A   ^ yA,'

q//  PJ  O?

9 0 37 ftIGHT- OF- WAY\ LME

s9 j. 
L. . yo

sys/   

o"        2.
a BOl1N0ARY LME

1z
h     29

EASEMENT 11NE6, 230 S. F.   ry'    S J,      
h o       /     O 1',

j, O  Q 7, 075 S. F.
A      

ol,    i.  s
01

J y     • i      .g yJ'    a`      y     yo s      !   ( J o oy.       CEN7ERLINE
b.  L r 4.

J1      ,
1 SjS,s:

r

9B y6   

B/

v RESTRICTED ACCESS

s ss,    
s. 

qr
J J

i
i.      ° ti 36   .

CC   

o pG„ P L  /\ 6   2 b          I. 17" BRASS OISK STAIAGED' PLS 7788' ON 1 FOOT OFFSET

s 1       .       
o•       3Q C/ TO BE SEi PER( R12)

yC`       9 7. 092 S. F. J
i     Gf,  

7, 574 S. F.  Q2 1. 17° 6RA55 ISK STAIAPE° PLS 7788' i0 BE SET ON

J
J̀ s      ,

o, /      
O       ''), P       CONCRETE SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO hiE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG

S      ti    
yy

Da
i

9 
J

oi G/    PROLONCAl10N OF SI E LOT LMES TO BE SEi PER( RI2)

J2   ^. o
e   '

JO       

B%

Y

o'
o

R'     Q 3/ 4' IRON PIPE N1TH PLASiIC PLUC" PL5 7788' PER( R13)

soA B6B. p 
yp000           

2.      y 4 5/ 8" REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 778B° PER( RI2)

10
s

qJ  
0/ 

01,  C30     

5' S. F.     

35

AQ DENOTES WiTN 55 CORN RSON 3LFOOT OFSETALO G(THE,
o

j ,
o eo

y.     
SIOE PROPERTY LINE PER( RI2)

y

i

V  '      yQ) 6J 9Bo 
Q    ,'` tJ BO $

tiy sejy
P

N98' 14' 10" E 65. 03'    
3G

37 J
33

SHEET 8 oF 11

125



NOTES
J

s'°'    a'  

TRACT 3938I. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAIAPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREiE PJ c` C
SIDEWALK I, 00' INTO THE RIGNT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONCAPON OF o.,> RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOTED.       y      q O/ 9 VILLAGE Q2. 5/ 8' REBAR VATH CAP' PLS 7788' TO fiE SET AT ALL REAR LOT b,       l'L :
CORNERS, IINLESS OTHERWISE NOIED.  oy      ? C

7. SEE SHEEi 11 FOR UNE AND CURVE iABLES. 
YA` i JCI ,       rys       / j A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEINC

4. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A DITIONAL NOTES AND REFERENCES.   O      9l 0 A SUBDIVISION OF PARLELS 1 THROUCH 3 OF TRACT 3870( 43 IA& P 12)
5. SEE SHEEi 3 FOR E% ISTINC EASEMENTS, EASEMENT REiERENCE LIST AND TAACT uBu3 IR' I2)   j 6Y`  CIIY OF LAiHROP, S0.N JOAWIN CIX1Ntt, CALIFORNIA

BA9S OF BEARINCS.  

1,`
p"

1 J
SEPTEMBER 2018

1       
d

90 p J•       
h'       

yv"

a

ENG1N fZ1NG

u

N
R\

J"

o• 0 20'
a

s'

D.,  O scr: i•= ao•
9,

J'      

1

JJsg(
J

ETAIL A

LEGEND

SEE SHEET 11 QQ SET SiANDARD Cltt OF LATHROP MDNUMENi WELL STAIAPEO PLS 7788
L,\  

35 0,    
PAFlCF_ I_ 17 o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W17H PLASPC PLUC" PLS 77H8',

a` o \   `

j j,      
r;;acr asre ; n

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTEO

y  '       

MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( RI2)
4

ry0 p9 MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R13)

@    
y  '  3/ 4° IRON PIPE WITH PLAS7IC PLUG" PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( R72).

9     Qp 9  . y   
UNLESS OTHERVNSE NOiEO

15, 907 S. F.    f  BO•
f,

p        SET}. 00' WI7NE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNlE55 OIHERNISE NDiED, MEASURED

ryee
yf.

yr\   
AIONC l0i L1NE 3/ 4" x 24° IRON PIPE VNTH PLASiIC PWC' PLS 7788"

f  yss
9

200. 00'( RI)  MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFEFENCE( RI)

r+     6•  " R1) OENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

C   ' u6

m

ho1 hYJ i
D'\ R,50. 00' d

1J
B \,

p\ 0}

0

6'

JS   \    ry
M- A7) MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

h

SZBS F
A•  \         !

p
M- B) MONUMENT TO BOUN ARY

U\ `°    y    J
v\\\

y  %

BJ     M- PL) M1IONUMENT i0 PROPERTY LINE     

ry T.   1 10'   2   \ J S9 T TOTAL

9
Bo1,  n

P.U.f.    o I  '° g.  }
ys. 

1-      O

J     T,
sJ

F u OO
c"

PJ  \ y B) BOUNDARY

3       CL CENTERLINE2 ^

h yss ° s.  h-      (" s   °'
s   '.

32 y-
P

1         m yn  ' p,£  . Q1 pq     
i D. N. DOCUTAENT NUMBER

S  y.
J     

y'/   
j?

F

0' i M- BC) MONUM17ENT TO 6EGINNING OF CURVE
U3  1Q PJ/ 0'   .

i.    
a

C i
P. U. E. PUBLIC I1PLltt EASEMENT

9

6. 955 S. F.      /  

4p'        
5          

14, 784 S. G.     
ry1\        

LOT LINE

mA o    C      C36 yj, o~   RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE

j
3f$    `'     Jd`

9
i C

p01'

e1'' ,

4ytr
qh   ia

f9/ 

y v  

9/`

J
0'

h    BOUNOARY LME

O     4       O     / y!
i.      '     

a.  J. 
JIU h  `    6

p'
L           

hh'

1.//   
7J.

9, S1J•    
t EASEIAENTLINE

6 i 26

dc           
8. 784 S. F.   0`

l` i ry'   O', q/      9 iy CENiERUNE

I NI2' 45' 07' E R     ` 938. = h  . a 

s

6005,`   
O°   p` 

P ° s2      2'     RES7RICiED ACCE55
s

Q J
05

ti4. JP ' o,

ry0p  ,  '
vy      Q O 1. 17' BRASS ISK STAMPE' PLS J788' ON 1 FOOT OFFSEi

da i       0 p o•   6, 614 S. F.
SSS \   y'. 

V ' a.l    ' J>,    TO BE SEi PER( R12)

d`

6`

5j     
o   

Q(`' pyo0h`!   

916
o C46 y

S

y
J

02 1, 17' BRA55 ISK STAMPED' PLS 7780' TO BE SET ON
Jp Q 1J   Bo•\    ` P 0     '     J.   0     + j CONCREIE 9DEWALK 1. 00' INiO iHE RICHi- OF- WAY, ALONC

d\^^( 63.   \ f6    ,'       s  

b"     4 PROLONGAPON OF 9DE LOT LMES TO BE SET PER( R12)
zj

87z• Vy` 9 R
Ssp? 15923CqQ          

aaq   
o

y     5     Q3 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWC' PLS 7788' PER( R13)

S

19,y
5q'

y/
1/ Op, zIg I7   /

ZZ 1 25

1    ETAIL B
O 5/ 8' REBAR W1iH CAP" PLS 7788' PER( R12)

FFSyF(      "          Cqs SEE SHEET 11
Q 3 4 IRON PIPE INTH PLASi1C PLUG PLS 7788' PER( R72J

Tg    \ O 23 SOE

PROPERTYSLINEOPERR(
R'' S FOOT OFFSET ALONG THE

7y SNs.JO       (\o• /  \
Js

y
SHEET 9 oF 11

126



NOTES TRACT 3938
I. I. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPED' Pl5 7789' i0 8E SET ON LONCRETE

SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHT-0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGA710N OF RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
sme ior unes, oa as Norzo.      VILLAGE Q

a
2 5/ 0' REBAR VAh1 CAP' PLS 7786' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOi

s       
CORNERS, UNLE55 OiHERLNSE NOTED.

yB J  
3. SEE SHEEi 11 FOR UNE AND CURVE TABLES. A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEINC

Jp q, SEE SHEET 2 FOR AD IPONAL NOTES AND REFERENCES.    A SU901NSION OF PARCELS 1 iHROUGH 3 OF iRACT} B38( 43 IAkP 11)

2'
O• 5. SEE SHEET 3 FIN2 E% ISTMG EASEMENiS, EASEMENT REFERENCE IJST AN Cltt OF LAIHflOP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CAtIFORNIA

o sS BA9S OF BEARINGS.      SEPTEMBER 2018
s

N? s> e/

h   p, cs
N40' 4B' O6" E( R)

0

F
ipl JF6i    ' 1ACEL 17

a 7n ÂC7 3o761A7)       E N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

W
38 N

8, 165 S. F.     / i

O
NS       0 20'  40'      80'

JO
Y;

so,
SCALE:. I"= 40'

ZB     `    s0•  
y"     

O 

so

ti   

s0
s       `°

0
J°

5    iDGf,(
P[

b,  i

0 LEGEND

6, S 91SF.   
J`//       /  

OO SET STAN ARO CITY OF LA7HROP MONUNENi WELL STAMPED" PLS 7788'
o

28    '   3p SEi]/ 4' IRON PIPE W17H PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788',

4,       Yi•   p 1/     
UNLESS OiHERWISE NOiE

y0    // 1
Q,     

1 IAONUMENT TO BE 5Ei PER( RI2)

y
IAONUMENT i0 BE SEi PER( R13)

6,47165. F.      / ,
ry   

R.
SOj  .`  \

1
3 4' IRON PIPE WI7H PLASIIC PLUG' PLS 7788' TO 9E SET PER( R12J,

N

O
p.   ( V/ ry„       

UNLESS OTHERYi15E NOiED

3O

eho
SpY    o }°   / G

Q
p SET 5. 00' W17NES5 CORNER( W. CJ, UNLESS OiHERri15E NOTED, M1IEASURFD

o TO       ^ ti '   "'  
aQ a ALONC LOT 11NE. 3/ 4' 24' IRON PIPE YATH PlASPC P UG' PLS 7788'

y
9

op.   
P

0   200. 00'( R1)  MEASURED ANO RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)

5 R1) OEN TES REFERENLE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE L15T ON SHEET 2

6. 9 955. F.      hb       / Q`       3

31 y y NS
tih    

1
C M- M) MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

h'      B7Jjs J     
M- B) MONIIMENT TO BOUNDARY

ys
9$

zB,   °
j    \ 

P    
M- PL) MONUMENT i0 PROPERTY LWE

ObB.   i P r) Torn
5?

f  HJ
01

1   ,

m^    6) B UNDARY

33 34

rR/
zJ   `   '

a    
eO

ttc RUNc

8, 399 SF.     
h-     

oy m
o

D. N. DOCUMENT NUTABER

f'     o
0            ' 

N- BC) MONUMENT TO BECINNINC OF WRVE
N6877' S6" W( R) 1

o/."   a^

ti  
P. LLE. PUBLIC UPLItt EASEMENi

L24 10' PU. E.   Jp. nM o N64' 45' 44' W( R) LOi LWE

rv    —
C7      ,9 • ,      03   RICHT- OF- WAY LINE

r
EAS 127. 77( T)          T

a o   BOUN AftY LINE

W nl NO6'}}' OD' E( R•      a/,

00     \
f EASEMENTLINE

W

ry 

R= 380.00'     /  Q;
By3•    CENIERLME

WFAST 12J. 72'( A1- M)    

ni

d= 1}' 18' 34(

RIJ)

8. 27' hl_ ' f 52( A
BC       

RES1RICiED ACCE55

FAST 123J2'( T)( R12)      NI378' J4' E( R
3g'}

Ns Q7 1. 17" BRA55 ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' ON 1 F00T OFFSET

U
yO

B7e' 3•
W Z

J9 02 7 j7 EBRASSP06KRSTAMPE' PLS 7786' TO BE SET ONC/
t/Q       

T)
R1J) CONCRETE SIOEWAIK I. 00' INTO hIE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG

j q V\      PR0.0NCATION OF 9DE LOT LINES i0 BE SET PER( R72)

j OO 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788' PER( R13)

THACi 283 IR121
0 5/ 8' REBAR' MTH CAP' PLS 7788° PER( RI2)

PARCEL 3 OO 3/ 4' IRON PIPE N7H PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7J98' PER( R12)

QA DENOiES W1TNE55 CORNEft ON 7 FOOT OfFSEi AIONG iHE
AE SIDE PROPERTY lME PER( RIY)

rq C_ J
3

83% r3/

SHEET 1 O OF 1

127



LINEANDIXIRVETABLESFORCOUfiSESSHOWNONSHEEf57THR0UGH110NLY
NOTES TRACT 3938

11NE TABLE CURVE TA6LE CIIRVE TABLE I. SEE SNEET 2 FOR AD ITIONAL NOIES AND REFERENCES.       RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
2. SEE SHEEi 3 FOR E% ISTING EASEMENTS, EASE6IENT REFERENCE LIST AND VILLAGE QLINE DIRECPON LENCTH CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENCTH CURYE RAOIUS OEITA LENCTH BA515 OF BEARINGS.  

3. SEE SHEEi 7 FOR IFGEND.
N4420' O6" W 1. 32'       C7 250. 00 22' S9' 34' 100. 32      C31 240. 00 2' S6' 47°  12. 34'  A P RTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, 6EING

A SIIB INSION OF PARCELS I 7MROUGM 7 Of iRAC7 3838( 43 U& P 11)L2 N4470' Ofi' W 9. 63'       C2 250. 00 23V7' S0' 100. 93'      C72 P20. 00 1279' 44'  47. 34'
CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA

L3 N7578' OS' W 5. 85'       C3 250. 00 p0' S1' I7'  91, 00'      C33 50. 00 4521' SB'  39. 59' SEPiEIABER 1018

l4 N4359' 0]' E 51. 65'      C4 P50. 00 6' 49b2'  29. 75'      C34 I7. 00 q770' S3' 14. 05'

LS EAST 2. 15'       CS 220. 00 fi' 36' 76'  25. 38'      C35 220.00 7R8' 45'  48. 72'
N

L6 N76' 19' 19' E 40. 03'      C6 330. 00 18tl6' O6' 104. 26'      t36 480. 00 1' IB' 10'  6. 37' ENGIN EfZ1NG

L7 NO' 04' 15' W 74. 61'      C7 4I0. 00 633' 00'  46. 87'      C37 17. 00 44' 07' 19'  13. 09'

LB N4' 41' S2' W 35A5'      CB 220. 00 6' 44' S2'  25. 91'      C38 3J0. 00 10' 17' 48' 60. 26'

aJs
byZq

J,    l`

phl

l9 N59' 07' 32' E 30. 39'      C9 317. 00 4' 41' 00'  25. 91'      C39 3) 0. 00 778' 18'  4}, 99'  Jy. ? j'       1A
LIO N30' 03 39 W 40. OJ'      C10 280. 00 14' 08 17  69. 09      C40 110.00 qq0' S8' S3. BY J

q
Z

P,nC L '-}     
A0

p J TRAGT 3838 IR121LI1 N23V7' S0' E 36. fi8'      CI1 280. 00 17' 17' S1'  64. 98'      C41 PA0. 00 IS' 47' 47' 77, 19'       7j
0 i7

2 N89' Sfi' 45' W J4. 69'      C1  280. 00 13' 04' 10'  6J. B7'      C47 210. 00 2' y' 7p'  8. 09'   
3 J

N40' S8 54' E R

L13 N6151' 31' E 29. 82'      C13 280.00 5' 77' O6'  27. 46      C43 210. 00 6' O6' 49'  24. 95'    TRAC7 3 06 IFl121      `,` 0      N45'} 9' S4' E R) 

54, 1     ,
L14 N45' 39' S4' E 4912'      C14 310. 00 12' 0Y10"  65. 12'      C44 560. 0 SV9' 15'  S0. 3B'       o 1    J y"+'`\

P
2

a O
LIS N23' 07' S0' E 36. 68'      CIS 310. 00 5' 31' OB'  29. 66'      C45 560. 00 5' 49' 4B'  S6. 98'      4 '\       /' C2 b

h o 9•
LI6 N6621' 48" W 6. 09'      C16 280. 0  6V8' OS'  29. 98'      C46 210. 00 B39' 14'  32. 94'    1.

m 

9
SLOPE     /      PAHCcL j

LI7 N43' S2'} 6' W 14. 99'      C17 500. 00 9' OS' 17'  79. 31'      C47 560. 00 6' 12' 4J'  60. 71'   09O•f
SElAENT

s90 v
Tri/ aC-( uo 6 R

1
L18 N43' ST' 36' W 50. 25'      C78 560. 00 5' OB' IB'  S012' 19     ' j  ol' .

119 N45V0' 32' W 24. 05'      C19 560. 00 1' 04' 25'  10. 49'
9eo\  J 

o2•
L20 NI' SB' S8' W 37. 22'      C20 280. 00 528' Ol'  26. 72'     BJ,

PJ
L21 N40' 45' 10' E 7. 96'      C21 220. 00 ras• zr e. r DETAILA

NOT TO SCAIE
L22 N40' 45 10' E 35. 75'      CP2 50. 00 16' 01' 34'  13. 99'    

FROM SHEET 9)

L23 NBi' 03' OB' E JO. lO'      C13 17. 00 50' S2' 40'  15. 10'

l24 EAST 2. 15'      C24 220. 00 1275' 32' 47. 71' J•

GfL25 N44' S1' 2I' E 52. 59'      CYS  } 30. 00 0' 48' J3'  49. 20'  

L26 N20' 22' 25' W 50. 00'      C26 280. 00 8' 45' S8'  4Y. 84'   

16 ii
L27 N24 5' S0' E 40. 35'      C17 17. 00 4176' 11'  12. 29 5 l

i 00

P'`L28 N2070' 11' W 50. 00'      C28 50. 00 13' 21' S0'  11. 66'    o; 
aE. 6     

1 b,
o

M1"     ,`] O    `',/
l29 N37U8' IO E 11. 97'      CP9 260. 00 7tll' 45'  39. 35'      

a5550.    N28' S5' 18" E R /,. o    

p,
Qi   •

6 6L30 N22' 21' 18' E 19. 02'      C70 220. 00 I' 02' OS'  3. 97"     6

R.

S
a.\ f Yc          

bp

ryp

0

560,      L23 N46' 49' 23 R      i

Q1Jbss•  
0

z(

z
S

C4q      , 
0     O h /

R.,    GT9i      9?

airr   >     
a_  

Fq/ I
N34V4' S3' WR ft= 560'   //

4P\  W/ 1/.     h.,    N50' 3925( R( R= 210')    22
zz'(

9'

SSq\ `  Cf,}'      r.i

N33' S3' 79" E( R)/
O

PSJ
O•      4  

1yJss.    
N39' S4' 41' E R   

DETAIL B       \,
NOT i0 SCALE lS
FROM SNEEi 9)

yJ

SHEET 1 oF 11

128



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 9 of 16

EXHIBIT B

ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3938

129



a Ya-=

e''—   _`\

e;`      

ti
1'      w.      

O      ,   
Sx'    

O
i c     1.      9iLa

js w o     :3 e i    
9

i 9       C 7      7
O t 0,     ''      ; y

L
JQ

A    ", p j t̂i

5

VO      .   

t TRACT 3838 Q``    °
a.       

t>;  i~t=      

7:;   7s    q   ' z        7;       2'  
7i,  2:

f e,  
J

4iEd C     -'     .    
5G 55    G   ?    53    9 O

r    g.-       O      s7      

q( qj MULHOLLAND DRIVE
i

TRACT J.7JH    
4'.,

1
3 5    .,    G    ! 9 eg

3
J

q,.  

sf! 

s': wa    G!     _       

40

t83
f5

3}    L

i
A.

2
e   

l

t

9
I 0,,

L3

1Z
a"~ 

1 1 40 \ F 4J4JlJ f'      ~
4

p nt    r,    3q    2   ..

W

I     
O             

c''        

9d

i     3 to

0.       F

O.

LAKE9 mm, p      .       
q,

0

V

m a m w P...- w-.- r

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

j-----

NOTE: TRACTS 3838 AND 3938 COMPRISE VILLAGE Q

ATTACHMENT 

Village " C
n

i/icinity Map
OCTO EF 2017

130



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 10 of 16

EXI3IBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the
equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary

insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d.       The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

131



a
Page 1 of 2

l

f+    CERTIFICAI' E OF LIi4BILITY IfVSU1 4NCE
DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)

o.., 09/ 07/ 2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPOM THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEYVD OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF IIdSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE
1- 877- 945- 7378

FAX
1- 888- 467- 2376

c/ o 26 Century Blvd AIC No Ext:      A/ C No:
E- MAIL

certi£ icates@willis. comP. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS:

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER( S) AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURERB: Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13609

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330
INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: w 439341 REVISIOiV NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLIGIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LTR INSD WVD POLICYNUMBER MM/ DD/ YYYY MM/ DDIYYYY LIMITS

X COMMERCIALGENERAL LIABILITY
EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES Ea occurrence S

P'
MED EXP( Any one person) -  $

Y
ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONALBADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE g 2', 000, 000

POLICY jE   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER: S

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILYINJURY Peraccident  $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

5

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

A

X EXCESSLIAB
CLAIMS- MADE BTT11814514W 03/ 19/ 201B 03/ 19/ 2021 AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRI ETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTI VE
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N/ A

E. L. EACHACCIDENT

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMit  $

B Excess Liability 1000024097 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
RE: Tract 3989 River Islands- Stage 2A Village U.

The City of Lathrop, its o££ icers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

are Additional Insureds as respects the General Liability policy.

The Insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be Primary Insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

The City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive J

Lathrop, CA 95330 J   /"

O 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: j(']O' J1[] 2 SATCH: BS$ 9OB

132



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

A`       ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

River Islands Development, LLCWillis Insurance Services of California, Inc.      
73 W Stewazt Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330
See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1
See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

officers, employees, and agents. Any insurance or. sel£- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its off cers,

employees, ' or agents shall be in excess o£ the insurance a£ Eorded to the Named Insured by this policy and shall Not
Contribute to any loss as respects the insured' s operations.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16707142 BATCH: 858908 CERT: W7439341

133



POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWIVERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PARI`

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Organization( s)   Location( s) Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:
respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:   1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    

intended use by any person or organization other
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

134



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional : insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: 
whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

135



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development; LLC

Policy IVumber: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:  

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding tfie provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as. required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work." 

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1  .

136



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATIV- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330           

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 1. 1 07 Page 1 of 1

137



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 11 of 16

EXI3IBIT D

COI3EI T/ PARAI) ISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

138



1  •

a  

u. a,,,   'r

LEOEND

EXHIBIT" D"
RQADWAY TO BE FULL R NR PAVED MD OPEN TO OFNERAL PUBLIC

RQADWAYTDBEREPNR AS/ iL4VVFJ T} IERB+ EROENCYVE} 1K: tEACCE880PLY
ROADWAYREHABILITATIONEXHIBIT

COAYJI N'TYATSOUTHRIVERBBiDPROJECTAREA
RIVER ISLANDS

ITI uF L aTIIRpP  AA' J09UCIN l'Ol; ATf CqLIFURVIA

cr.......,.... _..

139



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 12 of 16

EXI3IBIT E

E1 IGINEER' S ESTIMATE— VILLAGE " Q"

140



NG1NEEfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE May 25, 2016

TRACT 3838( 76 LOTS) Job No.: 25502- 17

PHASE 16

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 210, 000 SF   $   0. 45  $ 94, 500. 00

2 3" AC Paving 50, 000 SF    $   1. 50  $ 75, 000. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 64, 300 SF   $   2. 25  $ 144, 675. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 50, 000 SF   $   0. 90  $ 45, 000. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 64, 300 SF    $   1. 20  $ 77, 160. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 480 LF    $  13. 00  $   6, 240. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       6, 180 LF    $  13. 00  $ 80,340. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 31, 500 SF    $   4. 00  $ 126, 000. 00

9 Driveway Approach 72 EA   $ 400. 00  $ 28, 800. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 10 EA   $       1, 400.00  $  14, 000. 00

11 Survey Monuments 26 EA   $ 300. 00  $   7, 800. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 3, 430 LF    $   5. 00  $  17, 150. 00

13 Remove Existing Street Barricade 3 EA   $ 500. 00  $   1, 500.00

Subtotal Street Work 718, 165. 00

STORM DRAIiU

14 Catch Basins( rype A inlet)   6 EA   $       2, 400. 00  $  14, 400. 00

15 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type I manhole base) 11 EA   $       2,800. 00  $ 30, 800. 00

16 Catch Basins( rype A inlet over type U manhole base)  3 EA   $       3, 300. 00  $   9, 900. 00

17 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 010 LF    $  34. 00  $  34, 340. 00

18 18" Storm Drain Pipe 260 LF    $  46. 00  $  11, 960. 00

19 24" Storm Drain Pipe 920 LF    $  80. 00   73,600. 00

20 30" Storm Drain Pipe 230 LF    $  85. 00  $  19, 550. 00

21 36" Storm Drain Pipe 250 LF    $ 110. 00  $ 27, 500. 00

22 Connect to Existing 2 EA   $       1, 700. 00  $   3, 400. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 211, 050.00

SANITARY SEWER

23 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3, 270 LF    $  25. 00  $  81, 750. 00

24 Manholes 19 EA   $       2, 000. 00  $  38, 000. 00

25 Sewer Service 72 EA   $ 650. 00  $ 46, 800. 00

26 Connectto Existing 1 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   1, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 167, 550. 00

0? 00 STOi 1= rZVDGc I IALL RQAD SUITE 330. PE. E.:.SAfJ' COPI. C0.?45"e9 • P 9°? 23. S, i O • F'_ 09 57' I.=. 166

T:\ 25502- River Islands\ Phase 17- Trecl 38381ExceI1ESTIMA7E- 2016- 05• 25 Tract 3838- 25502- 17. xlsxlTracl 3836

141



i L

ENG1NEg{ 41 NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

27   $" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      3, 430 LF    $  30. 00  $ 102, 900. 00

28 Water Service 70 EA   $      2, 000. 00  $ 140, 000. 00

29 Fire Hydrants 7 EA   $      4, 000. 00  $  28, 000. 00

30 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $      2, 500. 00  $   7, 500.00

31 Water Plug& Stub 4 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   4,000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 282, 400.00

ELECTRICAL

32 Electroliers ( assumed every 150)   23 EA   $      5, 000. 00   $ 115, 000. 00

33 Joint Trench 3, 430 LF    $ 125. 00   $ 428, 750. 00

Subtotal Electrical 543, 750. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

34 Parkway Landscape Strip 43, 300 SF   $   5. 00   $ 216, 500. 00

35 Neighborhood Park A( ParcelN3)    226,500 SF    $   7. 00   $      1, 585, 500. 00

36 Landscape( Parcel A38) 6, 500 SF    $   5. 00   $ 32,500. 00

37 Landscape( Parce1A44)       32, 700 SF   $   5. 00   $ 163, 500. 00

38 Landscape( ParcelA66)       32, 200 SF   $   5. 00   $ 161, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 2, 159, 000. 00

SUBTOTAL COfVSTRUCTIOfV COST $      4,081, 915. 00

20°/ a COfVTI( VGENCY $ 816, 383. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $      4,898, 000.00

COST PER LOT $  48, 495. 00

c20u S701J RIO E ti14LL P.OAp SUIT 330. PLEASariro v, ca w5 a • F.• a?.=_?. e; o • F- o s 1.= J o

T: 125502- River Islands\ Phase 1 i- Tract 38381ExceIIESTIMATE- 2016• 05- 25•Tract 3838• 25502- 1ZxIsxlTract 383G

142



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 13 of 16

EXI3ISIT F

LETTER OF GUARANTEE FOR EAST VILLAGE T' RACTS

143



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FIPJANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEYVART ROAD

LATMROP, CALIFORtdIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

Apri123, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Substitution of Security—Un nished IYnprovements within Stage 1B of River

Islands at Lathrop (" et- Aside Letter")

Dear Glenn:

As you are aware, River Islands Development, LLC(" Developer") has recently substantially       .
completed improvements within most of the tracts ( villages) of the East Village District of River

Islands, as well as Village G within the Community at South River Bend area. All but one of these
tracts have performance and labor and materials bonds that have been posted by the Developer with
associated Subdivision Improvement Agreements and/ or Encroachment Permits{" Previous

Security"), Tract 3835 ( Village N) has not yet associated with a final map filing and therefore, does
not have performance bonds posted. However, since a map is imminent for this area, this Set- Aside
Letter would cover this tract as well.

RIPFA is providing the set- aside letter in behalf of the Developer since RIPFA has provided the
public funding for the construction of the improvements with issuance of bonds and resulting
proceeds from RIPFA Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs), including CFD 2015- 1. Construction
of the improvements has been performed either by the Developer through an acquisition agreement
with RIPFA or by public bid of Reclamation District 2026, a member agency of RIPFA. The City
entered into a Joint Community Facilities Agreement( JCFA) with RIPFA in November 2015, which
provides the process to which the City accept these improvement for public use.

Since the Previous Security covered all or a majority of the value of improvements necessary to be
constructed, the Developer feels it is unnecessary to carry the cost to maintain the cost of the
Previous Security, since only thermoplastic striping remains for full completion and ultimate City
acceptance of the improvements. As a result, the Developer has requested the Authority provide
alternative security for the remaining unfinished improvements in- lieu of Previous Security
previously provided to the City. We believe that that this" set- aside" letter will provide adequate
guarantee to the City for items listed below.

This Set- Aside Letter would be substituted for security previously provided and in- lieu of security    .
required for Village N as follows: 

144



Bond Performance Labor& Mat.     
mainin;       Set- Aside

Boi d Description
i n Uer I3ond Amount Bond Amo mt

Improvements Security
Value Amuunt

Tract 33=10, et. al. ( Villt ye G)  SUl l?=t681      775, 000.00 775, 000 S6,=1= l0 l 1, 59?

Tract 3873, et. al. ( Vill c A)  SU112 4C82    2,7=32, 000. 00 53, 742, 000. 00
1, 4=l0 7, 992

Tract 3823, et. aL ( Vill ge F)      06Fi1= 133      356, 160. 00 174, 080

Tr ct 382 i, ct, al. ( Villages T> Cr) 0681= 13=1    I, 119, 720. 00 9, 860 I 1, 36   7, 8 7

Tract 3532, et.. L ( Villages JtCK)  I ObS1 18    2, 070,={ 40. Q0 51, 03;, 240 I 130 2, 7=!

Tract 383=l, et. l. ( Village M)     0681= l91    2, 237, 0- 10. 00       1, 113, 520 90   53,=129

Tract 3 36, et. ul. ( Village O)       I 0681 492 S6 6, 0= 0. 00 S328, 020 52, 40   5=1, 329

Tract 3829, et. al. ( Village H)     0681={ 90 l: gp s 2:} p 51, 320 53, 276

Tract 3333, et. al. ( Village Q)       I 06$ 1 02 190, 800 S95,= 100 1, 90   3, 129

Tract 3835( Village `')  4 N/ A N/ A S=4, 673 n8,=411

Tot l Amount of Set- Aside Letter 2, 889

This Set- Aside Letter vould provide sec u• ity for I 8U% oC the value of total remainin thermoplastic

striping for all affected tracts.      

y

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, RIPFA shall hold the funds as stated herein in a

restricted account until December 31, 2018, or until such time that all striping vithin the tracts are
completed nd the final improveme Its acce ted, whichever comes tirst. Shoufd all of tlle

improvements not be accepted by the Cit} by December 31, 201 S and the deadline is not estended by
the City, RIPFA shall cause one of the follo vin to occur:

1.       RIPFA shall iisz the funds set aside in the Improvement l und to complcte the cemaining
thermoplastic stripin` under e; risting contracts to perform the vorlC Wlt llll 1 SO days; or

2.       RIPFA shall withdraw the tunds from the set aside monies in the Improvement Func1 nd, by
January 1, 20 I 9, provide these funds to perform the worl<.

R[ PFA shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options as outlined above. As
confirm tion of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guaranlee, please sian nc1 date this letter

as sho vn on the ne t pa e.  Should } ou have any questions regardinQ this Letter oPGuarantee, please
COI1t1Ct I1lC' 1t IlLU1l eC S IOWIL

V

SIIICeI' e y.

s

efFi    . Shielcls. Director

River Islands Public Financi l Autl ority

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, Project Director, River Islands Development. LLC

bVilliam C. Scott, Chief Finance Ofticer, River lslands Development, LLC
John Pecl:, Coilstruction Vianl er. River Isl ilds Developmenc, LLC
Niichael I cill, Controller, River Islands Development, LLC

145



I Accept in E3ehalf of the City of I. athrop the Trrms i d Conclitions
of this Letter of Guarantee:

i'
G--

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City F.,ngineer

2   8
c

146



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Final Map Tract 3938 Village" Q" within East Village District, 38 Residential Lots
Page 14 of 16

EXHI IT G

IRI2EVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATI010T— MULHOLLAl D DItIVE

147



iI
C P       

This is to certify that this is a full,
true and correct copy of the

RecardingRequesred by, and original instrument.
PleaseReturnto:   

OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY

City CIerk
City of Lathrop By: Katre.w Say(.P.y
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Califomia 95330
Date: November 30, zoi

Instrument No:  2017- 139797

77ris lnstnrment Benefrls City anly.
No Fee Reguired.

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC U' TILITY EASEMENT

TRACT 3838— OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION— MULHOLLAND DRIVE)

FOR A VALUAB LE CONSIDERATION, receipt ofwhich is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a Califomia limited liability company, hereby grant( s) to the C1TY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joayuin, State of California, an
easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PUE), over and
across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particutarly
described as foIlows:

SEE EXHIBIT" A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREQF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 705U of the Govemment Code of the State

of Califomia, and may be accepted at any time by the City En ineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same

manner as is prescribed for the vacation ofstreets or highways by Part 3 ofDivision 9, or
Chapter 2 of Divisian 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever
is applicable.

The above described easement is to be kept open, elear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
hei[ S, executotS, administi3to15, succCSSo[ S a[ ld 8S5i$ Ils.

SIGNATURES:

Signed this 
S

day of   G a bU     2017

RNER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a Cal' o ri a Iipnited liability company

By: 
Name:  Sus Dell' Osso

Its:  Vice President and Secretary
Notary Acknowledgtnent Required for Each Signatory)

i
148



CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189

s

A notary pubifc or other officer compieting thls cert eate verifles only the identfty of the individual who signed the
documeM to which this certificate is ettached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validiry of that documer.

i State of California

County of San Joaquin
i

On October 3i, 2017 before me, Debbie E. Belmar, a Notary Public,

i Date

personally appeared Susan Dell' Osso, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person( s) whose name( s) is/ are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to

i
me that he/ she/ they executed the same in his/ her/ their authorized capacity( ies), and that by

his/ her/ their signature( s) on the instrument the person( s), or the entity upon behalf of which the

person( s) acted, executed the instrument:

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of Cafifomia that the foregoing paragraph

i DEBBIEEBELMAR
is true and correct.

I NotaryPublk- Catifornla       

WRNESS my hand and officfal seal.I SanJoaquinCvunty

4
Cammfssion t 2208047

My Canm. ExPirlS Ju130, 2021

i! rnSignature    d/   '.,

Stgnature of Not y Publfc

i

i

i
Place Notery Seal Above

OPTIONAL

Though this section is opfional, completing this fnforrrrafion can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent r aifachment of this form to an uninfended document.

Description of bttached Document
Title or Type of Document:    Document Date:

Number of Pages:     Signer(s) Other Than Nemed Above:

Capaciiy( ies} Claimed by Signer(s}
Signer' s Name:      Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer — Titie( s):    Corporate Officer — Title( s):

Partner — Limited 0 General Partner — Umited   General

Indfvidual Attomey in Fect individual Attorney ih Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Conservator
Other.      Other.

Signer Is Representing:     Signer Is Representing:

02014 Natwnal Notary Association• wuvw. NationalNotary. org 1- S00- US NOTARY( 1- 800- 876- 6827)   Item# 5907

149



EXHIBIT" A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFS[ TE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND AD3ACENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

MUL IOLLAPTD DRNE)

See Attached)

c

150



SEPTEMBER 19, 2017

JN 25501

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL. DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDlCATION FOFd RIGHT- OF-WAY PURPOSES
AND ADJAC PIT I U LIC UTILITY EASEMEN7

TRACT 3838( OFFSI7E itOADWAY DEDICA710N- MULHOLL.AND DRIVE)

R VER ISLANDS

UlTHROP, C, IFORIdIA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUAI' E IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAIJ JOAQUIN,
STATE F CALIFORNIA, DESCRtBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF P.4RCEL 15, AS SAID PARCEL IS SHOWN ON THA7 CER7AIN MAP
EN7ITLED" TRACT 3876, RIVER ISLANDS, PHASE 16, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP", FILED MARCH 31,
2096, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 56, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

i ROADUVAY EASEMENT( tOD):,

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15( 42 M& P 56), SAID POINT BEING
AT THE WESTERLY TERMINUS OF COURSE L. 140, LABELED AS' EAST 74.00 FEET", AS SAID
COURSE IS SHOWN ON SHEE713 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 3876;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL
15, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, THE FOLLOWING FOUR( 4) COURSES:

1)  NOR7H 16.31 FEET,
2)  ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE W STERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF

313.00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGL.E OF 05° 10' 05", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 28.23
FEET,

3)  ALONG THE ARC OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVIPVG A RADIUS OF
87. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 84°49' 55" WEST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL AfVGLE O 12° 20' 03", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 18. 73 FEET, AND

4)  ALONG THE ARC OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
87. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 82° 50' 02" EAST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 21° 30' 48", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 32.67 FEET;

THENCE, CONTINUING ALONG SAID W STERLY LINE, AMD ITS NORTHWESTERLY
PROLONGATION, ALONG THE ARC OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 320.00 FEET, FRORA WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH
75°39' 10" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 54°07'23", AN ARC DIS7ANCE OF 302,28 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 68" 28'13" WEST 271. 39 FEE7 TO THE BEGINNtNG OF A TANGENT CURVE
CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVIIVG A RADIUS OF 350.00 FEET, AS SAID CURVE IS SHOWN ON
SHEET 13 OF SAID MAP, AS CURVE NUMBER C54, SAID CURVE BEING ALONG THE
SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15;

THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTHW STERLY l.INE OF SAID PARCEL 15, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP,
ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTH RLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 350.00
FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15° 01' 06", AN ARC DIS7ANCE OF 91. 74 FEET TO AN
ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAIb PARCEL 15;

PAGE 1 OF 5

T:125501 Wver Lsla dslLegal Dasatptlans Trad 3838125507- LECAL Treq 3838_ IOD.dx

151



EXHIBIT A SEP7EMBER 19, 2017
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION& PUE JN 25501
FOR OFF- SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES- MULHOLLAND DRIVE
FOR TRACT 3838

THENCE, ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE AS SHOWN ON SAID MAf', NORTH 06° 46' 28" EAST 60. 00
FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT THEREOF, SAID POINT HEREINAFYER REFERRED TO AS POIN7' A';

THENCE, LEAVING SAID WESTERLY LINE, ALONG THE ARC OF A NON- TANGENT CURVE

COIVCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVINO A RADIUS OF 410. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID

CURVE BEARS NORTH 06° 33' 00" EAST', THROUGN A CEN7RAL ANGLE OF 14° 58'47", AN ARC

i DISTANCE OF 107. 19 FEET;

THENC, SOUTH 68° 28' 13" EAST 271. 39 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A TAfVGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTMNESTERLY, HAVIfVG A
RADIUS OF 380.00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 54°57' 30", AN ARC DISTANCE OF
364. 50 FEET; 

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF'
113.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 76°29' 17" WEST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 10' 34' 41", AN ARC DIS7ANCE OF 20. 88 FEE7';

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
113. 00 FEET, ROM WHiCH TNE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 65°54'36" EAST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19°17' 14", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 38. 04 FEET;

THENCE, AL. ONG THE ARC OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 387.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 85°11' S0" EAST,    
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04° 48' 10", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 32. 44 FEET;    jt

THENCE, SOUTH 16. 31 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15,
AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP;

THENCE, ALONG SAID SOU7HERLY LINE, WEST 74. 00 FEET TO SAID POINT OF BEGINNING.

CON7AINING 1. 13 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

OG 1' HER lPUITH A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOVIiS:

BEGINNING AT AFORESAID POINT' A';

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A NON- TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 410. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CEN7ER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 06° 33`00"
EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 14° 58' 47", AN ARC DIS7ANCE OF 107. 19 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 68° 28' 13" EAST 271. 39 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGEN7 CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHW STERLY, HAVING A
RAbIUS OF 380. 00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 48° 11' 34", AN ARC DISTANCE OF
319. 63 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 20° 50' 12" EAST 14. 96 FEET;

PAGE 2 OF 5 25501- LEGAL TRAC73838_ IOD

152



EXHIBIT A SEPTEMBER 19, 2017

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION& PUE JIV 25501

FOR OFF- SI7E ROADWAY PURPOSES- MULHOLLAND DRIVE
FOR TRACT 3838

THENCE, ALONC THE ARC OF A NON- TANGENT CURVE COfVCAVE SOUTHWESTEf2LY, HAVING A

RADIUS OF 390. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 68° 03' 59"

EAST, THROUGH A CEN7RAL ANGLE OF 46° 32' 12", AN AFZC DISTANCE OF 316.77 FEET;

i THENCE, NORTN 68°28' 13" WEST 279. 39 FEET;

7HENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENI' CURVE COiVCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RAp1US

OF 420. 00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13° 13' 54", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 96. 99 FEET
TO THE WESTERLY I. INE OF SAID PARCEL 15;

THENCE, ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, SOUTH 59° 07'32" WEST 16. 13

FEEf TO SAID POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 6,916 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

i

ATTACHED HERETO! S A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAI. DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS

REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF DESCRIPTION

0 K t T SG
Q c" G

0 2/'    
4 c`

PAUL KITTREDG       DATE No. 5790 0
PROFESSIONAL fAND SURVEYOR

CALIFORNIA NO. 5790 s Q

T'

CA1. F

PAGE 3 OF 5 25501- LEGAL_ TRACT 3838_ IOD

153



PARCEL 4 LEGEND

sa uNE

34
35 N

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY L1NE

39

32
33

p.    
IRREVOCABLE OFEER OF DEDICA710N

31 30 36
FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

25 26 27 28 29
37

P. U. E PUBLIC UT1UiY EASEMENT

OUTRIGGER       
N

24 23 22 21 20 19 18
PARCEL 3

PARCEL A 12 13 14 15 g 

MULHOLLAND PARCEL 2

10 9 8 7 6 5 4
PARCEL C

9
G.  P.U. E.

A SEE SHEET 5

TRACT 3838

F     
3 2 t       ` 

I. O. D.

SfE SHEET 5       '•PARCEL B

PARCEL D
PARCELIS i

LAKE 9)  TRACT 3876     
PARCEL E

42 M& P 56)   ' i

GARDEN FARM DRIVE

r
o

0 o PLUMAS DRIVE o a
V

Q Z

HO C

J
c  W '
c

G

Q

RIVER IStANDS PARKWAY

40°' EXHIBIT A
DRAWN 8Y: PK RIVER ISL.ANDS

TRACT 3838- OFFSfTE ROADWAY EASEMENT
FIIE:   25501 PLAT_ TRACT Ja78- IOD- 4DWG

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATiON- MULHOLLAND DR1VE E[ V G 1 N E fZ 1 N G

DATE 10/ 27/ 2017 siEEr: 4 oF 5 CfiY OF LATFIROP S/ W JOAQWN COUMY CALIFOANIA

154



IJNE TABLE LEGEND

POINT' A'  UNE    DIRECTION LEN61H
SEMENT LINE

POB,   LOT UNE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

P. U. E
1 NORTH 16. 31'

y        
o P. U.E.      

R)      RADIAL BEARING

CS  

A

6, 916 SFf
NO6' 46' 28' E 60.00  

l.O. D.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFQt OF DmICAT10N

L3 NORTH 16. 31'     
N

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

Ns P. U. E.   PUBLJC UiILITY EASEMENT
C4 N 8 j3.    

L4 EAST 74.00'

13 iY23`` 1,3g.   L5 N59' 07' 32° E 16. 13'
1,

1 m
H

B' 3.  N20' 50' 12' E 14.95'    
WRVE TABtE

j39, 
M

lyp    \`    CURVE   RADlUS DEL7A LENGiH

Q    0//     R     Cl 3t3.00'   5' 10' 05'   28. 23'
9 t

F
D R

9°

00•  PARCEL 15
c2 e. ao'   z o' o3'   a. s

o   ,       TRACT 3876

R,
3   ° a 6;  

42 M& P 56)       
c3 e. 00'   2 0'$'   s2s'

O
s

s\'     C4 350. 00'  15' Ot' O6"   91. 74
p, s\!`

Da.     ' o.\ i,'       P. U. E  C5 410. 0'  14'58' 47'  107. 19'

O,      l,>      d= 48' 1134'

1      s\       L= 319. 63'       C6 113.'   703441'   20. 86'

TRACT 3838
o        

c     i s.no`   9' 4'   aa. o4

PARCEL D PARCEL E t' g
CB 387.00'   448' t0'   3244'

C9 420. Q0'  13' 13'54'   96. 99'

i N76' 29' IYE(Rl

v
c"3 4 E([

v       

5' t 1• 50•E( Rl
c:> c°

1
L4

POB, I. O. D.
GARDEN FARMS ORiVE

scn: ,•=, 00• EXHtBIT A
o awN sr: rK RIVER ISLANDS

TRACT 3838- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
E:   25501 PLAT_ 7RACT 38SB—IOD— S. DWG

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION— MULHOLLAND DRlVE N G 1 N tZ 1 N G

D TE: 0/ 27/ 2m7 SHEEi: 5 oF 5 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY     '    CAUFORNIA

T\ 9S5n1_ oNco q xtmc\ nwr\ nu i . oe+ n. rT e: e m•. n.. een...... + e.... r. n... .^ -^.^

155



City of

Office of the Cifiy Clerk 390 Towne Centre Dr.- Lathro, CA 95330

Phone( 209) 941- 7230- fax( 209) 941- 7229

www.ci,lathro. ca.us

November 6, 2017

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

i
t

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Grant Deed for an
Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Easement for PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES

AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT   ( TRACT 3838- OFFSITE ROADWAY

DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE) frvm River Islands Development, LLC, a

California lirnited liability company ( attached), dated October 31, 2017, to the City of
Lathrop, a general law municipal corporation and governmental agency in the County
of San Joaquin, State of California, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer on
behalf of the Cify Council pursuant to authority conferred by Resolution NO. 90- 72, of
the City Council adopted on September 26, 1990, and the duly authorized officer.

7/ 7
By

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Date

i
4

i

Gr:

i: '•`.

156



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS
H Tao  ,

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

October 8, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3938; Escrow No. 1614020004

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Insfructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" R/ D"), and the City of
Lathrop (" Cit,y') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrou'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transacfion." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " Closing"). If the Final Map has not been ecorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

One original Final Map for Tract 3938, executed and acknowledged by the City.

The document( s) listed above are referred to as the " Recordation Documents." The

Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to above. The date on

which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is the

Recordation Date.

Prior to recording the Recordation Documents, please confi m that you have received
copies or originals of the following documents:  ( i) Unanimous Approval of Annexation to

a Community Facilities District and Related Matters, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities); ( ii) Consent to, and

Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to the River Islands Public Financing

1

157



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services);
iii) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to Island Reclamation

District No. 2062 Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake
Maintenance); and ( iv) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to
the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2016- 1
River Islands Supplemental).  The original City of Lathrop Unanimous Approval must be

delivered to the City of Lathrop.  The original Consents and Ballots for River Islands
Public Financing Authority CFD Nos. 2013- 1 and 2016- 1 and Island Reclamation District
No. 2013- 1 must be delivered to Karna Harrigfeld at Herum\ Crabtree\ Suntag, 5757
Pacific Ave., Suite 222, Stockton, CA 95207.

Copies should be sent via email to Cari James ( clames( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Kristin Harvey
at NBS ( kharvevCa)_ nbsqov. com), Cindy Yan at Goodwin Consulting Group
cindvCa qoodwinconsultinqqroup. net), Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso( c riverislands. com)

and Debbie Belmar( dbelmar@riverislands. com) together with conformed copies of all

documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City(" Settlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each
entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 24,177.36, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club AgreemenY'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 076 multiplied by 7. 86
acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to the
City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City's wire instructions are set forth
below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.  You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso( a riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar( a riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatoreCa ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarrete( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciamesC ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn
Gebhardt( aaebhardtCc ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from

2

158



JOINI` ESCI OW INSTIaUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL. MAPS

RIVER ISL/ NDS i4T LA FIROP)

Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is
accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3.  The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5.  You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6.  You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinc Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

3

159



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed
in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
Its:

Date:

4

160



ITEM 4. 7      -

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 50 LOTS IN

TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3989
Village" U" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling
50 Single- Family Lots,   Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development,  LLC,

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina

Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue and

Annexation No.  9 for City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District for Villages T, U, V, Y, AA and BB

SUMMARY:     

On June 1, 2015, the City appro ed an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694 ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as " Stage 2A")

within Phase 1.

This proposed Final Map Tract 3989 for Van Daele Homes ( Builder) will be the first

tract map within the Village " U" area and the first for the Lakeside East District ( Stage
2A). They are proposing fifty ( 50)  42' x 100' single- family lots. A Vicinity Map is
included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed final map for Tract
3989 Village " U" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling 50 Single- Family Lots,
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,   LLC,

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to

Oberlin Avenue and Annexation No. 9 for City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
for Villages T, U, V, Y, AA and BB.

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3989 as proposed by RID,
as the subdivider, complies with the most current conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 3989 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

161



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3989 VILLAGE " U" TOTALING 50 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at the request
of River Islands Development, LLC ( RID).

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with conditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blo'cks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the planning of the Lakeside East District. This provides RID the
ability to process small lot final maps in an orderly fashion where one small map does
not depend on another.  The approval of Tract 3908 also required the posting of
security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the
Stage 2B boundary which provides the primary access from the existing River Islands
development to Village U and the rest of the Stage 2A sub- planning area.

On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning Commission approved a Neighborhood Design
Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside

East District ( also known as " Stage 2A") within Phase 1.   While the NDP contains

conceptual guidance on parks within Lakeside East, a Master Parks Plan amendment

that includes revisions to parks and open space to the Stage 2A area is tentatively
scheduled for Planning Commission action at its meeting on October 17, 2018.

A Master Parks Plan amendment that includes revisions to parks and open space to

the Stage 2A area is pending Planning Commission action at its meeting on October
17, 2018

Village U" is the first tract map in the Stage 2A area, it will need two points of access
to public streets.  With the filing of Tract 3908 ( large lot map), River Islands Parkway
has been dedicated as public right of way through Stage 2A and will provide primary
access via Oberlin Avenue to Village U." For secondary access, an Irrevocable Offer
of Dedication ( IOD") will be necessary for the portion of Marina Drive from Dell' Osso
Drive to Oberlin Avenue.  The IOD has been included as an exhibit to the SIA and to
the escrow instructions for recordation as part of the final map package.  Mariana

Drive is expected to be dedicated as part of the adjacent tract, but if that does not

occur before homes are occupied in Tract 3938, the City will accept the IOD.

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, Village " U" will need to

be annexed to the three different Community Facilities Districts   ( CFD' s)  for

maintenance purposes.  The CFDs are for the City, RD 2062 and River Islands Public
Financing Authority ( RIPFA) respectively. The applicant has signed the appropriate
documentation to commit to the annexations and the final map recordation is
contingent on the annexations.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3989 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village U."

162



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3 .

OCTOBER 8, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" TOTALING 50 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements.  Tract 3989 will not trigger any additional off- site
improvements and the OfF- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3989 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off-site

improvements. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff at a
later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, RID will be

required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

Finally, before the Final Map Tract 3989 is recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions  ( Attachment D)  that guarantee all fees required in the Sierra Club

Agreement are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has completed nearly all of street and utility improvements within
Village " U" with some minor improvements left remaining. RID has posted security
with the City for the unfinished improvements as required by the SIA. RID shall also
provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee the full improvements ( completed

and uncompleted) for one year once the striping is completed. Prior to acceptance of
these improvements, RID has provided the tract map, the tract improvement plans,
all required documents and all fees for Tract 3989.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.     Performance Security - provided by Letter of Guarantee
by Substitution of Security ' Set- Aside Letter," dated Completed

A ril 23, 2018.

4.      Labor and Materials Security - provided by Letter of
Guarantee by Substitution of Security " Set- Aside Completed

Letter," dated A ril 23, 2018.

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks
Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

163



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

OCTOBER 8, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" TOTALING 50 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving final map for Tract 3989 Village " U" within the Lakeside

East District,  Totaling 50 Single- Family Lots,   Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development,   LLC,   Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for portion of Marina Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue
and Annexation No.  9 for City of Lathrop Community Facilities District for
Villages T, U, V, Y, AA and BB.

B.       Village " U" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  for Tract

3989, Village ' U"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3989 Village U"

164



CI' TY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

OCTOBEit 8, 01, CITY COIDNCIL REGl1Ld4R MEEYING

FIlVAL MAP FOR T 4CT 39 9 / ILL iGE ` U°' TOTQ LING SO SINGLE- FAMIYL(

LOTS AfVD A SYA V1/ ITH RIVER ISLA NDS DEO/ ELOPP7EMiT, LLC

APPROVALS

q1z J
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City En ineer

l% l
Cari James Date

Finance Direct r

1 S

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

y-          

t9 ' Z'/

Stephe Salvatore Date

City Manager

165



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" TOTALING 50 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

15.    Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina
Approval

Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue Pending with this
item

16.    Annexation No. 9 of City of Lathrop Community
Approval

Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public
pending with thisServices and Facilities) include Village T, U, V, Y, AA

item
and BB

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract 3989 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in  construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields,  purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off- site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

166



RESOLUTION NO. 1S-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3989 VILLAGE U" WITHIN THE

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT, TOTALING 50 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS,

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR PORTION

OF MARINA DRIVE FROM DELL' OSSO DRIVE TO OBERLIN AVENUE AND

ANNEXATION NO. 9 FOR CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DISTRICT FOR VILLAGES T, U, V, Y, AA AND BB.

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval of final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3989, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 50 lots covered by VTM
3694,  located on the west side of the San  ) oaquin River,  north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in its review of the Tract 3989, the Stewart Tract Design Review
Committee recommended approval of Tract 3989 on August 24, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3989, as identified
on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion
of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements are
required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure RID obligation to maintain all
improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

167



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  off-site improvements necessary for access to Village U were
guaranteed with Letters of Guarantee provided by River Islands Financing Authority
on March 4, 2017, and June 26, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3694 required for approval of Final Map 3989 have been met,  including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and

Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract
3989 is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694, is technically correct,
and complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHERAS,  access to Village U and Tract 3989 will be from River Islands

Parkway and from Marina Drive and an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Marina
Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Drive,  included as an exhibit with the

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and to be recorded with the final map for Tract
3989; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3989; and

WHEREAS,  RID,  the applicate has signed the appropriate documents to

commit to annexations to the required maintenance districts Community Facility
District ( CFDs) for City, RD 2062 and RIPFA for Villages T, U, V, Y, AA and BB; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute Final Map Tract
3938 ' U" and is hereby approved as submitted as part of the public record with
the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office. The recorded
executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, City of Lathrop
Annexation No.  9 CFD 2013 for Villages T, U, V, Y, AA and BB, Irrevocable

Offer of Dedication for Portion of Marina Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin
Avenue,  in substantially the form as attached to the October 8,  2018 staff

report.

168



PAS ED AIVD DOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this gtn
day of October, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

J—

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

169



E, o
1"fACYiM N1"'      •

VILLAGE BB i"

BLUE HERON DRIVE

L E C
I o

Z

F9
s

F       GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

9i

9s
2

sA
9,9'

9Y

qh

V LLAG CC

9s
o

PROPOSED COMMUNIiY PARK

G'9T

J

OQ

y

VILLAGE Ue

syco,,_   'I

TRACT 3990"°° VFRsr RIVERISLANDSPARKWAY
a

9F       :

Q
o

r       .

BUCHANqNCO qT

VILLAGE V ``\ 
a ? GRINNELLCOURT GRIP

3       +; J

ry 3 w

I LAKE11
o

Ia  

a    Le x.:      a:; l.

aK TRACT 3989
MIDDLEBURY DRIVE

a: s

i P   .    ": 

s': a   

o

l

N

OJQ
p

UF
Sy  

i MARINA DRIVE

c,°     

o

U
J

ES
a.— ,     —       _

y   , d,

ATTACHMENT B

VILLAGE U

VICNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

170



ViENT"

CITY OF LATHROP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

River Islands (Lakeside East District) - Tract 3989, Village" U"

River Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
8th day of October, 2018, by and between

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")

and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CITY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of

bond proceeds  ( Attachment G)  in the amount of $ 543, 600,  that is available to CITY if

SUBDIVIDER does not meet the deadline of August 1, 2020.  Further, the amount of set aside

bond proceeds shall be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to
replace. these removed roadways.  The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be

replaced, but it remains for now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency
access. The security referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final
maps associated with this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map which
includes the Village " U" area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
RIPFA has guaranteed the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the
Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds (Attachment H) in the amount of$450,000,
that is available to CITY if SUBDNIDER does not meet a September 30, 2019, deadline or as

may be extended by CITY.  The security referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this
final map and all final maps associated with it until River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive
to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted into use by CITY.

171



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3989. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts
3989 and Tract 3990( Village" U") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands Phase

1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of
improvements total $22, 300 and both performance and labor and materials security is required by
the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be posted as outlined in this
Tract 3989 (Village" U") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3989

and Tract 3990 and as noted in Recital D security shall be required for the unfinished portion of
these improvements along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 3989 and

Village" U" overall. Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design,
Inc., have already been approved by CITY.   The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm
drainage,  street light,  and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are

substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tract 3989 and Tract 3990 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

F.       Access to Tract 3989 and Village " U" in general must be provided by River Islands
Parkway and Marina Drive.  To this end, CITY is requiring an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication

IOD") for Marina Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue that is not included for

dedication with the recordation of Tract 3989.  The IOD, included as Attachment I to this

Agreement, shall be recorded concurrently with the final map for Tract 3989.

NOW' Ti3EREFOItE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced
improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' s

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

172



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 3

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 3989 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3989 associated with the filing of
Tract 3989 ( homebuilder) or prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 3989, or December 1, 2019, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy
shall be documented by CTTY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CTTY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements.  CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CTTY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements.  As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDNIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 162, 900, equal to 10%  of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village " U" entire area ($ 1, 629, 000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced iri Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 3989 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described

in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CTTY on September 30, 2013, the
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit "D" and rehabilitation is guaranteed by
a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed

prior to release of security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

173



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 4

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.   Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair, replace, and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.  In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3989 and Tract 3990 as included and described in Exhibit E of this

Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120% of

the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 22, 300 X 120% _ $ 26,760 —

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 26,760 X 50% _ $ 13, 380) also as

indicated in Recital D.   Further,  SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement

or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof.  The above- referenced sureties

hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions ofCalifornia Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER

or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

174



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 5

13.      SUBDNIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors.  SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and

expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non- performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters.  CITY does not and

shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER.   The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site.  SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete.   CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements.  CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDNIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

175



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 6

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.   Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3989 and Tract 3990.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed

by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed ainendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

176



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 7

h. Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed

falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue.  In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A F1NAL MAP - TRACT 3989

EXHIBIT B TRACT 3989 AND VILLAGE" U" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   COHEN/PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP
EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " U" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA
EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE — RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT I:    IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR MARINA DRIVE

177



Subdivision Itnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this
gtl' 

day of
October, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:   D I
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

178



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 9

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAF- TRACT 3989

179



EMBRACED WITNIN 7HE E% TERIOR BOUN ARY LINE OF 7HE HERFIN EMBOOIED FINAL IAAP EN717LE0,' iRACi 3989,     
RIV

RRAC s 3989
2A

R oR ,

ca N"'='     :
l 

O I      

urriaaP Ro
OWNER' S STATEMENT

Q

P     ` '. i'    :'--"  '' o W

THE IIN ERSIGNED, OOES HEREBY STATE THAi iHEY ARE iHE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAND DELMEAiED AND

Q

PQ

4 r,    n  

SITE
RIVER ISLANDS, STACE 2A, NLLACE U, Cltt OF LpiHROP, CALIFORNIA, CON95TING OF TEN( 10) SHEETS, AND

SQ
HE

RQ PRN
JoECT

VILLAGE U LOUISE AVE
WE HEREBY CONSENi TO 7HE PREPARAlION AND FIUNG OF THIS FINAL AIAP IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNiY
RECOROER OF SAN JOAWIN COUNIY, CALIFORNIA P     ,.    

A PORTION OF ftANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

TME IlN0ER9GNED OES MEREBY DEOICAIE AN EASEMENT TO THE CIiV OF LATHROP FOR PUBLIC A SUB IY DION OF PARCEL 8 OF TRACi 3908( 43 MhP 52),      
p ry  ..   ,    _ 1 c Q,; Q

RIGHi- OF- WAY PURPOSES, THOSE PORPONS OF SAID LANOS DESICNAIED ON SAIO IAAP AS 1AARINA ORIVE, Cltt OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUM COUNtt, CALIFORNIA Nq
09ERLIN AYENUE, iAFT RIVE, MONROE RIVE, IAIO LEBURY RIYE. BUCHANAN COURi, HOOVER SIREET AND SEPiEIABER 1018 RO  - t^; r'-,r, '

I''BUSH LOURT, AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP.   r          -

7HE UNOERSIGNED OOES HEREBY DEOICAIE TO ME Gtt OF IATNROP A NON- EXCLUSIK EASEIAENi TOGE7HER

l

cGr    ',  I   .-

q 120

W1TH ME ftIGHT TO CONSIRUCT, RECONSTRUCi, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN, POLES,` MflES, CABLES, PIPES, AND

FNALUMAP 0 SICtJAl7E0PA5RP. U. E.
C(

P BLI C UiIIITY EASEMENi).

THE SiRIPS OF LAN AS SHOWN ON THIS

G 1• E fZ l N G a
e- Qp

c

pphRo   ,\p

THE UN ER9CNED OES HEREBY OEOICAIE TO 7HE CITY OF IATHROP A NON- EXCLUSIVE EASEIAENT FOR 1HE

PURPOSES OF REPAIR AND AIAINIENANCE OF THE SOUN WALL FOR THE AREAS DESICNAlEO AS' WALL

EASEMENY( W.E.) AS SHOWN ON IHIS FINAL MAP.
f

OS
1 Ij

THE UNOERSIGNEO OOES HFREBY OEOICAIE i0 1HE qTY OF LAiHR P, M FEE, PARCEL A FOR PURPOSES OF
1P4'

OPEN SPACE, INCLUDINC PUBLIC U IIiIES, SANITARY SENER FACILIilES, AND STORM DRAIN FACILITIES, FENCE I
y

NNNIENANCE, AND APPURIENANCES 7HERETO, FOR THE BENEFli OF 7HE PUBIJC, AS SHO' hN N THIS FlNAL GRANT_ l1NE R_ , '       
N

MA.    5

O
OPENUSPACEGNCIUDING PUBLC UiILOII71E5 AND STORMTORAINFACILIiIESNFENCEPAlAIN1E AN

CER, ANDPOSES
OF

CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT VICINITY MAP
APPURiENANCES THERETO, FOR 1HE BENEFIT OF 7HE PIIBIIC, AS SHOWN ON 1H15 FlNAL 6fAP.     NOi TO SCALE

I, TERESA VARGAS, CIiY[ IERK ANO CLERN aF THE CITY CWNCIL OF TNE CITY OF LAiHROP, STATE OF

7HE UNOERSICNED OOES HEREBY EDICAIE TO 1HE CITY Of LATHROP, IN FEE, PARCEL C FOR PURPOSES OF CALIFORNIA, 0 HEREBY SiAiE THAT THE HEREIN EMBODIEO MAP ENiI7LE0 iRACi 3989, RIVER ISLFNDS,

OPEN SPACE. INCLUDING PUBLIC UP I71E5, FENCE MAINTENANCE, AND APPURTENANCES THEREiO, FOR THE STAGE 2A, VILLAGE U", CITY OF LAiHROP, CAIIFORNIA, CONSISPNG OF iEN( 10) SHEETS, THIS STATEMENT

BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN ON 1MI5 FINAL IAqP,     

hqE
PRESEN

DAY OF

AID CITY CWNCIL, AS P20ONOE0 BY

OATM TrSAIDECITYaC011NCILNDID 1HEREUPON 9

N SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT
THE UNDERSIGNEO OES HEREBY RELINOIlISH TO 1HE CITY OF LqiHROP All ABIIT7ER5 RIGNT OF pCCE55 TO RESOLUiION N0.       DULY PASSED AND AOOPTED AT SAID MEETINC,- APPROVE SAID

i{{IS MAP CONFORMS TO TENTATIVE MAP N0. 1fi94 APPROVEO BY THE PLANNING COMM1590N.
LOiS 1, 17, 18,} B, 39 AN 50, ALONG THE LOi LINES AS INDICAIED 8Y 7HE SYM60L(((((([ L AS SH WN MAP, ANO AUTHOR2ED ITS RECORDAPON, AN ACCFPTEU ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF lAhiROP, FOR
ON 7H15 FINAL MAP. PU6LIC USE, THE DEDICAiION OF ALL PUB IC UPLItt EASEMENIS, WALL EASEAIENTS, PARCELS A iHROUCH OATEO THIS DAY OF Y01 .

L, AND THE RElIN01115HMENi OF ACCE55 RIGHiS i0 LOTS 1, 17, 78, 3B, 39 AND 50 ALONG 7HE LOT LMES
TME UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY ftESERYE PARCELS 1 THROUCH 3 FOR FUNRE DE4FLOPMENT. AS INOICAIED BY 7HE SYM90l([((([ 1, AND ACCFPiED 7HE OFFER OF OEOICA ON OF ALL SIREETS,

AYENUES AND WAYS AS SNOWN ON SAID AfAP SU9JECT TO h7E IMPROVEMENTS BEINC COMPLETED IN

ACCORDANCE W17H CHAPiER 16, TITIE 16. 1fi OF iHE Cltt OF LATHROP IAUNICIPAL CO E.
OWNEfl: RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA lIA1RED UABILITY COMPANY.

I FURTHER STATE THAT ALL BONOS AS REWIRED BY LAW TO ACC0IAGANY THE WITHIN AIAP, IF APPIICABIE,       IAqRK 4EISSNFR, COMMl1NIiY EYELOPIAENi A595TANT OIRECTOft
HAVE 6EEN APPROVFO BY THE CIiY COUNpL OF LAhiROP AND iILED IN IAY OFFlCE.    CRY OF LATHROP

BY:NA1AE:   SUSAN ELL' OSSO ATE

115:     PRE9 ENT texesa vaRcas CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT
GiY CIERN AND CIERK OF THE Gtt COUNqL OF 1HE CIiY OF LA7HROP, CWNTY OF SAN JOApUIN, STATE

OAlEO 7HI5_ DAY OF 201 OF CALIFORNIA
I, GLENN GEBHARDT. HEREBY SiATE THAT I AM 7HE Lltt ENGMEER OF 7HE Cltt OF IAiHROP,

OLD REPUBLIC TI1LE COMPANY, AS TRUSTEE, UNDER THE DEED OF TRUSi RECOROED OECEMBFR 22, 2016,    
CALIFORNIA AND THAT I HAVE E% AMMED THIS FINAL IAAP OF' 7RACT 3989, RIYER ISLANOS, STACE PA,

AS DOCIIMENT NUMBER 2016- I60886, OFFlGAL RECORDS OF SAN J A UIN COUNiY.
V LLACE U', CRY OF LAiHftOP, CAIIFORNIA, ANU iHAT 7HE SUBOINSION SHOWN HEREON IS

SUBSiANPALLY h1E SAlAE AS IT APPEPREO ON RfE VESiING IENTATIYE IAAP N0. 7694, AND ANY

APPROVEO ALTERATIONS 7HEREOF. I FUFiHER STAiE 7HAi THIS FINAL A7AP COMPLlES VNTM ALL

Np` E: ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)     APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF 7HE CITY OF lP.THROP, AN ANY AMEN MENTS iHEREiO, APPUCABLE AT

TS.   
THE TIIAE OF APPROVAL OF VESiING TENTA1lVE MAP.

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFlCAIE VERIFlES ONLY 7HE IDEN111Y DAlEO 1H15 DAY OF 201_.

OF 1NE WDINDUAL YMO S CNED TNE OCUTAENi TO WHICH iH15 CERIIFICATE IS ARACHEO, AND aRot[ SsrOx

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER' S)  NOi THE iRIIiHNWESS, ACCURACY, OR VAOOITY OF THAT OCUMFNT eN a-u'„

STATE OF CAIJFORNIA   )    u No. 3dfi81' A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTNER OFFlCER COMPLETINC R115 CERTIFlCATE VERIFlES ONLY THE IDENPTY t CLENN CEBHARDT, R. GE. 34681
U

OF 1HE INDINDUAL Wr10 SICNED 711E DOCUMENT TO WHICH 1HIS CER FlCATE IS ATfACHEO, AND
CWN1Y OF SAN JOAWIN   CITY ENCMEER OF 1HE pTY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

w

NOT THE 1RUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VAIIDITY OF 7HAT OCUMENT
ON 201_ BEFORE ME,      4  

A NOiARY PUBl1C. PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PROVED TO A p
STATE OF CAIJFIXtNIA       AIE ON THE BA95 OF SATISFACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE TME PERSON( S) YMOSE NAME( SJ IS/ ARE SIlB5CR19E0 TO
CWNTY OF SAN JOAWM iHE 1NiHIN INS7RIlMENi, ANO ACKNOWLEOGED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E% EWiEO 7HE SAIAE IN HIS/ HER/ iHEIR

AUTHORIZED CAPACIiY( IES). AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ iHEIR SIGNANRE( S) ON 7HE INSiRUAfENT iHE PERSON( S), OR RECORDER' S STATEMENT
ON 401_ BEFORE AIE,    

iHE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH 7HE PERSON( 5) AC1E0, EXECUTE 7HE INSIRUMENT.
A NOiAftY PUBUC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PftOVED TO FllEO 7H15_ OAY OF Y01___, AT__, M.

ME ON IHE BA45 OF SAiISFACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE ME PERSON( 5) KHOSE NAME( S) IS/ ARE SVBSCRIBED i0 I CERIIFY UNDER PENALTY Of PERJURY IlNOER iHE LAWS OF THE STAiE OF CALIFORNIA IHAT THE fOREGOING IN BOOK OF MAPS AND PlATS. Ai PAGE AT THE RE UESi OF OLD FEPUBLIC

iHE INTHIN INSTRUMENT, ANO ACKNOWLEOCEO i0 IAE THAT HE/ SHE/ iMEY E% ECUTEO THE SAAIE IN HIS/ HEA/ IHEIR ppPACftAPH IS TRUE AN CORRECT.      P1LE COMPANY.

AUTHORIZED CAPACIiY( IES), AND 7HAT BY HIS/ HER/ iHEIR SIGNANRE( 5) ON 1HE INSiRl1MENT THE PERSON( 5), OR
THE EN71TY UPON BEHALF OF WriICH THE PERSON( 5J ACiED, E%ECUiED hiE INS1RIlMENT.   W1iNE55 IAY HAND:       FEE: S

I CERT6Y UNOER PENALTY OF PER, NRY I1N ER ME LAWS OF THE STA7E OF CAIIFORNIA THAT RiE FOREGOING

PARAGRAPH IS iRUE ANO CORRECT. SIGNATURE:

NAME( PftINT):  BY

W1iNE55 MY HANO: PRINCIPAL COIINTY Of BUSWE55: STEVE BESTOLARIDES ASSISTANT/ OEPUTY RECORDER

IAY COIAMIS90N NUTABER:    ASSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNTY CLERK

MY COMMI540N E% PIRES:    SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, ChLIFORNIA

SICNATURE

NAME( PRINi):

PRINCIPAL COI1NiY OF B1151NES5:     
EXEIAPT FROM FEE PER GOVERNMENT CO E 27388. 1; OOCUMENT

MY COMMISSION NUMBER: 
RELOROED IN CONNECTION W17H A CONNRRENT iRANSFER SU9JECT i0

IAY COAlIA159IXJ E% PIftES: 
R1E IIAP04TION OF ODCUMENTARY 1RANSFER TA%   

SHEET 1 oF 10

180



NOTES TRACT 3989
i.  Ricnr To raeu sra MeNt RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

PERMITSYOPERAlI0NO0F PROPIERLYCCO D CIEDOACRICULNRALEOPFRA710NS Ki7HM8iHE CITYGIMIiSFMQUDNG VILLAGE U
iHOSE THAT UTIUZE CHEMICAL FERPLIZERS AND PESPq ES. YOU ARE HEREBY NOiIFlED THAT iHE PROPERTY YOU
ARE PURCHASING IAAY BE LOCATED CLOSE i0 AGRICULNRAL LANDS AND OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO A POR110N Of RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING
INCONVENIENCE OR ISCOIAFORT ARISING fROM THE LAWFIIL ANO PROPER I15E OF ACRICULNRAL CHEIAICALS AND

A SUBDIYl010N OF PARCEL 8 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M& P SI),PESTICIDES ANO FROM O7HER ACRICULTURAL ACTINPES, INCLU INC WITHOUT IIMITA710NS, CULTIVATION, PLOl57NC, 
CI7Y OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNTY, LALIFORNIA

SPRAYINC, IRRICATIIXJ, PRUNING, MARYESPNC, BURNINC OF ACRICULNRAI WAS1E PRO UCIS, PROTECTION OF
SEpiE1ABER P019

CROPS AN ANIMALS FROM OEPREOATIaN, AND OTMER ACTIVIIIES WHICM NAY CENERATE OUST, SIAONE, NOISE.

OOOR, ROOENiS AND PESTS. BE AWARE AL50, THAT iH15 PROPFJiTY MAY 6E LOCp1ED AOJACEN7 0

AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS W790E THE CITYS JURISOICiION. CONSEOUENiLY, DEPEN INC ON 1HE LOCAPON OF
YWR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE NECESSARY THAT YW BE PREPARED TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR
DISCOMFORT AS NORMAL AND NECESSARV ASPECT OF LJNNG IN AN AGRICUL7URALLY ACTIVE REqON.

2.  A SOILS REPORT ENPRED' CFOTECNNICAL E% PLORAPON, RIVER ISlAN05 PHASE 1, LATHROP, CAIIFORNIA', 
N G 1 N R 1 N GREFEftENCEO AS PROJECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 ANU DATEU JULY T9, 2005, HAS BEEN PREPAREO FOR 7H15 PROJECi

BY ENCEO, INCOftPORAIED, JOSEF J. TOOTLE, C. E. N0. 2677, AN IS ON FILE W1iH THE CITY OF IATHROP.
3.  TRACT 3989, RIVER ISLAN S, STAGE 2A. VIILAGE U, CINJTAINS 50 RESI ENiIAL lOTS. AND 3 LETTERED PARCELS

CONTAINING 11. 39 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, INCLU INC ROA WAYS iHAT ARE BEING DEDICAiEO BY iH15 FINAL MAP;       
LINEANDCURVETABLESFORCOl1RSESSHOWNONSHEETS3THROUGH50NLYAND PARCELS 1 THROUCH 3 CONTAININC 2. 71 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ALL AS SHOWN ON 7HIS FINAL IAAP

PLEASE REFER TO 7HE AREA iABIE BELOW):  
LWE iABIE ME TABLE

lME OIRECPON LENCiH LME  IRECPON LENG7H

TflACT3989AREASUMMARY
u NSroI' Je" E si. se'      2t N56roYn' w  , 3. ar REFERENCES

LOTS 1 7HRWCH 50 S. T9 AC3 L2 N40' T9' S9' W 35. 74'      l22 N33' S2' 43' E 87. Oi' RI RECORD OF SURVEY FILEO AUGUSi 4, 2004, IN BOON 35 OF SURVEYS, PACE 142, AS CORRECiE BY CER7IFICATE
OF COFRECPON RECOR ED JULY 15, P005 AS OOCUAfENT NUNBER 2 0 0 5- 1712 6 4, S. J. C. R.( SS SURYEYS 742)

PARCELS A THROUGN C 0. 53 AC3 L3 N6' OB' SB' E 60. 05'      l23 N7B71' 24' E 41. 93' R2J TFACi 7976, fllE MARCH 31, 2 16, M BOOK 41 OF AIAPS ANO PlATS, PAGE 56, S. J. C. R.( 42 M1 5fi)

PAftCELS 1 THROUGH 3 2. 71 ACt L4 N49' 31' 35' E 34. 98'      L24 N39' S9' S1' W 41. 77'
R3)  CRANT EED RECOR ED AIARCH 30, Y001, AS OOCUMENT Nl1MBER 2001- 046177, S. J. C. R.

R4)  GRANT EED FECOR E JANUARY 11, 201fi, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER P01fi- 004077, S. J. C. R.

S7REET DEOICA110N5 5. 57 AC3 LS N828' 09' E 60. 27'      L25 NB4' S2' 22' W 74. 00' RS)  CRANT DEED RECORDED JJNE 3, P016, AS DOCUMENi NUTABER 2016- 063961, S. J. C. R.

TOiAL 14. 10 AC4 L6 N5673' 21' E 35. 01'      L26 N37' S2' 43' E 92. P9'
R6) CRANT OEED RECORDED A1NE 3, 2076, AS DOCIIMENT NUMBER 2016- 064006, S. J. C. R.

R]) CRANT OEEU RECOft EU A1NE 6, 2005, AS OOCUMENi NUMBER 7005- 174776, S. J. C. R.

L7 MB' 0}' S2" W 60. 00'     RB)  TRACT 3826, FIIED SEPiEMBER 1, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PAGE 67, S. J. C. R.( 42 M@P 67)

LB N32' J1' OS" W 35.02'     Ry  TRACT 3826, FILED AUGUST 24, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PAGE 65, AS CORRECTED 8Y CERiIFICATE
4.  BASED ON INFORMAPIXJ CONiAWED IN THE PREl11AINARY TIriE REPORT, ORDER NUAIBER 1614040159- KB OF CORRECTION RECOROED AUGUST 31, 2016, AS OOCUMENT NUlABER 2016- 10P979, S. J. C. R.( 4P MkP 65)

VERSION 3), DAiED SFPTEA78Efl 21, 2018, PROh ED BY OLD REPUBLIC TIRE COIAPANY.       
L9 N61' 36 OS E 35.07 RIOJ TRACT 3832, FIlEO AUWST 14, 2016, IN BOOK d2 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PACE 66, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 66)

L10 M2' S1' OB' W 60.00'     
R11) TRACT JB34, FlLED ECEMBER 21, PO16, IN BO K 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 72, S. J. C. R.( 42 MhP 72)

IINfRED MAP ENiI7LE0° CALIFORNIA IRRICAIED FARMS, UNIT N0. 3 PESCAOERO COLONY BEINC RECLAMATION

Lll N271Sb5" W 34. 98     
R12) IS1RICi N0. 4064, SURVfYE APRII ANO MAY 1929 BY OHM AND FAAB, DAIED NOVEIABER 7, 1919, fREU IN

CURYE TABLE TME OFFlCE OF 7HE SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY SIIRVEYOR.

L12 N16V771' E 60.05'   CURVE j RADIUS OELiA LENGTH
R13) PARCEL MAP Ofi- 03- PM, FlLED OCT06ER 23, Y006, IN 800K 24 OF PARCEL IAAPS, PAGE 51, S. J. C. R.( 44 PM 51)

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
3 N21' S2' 42' W 35. 74'     

CI 113. 00 15' 12' 13'  29. 98'    R15) RACT 7893, FI EO JUNEH,' 2017,' IN BOOK 42 0 S ANO PLATS, PACE 86BS. JCRC( 42`! A& P 86)

4)

L14 N6577' 46" W 60. 01'     R16) TRACi 3895, FlLEO A1NE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PlATS, PACE 09, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 89)
7HI5 A/ AP WAS PREPAREU BY ME OR UNOEft AIY IRECTION ANO IS BASED IIPON A FIELD SURIEY IN C2 87. 00 1572' 13'  23.09'    

RI7) TRACT 38} g, FlLED NOVEMBER 30, 2017, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 12, S. J. C. R..( 43 M& P 12)
CONGORMANCE W1TH THE REQIIIREMENTS Of THE SUBDINSION AIAP ACT ANO LOCAL OROINANCE AT iHE L75 NP3' 44' S6' E 74. 58'
REOl1EST OF RIVER IAANDS DEVELOPAIENT, LLC, ON JUNE 25, 2018. I HEREBV STATE ALL THE C3 53. 00 91' 43' S6' 84. 85'    R18) 7RACT 7875, FILED SEPIQABQ2 22, 2017, IN BOOK 4P OF MAPS AN PLATS, PACE 100, S. J. C. R.( 42 IA& P IODj
MONUTAEN75 ARE 0 7HE CHARACiER ANO OCCUPY THE PO51 ONS M ICATEO OR IHAT 7HEY 1NLL 6E L16 Nfi4' 39' S1' W 75. 00'     fti9) 1RACT 3831, FlLED JANUARY 23, 2019, IN BOOK 43 OF IAAPS ANO PLAiS, PACE I6, S. J. C. R.( 43 IA& P I6)

SET IN 7HOSE POSIilONS BEFORE DECEMBER 31, 2025, AND 7HAi iHE MONUMENTS ARE, OR THAi THEY C4 47. 00 45' 45' 37' 37. 54'    
R20) 7RACT 3912, FlLED FEBRUARY 7, 2010, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PAGE 19, S. J. GR..( 43 MkP 19)

W1LL BE, SUFFICIENT i0 ENABLE THIS SURVEY TO BE RETRACED, ANO THAT RiIS FINAL IAAP 117 N63' 01' O6" W 65. 00'     
CS 65. 00 94' 4fi' I6° 107. 51'    R21) GRANT EEO RECORDED JUNE 3, P016, AS OCUAIENT NUMBER 2016- afi3963, S. J. C. R.

SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO iHE CONUITIINJALLY APPROVED iENTATIVE MAP.

DATED 1HI5 OAY OF 2p_,     

8 N61' 29' 24' W 65. 00'     
C6 47. 00 4545' 37' 37. 54'    

RZz 

PAGET529oS. J.

CRAC(/
3 M

pR;
LOT FINAL MAP, FILED SEPTEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAP AND PLATS,

O N CAkoSL
LI9 N59' S7' 43' W 65. 00'

4yya

P

a  
L20 N58 0' 28' W 87. 03

OriAN CRAl5FOR0, P. LS. NO 7788 No. nee

iF
p

r9jf OF cnL f OP

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT SIGNATURE OMISSIONS
I, LAWRENCE COSSETT, HEREBY STATE IHAT I HAYE EXAMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF° iRACT 3989, RIVER PURSUANT 10 SECTION 66436 OF iHE CALIFORNIA SUBDINSION A7AP ACT, THE SIGNANftES OF

IAANDS, STAGE 2A, VILLACE I1", CITY OF LATHROP, CAUFORNIA, AND iHAT hIE SUBOIVISION SHOWN iHE FOLLOWINC PARPES HAVE BEEN OMIT7E0:

HEREON COMPLIES 151TH ALL 7HE PRONSIONS OF CHAPiER 2 OF iHE CAl1FORNlA SUBDINSION MAP ACi,

AS A1AEN ED, AND 7HAT 1H15 FlNAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT. I.  RECLAIYEO ISLANDS LAND COIAPANY, RESERVAPON FOR OIL GAS, MINERALS, AND

OTHER

DA1ED iHIS DAY OF 201      HYOROCARBON SUBSTANCES IYINC 9ELOW A EPRi OF 500 FEET, PER DOCUMENT

PRO CSSC H
NIIMBER 2001- 046177, S. J. C. R.

LAWRENCE GOSSETi, P. E. 31695

41         

No. 31695

r

or[ do•

SHEET G OF 1 O

181



RIVER ISLANPS DEV, LLC
RIVER ISIAN S OEV, LLC

LOT 2
PARCEL I TRACT 3989

DN 2016- D63952 IR51
DN 2016- 004077 ( R41

Treacr 4i Ri      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
a^ R Z R     VILLAGE U

A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERU, BEING

CAL1FlA, LL[      
A SUB IVIOIINJ OF PARCEL 8 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

PARCEL 24

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA

CALIFIA, LLC
l/      N 2001- 04 61 77 IR31

SEPIEIABER 2016

LOT I r'
TRAQ 39 IRI1

N 2016- 063963

IR211

N ENG1NE fZ7NG

PARCEL I 5
PAkCEL 17 O 0'  250'  5 0'

GL1Fl4, LLC IR221 IR221
SLP1E: 1'= 500'

37>\   2005- 134736 IR71

L     7RACI' 17 IRl l
S

J\  J THIS 41EET SHOWS TIES TO 7HE BA45 OF BEARWGS

ALIFl4, LLC  . q`  

V/ `

f 90 AND O1HER MAPS OF RECORD. REFER TO SHEET 4 FOR

PARCEL 4 Gi THE BOUNDARY OF iRACT 3999

DN 2001- 046177 IR3)       \,     PARCEL I4
pp( tCEL I

y9'
ic CALIFIA, LLC

7AACT la IRI1
PAR[ EL II

IR221

I1Z221
9

PARCEL 24

IR221 Ej.
9

oN 2001- 046177

09O ].   Ift31

PARCEL IO 7RACT 3832
iFACT 39 IRII

iR2z1 t 1 l' q LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY)
P2F\\     OO MONUMENT TO 9E SET PER( Rl7), UNLE55 O7HERW15E NOTED

PARCEL 2
l

O    7 NIIMENT TO 9E SET PER( RP2)

IR221

I  
7/ 4" IRON PIPE YATH CFP STAMPEO' PLS 7789' PER( R22),

q UNLE55 OTMERWISE NOTED

CALIFW, LLC           PARCEL 12
F IONUNENT PER TRACT 3834( R11)

PARCEL 2 9 IR221 9 I I
DN 2001- 046177 IR31    \     f  I S

BOUNDARY

9' R" P

RZz
9      '

2Q    i  LOT LWE OR RICHi- OF- WAY LINE

Aa   -------EASEMENT LINE
9'

Fly,
9y PARR221

f 3 P

R 21

3
I

I   ----- CENTER L1NE

I 200. 00'( R1)     IAEASIIRED AN RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)
SEE OETAII A           ?

2o19
Z

ON SHEET 5 I R1) DENOiES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE RE( ERENCE uST ON SHEET 2

FNERISLANOSPAPNWAY M- M)       MONUTAENT TO AIONUMENT

Z
R) RADIAL BEARINC

PAR[ EL 7 T) TOTAI

CALIFIA, LLC     \   
R22)       PARCELB

BEARNGS       '' o 8J 6WNDARY

PARCEL 15            2J I y T 3   ON DOCUMENT NUTABER

N[

020611R1'
IR31      \       SEE SHEET 4 PARCEL 4

I
O. R. OFFlCIAL RECOftD

IR22)     I I I MON A10NI11AENT

MApWA PNE Oj EASEIAQVT REFERENCE NUMBFR- SEE THIS SHEET

t1y\       PAR[ EL 5 I
CAL1Fl4. LLC 

l'

9aq0__--^ 
Ift221             

r

PAR[ EL 6

i

DN 2001- 046177 IR31

iRAR 21 Iftll 7

iRACT 3e32

cALIFW, LLc R°         

EASEMENTS
PARCEL 5 w

DN 2o o

a22
7R7' IR37 I

O 60'' MDE ROADWAY EASEIAENi IN FAVOR OF Cltt OF LA7HROP PFR 199 O. R. 21P,S. J. L. R.( STEV/ART ROADj.( DOES NOT AFFECT 7HE SUBJECT PftOPERiY)
CALIFLA, LLC        

I
60' 1NOE ROADWAY EASEMENi IN FAVOR OF CITY OF LAIHROP PER 199 O. R. 3J5,

BASIS OF BEARINGS PAR[ EL 13

II
RCAOEMY PIVE

OO
S. J. C. R.( SiEWART ROAO)( OOES NOT AFFECi 1HE SUBJECT PROPERTY),

DN 2oa1- o46 77 IR31

O 60' YAOE ROAOWAY EASEMENi IN FAVOR OF qTY OF IATHROP PER 4 8 O. R. 95,THE BEARINC OF NORiH BE7lkEEN FOUND MONUMENTS ALONC ELL' 0550 DRIVE AS SHOWN ON 1RACT 39 8,      T2ACT 23 IRtI o-  l qR 3aPa 3 SJ. C. R.( COHEN ROAO).( OOES NOT AFFECT THE Sl1BJECT PROPERTY).
S1ACE 2A, LARCE LOT FlNAL MAP, FlLED SEP7EMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 4J OF 11AP5 AND PLAiS, AT PACE 1

1R9

m52, OFFlCIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, WAS TAKEN AS THE BASIS OF BEARINCS SHOWN ON 1H6

IAIAP( ZONE 3. NADB3). ALL DISTANCES SHONN HEREON ARE GROUND DISiANCES.      I 7RA! 7 3027    

I

I
142 MhP 611 a i

NOTES gi
i

1. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI ONAL NOIES. REFERENCES, AND 7HE L1NE TABL£ k CURVE TABIE OF COURSES

SHONN ON 41EEi5 3 7HROl1CH 5 ONLY. i I -- 510E flIVE-  

I'_

l I
C4LIFw, LLC

I
LOT 3 TR 5893 T Rala2sN 2011R6064006 1

I I     '-      f{ E' 3 oF 10

182



TRACT 3989
PARCEL 12

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
o•    TRacr a oa iRxzi

O. VILLAGE U
6Js 

A PORiION OF RANCHO El PESCA ERO. BEINC

A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL B OF 7RACT J908( 43 MhP 52),

pSp(
Z J

LITY OF LA7HROP.

SEPTEM ER I20

80UNiY,
CAl1FORNlA

N}}' S2' 43" E R

7ARCiL 13
PARCEL 3

TRACT 3908 IR22I 7RACT 3908 ( R22)
E N G 1 N E E R 1 N G

PARCEL 9
9j  ~     \      N

1RACT 390a IR221
N'

Jlbs,  \\ lI o'   So'  iao'      2ao'

123 of,p I SCALE: 1'= 100'

U BOUNDARY SHEET

R Fq/
z10 0'

NDn THIS SHEET SHOWS iHE BOUNDARY OF TRACT 3989

0`,'oy
g 45u

p/
R^ BEING PARCEL 8 OF iRACT 3908( R2P)

2'.^      Rezi 1o5J^ Y
63p  

Wd,

pSyJJJ,  
LP1

C`
g57. 32'    NOS' 07' 38' E( R)   0 W

EAST  

I
R' 5' 07' 38"

0-
1047. 31'( AI' M)( R22)   ' O

9

L= 187. 92' M- M) 
W

C/
g J W

C
N06' S2' 41' E R  

77' JT p7

L25 w
6

h P a

C14 N2229' 41' E    
N69' 40' 09" W( R)

G

a, 4
k,

z5J8
PARCELB NOTES

053a, 00'     NI824' 07' E( R) 
TRACT 3908( R22) 1. SEE SHEEi 3 FOR IfCEND AND BA45 OF BEARINGS.

8130'       I4. 10 AC 2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A0 1 ONAL NOTES, REFFRENCES, AND

THE LINE AND CURVE iABLES FOR SHEEiS 3 hiROUCH 5

ONLY.

i
PARCEL 4

TRACT 3903 IR22)

PARCEL 7

TRACT 3908 IR22) 
a

x o N
NI6' 07Y8' E( R)

0 

9

d= 3' o'
2859.00'    

N13' OI' 41' E R

J" NIO' 50' 74" E( R)   1 N0323' 42' E R
15I09' !

6 R= 7B59. 00'       
NO6' 45' 09' E( R

LJ d- 4 OS' 25' L= 204. I0
Cs

4

J

C

N52' 30' 46' E( R)     
CS NO3' 30' O7' E R

N42' 15' 30' W( R)

PARCEL 5

7RACT 3908 IR221

SHEET 4 oF 10

183



PARCEL E
TRACT 3989

rrencr 3a3a iRi i RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
i       VILLAGE U
v

IAON A PpRTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING
ER( R14)   

SEE BELOW LEFT A SIIBDINDI N OF PARCEL 8 OF iRACi 3908( 43 M& P 52),
EAST EASi 579. 02'( M- IA)( R17)

CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA
45. 00' i I SEPTEMBER T 18

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE I

l

1 N

HOLBORN ENGINEERING

TR,AC7 3836 w DRI4E

IR141 Uo NOTES
n LLlo ( n

O p TRALT 3034 I. SEE SHEET 2 FOR All IT10NAl NOiES, REFERENCES, AND THE LINE AND

RII1 CURYE TABLES OF COlIR5E5 SHOWN ON SHEETS 7 iNROUGH 5 ONLY.
W 2 SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND AND BA515 OF BEARINCS.I m$ 

PARCEL 4

iRACT 39D8 IR221       

PLUMAS

DRIVE
I

pgT__ _ EAST 675. 00'( M- M)( R16)

45' 00

I
MON

W
PER( RI6J   

RINA DRIVE

Q W EAST 977. 00'     
u i             >     

o^. I O      ¢     

Z N87' 50 30' W R

iR.4CT 3912

w Y IR20)    I,v
PARCEL 6 Ig

I TRALT 3908 IR22) , P       
n 

8

PARCEL 3 SOLANO
TRA. C7 3832

TRACT 3908 IR221 DRIVE
I      IRI0)

I

I
45. 00^

i
MON

PER( Ri6)

I

w RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
I

as. 00' I EAST 1087A2'( Id- M)( R77)  COURM

EASi 1047. 31'( M- M)( R22) 
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY IW

ol

45. 00'   45'   3

W ITR4CT 3834

PARCEL 4
R

TRACT 39D8 IR221 p o
z=

z

I

o WATER LILY
Mo"

PER( Ri6_ 45. 00' Io      DRIVE
n

a p PER( R16)   
iRAC7 3895

m z IRI61

U

Z Qd
DETAIL A

SEE ABOVE RIGHT
wot ro scn

FROM SHEET 3)       SHEET 5 oF 10

184



PARCEL 12 TRACT 3989
TRACT 3908 RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE U

A PORTION OF ftANCH EL PESCADERO, BEING

A SUBOINOION OF PARCEI 8 OF iRACT 3909( 43 MAP 52),

CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNT7, CALIFORNIA

SfPTEM6ER 1018

PAl2CEL 13

TRACT 3908

TRACT 3900
PARCEL 3

N
N G 1 N E${ l 1 N G

TRACT 39 3 G
o'   so'  oo'      soo'

PARCELA,   scn: i'= ioo'

SHEETINDEXRi

PARCELI FR S NOsp
r`` ARlryyAY

BU P     

Sycp
9T

AR F
q      o`   LEGEND

H
V BOUNDARYPARCEL3 O FR     

STREFT,     PARCEL B    '  i0T uNE

50 p
E% ISTING ROADWAY EASEIAENT

Oe 3
Q

5 O SHEEi NUMBER

e e 6

7 1 i ii iii RESTRICTFD ACCESS

SHEEi LIIAIT 11NEPARCEL2       '      BUC!{ qN COURT
W

17
16

15
14

13
I

12    
p 9 B       

18 19 Z  
2   

23
24

z  '
25

yg
27 w PARCEL 4

om      
iR.4CT 3903

PARCEL 7

38

M/Op_    
TR4CT 390a

37

RY
RIVE   

e_   

39
40

41

36
35   

03 32 31 30 29
0

28

42       43 44 45       
47 48

49

I``     MAAllyq pRlVE
PAflCELC     -------       

i_ MARINA DR1VE ( F' UNREI

I

PARCEL 5

TRACT 3908

SHEET 6 oF 10

185



NOTES TRACT 3989
1. 1. 17' BRA55 DISK SiAMPED PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO IHE Rlpli- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONCAiION OF RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
soe ior uNEs, oR ns noho.

VILLAGE U
2. 5/ 8' REBAfl W1R1 CAP' PLS 7788" TO BE SEi AT ALL REAR LOi

CORNERS, UNLE55 OTHEflYASE NOiEO.

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A OITIONAL NOTES AND REFERENCES.    A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BE1NG
4. SEE SHEET J FOR BASIS OF BEAftINGS. A S11601ND10N OF PARCEL 8 OF 1RACT 3908( 43 NkP 5I),

5. SEE SHEET 10 FINi LME AND CURVE TABLES. LITY Of LAIHROP, SAN JOAOIIIN COUNTY, CALIFOflNIA

SEP7EMBER 2018

NOS' O7' JB' E( R) I R= 1 OO. DO'     
87.9T M- M R22R= 2100. 00' d= 28' 45' O6' L= 7053. 80'( M- M)( R22) p= 5' 07' 38

d= 25' 1333 L= 92J. 58' i
C89

I
a

N
ENG7NEE{{ 1NG

PARCELA RIVER 15LANDS PARKWAY o i>  m
20. 581 S. F.     

m

NI

p 20

OETAIL A I
A

scue i'= ao'

N043155W( R) R 216} 00 a
SEE SHEET 10   \

257733 L 95232( T)       

1
NI93   

1 N7436IS W2! 4.l O
CI9( 1-    R= 7J. Op. 0   -

4700    -- 42--_ '___-_ '     
e

N75' 46' 35' W N7652' S8' W N77' S9' 21' W N79' 04' S7' W NBO} I' 20 W N62V4' 21 W 102. 23      /   

74. 00'( T)
I C20 d     + L° 00'    42. 00'  r  --

ro'-

4100----        
eQ N84' 52 22' W

0).  c 0 / o t 3' BY 3' 
4200 43. 00'      

1' 45'  
ol HQQ`/   06• a i71 3' BY 3' y. I    , 37pp' 1

a. 00• LEGENDas o ER STREET   ' J.       w.c. L3' WnLL w.c.
68. 54' d= 2' 25' 09'    o EASEIAENT -

R= pz2      _ gq 07,   3• WA y I QQ MONUTAENT TO BE SET PER( R12)
d= 6'J6bq'      8, 413 S. F.  

EpSEAIENT z

156.69'(_ m_c,  5, 479 SF.       Z
rn SET STANDARO CIiY OF LATHROP 1AONUAIQJi WELL SiAMPEO" PLS 7788'

M)    w 4, 343 S. F.NI7' OB' S2' E( R)  
23. 98'  3 4 S s

vm
l' u'

SEE SH        y. r5'
P. U. E.     n

4 343 SF.  4,} 43 S. F. ,^, 4, 240 S. F. A 4. 447 S. F. A-

I o $[ T} 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASIIC PIUC' PLS 7788'

EET9 4 77'    
N77' 25' 42° WR) 

P'
S o24.2i'( rJ

s? \
I

m

Q SEi 2- 1/ 2" BRASS DISN SiAMPED RLS 7788o    
i

U.

z      

PARCEL B 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASPC PLUG PLS 7788' PER( R22),

0 0     s ------__ 1
z z

C29
UNLESS OTHERINSE NOTE

INz^       

o 

C23

o   

NS).      N79' 46' PB" E R)       2. 2735. F.       _

j
Z4       ZS C26 C27 CYB       / 

Q 9 W SET 7. 00' YAiNE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOiEO, MEASURE
5p o(

RJ

I luR= 2276. 00'= 6' 19' 10' L= 25I. 03' i ALONC LOT 11NE, RAOIAL LME OR PERPENDICULAR TO STREET CENiERLINEN17' 09' S2' E( ft)   ol NIS' 25' 29' E R)  N09U6' 19' E R)

A1
N65' 43' 32' W( R)   1 AS NOIED. 7/ 4' 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASiIC PWC' PLS 7788'

cas BUCHANAN COURT
U \ 

N79' S525' E( R)      
N69' 40' 09' W( R)

C8J T1 -

o/
T     200. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECCRD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)d= 7' Sf56' L= 716. 57'      

ol 4= 8' 15Y4' L= 332. 20' ti I+   R1)    DENOiES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE L1ST ON SHEET 2
I NI548' 4TER) R= 2306. 00' p= 975Y9" L= 785. 92' M- IA)    

ol       / 

P I       //    1`--   }
0. 00'     

M- M)   MONUMENi TO MONUMENi
N     .

O  3  __ C34
C35

C363J6.
00' G= 8'

C3'
4' L= 336. 51

C38 C79 C40 C41  
42 I  

30.00'   -

o

M- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUNDARY

ao. 00  
T  ---- ----- ----  ----  ----  --- '   A r roraI=  II PARCEL 4           

BOUNDARYr     A   o TRACT39081R22)   
pLLE.   POBUCOTIIITYEASEMENT

o I J A Im•  I I m Q W. E.    WALL EASEIAENT

4, 61P S. F.  M 4. J3165. F.  
a 4, 7 3

15
5. F.     

14 3 V 12
A 4. 3 J I' S F. A• 4. 2

8o
5. F. A 4.470 S. F.  

5. 2 18 5. F. Ip zl    

o   
LOT LINE

4, 3J 1 S. F.  0 4, 3 3 1 S. F.  e+ 4,3 31 S. F.
o      L'i ol o   -       

RIGHT-0E- WAY UNE

W        

p

I Z
BOUNDARY

o n N74q8' S7' W N7515' 21' W N76} 7' 10' W

z i z o

ml   IJ C
i In O w  50. 33'      

4J. 82•     
N77' IB' S9' W N78' 20' 47" W N7922' 36' W N80' 24 24 W N81' 25' 29' W oN82' 27' 17' W N84'

414

W

T EASEMENi 11NE

47. 82'      43.82' 42.77'      44. 86       

Cw      p''i 47. 00'  4J. 81'      43. 82'      43. 82' I
ly   

I
J7 67 36. 85'  27, p0' 17. 06' I I CENiERLINE

Q p 35. 04'      74. 22'     37. 41'      29. 59'      27. 77'  T
7      !-  I I

RESiRICiED A[ CE55
J' 33

6. 96' 14. 23'     I5. 00'z^    6. 15'       8. 78'      9. 59      12. 41' lo
Q 18    _ 

6. 4 075. F.  
I'^  II    i 4, 5fi1 S. F.      

21    _  
I

a
J w 20 w 4. 333 S. F.        26 lo

I3' P. U. E.   ^
4, 230 S. F.  ,`*,

4. 436 SF.   
2Z Z3 24 25   ? 

4. 333 S. F. 

v

N
6   

9. 476 SF.  w 4. 230 SF. a 4. 333 if. A 4. 333 S. F.    
30. 00' °   sV DETAIL B   0

30. 00' 

s
w

w   

z
p fN
i z

o         -    
SEE SHEET 10  , ,/     2

o o

o a
30. 0'

ry l

I

C44 C45
C46    -__

L-  ----   ----  -----  ----      

C52
C53     i      'omml' o•

I C47 C49 C49 C50       5      j
N17tlB' S2' E( R) ol N15' S2 16' E( R) R= 15JB. 00' d= 9' 4B' D2' L= 419. 36' T NO6' 24' I4' E( R)  lo NOS' 07' 38' E( F)   

I I1= 87( M- B)
O   

B

I A= 9' IB' 02_ L= 42432•    

I
NO3' S3' S9° E( R)

R= 2568. 00' d= 1T01' 14" L= M- M)   I

MIDDLEBURY DRIVE

SEE SHEET 8
SHEET 7 OF 1 O

186



LEGEND NOTES
TRACT 3989OO 10NI1MENT TO 9E SET PER( R22)   M- B)   MONIIMENT i0 BOUNDARY 1. 1. 17' BRA55 ISK STAMPED PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCFETE

SIDEWALK I. 00' INTO THE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
Q SET STANDARD CITY OF LATHROP MONUlAENi{ ffLL STAAIPEO' PLS 7788'      ( i)     TOTAL SIDE LOi 11NE5, OR AS NOTED.

B)     BDUNDARY
2. 5/ 8' REBAR' MTH CAP' PLS 7798' TO BE SEi AT ALL REAR LOT V I LLAG E U

0 5ET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLAS7IC PLUG' PLS 7788' CORNERS, IlNLE55 O7HER' MSE NOTED.

P. U. E.   PUBIIC UTIII Y EASEMENT 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADOITIONAL NOTES AND REFERENCES,  
p pORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BE1NGSET 2- 1/ 2"' BRA55 OISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788'       4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.

W.E.    WALL EASEIAENT 5. SEE SHEET 10 FOR LME ANO CURVE TABIES.     A SUBOINDION OF PARCEL 8 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 AIhP 52),
7/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PLUC' PLS 7798' PER( R1P),   

LOT L1NE
CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

IINLESS OTHERYASE NOiED SEPiElA9ER 2018

SET 3. 00' ri1TNES5 CORNFR( W. C.), UNLE55 OIHERN7SE NOTED, MEASURED
RIGHT- OF- WAY IJNE

ALONG LOT LME, RA IAL LME OR PERPENOICl1LAR TO STREET CENTERLWE BOUNDARY
AS NOTED. 3/ 4' r 24' IftON PIPE W/ PLASPC PLUG PLS 7788'     

EASEMENT LINE

100. 00'( R1) IAEASIlREO ANO RECORO OAiA PER REFERENCE( RI)     
N7ERLINE

N
Rf)    DENOiES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERFNCE LIST ON SHEET 2 RESiRICiED ACCESS E N G 1 N E E fZ 7 N G

M- M)   MONUMENT TO IAONl1MENT

v 2  40       8

SCfyE: 1'= 40'

NIB' 22' JI' E( R)     SEE SHEET 7 i I NO3' S}' S9' E( R) 'I N17U8' S2' E( R)   

I
N05V778' E( R)     N

C84(M- B) _ MIDDLEBURY DRIVE
r

g( A- B)   .
C9

R_ 25fi8. 00' d= i2' 01Y4' L= 5J6. 76' M_ M) 
C10

I o d= 9' 37' 04' 1= 47107'      oIp n ol

0

o I NI

y

N

mN J' S5' 33 E( R)

I       , a C54 __ C55 R= 2598. 00' 4= 9' 37' 04' 1= 476.tf T)  C64    2 I      /
CSfi__    C57 C58 C59 Cfi0 C61  _   C62 C63

59,
ao. 00,      

a000•_ J       o       _     T ----  -------  ---

i.
00 ao.00'

I      ~
P. U. E. z III"'

o      

v" i 4. 3075. F.  r 4. 40265. F.     
35

0                   

32 31 A 4. 1 BOSF. A 4. 40295. F.       

A

I m
I        z

QI
n 30   ' h 4, 198 S. F:   4, 70 S. F. $ 4,} p0 SF. A 4, 300 S. F. A 4, 300 S. F. _       _       I T d

y 4, 569 S. F. „"'     p9
I o

77

o z 0 5, 595 S. F.       

I Nld,
9

w 

N'

49. 98'

W N75' 00' 49' W N 75' S 7' 03' W N76' S2' 18' W zN77'47' 32' W zN78' 43' 07' W oN79"39' 42 W oNBO' 34' 16' W

o

N81' 29' 11 W

o

N 82' 2 4' 4 6' W I
PARCEL 7 43. 62'       N83' 24 9 W         i; m

TRAC7 390 IR22)
47. 00'

44. fi6'      42. 59'      43. 62'      43. 62'     43. 62'     43. 62'      42. 59'     44.66'

I o C79. 02'     J6. 40'    27. 06' 17. 60'     
S9. 54'

a 34. 73'  27. 65'Q     ^ 1
34. 15'      12. 57 29. 90      29. 27'

w Z 9B      
a. co'      a.v'       

PARCELC"   

I I= R'       

7ARCiL 4I     f 7. 85'      9. 48'      11. 10'      13. 73'      14. 35'     
14. 94'  

S52 S. F.

ac 39 Im'       TRAC7 3908 Ift221
O          4, 547S. F.     49

I -__- 
a

w 41 7. 489 S. F.   I°' ° 3.00'  
30. 00

I           40 w<. 200 S. F. . 47 48 Ir¢  r   a, o2 s. r,  e 42 43 q4 45 46 z 4, 302 S. F. A a, 3oz s. r.30. pp'      <    o" 4A04 S. F.  4, 302 S. F.  4, 30P S. F.  A 4, 200 S. F. 
A 4. 405 S. F.  DETAIL C J N0323' 42' E R

SEE SHEET 10 NI;       ce d  :,

0

z aN
r'     _      

o_  z
e

0,       
J       

Um
1------ 

c aI   
C65

Cfi6 C67 75
NO} 7fi'S7' E R) N1 C68 C69 C70 C71 C7Y C73

0 
NO6' S1' 33' E( R)N 77' 09' S2' E( R) 

lo R= 2799. 00' d= 9' 09' 09' L= 447. 11' T I

90         R= 2829. 00' d= 5' 12' 44' L= p_ 1' 47' S5' 1= 85. 52'     p_ t' 40' 41 L= 82.85' M- B257. 36' M- M)       NII' S6' OB' E( R R= 2029. 00' d= 6' 48' S0' L= 336. 16' M- M)

R_ ZBSg00
rvlm

C22- - A= 4' 00'] 5' L= 201. 27'     6= 5' O4' 74' L= 250. 64'  p= T37' 31 L= 8015'  
o

a= J' 01' Sl' L= 149. 45'     
NOSV7'} B' E( R)       17474 7

I

oo
C14 C11 T G= 4' OS' 25" L= 201. 96'      o I

J -'    

p_ 3' 30' 07''
gl

mlm
o o_I

N42' IS' 3  4

0

W

MARINA DRIVE Noaso' orc( R)
R= p859. 00' d= 3' O1' 37'    v i' m 5

a
J0. 00'   b

1= 15104
R= 2859.00 d= 40525 L- 204. 10

N06' 45' 09' E( R)

z

N70. 00' 
o

N16U318' E R NI3' 01' 41' E( R)/ N10' S0' 34° E RN72' S1' 08' W 60. 00'( i)       
l 0 5

J0. 00'   30.00'
N5730' 46' E( R)   R• 65.00' d= 94' 46' 1fi

N78' 03' S2' W 60. 00'( T)

PARCEL 5

TRA.CT 3908 ( R221

SHEET  OF 1 O

187



TRACT 3989
Z

000•      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
d

z63$
C> g'``

M)              

VILLAGE U
50'( _      

I N3J' S2 4TE R A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADER, BEINC

ry/ `   

A SUB INOION OF PARCEL 8 0( 7RACT 3908( 43 IAhP 52),

d- j•461_   
CITY Of LATHROP, SAN JDAOUIN COl1NTY, CAl1FORNIA

65. 05'      _    

SEPIEMBER 2018

i I
W

I R= 210o.00'   
Q_     d= 28' 45' 06' 1- 10

ry
d= 25' IJ' J.

5853.
80'( 

n

N
ENGIN EEfZ1NG

RIVER ISLqNDS pqRKWqy97. Op'    p

NSSJO' J,7`   37pp.    ,   •   N5977' SJ` W
o'   20'  ao'       eo'

J8. 00'( jf
110. 0' V

SCPif: 1'= ao'

N61 Y76' SI• W R= 216J.o0' p= 25' 1J' 33' L= 952.32'( T)42. 00'    
N627J' 14' W

NOTES0 3 N 4200'    N6q2007W
Nfi429'SJ' W y

47. 00'     N4575' 43' E( R)
W n N o.     PARCELA I. SEE SHEET 7 FOR LEGEND ANO NOlES.

20, 581 S. F. 2. SEE SHEET 10 FOR LINE AN CVRYE TABLES

PARCEL 9 rv i  p= 703' 21', tg• 
o, i  

p6
4 L= U6. 46'    

CIB
N1974' 01' E( R)

7RACT 3908 i     ,\=2o5. os r <. 90\ PAftCEL 1 i cte r i

O• 
W 0. 62 AC S     N27' qq' Sfi' E R

R STREET
PARCELA   ,, a

ry        
o l       ()     I  

NI7' OB' S2' E( R)N21' I9' 47' E R

10, 591 S. F.   
ti o        a S

P   
nl lo

p
WIR, o        '

f
y

0=2' 25' 09" L= 94. 07'      p= 1' 45' 46' L= 68. 55'     

y
p0       _     N61' 40', 7f•       23. 98'    

C8B       
4= 4' 28' S0' L= 17423'   -

C81

p NB p0

ER

R)  °'_

42. 77'  
R= 2228. 00' A= fi' 36' 04' 1= 256.69' M- M)      ol I

e

N2578' 19' n N12' 41' 19' ER o       ;,.
VN -

o     

J    
N29' 9p' 3fi"[( R)  5/     )   R= 225B. 00' 4= 4' 28' S0' L= 176. 58' T)   ' I      i

o_ 

R' 22) 6.00' d= 4' 14'  30. 00' / ____-' C9I-      C .   
s

17' L= 768. 35 L-__°     92 30. 00' J m
ol BUSH COURT o

N1872' 29' E( R) 
m

d= 5    

y     \\   " N3176' 49' E R_    

S,

q

240. 4=     o i m 50 I.

Wy
230fi. 00'    SJ' L236. 11"  -

13' L= 69. 35'      

4.919S.F.      
N

a=• ar d- I' 43' 1_ I      i I;    BUCHANAN

09. 8J'( M-)   IR= 2336.00' a_ 6.  ol
C93 N72' S1' OB' W 102. 87'   

I
O—  COURT

7-       
21' 48' L= 259.44'    N13' 44' Sfi' E( R)

2N       
n   IW I nl

N25' OS' O1'[( p)

o 

o

NI

I I
J I IPARCEL3

i
30. 00 

Im V i082 AC r--1 5' P, U. E.— w^  
I I

ts I I ><  I

DETAIL D / 
N5870' 28'

W8703'       N59'S
m e'  I I

m T

ml
2

43' W o w e I PARCEL2 IN   _
iSEE SHEET 10 65. 00' N61' zg•p4• W w Q ry I 1. 26 AC

N O.     T
I

NZz I
70`      - mi65. Op' N63'01' O fi' W

p O      65. 00'  
N64 9' S1" W

i n    I I N. T
J5. 00'     

I I      mIz      

10' P. U. E 10' P. LLE.--

I li
PARCEI_ 7

I I In

I I I

TfLACT 390 I I

I I
0

70. Op'   Jo. Oo'   I I

N65}) q6• W 60. 01'( T)       a 30. 00'

N78' Y4' 07' E( R)     C       "
1---_------------  

N2229' 41' ER)   R- 2538. 00' d- 4' 0534' L= 78130

0l
MIDDLEBURY

Ni7' 08' S2" E( R DRNE

N Ce9( M- B)    __
N. N78' 27' 31° E( R)  I

SHEET 9 oF 1 0

188



LINE AND CURVE TA6LES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON SHEETS 7 THROUGH 1 ONLY

L1NE TABLE CURVE TABIE CURVE TABLE CURVE TABLE TRACT 3989
L1NE OIRECTION LENCIH CURVE RADNS DELTA LENCTH ClIR4E RA IUS  ELTA LENGiH CURVE RAOIUS OEITA IENGiH RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

L1 Nl8' S9' S1' W 41. 77'    C1 11J. 00 IS' 12' 13'  49. 98'   C46 4578. 00 I' OU' 39'  44. 78'   L91 2158. 00 2,<•} r Ba., s VILLAGE U
L2 N40' 29' S9 W 35. 74'    C2 87. 00 1512' 13"  23. 09   C47 2578. 00 0' S9' 15'  43. 74'   C92 2258. 00 2' 14' 19'  6812'   

A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO. BEING

L3 N49' 31' 35' E 34. 98'    C3 53. 00 91' 4}' S6'  84. 85'   C48 2538AU IUO' 39'  44. 78'   C93 23 6. 00 170b5' S3. 72'       
A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL B OF iRACT 3908( 43 IAhP 52),

LIiY OF LATHROP, SAN J AOUIN LOUNiY, CAl1FOftNIA

L4 N5623' 21' E 35. 02'    C4 47. 00 45' 4537'  J7.54'   C49 25J8. 00 0' S7' S1'  42. 71'    
i

1 SEP7EIABER 2018

LS N32'}' OS' W 35. 02'    CS 47. 00 45' 45' 37'  37. 54'   C50 25J8. 00 0' S9' IS'  43. 7d'    N

L6 N61' 36b5E 35A7 C6 73. 00 44' 10' OB'  S628'   C51 2538. 00 o• se• a  a3. n•     RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY o lJ
r N0   jL7 N2775' OS' W 34. 98'    C7 50. 00 64' 4fi' 35"  56. 53'   C52 2538. 00 0' S9' 15"  43. 74'       

R= p 63. 00' Z5 333- 95232 T 1

L8 NT1' S2' 42' W 35. 74'    CB 29. 00 6177' 24'  31. 02'   C57 2538. 00 1' 02' 02"  45. 80'   u E N G 1 N f{ 1 N G

PARCELA s

L9 N56' 07' 17' W 13. 47'    C9 Y568. 00 172' OS'  S3. BS C54 2598. 00 0' 29' 48' 22. 51'      

L10 M8' ll' 24' E 42. 9}'   C10 2568. 00 172' OS'  S3. 85'   C55 2598. 00 P55' 35" 42. 01'   

N92' 04' 21' W1U2. 23__--   \

3' W
W 74. 00' T

L11 N71' S3' S4" E 34. 46'    C11 2ffi9. 00 1' OS' 34'  S3. 95'   C56 2598. 0 0' S6' S4' 43. 00' EASEMF1dT 3' BY 3'     ( B N84' S2' 2Y
W. C.       37. W

L12 N20' 35' 02' W 34. 94'   C12 73. 00 4470' 09'  S6. Y8'   C57 2598. 00 0' S4' IS"  41. OD'    
w O

L13 N67' 04Y5' E 25A5'   C13 50. 00 7174' S7'  62. 32'   C58 2598.00 055'35'  42. 07'    T
7 I^ a`- v `°    D

L14 N62' 4fi' 29' E 35. 74'   C14 2829. 00 1' OS' 37'  S3. 94'   C59 P598. 00 0' S5' 74'  41. 99'    y
o     

m      Z
US N31V0' O6' W 34. 4fi'   p5 12. 00 88' S6' 23'  16. 63'   C60 2598.00 03575'  42. 01'       

3• wpLL.

y       

C
EASEMENT    

m +    
T

LI6 N3B59' SI W 17. 26'    Ct6 12. 00 88' S6 2}'  IB. 63'   C61 259A. 00 0' S5' 34'  41. 99'     Z

n Nae s9' srw io.ea'   cn   3. 00 6T56' 05'  80. 18'   C62 zsse. 00 os+' is'  ai. at DETAILA I m
LI8 N3B' S9' S1' W 13. fi3'   C78 97. 00 24' OS' S6'  36. 59'   C63 2598. 00 0' S6' S4'  43. 00'    NOT TO SCALE

FROM SHEET 7)
L19 N18' S0' IB' W 38. 81'    C19 2199. 00 1' 45' 46'  67. 62'   C64 2598. 00 0' 47' 04'  35. 57'

L20 N6129' 49' E 34. 94'   C20 87. 00 24' 0556°  36. 59'   C65 2799. 00 079' Sfi'  24. 37'

L21 N29' 28' 4fi' W 37. 14'    C21 73. 00 62' S6' OS"  B0. 18'   C66 2799. 00 0' S}' 30°  41. 56'

L22 N50' 45' 76" E 31. 54'   C22 Y829. 00 1' OS' 34"  5}, 96'   C67 2799. 00 0' S2' 14"  41.53'

L27 N50' 45Y6" E 5. 60'    C23 4276. 00 0' 3B' S2"  25.73'   C68 2799. OD 0' S4' 47'  44. 60'     

L24 N61' 32' 49" E 74. 98'   C24 2P76. 00 1' O6' 24'  43. 96'   C69 2799. OD 0' S3' 30'  43. 56'

LPS N3976' 19" W 29. 27'   C25 2176. 00 I' O6' 23"  4795'   C70 2799. 00 0' S1' 31'  47. 5Y 7S 7g 1
L26 N3916' 19' W 5. 72'    C26 P276. 00 1' O6' 2}'  4795'   C71 2799. 00 052' 14"  41.5J' I

30. 00'

L27 N2825' 13' W 35. 70'   C27 2276. 00 IU4' 48'  42. 90'   C72 2799. 00 054' 46'  44. 59'  
N

lls 3000 N

V1 zB
L28 N50' 4596' E 37. 14'   C2B 2276.00 I' 07' S9'  45. 00'   C73 2799. 00 0' S3' 31'  4a. 57'      

O    
L29 N39' I6' 19' W 34. 98'   C29 2276. 00 0' 08' 22'  S. 54'   C74 2799. 00 053' 30'  47. 56'     C  

mm

L30 N56' 07' 1YW 4. 81'    CJO 17. 00 67" 00' 3B'  19. 89'   C75 2799. 00 0'37' 40 30. 67'       B Z A
L7i NS6U7' 17' W 8.66'    C31 50. 00 137' 40' 47' 120, 15'   C76 57. 00 6979' 45' 64. 13'     m Z

9 0       9 h N

0 9    Z N83' 24' 18 W o

L32 N7' 37' 3}' E 20. 00'   C32 50. 00 3430' 00'  30. 11'   C77 53. 00 2224' 10'  Y0. 72'      

N

30. 00'  W

m m Y 59. 54'    .. r ___  

N Q
m

L3}  N}' 26 49" E 20. 00'   C33 2} 76. 00 0' 31' 14'  P258'   C7B 87. 00 IS' 12' I}'  23. 09'       m m "   T
P 

o

N84' 09' O4° W 0
U

C} 4 2}} 6. 00 1' 01' 49'  42. 01'   C79 11}. 0  1572' 11'  29. 98' 46. 41'     m Qg
2

aQ n
PARCEL3

C35 2376. 00 1' 01' 48°  41. 99'   CBO 53. 00 91' 43' 55°  B4. B5'       i

C36 233fi. 00 I' 01' 49'  42. 01'   C81 2PYBAU 1' 03' 37'  4113'    
37

C37 2336. 00 1' Ol' 48'  41. 99'   C82 2J06. 00 I' 43' 13'  69. 35'
27 g T  

D
30.00'  

N6220' 12' W( R)

C38 2736. 00 1' 01' 49'  42. 01'   CB7 1306. 00 120' O5  53. 72' 
y'  0p     NSg' 18 W 87.03'

C39 2736. 00 1VI' 49'  42. 01'   L84 2568. 00 Il3'39'  S5. 02'      P,' RCEL 7

C40 2336. 00 IVO' 20'  41. 00'   C85 2568. OP 1' I6' 36'  S7. 22'     
h y0`

1 6
TRACT 3so3

cai 2336. 00 0' JO' 48"  40. 93'   CB6 2568. 00 ns•3s•  s. zz  
DETAIL B DETAIL C DETAIL D

C42 50. 00 p6V7' 42  22. 80'   C87 2568. OD I13' 39'  SSAZ  NOi TO SCALE NOi TO SCALE NOT TO SCAIE

C43 50. 00 q7' 09' 2}'  41. 15'   C88 2228. OD I' 03'31'  41. 23'  
FROM SHEE7 7)     FROA1 41EET 8)      FROM SHEET 9)

C44 2538. 00 0' 32' 01'  25. 64'   C89 210D. 00 I' 45' 0}"  64. 17'

C45 2530. 00 0' SY51'  4P. 71'   C90 2929. 00 1' 08' 10'  Sfi. 09'

SHEET 1 OF 1 O

189



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 10

EXHIBIT B

TRACT 3989 AND VILLAGE ZJ AREA

190



LAKE 10

VILLAGE BB i"

BLUE HERON DRIVE

L E C
I o

WZ

9

2sT"

9F GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

9i

9 s

SA9,fl'

9Y
V LLAG CC

9 y

9sc       PROPOSED COMMUNffY PARK

G'9T

J

OQ

VI LLAG E Ue   .sy       -

TRACT
3990yo

VFRSTqF RIVERISLANDSPARKWpY

Q    ,  
j

BUCHq yANCOUAT

VILLAGE V \`\
y=, 

y     ; ? 
GRINNELLCOURT GRIP

I
w
0

r LAKE 11
s a   ;,'     

o
e

TRACT 3989 
MIDDLEBURY DRIVE

S 

h

1 1 O

A..  

W
JQ f/ 7

N IG   
i MARINA DRIVE

c,°     

o

U
Q

J
D        _._  

ES

EXHIBIT " B"

VILLAGE U

VICNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

191



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 11

EXHIBIT C

CITY I1 ISURANC REQiTIREIi IENTS

1. The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000, 000 in the

aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be

attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a.       Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
inembers thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability

arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that" the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary insurance as

respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-

insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess

of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty( 30) days prior
notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be included on

the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least

five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

192



Page 1 of 2

CERI' IFICATE OF LIA ILITY IfVSURANCE
DATE MMIDD/ YWY)

09/ 07/ 2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES PIOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF IPISURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE
1- 877- 945- 7378

FAX
1- 888- 467- 2378

c/ o 26 Century Blvd AIC No Ext:      A/ C No:
E- MAIL

certi£ icates@willis. comP. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS:

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER( 5) AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURER B; Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13604

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURERC:

I.athrop, CP, 95330
INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: w 439341 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7YPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LTR IN D WVD POLICYNUMBER MMIDD/ YYYY MMIDD/ YYYY LIMITS

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY
EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES Ea occurrence    $

F'   
MED EXP( Any one person)    $

Y
ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 1, 000, 000PERSONAL& ADV INJURY S

GEN' LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY jE  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER:  S

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILY INJURY Per accident  $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

S

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

A

X EXCESSLIAB
CLAIMS- MADE BTT71814514W 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION S g

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRI ETOR/ PARTN ER/ EXECUTI VE
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

E. L. EACHACCIDENT 3

Mandatory in NH)     
E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE S

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT S

B Excess Liability 1000024047 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES ( ACORD 107, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)      
RE: Tract 3989 River Islands- Stage 2A Village U.

The City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereo£, its employees and agents

are Additional Insureds as respects the General I iability policy.

The Insurance coverage a£ forded by this policy shall be Primary insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

The City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive j A

Lathrop, CA 95330 j
O 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATIOiV. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
SR ID: 1( 7 71Q2 BATCH: 8SB9O8

193



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

RO       ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

Willis Insurance Services o£ California, Inc.       
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: Certificate oP Liability nsurance

officers, employees, and agents. Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers,

employees, or agents shall be in excess of the insurance afforded to the Named Insured by this policy and shall Not

Contribute to any loss as respects the insured' s operations.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reseryed.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16707142 BATCH: 858908 CERT: W7439341

194



POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or
Organization( s)   Location( s) Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River" Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its    .     

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organiza4ion( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:
respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:   1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the pertormance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    

intended use by any person or organization other
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in pertorming operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

195



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

196



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:           

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

197



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in

SECTION III - LiMITS OF INSURANCE.       

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

198



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 12

EXI3IBIT D

COHEN/PARADISE/ STEV6 Al2T REHABILITATION MAP

199



1  •

a   

jZ   •    
M

e"'" r'     -

Araoim+ nrim eEno..R ElE

PRO. ECrAPEA

p

LEOEND

EXHIBIT" D"
RQADWAY TO BE FULL REP/URED. PAVED AND OPEN TO OENERAL PUBLIC

ROADWAYTOBEREPAIREDASAL4WEATMEREMER, YV@11CLEA ESSWiY
ROADWAYREHABILITATIONEXHIBIT

COA INITYATSOIJTHRNERBENDPRWECTAREA

RIVER ISLANDS
i IT1 UF UiIIROP ia JOApUV COICT}  C, LIfoRlIA

oa- r su:._. mrx.._ i.

200



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 13

EXI3IBIT E

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMEleiT COST ESTIMATE

201



li1   l l_

ENG1 NE fZ1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September4, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 95

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE U( 74 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Survey Mounments( o/ Completion)      1 LS   $      3, 600. 00  $ 3, 600. 00

2 Signing and Striping ( o/ Completion)     1 LS   $     18, 700. 00  $ 18, 700. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $ 22, 300. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor' s cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village U.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • ?: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T125502- River Islands Phase 95- Vllage U EXCEL\ Cost To Complete 2018- 09- 04 Vllage U Bond Esfimate. xls\ Improvemenis

202



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 14

EXHIBIT F

VILLAGE U IMP tOVENYENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

203



l   L7  = l_

E N G 1 N E E fZ 1 N G

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE March 7, 2018

VILLAGE U( 74 LOTS) Job No.: 25502- 95

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLAfVDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 190, 200 SF   $   0. 45  $ 85, 590. 00

2 3" AC Paving 43, 700 SF   $   1. 50  $ 65, 550. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 58, 600 SF   $   2. 25  $ 131, 850. 00

4 7" Aggregate Base 43, 700 SF   $   1. 05  $ 45, 885. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 58, 600 SF   $   1. 20  $ 70, 320. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)     2, 170 LF    $  15. 00  $ 32, 550. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       3, 490 LF    $  15. 00  $ 52, 350. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 27, 200 SF   $   5. 00  $ 136, 000. 00

9 Driveway Approach 74 EA   $ 600. 00  $ 44, 400. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 12 EA   $      2, 500. 00  $ 30, 000. 00

11 Survey Monuments 10 EA   $ 300. 00  $   3, 000. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 3, 065 LF    $  5. 00  $  15, 325. 00

13 Dewatering( budget)  3, 065 LF    $  40. 00  $ 122, 600. 00

Subtotal Street Work 835, 420. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( type A inlet) 13 EA   $      2, 400. 00  $ 31, 200. 00

15 Catch Basins( rype A inlet over type I manhole base) 3 EA   $      2, 800. 00  $   8, 400. 00

16 Catch Basins( type A inlet overtype ll manhole base)  2 EA   $      5, 000. 00  $  10, 000. 00

17 Catch Basins( rype A inlet over type lll manhole base) 3 EA   $      7, 500. 00  $ 22, 500. 00

18 Field Inlet( type C inlet over type I manhole base)      1 EA   $      2, 800. 00  $   2, 800. 00

19 15" Storm Drain Pipe 600 LF    $  34. 00  $ 20, 400. 00

20 18" Storm Drain Pipe 380 LF    $  46. 00  $  17,480.00

21 24" Storm Drain Pipe SO LF    $  65. 00  $   5, 200. 00

22 30" Storm Drain Pipe 550 LF   $  80. 00  $ 44, 000. 00

23 42" Storm Drain Pipe 250 LF   $ 120. 00  $ 30, 000. 00

24 48" Storm Drain Pipe 490 LF    $ 125. 00  $ 61, 250. 00

25 Manholes( type 1)  2 EA   $      3, 000. 00  $   6, 000. 00

26 Manholes( type ll)  2 EA   $      5, 000. 00  $  10, 000. 00

27 Stub& Plug 3 EA   $      1, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

28 Connectto Existing 5 EA   $       1, 700. 00  $   8, 500. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 280, 730. 00

SANITARY SEWER

29 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3, 100 LF    $  28. 00  $ 86, 800. 00

30 Manholes 13 EA   $      4, 000. 00  $ 52, 000. 00

31 Manholes( Trunk) 1 EA   $      6, 000. 00  $   6, 000. 00

32 Sewer Service 74 EA   $ 600. 00  $ 44, 400. 00

33 Stub& Plug 3 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

34 Connect to Existing 1 EA   $      3, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 195, 200. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9d588  P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T:125502- River IslandslPhase 95- Vllage UIEXCEL 2018- 03- 07 Stage 2A Vllage U Engineer' s Estimate. xlsxlVILLAGE U

204



O'   I_ L
ENG1 NE fZ1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

35 8" Water Line( including all appu tenances)      2, 530 LF    $  32. 00  $ 80, 960. 00

36 10" Water Line( including all appurfenances)      540 LF    $  40. 00  $ 21, 600. 00

37 Water Service 74 EA   $      2, 000. 00  $ 148, 000. 00

38 Fire Hydrants 5 EA   $      4, 000. 00  $ 20, 000. 00

39 Water Plug& Stub 4 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   4, 000. 00

40 Connect to Existing 2 EA   $      4, 000. 00  $   8, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 282, 560. 00

NON- POTABLE WATER SUPPLY

41 8" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)   860 LF    $  35. 00  $ 30, 100. 00

42 Stub& Plug 2 EA         1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

43 Connect to Existing 1 EA   $      3, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water Supply 35, 100. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $      1, 629, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $ 22, 014. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F2Q9. 571. 2466

T:125502- River Islands\ Phase 95- Ullage U\ EXCEL12 01 8- 0 3- 0 7 Stage 2A Vllage U Engineers Estimate. xlsx\ VILLAGE U

205



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 15

EXHIBIT G

RIPFA L,E' I'TEIa OF' GUA1tANTEE

INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WI' I'HIN T- IE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMEl TT AREA

206



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

May 4, 2017

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 9533.0

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Constraction of Inferim Public Access within the River

Islands at Lathrop Stage 2A Development Area

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a perfoi7nance bond for the construction of an
interim public access ( public right of way) vithin the Stage 2A development area of the River
Islands development project. River Islands Development, LLC (" RID") has requested the

permanent closure of Cohen Road from Stage 1 to Paradise Road and Paradise Road From

Stewart Road to the Stage 2 1 levee (see Eahibit" A" attached to this Letter of Guarantee). This

closure would allow the construction of the Stage 2B levee system. The closure will not allow

public traffic to utilize Paradise Road to access the River Islands development area while the

construction of the Stage 2B levee is occurring, but still allow emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- weather access roads.

RID plans to construct River Islands Parkway from its current ternlinus in Stage 1, through the
Stage 2A developmen area and into Stage 2B and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to

restore public access to the project from the Tracy/ Banta area. Until these roads are constructed
and dedicated to the City for public use, the City is requiring securit} to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RID fail to perform. We are providing you this Letter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by O' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot- wide paved roadway,
equivalent to existing Cohen Road, in the general alignment of proposed_River Tslands Parkway
frorri Stage 1 to Paradise Road through Stage 2B is $ 453, 000 ( See Exhibit" B"). The total length

of this" guarantee roadway" is 6, 150 linear feet. As a result, the Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amount of$ 543, 600, which amount is equal to 120% of the engineer' s

estimate, in- lieu of a performance bond. The funds are currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. The

Joint Community Facili ies Agreement; dated as of November 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastiucture
improvements for the River Islands development, including roadways.

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until Augusfi 1, 2020, or until such time that permanent roadways are

207



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever comes first. If the permanent roadways are not constructed, inspected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no later
than August 2, 2020, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fiu1d to conshuct a 28-

foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent to the existing Cohen Road or,
to reconst vct the existing 28-foot-wide paved Cohen and Paradise roadways in the
original alignment at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to restore access are constructed, inspected
and operational, not to exceed December 31, 2020-.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a se egated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable
roadways. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to complete the
construction of the roadways. Once pei-nanent access has been constructed to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer, and all costs related thereto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any uivestment earnings thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund. Until the completion of the roadways

and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain records as to the
reinvesUnent of the funds provided to it, and will provide the Authority with its records as
to any such investment earnings upon written request of the Authority. Additiorially, in
the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds provided to the City
are not sufficient to pay all of the costs associated vith the roadways necessary to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the Authority
viIl advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.

In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will provide to he
Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the remaining roadway
work necessary to restore public access.

3.       Since the construction of roadways withiri Stages 2A and 2B are phased and will continue

to be constructed by RID, RD 2062 or the Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of fiinds necessary to be held from the Improvement Fund as
segments of permanent public roadways are constructed and dedicated to the City. ror
instance, segments of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2017/ early 2018 and dedication of this segnent would reduce the amount of security
described herein. As a result, a reduction of$ 88. 40 per LF ($ 543, 600/ 6, 150 LF) shall be

granted for each linear foot permariently constructed and dedicated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above as the
applicable security and to request reduction of the security as described in section 3 above. As
confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

208



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 3 of 3

City, please sign and date this letter as shown on tlie next page.  Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely, '

By:          
Herb Moniz, Execut v Director

River Islands Public Fi ancing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Location of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": O' Dell Engineering— Engineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC      

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

By:
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

Date

209



i  ;; Y l t   . _ 

r t s¢'

E4,   ¢    XHIBIT A
r! 

a      
e p" i'iF€ iP"` Pi'- N"+' f' 

fT 3-,  J.. n. 

irF;.  

i q,
H c)' 1  1: f° y.       p :*    .

k     ^ lwt?

r
4  ,,       "`.

y'
ra    .

J-•

a J   c , e, r
n+ 

ti   ^ j       ~ 3      " r  r ha  SY    '.`,'  .       •.
Q;`   

k pG'^   R"v2  p',    
v

5.' l     
h: i3_,

r    
F"   ,`` hF '               

n              VI
1!'

I

W4j 4lii''
i

i 

1+ tt u^  
f..'" Y 

j,*,    '
k. '  

t   . 

y.:
I

y
f

R  .     "` 

1 1'
c.{`    

t    ',,;

i' I   , i i

r,
i t; L 3   "`

V      
1 t' ts '-'+

I    . 1' 

i:sra ze 8'"     a,        k ,

Y
r-..    

4       

f;       AREA   Il y,
se  

f,
q' a i

t. v     }   

a        ^„

r"
r      , .  ar rs

BEGIN PERMANENT:   
t       :

ROAD CLOSURE .,  
2 LANE' GUARANTEE'    :-

5

C`` Y:     h     ,

t a    ,:  r= ' ; y  ;,.    
4-    

s+  5,

ROADWAY( 26' WIDE)  

v' 1  '      ..       -....'  j

ry 

4`'
t i`.`';

y 31 
j

t  ,
f   .       

qy
ti''     

4

x

y

ht C dF; .^ R    .\  
1 + ry

ey 
f   .

i.     4  :       - i
nr;. t .     S-

0'.,   :-,

y `',
g:

y   
4

gT3,' rw;',£
i'    x'     a    

9A '^
W,,       .'+ 4`     i"k'

r   :.        -      

x    # ,       -: y s= y.,      -      `°:'  
t

3;::

i

f lf3i"
W3  -

d}  

j'
E    t    `     $'       

s/' \'.     

c.,   _   

a

T'

b    

sr;:
q      

1:.    C'       T..      i}     ad('¢
Y„6L;        h x 

1  

r'a.._     ..       .  

o. v  6   .      v 1 1 7 i'
L

fd',
l

1a
s':    

r l.
x.       •   

Y

L. END PERMANENT  ` t       :: (' i' x
r`      

TRANSITION S

AR"
2'`-  _:.

i:   ,  !+ ;     

ROAD CLOSURE           `:` rrzre  :t k`    

r' TO LEVEE ROAD
f

x ,:,

M4   ,   i      
s..   nwr

i    -    /    ^:        

i  .
a°
j?

Y' `,
J

r      

4.      

h    ,   <-
y`   '

g       '  , Mw;

y+''    ,     
1 f i t    `*.   .     F cowEncu. ,_   3      " S1      

a IPROVIDE LOCAL; u     

r F---  J       ,(
TRAFFIC ONLY'       -    

a.  
r h     `,    f' 

t  '   
i,   

S I G N ( R 11 3) f F   '?
f,   {['_} ;   

u'" c'..  ;`

FP,..}'  `
a,,:     ,,,. p c r+•'+-'"

i I r"

l"'     STAGE 1   e    ;    

7;
TRANSITION AREA   "`,(   l'

I      '   TO LEVEE ROAD/      I ::
c.'     r+s .

Y'

y

I
4°—

a    •   

I

r '.,.,,    SSO DRIVE
f

DELL 0

m y T           
I, 1.... `'

1.    _ _     

T"      

A.    
j°"

h
A

a'` 71G rY 

i_ I. i[

lCG7w XFl
k       " P'",   

J

p     .   
s

x fi     ''    

1 l.      
S ^:

l
y, v,

s
i "

a.',.'
dw

k " M,

t.'!,       ' v    '      .

s P Y
f

1

A A$  
4J   . r

y. ty'',
H /" J t(

y9' s
l   

as y- `
r`       y, dF'"'       :,     ( 

f

F h a.       .     \ 
f_      ;1.. 1

1       ti. .  -      C     : 8 .       .' l«  

o-. 
r

s
T f--      

T    
y       . I

1 L ,_      .:..         I a

4..     

a ;  1_       ___    '`. s

L AiI, ., 
Y  .,

s     '...      . .,.;    :

c a:..... rs-<: xr...r...zv'.:  

t    :      '  -.    ',   

f

T, u.r.r i         

LEGEND s      '      + ,' 1'  
Q

r         

i"       
PHASE 1 BOUNDARY

RETAIN PUBLIC MAINTAINED ROAD p, 
F "  s,

t.:`     
6  -- ` :

e'..  
s       ;  ._    

m    -   PERMANENTROADCLOSUHE( ABANDONMEWT) 
i '' "   ''     b  '' 

A     ''""''  
STAG[ 21NT[ f IM ACCESS

INTERIM PUBLIC SAFEfY HOAD( ALL-WEAiHER)

a

R I V E R I S LAN D S
LAND USE MAP

28' PAVED ROADWAY( GUARANTEE SEGMEN   r

q yy. z;y             CITVO= IRTHR()(' S4NJf. qOUINi. OUNiV   : AI. IF() NNIh

ENOINEERiNU MAva. NJl]

210



EXHIBIT " B"
r " •- _ -

NG1NE£ fZ1NG

ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017
INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION - STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization' 1 LS     $     25, 000. 00   $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS     $       2, 500. 00   $  2, 500. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

GRADING

3
Earthwork2

1, 600 CY    $    5. 00   $  8, 000. 00

Subtotal Grading 8, 000. 00

N1ISCELLANEOUS

4 3" AC ( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    1. 50   $ 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB ( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    0. 90   $ 154,980.00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS     $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 453, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Mobilization assumed to be 5% of total' cost.

2) Earthwork quantity includes 35% shrinkage.

62 0 STONEftIDGE PAALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925223.8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

211



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 16

EXI3I IT H

RIPFA LETTER OF GUAI2ANTE

RIVER ISLANDS PARK VAY VVITHIl T T IE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

212



RIVER ISL NDS PUBL6C FliVANCING AU3' HORITY

73 W. ST£ WART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA95330

TEL: ( 209 878- 7800

dune 26, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Lefl er of Gaaarantee- Constructi n of ver IsD a ds P rke vay froern Dell' Osso
Drive tbe Stag 2S oa nd ry{ L,akeside East Destrict)— Tract 3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Paxkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( also known as

the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is providing
the funding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River IsIands Parkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee fur
construction of the Itiver Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subciivision map
praposed by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
for the full construction of River Is}ands Parkway, we are providing yau this Letter of Guarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot finaI map.

The en,gineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
Islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Usso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264,000,
and for the unfinished portions ( as of June 15, 20I8) of River Islands Parkway& om Deil' Osso

Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 338, 004( attached as Exhibit" A"). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in tfie amount of 450, 000, which amount is equal to 184% of this

engineer' s estimate of the unfinished improvements, in- Iieu of a 100°lo performance bond and
50% labor and materials bond. The funds are currently held, and wiil be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreernent, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Tnast, National Association, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Parkway
being guaranteed by this letter for your reference( Exhibit" B").

S

a

213



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3       .

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvefnent Fund until July 8, 2019, or until such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fuliy constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first.  If this portion of River Islands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2019 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than September 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       1' he Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under agplicable law. The Autharity and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be canshvcted, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadIine noted above.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in tDie Improvernent
Fund and provide said monies to the City, ta be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable portion
of River Islands Parkway. In such event, the City will use reasonable diIigence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Parkway. Until the completion of the River
Islands Parkway and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestmenk of the funds provided to it and will provide tlie Authority
with its records as to any such investment eamings upon writt n request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Parkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of

the shortfall.  In such event, and upon the written request of tlie Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Pazlcway improvements remain incomplete on September 30,
2020, the Authority shalI immediately resart to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements.

In addition, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until the
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of$ 526, 400( 10% of the full cost of the

Improvements), or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter of guarantee in
that same amount of$526,400 to guarantee the quaIity and condition of the futl Improvements
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

214



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this lekter as shown on the next page. Should you have aryy questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb oniz, Ex tiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full impravements from ' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimat of unfcnished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Location flf guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of CJuarantee.

B L
Y•

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 9  /       -
Date

215



fiNG1NE GCING

ENGINEER' S OPI lION OF PROBABLE COST March 6, 2D18

RIVER lSLAP1DS- STA E ZA Job No.: 25503-01

RIVER ISLAiVDS PARKW, 4Y

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNi' Y, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantl4y Un( t Unit Price Amount

S3REET WORGC

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF   $  0.45  $      279, 7fi5. 00

2 7" AC Paving 316, 800 SF    $  3.50  $    1, 108, 800. 00

3 11" Aggregate Base 316, 800 SF   $  1. 65  $      522, 720. 00

4 12" Lime Treatment 316, 800 SF   $  1. 14  $      348, 484. 00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( wlth AB cushion)       9, 600 LF    $ 15. 00  $       144, aoa. 00

6 Type F Median Curb( wifh A6 cushlon)    9, 100 LF    $ i8. 00  $      163, 800. 00

7 Roundabout Conc te 2,400 SF   $  5. 00  $ 12, 000. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 5F   $  5. 00  $      387, 040. 00

9 Handicap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500.00  $ 50, 000. 04

10 Survey Monuments 7 EA   $       300. Ofl  $ Z, 100. 00

11 Barricades i EA   $     1, 500. 00  $        1, 500, 00

12 Traffic Signing Striping 4, 710 LF    $ 5.00  $ 23, 550. 00

13 Dewatering( Budget)     4, 710 LF    $ 75. Q0  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal 5treet Work 3, 39fi, 965. 00

STaRM DRAIiV

14 Catch Basins( type A Inlet)   24 EA   $     2, 400.00  $ 57, 600. 00

15 15" Siarm Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF    34.Q0  $ 37, 74Q_00

16 18" Storm Drain Pipe 220 LF    $ 46.00  $ 10, 124. 00

17 24" Siorm Drain Pipe 780 LF    $ 65.00  $ 50, 704. 40

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA        1, 000.00  $ 9, 000. 40

Subtotal Storm Drain i65, 1b0. 00

SANITARY SEWER

19 24" Sanitary 5ewer Pipe 50 LF    $       150. 00  $ 7, 500. 00

20 Manhofes 24 LF    $     4, 000.00  $ 96, 000, 00

21 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3, 000.00  $ 6, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 109, 506. 00

W,47ER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line ( fncluding al! appurienances)  740 LF    $ 32.00  $ 23, 68. 00

23 10" Water Line ( including atl appurtenanclss) 284 LF    $ 40. 00  $ 11, 200. 04

24 20" Water Une ( inGuding aJl appurtenances)       4, 630 LF    $       100. 00  $      463, OOO. QO

25 Firs Nydrants 16 EA   $     4, 000. 00  $ 64, 000. 00

26 Water Seroice 6 EA   $     2, 000. 00  $ 12, 0OO. OQ

27 V1later Plug 8 Stub 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000. 00

28 Cannect to Existing Water 1 EA   $     4,000. 00  $ 4, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 586, 880. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL R9A0 SUITE 330, PLEASANT N, CA 9a5Sd • P 925 223. 8340 • F269.571. 2A66

T 125503. River IalandslPhase a1. River Islerw PerkwaylWord 8 ExceRCoai EeUmote1201B- 03. 08 River If7ande Pa kway- Stafle 2A Cosl EstlmoteUmprouemerns

216



NGINEERING

Itam Description Quantity Unit Unft Pric  Amoun4

RECYCLED WATER

29 8" Recyclad Water Flushing Line ( inciuding al! appuRenancas)       80 LF    $ 45.40  $ 3, 80Q. 00

30 12" Recycled Water Drain Line ( including aU appur anances) 150 LF    $ 55. D0  $ 8, 250. 00

31 16" Recycled Water Line ( including ap appurfenances)    4,650 LF    $ 65. 00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycled Water Plug& Stub 4 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 4, OD0. 00

33 Connect to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5,000.00  $. 5, 000. 00

Subtatal Recycled Water 323, 100. 00

MON- PO' TABLE W.4' ER

34 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( inc udin$ an appunerrances)    650 LF    $ 35. 00  $       22, 754. 00

35 16" Non- Potable Water Line { 7nctuding al! appurtenancss) 4, 660 LF    $ 80. 00  $      372, 800,00

36 Plon- Potable Water Service 6 LF    $     2, Op0. 00  $ 12, fl00, 00

37 Non- Potable Water Plug Stub 7 EA   $     9, OQ0. 00  $ 7, 000. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Potable Water 1 EA   $     3, 000. 00  $ 3,OQ0. 00

Subtotal IrRgation Water 417, 550. 00

LAKE FILL LONE

39 16" Lake Fill Line ( fncludrng aU appurienances)    4,820 LF    $ 50, 00  $      241, 0OO. OU

40 3" Aeration Li e( lncluding a! 1 appurienancas)      4, 820 LF    $ 4. 00  $ 19, 2B0. 00

41 Lake Fill Stub& Plug 3 EA   $     1, 004. 00  $ 3, OOD. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, 004. 00  $ i, 00Q. 00

Subtotal Lake Fill Line 264, 2BO. OD

SUBTOT, L CONSTRUCTIOPI COST $    5, 263, 435. 00

TOTr4L COtJSTRIPCTIOM COST( nearest S1, 00u} S 5, 284, 000. 00

Notes;

i) This estimate does not include sunreying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion cantrol, jaint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2} Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 S70NeRIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330 PLEASAVTON CA 9d588 • P 925. 223. 8330 • F 209. 571. 2466

T:125503 Riuer lafundalPhaae Ot- Rlver Islenda Parkway VWrtl 8 ExceRCost H Umule12016- 0- OB Rluer IsfanCs PaMway- Stape 2A Cotl EstimeteVmpmvemeMs

217



6NGIN CEfi1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ES7IMATE June 13. 2018
COST TO COMPLETE Job No.' 25503- 01

RIVER 1SLANDS• STAGE 2A

RIVER ISlANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORPdIA

Item Descr[ pllon Quantiry Un( t Urvit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer 8 Waler Raising Iron 95% Comp etion}  LS S 54,400. 00 S 54, A00_Ce0
2 Final AC LiR( 90% Compf tion) 7 LS 5 246, 60A, 00 5 246, 6Q4. 00
3 Final Signing, Siriping& Monument( o% Ccmpleb' on)     i L5 5 37, Off0, 00 5 37, 000_ 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE S 338, 004.00

Nales:

1) EstkmaBe for msi to complete bssad on contrxaors cost lo complele summary sheet and backup documents! ar Staga 2A River lsfands Parkway
Oell' Qsso Drive to Stage 2A/ 28 Levae) dated Juno' l2, 2418.

5? G J STONeAIDGE r fALL nOi. Q SUITc 339. PLE:. SAtJ C": CA 9» 5? • P 9_ 5, 2'_ 3, 553G • F 203 571:: 6"a

T; 125501Rrver IclatdfWhat Ot- RHer ISIaMs PatkwaylWord d E caRCasi tc Cartylete 201b1• 1] Sppe 7A RIP Bond EammaNVmprwartqnta

218



f

p,     .

a

R
R

r'```,,,,   

H OOL

r

r ..          

j'y r  

y 
y   

s L, s Pa    

p    

1-
e

r     

lAKE lo j
r__ ,,  _     __

0

PARK
Wa

1

Z
l.A9C 1 i'

J    /''` f,-J (`""" ti

N

a 

JllLY 201

219



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3989

Page 17

EXHISIT I

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATOIN

MARINA DRIVE

220



Recording Requested by and
Please Return to:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
3 90 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Benefits City Only.
No Fee Required.

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

IR1tEVOCABLE OFFER OF DEI3ICATION OF EE1 EIVIENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PUItPOSES AND PiTBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TR CT 39 9— OFFSITE ItOADWAY D DICATION—NfARII A DRIVE)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability connpany, hereby grant(s) to the CITY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California, an
easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PUE), over and

across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particularly
described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PAR.T HEREOF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State

of California, and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above- described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

Signed this day of October, 2018.

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a California limited liability company

By:
Name: Susan Dell' Osso

Its:     President

Notary Acknowledgment Required for Eac Signatory)

221



This is to certify that the interest in real property offered herein to the City of Lathrop is hereby
acknowledged by the undersigned, City Clerk, on behalf of the City of Lathrop City Council to
authority conferred by the Lathrop Municipal Code and the grantee( s) consent(s) to the
recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer

TERESA VARGAS, CITY CLERK

By:

Date:

222



SEPTEIUIBER 27, 2018

JN 25502

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DED1CA710N FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES

TRAC7 3989- VILLAGE U

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION- MARINA DRIVE

RIVER ISLANDS

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

CERTAIiV REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:   

BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 4, AS SAID PARCEL IS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED

TRACT 3908, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP", FILED SEPTEMBER 20, 2018,,

IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:  

PARCEL ONE ( ROADWAY EASEMENT):

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 4, AT THE SOUTHERLY

TERMINUS OF COURSE L29, LABELED AS" NORTH 08° 28' 09" EAS7 60. 23 FEET", ALL AS SHOWN

ON SHEET 8 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 3908;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG WESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 4 AS

SHOWN ON SAID MAP, NORTH 08° 28' 09" EAST 60. 23 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT THEREIN;

THENCE,. LEAVING SAID WESTERN LINE, ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 2, 799. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS

NORTH 03°23'42" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 03°23'42", AN ARC DISTANCE OF
165. 85 FEET;

THE JCE, EAST 977. 31 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 45° 00'00" EAST 35.36 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID
PARCEL 4, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP;

THENCE, ALONG THE EASTERN AND SOURTHERN. LINE OF PARCEL 4, RESPECTIVELY, AS

SHOWN ON SAID MAP, THE FOLLOWING FIVE( 5) COURSES:

1)  SOUTH 55. 00 FEET,

2)  ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVIIVG A RADIUS OF 1, 455.00 FEET,
THROUGH A C.ENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 09' 57", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 55. 00 FEET,

3)  NORTH 44° 09' 47" WEST 34. 84 FEET,

4)  WEST 977. 00 FEET, AND

5)  ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2, 859. 00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 03° 30' 07", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 174. 74 FEET TO SAID
POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 1. 63 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

PAGE 1 OF 4

T:125502- Wver Islands\DWG FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3989- VILLAGE U LEGAL DESCRIPTIOM25502- LEGAL Trect 3989 IOD. doc

223



EXHIBIT A SEPTEMBER 27, 2018
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION JN 25502

FOR OFF- SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES
FOR TRACT 3989- VILLAGE U

ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF DESCRIPTION

AL LAI D
P

K17TRF SG
Q C<`  G

ar,     . q iz-r jr g o

PAUL KITTREDGE DATE
No. 5790      *

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
CALIFORNIA NO. 5790

s'

q

P

TF fi CAI F

PAGE 2 OF 4 25502- LEGAL TRACT 3989 IOD

224



P,- 1 J rI I

r r'

1tr.'
lr r I l'r'iH 1 J J     

rr ac- o      

ir r r' ir -       

I

v c     

rr,ac-r    
ar c        N

rr cr :      

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

TRACT 3989 PARCEL 4
ac       _   _..     

VILLAGE U TRACT 3908 0 

cri      
o  .         -  -  :.   , -   '   

P 1P, L 7 7n 1C7 J J   

r,- r  PARCEL ONE

SEE SHEET 4 w '
0

ee o

I

r

AF{ GrI o

7nr1 J  : l'ey    
i  ,   I

I

LEGEND

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE
i  ,   

i

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

I. O. D.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION I   '  '

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

scA e r = oo  EXHIBIT A

DkAWfJ BY BK RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A, VILLAGE U

TRACT 3989- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
F E:

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MARINA DRIVE E N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

DATE: D9/' L( 1/' L018 HEET: 3 OF 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

LSSD2- kIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAFS\ iRACT 3989- VILLAGE U\ PLATS\ 2, 502 PLAT_ iRACT 3989- IOO. DWG

225



1 Cri 13

7nA 7 J3 Firrl  ;

7r,A 7 3J 

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

N

w    

TRACT 3989

VILLAGE U
PARCEL 4 0    '      

TRACT 3908
r7nn r r      Cn    
Tr1f' lvr,' ; J

7F; 1G7 9 J     
J I i

i 

I       --_._..  ._ __...... 

PARCEL ONE

R= 2799. 00    1. 63 AC±
v 3° 23' 42"      N45° 00' 00" E i   ..... . _:  ._.. i,  . .._'. .. .. i

o L= 165. 85'       35. 36'    SOUTH
N08° 28' 09" E z EAST 977. 31'       

60. 23'
55. 00'   _._..    _    ..--- ,

MARINA DRIVE( I. O. D.)

2 09' 57"      

r...._......., __..R= 1455. 00 ---
W EST 977. 00'  o

POB,    R= 2859. 00'       N44° 09' 47" W f
PARCEL ONE 3° 30' 07" 34. 84'      

L= 55. 00    '     ,    ;

L= 174J4'       

AnCrl  

LEGEND
No3' 30 07 E R

7r;A r 3   

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

I. O. D.    
RREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

SCALE: 1" = 200'  EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: BK RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A, VILLAGE U

TRACT 3989- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
F E:

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MARINA DRIVE E N G 1 N f{1 N G

DATE: 09/ 20/ 2018 SHEET: 4 OF 4
CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\" L5502- kIVER iSLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3989- VILLAGE U\ PLATS\ 25502 PLAT_ TRACT 3989- IOD. DWG

226



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
o   

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISL NDS AT L THROP)

October 8, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3989; Escrow No. 1614020159

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" RID"), and the City of
Lathrop (" Cit}') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrov'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction."  Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for ClosinQs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " Closing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Docurroents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 3989, executed and
acknowledged by the City.

B. 2.  One original Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina

Drive from Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue, executed and acknowledged by the City.

B. 3.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River
Islands Public Services and Facilities).

1

227



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

B. 4.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for Island Reclamation District 2062 Community Facilities District
No.  2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services).

6.5.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services).

B. 6.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities
District No. 2016- 1 ( River Islands Supplemental).

The documents listed in Items B. 1, B. 2, B. 3, B. 4, B. 5 and B. 6 above are referred to as

the " Recordation Documents." The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the

order referred to above. The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in

the Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Prior to recording the Recordation Documents, please confirm that you have received
copies or originals of the following documents:  ( i) Unanimous Approval of Annexation to

a Community Facilities District and Related Matters, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities); ( ii) Consent to, and

Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to the River Islands Public Financing
Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services);

iii) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to Island Reclamation
District No. 2062 Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake
Maintenance); and ( iv) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to
the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2016- 1
River Islands Supplemental).  The original City of Lathrop Unanimous Approval must be

delivered to the City of Lathrop.  The original Consents and Ballots for River Islands
Public Financing Authority CFD Nos. 2013- 1 and 2016- 1 and Island Reclamation District
IVo. 2013=1 must be delivered to Karna Harrigfeld at Herum\ Crabtree\Suntag, 5757
Pacific Ave., Suite 222, Stockton, CA 95207.

Copies should be sent via email to Cari James ( ames( c ci. lathrop. ca. us), Kristin Harvey
at NBS ( kharvevCa) nbsqov. com), Cindy Yan at Goodwin Consulting Group
cindy( a qoodwinconsultinqqroup. net), Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso( c riverislands. com)

and Debbie Belmar( dbelmar@riverislands. com) together with conformed copies of all
documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have: received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City(" Seff/ement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

2

228



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each
entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 35,035.64, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 076. 00 multiplied by
11. 39 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map. The City' s wire instructions are set
forth below.  ( Note: Parcels 1- 3 reserved for future use.)

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellossoCc riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar( a riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatore( c ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador
Navarrete ( snavarreteCc ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciames(c ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( Qqebhardt( a)ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is

accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3.  The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

3

229



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.     

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E.4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

4

230



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
Its:

Date:

5

231



232



ITEM 4. 8

i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT. AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 51 LOTS IN

TRACT 3994 VILLAGE T" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3994
Village T" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling

51 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694 ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and
Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as " Stage 2A")
within Phase 1.  A Master Parks Plan amendment that includes revisions to parks and

open space to the Stage 2A area is pending Planning Commission action tentatively
on October 17, 2018.

On August 25, 2016, the City Community Development Department approved a

Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.      
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at the request
of River Islands Development, LLC ( RID). This proposed Final Map Tract 3994 for
Richmond American Homes will be the first tract map within the Village T" area.

Richmond American is proposing fifty- one ( 51) 47' x 100' single- family lots.  A Vicinity

Map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3994,
Village " T" and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Attachment C) with River

Islands Development, LLC ( River Islands").

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3994' as proposed by RID,
as the subdivider, complies with the most current conditions of approval.

J

The land for Tract 3994 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, arrd amended on June 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

233



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3994 VILLAGE T" TOTALING 51 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with conditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blocks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the planning of the Lakeside East District.

This provides RID the ability to process small lot final maps in an orderly fashion
where one small map does not depend on another. The approval of Tract 3908 also
required the posting of security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from
Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary which provides the primary access from
the existing River Islands development to Village " T" and the rest of the Stage 2A

sub- planning area.

On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning Commission approved a Neighborhood Design
Plan  ( NDP)  and Architectural Guidelines,  and Design Standards  ( AG/ DS)  for the

Lakeside East District ( also known as Stage 2A") within Phase 1.  While the NDP

contains conceptual guidance on parks within Lakeside East, a Master Parks Plan

amendment that includes revisions to parks and open space to the Stage 2A area is

pending Planning Commission action at its meeting on October 17, 2018.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off-site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3994 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village T."

In the case of Village ' T," all improvements but street striping and monuments are
completed, and a letter of guarantee was provided by River Islands Public Financing
Authority ( RIPFA) as security for these unfinished improvements.

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements ( Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Tract 3994 will not trigger any additional off- site
improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3994 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off- site
improvements.

As stated, all in- tract improvements have been completed, other than thermoplastic

striping and street monuments.  Acceptance of all public improvements will be

processed by staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are complete.
At that time,  RID will be required to post one  ( 1)  year maintenance bonds as a

warranty for the completed infrastructure.

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, Village " T" will need to
be annexed to the three different Community Facilities Districts   ( CFDs)   for

maintenance purposes ( City,  RD 2062 and RIPFA). The final map for the large lot
Tract 3908 recorded on September 20, 2018. Therefore, Village T will be annexed

with Village U Tract 3989 scheduled for Council approval on October 8, 2018.

234



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3994 VILLAGE T" TOTALING 51 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Finally, before the Final Map Tract 3994 is recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIOIV:

The applicant has completed the street and utility improvements within the entirety
of Village " T" with the exception of the thermoplastic striping.  RID shall provide a

10%   maintenance bond to guarantee the full improvements  ( completed and

uncompleted) for one year once the striping is completed.  Prior to acceptance of

these improvements, RID has provided the tract map, the tract improvement plans,
all required documents and all fees for Tract 3994.  Following is a summary of
documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Miscellaneous Improvements provided by Letter of

Completed
Guarantee by Substitution of Security " Set- Aside
Letter," dated A ril 23, 2018.

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided
Completed

by Letter of Guarantee by Substitution of Security
Set- Aside Letter," dated A ril 23, 2018.

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, ] oint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

235



CITI( M/ ANAGEIt' S REPORT Page 4

OCTOBER , 201 CIY( COl1NCIL REGUL14R MEETIIVG

FIiVAL M P FOIS TRACT 3994 VILLAGE " T" TOTALING 51 SIiVC LE- F IMILY

LO' S AIVD 4 SIA VIIITH RIVER ISLARIDS DEVELOPMEIeIT, LLC

15.    Tract 3994 Village T - City of Lathrop Community
Approval

Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public
Pending with FM

Services and Facilities) will be annexed with Village U
Tract 3989

Villa e U

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract 3994 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off- site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off- site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

BUDGET II IIPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

TTAC H M E IVTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3994 Village ' T" within the Lakeside
East District, Totaling 51 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B. Village " T" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,   LLC,   a California limited liability company,   for

Tract 3994, Village T"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3994 Village T"

236



CITY M NAGER' S REPORT Page 5

OCTOBEIZ 8, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGULA t MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TftACT 3994 \/ ILLAC E T" TOTALING 51 SIIVGLE- Fe4MILY

L. OTS AIVD / 4 SIe4 WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPNIENT, LLC

APPIZOVALS

c1 2l   18

Glenn Gebhar t Date

City En  ' neer

Cari Jame Date

Finance Dir tor

y- z
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

eo• a

Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

237



A CHIIAENT
e/'

1

RESOLUTION IVO. 1-

p RE OLVTIOlV OF THE CITI COUNCIL OF ' THE CITY OF LA`THROP
APP tOVIl01G T9iE FIN L MAP FOR TRACT 3994 TOT ILYMC;

51 SINGLE- FAMILI LOTS AND A SU DIVISIOIV IMPItOV MEIVT AGREEMEIVT

WITH RIVER ISLAIVD DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

WHEFtE/ o S, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHERE 4,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval of final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREa S, Tract 3994, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 51 lots covered by VTM
3694,  located on the west side of the San Joaquin River,  north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

VIiH REAS,  in its review of Tract 3994,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3994 on September 12, 2018; and

VI/ HEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3994, as identified
on the approved improvement plans and has completed or guaranteed completion of

all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEFtEAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements are
required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
16. 16. 190; and

1A/ HEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by RID
and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

1NMEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain

all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

WHERE 4S, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

238



WHEREAS,  off- site improvements necessary for access to Village T were
guaranteed with Letters of Guarantee provided by River Islands Financing Authority
on March 4, 2017, and June 26, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 3994 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3994
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct, and

complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,  annexation for Tract 3994 Village T,  will be incorporated with

Village U Tract 3989 for the three maintenance CFDs by RD 2062, RIPFA, the City;
and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3994; and

WHEREAS, RID has ensured that as a condition precedent to the recordation

of the final map for Tract 3994 that th'e large lot final map Tract 3908 is recorded
with the San Joaquin County Clerk- Recorder' s Office; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute Final Map Tract
3994 T" and is hereby approved as submitted as part of the public record with
the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office. The recorded
executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially

the form as attached to the October 8, 2018 staff report, the file executed copy
will be filed with the City Clerk.

239



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this
8t" 

day

of October, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

240



o A M
o 1v`

K

WZZ

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

V LLAG CC s

o     >     n r'

o ac

PROPOSED COMMUNIIY PARK o Z
w

W
Y

3SI      i E  

SOLANO DRIVE

TqFFT RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
VI LLAG E T

BUCNqNqNCOURT
z GRINNELL COURT GRINNELL STREET WATER LILY DRIVE

w
m

TRACT 3995 TRACT 3994 Q
UZ

WW
Q

MIDDLEBURYDRIVE o

w
a w

TRACT 3994 T,
TRACT 3995

m          

MARINA DRIVE

j
U

U
2

I
TR G'

E S
BALSAM COURT

7

4  i    i A

COURT

T  +

t    

ACRTFORD  t]
J

N

ATTACHMENT 

VILLAGE T

VICNITY 1 9AP
SEPTEM ER 2018

241



iTTACI MENP'°

CITY OF LATI3ROP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

River Islands ( Lakeside East District) - Tract 3994, Village" T"

River Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
8th day of October, 2018, by and between

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")
and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CITY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any

remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/ River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020.  As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of

bond proceeds ( Exhibit G) in the amount of$ 543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the deadline of August 1, 2020.  Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds

sha11 be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these
removed roadways.  The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it

remains for now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access.  The

security referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps
associated with this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map which
includes the Village " T" area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
RIPFA has guaranteed the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the
Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds (Attachxnent H) in the amount of$450,000,
that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet a September 30, 2019, deadline or as

may be extended by CITY.  The security referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this
final map and all final maps associated with it until River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive
to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted into use by CITY.

242



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District ofRiver Islands Development
Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3994. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts
3994 and Tract 3995 ( Village" T") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands Phase

1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of
improvements total $ 22, 300 and both performance and labor and materials security is required by
the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be posted as outlined in this
Tract 3994 ( Village" T") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3994

and Tract 3995 and as noted in Recital D security shall be required for the unfinished portion of
these improvements along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 3994 and
Village" T" overall. Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design,
Inc., have already been approved by CITY.   The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm

drainage,  street light,  and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are

substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tract 3994 and Tract 3995 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s

construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of,or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' s

Department ofPublic Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 3994 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3994 associated with the filing of
Tract 3994( homebuilder) or prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 3994, or prior to December 1, 2019, whichever comes first.   Such

occupancy shall be documented by CITY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final
Building Permit.

243



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District ofRiver Islands Development
Page 3

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the
Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements.  CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to
ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements.  As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 232,500, equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village " T" entire area($ 2, 325, 000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one-year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 3994 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described
in this Agreement, as well as the" Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public

Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paxadise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached E ibit "D" and rehabilitation is guaranteed by
a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed

prior to release of security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by

244



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 4

CITY.

Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair, replace, and/or reconstruct the Improvements,
SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if SUBDIVIDER
subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.  In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3994 and Tract 3995 as included and described in Exhibit E of this

Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120% of

the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in E ibit E ($ 20, 500 X 120% _ $ 24,600 —

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 24, 600 X 50% _ $ 12, 300) also as

indicated in Recital D.   Further,  SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision ofthis Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof.  The above- referenced sureties

hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision ofall or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

245



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development
Page 5

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors.  SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and

expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the
negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters.  CITY does not and

shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER.   The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are, or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site.  SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete.   CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements.  CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payrnent of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.
SUBDNIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two

weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

246



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 6

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary

permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.   Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3994 and Tract 3995.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed

by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

247



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 7

i. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed

falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue.  In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 3994

EXHIBIT B TRACT 3994 AND VILLAGE " T" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " T" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE — RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

248



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this
8th

day

of October, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

249



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 9

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 3994

250



OWNER'S STATEMENT
o R

5

TRACT 3994 un aaaao

THE UNDER9GNm. OOES HQ2EBY STATE THAT 7HEY ARE iHE OYMERS OF Al1 iHE LAND EllNEA1ED AND il

FIABRACED WI7HIN 7HE EX7EPIOR BWNDAflY LINE OF 1HE HFA N EMBO Im FlNAL IAAP ENTIllED,' iRACi 3994,    RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA
N      PROJECT SITE

RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A NLLAGE 7', G7Y OF LATHROP, CAIJFORNIA, CONSISiING OF ELE EN( It) SHEETS,
VILLAGE T

R "

IAN WE HEREBY CONSENT TO THE PREPARA ON AND FlL1NG OF 7H1S FlNAL NAP IN THE OFFICE OF THE LOUISE AVE

OUNtt FECORDER OF SAN JOApUIN COUN7Y, CALIFORNIA g

A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, B NC n
1HE UN ER9GNm OOES HQt Y mICAIE AN EASENENT TO iHE Cltt OF LATHROP FOR PUBl1C A SUBDIVI ION OF PMCEL 4 OF 1RACT 3908( 4J M& P 52),

A

J`

vy-;'    
s/,/

y

jPoq1T- OF- WAY PURPOSES, 1HOg PIXtTICNS OF SAID LANDS DE9GNAlED ON SAIO YAP AS N, 1WNA OPoVE, qtt OF UIHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNtt, CNJFORNIA
q
i RD

z '

r
MIODLEBIIRY DRI4E, GRINNEiL STREET, GRINNELL CWRT, MAS7ERS ORIVE, CHOAIE SiREET, ANO BRANDEIS SEPIET1BEft 2018 Sf f
CWRT, AS SHOWN ON 7HIS FlNAL NAP.      

c

7HE UNOQ24GNm DOES HQ7 Y OmICAIE TO 7HE qtt OF U7HROP A NON- EXCLU9VE EASQAENT TOGEiHER Ll    -       ,
p 120

WITH 7NE RIqiT TO CONSiRUCT, RECONSIRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN, POLES w1RES, CABLES, PIPES, AND t0  F'q
CONDUIiS ANO THEIR APPURTENANCES UPON, OYER AND UNDER 1HE S7RIP5 OF LAND AS SHOYM ON 7HI5 Q R     

FlNAL NAP DE9GNAiED AS' P. U. E"( PUBIiC UPLItt EASE6IENT). E N G 1 N$$ 13 1 N G y Qp0`  /    /i

1HE UNOER9GNm DOES HEREBY UmICAIE TO THE Cltt OF LAIHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASQAENT FOR THE a'    

PIIRPOSES OF REPAIfl AND MAINIFNANCE OF 1HE SOUND WALL fOft THE AREAS DESIGNAIED AS' WALL

EASElAFN7'( W. E) AS SNOWN ON 1HIS FlNAL NAP.
205     y

THE UN FA9GNm DOES fffR Y DmICATE TO iHE Gtt OF LATHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASQAENT TOGETHER
y.( 

l.

11H 1HE PotliT TO CIXJS7RUCT, RECONS1IiUCT, REPAIR AND NAINTAIN, SiORN DRAW FAqlJPES AND 1HEIR

APPIIRTENqNCES, UPON, OVQt ANO UN Qt 7HE SiRIPS OF LANO AS SHONN ON 1HI5 FlNAL WAP OFSICNAiED CRANT LME RD
H

AS' STORM ORAIN FASEMENY.   
CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT

5

O
PURPOSES OF OPEN ACERI NCLUDG PUBIJC U11L1TES AN S OR DIiAIN FAp E5, FQJ EDNAINTENANCE, 6 7ERE4A VARGAS, qtt CLERK AND CLERK OF 7HE pTY CWNqL OF THE qtt OF LA7HROP, STAIE OF VICINIIY MAP
AND APPURTENANCES 7HERETO, FIX2 7HE BENEFlT OF 1HE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN ON 1HI5 FlNAL MAP.      CALIFORNIA, 00 HEREBY STAIE 1HAT iHE HQ2EW EMBODIED NAP ENiIRED' TRACT J994, RIVER ISLANDS,   

NOT TO SCALE
STAfE PA, NLLRf# Y, CITY fF UTHROP, CALIi' ORNIA C N95PNC OF ELEVEN( 11) 41EE7$ THIS STAIFMENT

THE UNOER9CNm DOES HFR Y DmICATE TO 1HE Gtt OF LATNROP, IN FEE, PARCELS A, B, D, AND F, FOR Wq5 PRESENIED TO SAID tliY COUNCR, AS PRON ED BY LAW, AT A RECULAR MEETINC 7HQtE0F, HELD ON
PURPOSES OF OPEN SPACE, INCLUDING PUBIJC U111JPE5, FENCE MAINIENANCE, AN APPUR7ENANCES THQ2ET0, iHE_ DAY OF 201 AND THAT SAID qtt COUNCIL DI 7HEREllPON BY

FOR 7HE BENEFlT OF THE PI7911G AS 910YM ON THIS FlNAL MAP.       RESOLUIION N0.       OULY PASSED AND ADOPIED AT SNO NEEIING, MPROYE SAID
SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENTNM, AND AUIHOPoZm I7S RECORDA710N, AND ACCEP7ED IXV BEHAIf OF 1HE ptt OF L91HflOP, FOR PUBIJC

7HE UNDER9GNm DOES HERR Y RELNOUISH TO 1HE Cltt OF LATHPOP ALL ABUTIQ2S RIGHT OF ACCESS TO USE, 7HE DFDICAPON OF ALL PUBIJC U71Utt EASE41EN75, WALL EA l1EN75, STORM DRAIN EASEMENiS, 
7{ IS AIAP CONFOFMS TO IENTA7IYE MAP ND. 7694 APPROVEO BY 1HE PLANNING COMMI590N.

LOTS 5, 10, 11, 16, 31, 47 AND 48, AIONG 7HE LOT 11NES AS INDICAIFD BY iHE SYMBOL(((((([ AS pARCELS A 1HROUqi F, AND 7HE RELINQUISHNENT OF ACCE55 RIGHiS TO LO75 5, f0, 11, 16, 31, 47 AND

SHOWN ON INIS FlNAL NAP.    48, ALONG iHE LOT 11NE5 AS VJ ICA7E0 BY THE SYMBOL, AND ACCEP7ED 1HE OFFQt OF DAlEO iH15_ OAY OF 201_
mICA710N OF ALL S7REET, AYQVUES AND WA15 AS 910WN ON SAID NAP SUBJECT TO THE IAIPRO EMENiS

7HE UN ER9GNm DOES HFR Y RESERVE PARCELS 1 7HROI1Qi 5 FOR NNRE EYELOPNENT. BEING COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE K11H CHAPTER 16, TITLE 16. 16 OF 7HE( 7TY OF LAIHROP MUNICIPAL

CO E.
OWNEIi: RIVER ISLAND$ OEYELOPMQIT, LLC, A CAl1FORNlA LIMITEO LIABIIJtt CpAPANY.

I FURTHQ2 STAIE IHAT ALL BONDS AS REQUIRm BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE W17HIN MAP, IF APPIJCABLE,

HAYE 6EEH APPROVED BY THE pN COUNqI OF LATHROP AND FILED IN MY OFFlCE.    AIpRK kE155NQt, LOMNUNITY OEYELOPNENT AS95iANT IRECTOR

BY:  
Qtt OF LATHROP

NAML SUSAN OELL' OS50 DAIE

I75:     PRESIDENT hp q ypp ps

qtt CLFIMNAD tlIItK OF THE tlTY COUNCIL OF iHE tltt OF L1IHROP, COUNiY OF SAN JOAWIN, STATE
CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT

DAIID 1HIS_ DAY OF 201

I, GIENN CEBHARDT, NFR Y STAIE THAT I AM THE GTY ENqNEER OF THE Cltt OF LA7HROP,
IXD RfPUBIlC TITI. E COIAPANY, AS 1RU57EE, UN Qt 7HE EEO CF 1RUST RECOROED OECFAIBQt 22, 2% 6,    CALIFORNIA AN 1HAT I HAYE E%AIIWED 7HI5 FlNAL HAP OF 7RACT 3994, RIYfR ISLWDS, STAGE 7A,
RS DOCUNENT NUMBEfl 2016- 160886, OFFlpAL RECOROS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt.       VILLAGE Y, p1Y Of LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA, AND 7HAT THE SIIBOINSION SNOWN HQ2EON IS

SIIBSTAN7IALLY THE SAkE AS IT MPEARED ON 1HE VESIING TENTA7IVE NAP N0. 7694, AND ANY
BY:   APPROYED AL7ERA110N5 1HQtE0F. I FUR1HEft STAIE 1HAT 1HIS FlNAL NAP COMPLIES MTH ALL

ME ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)     PPPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE pTY OF U7HROP, AND M! Y AMEN MEN7S THQ2ET0, MPIJCABLE AT
n   1HE 711AE OF APPROVAL OF YES7ING IENTATIVE MAP.

A NOTMY PUBLlC OF O1HQi OFFiCFR COIAPIETWC 1HI5 CER71FlCAlE YERIFlES ONLY 1HE IOQ7TITY DATEO iH15_ OAY OF 201

OF 7HE INDI UAL WHO 9GNE0 1HE DOCUAIENT TO WHICH iHIS CERTIFlCATE IS ATfACHm, AND Q0.0 SSlON

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER' S)  
NOT iHE 7RU7HNLNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALI ITY OF iHA7 OOCUGFNT t°     '

STAIE OF CALIFORNIA G fNN GEBHARDT, R. C. E. 34681 No. 51681 9
A NOiARY PUBLIC OR OTHFR OFFlCFR COMPLEIING THIS CQt71FlCAlE VEAIFlES ONLY hIE IOEN7ITY COUNTY OF SAN JOA UIN    

f N

U T

OF THE INOINDUAL VMO SIGNED 1HE DOCUMENT TO WHICN 1NI5 CER71FlCAlE IS ATTACHm, ANO
Gtt QVpNEQt OF 7HE qtt OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

NOT THE 1RU7HFULNE55, ACCIIRACY, OR VALIOItt OF THAT DOCUNFHT ON 201_ BEFIX2E ME,     qE CA\` p+A NOTARY PUBIIC, PERSONALLY APPEAREO,    YMO PROVED TO

S7ATE OF CAUFORNIA
ME ON THE BISIS Of SAT13' ACTORY ENDENCE TO BE THE PFRSON( S) YMOSE NrUIE( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO

COUNtt OF SAN JOAWIN 1NE ri7iHIN INS1RI1kFNT, AND ACNNOKlIDGm TO NE 1HAT HE/ SHE/ IHEY IXECUTED 7HE SA1fE IN HIS/ HFA/ IHEIR

AUTHORRm CAPAQTY( IES), AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ iHEIR 9GNANRE( S) ON THE INSTRUMENT 7HE PQ2SON( 5), OR RECORDER'S STATEMENT
ON 201_ BFFORE NE,    iHE EN71TY UPON BQIALF OF RHICH iHE PEF2SON( S) ACIED, EMECUIEO iHE INSiRUMENT.

A NOTMY PIIBLIG PERSONALLY APPEMm,    wH0 PROVEU TO FlLFD iHIS_ DAY Of201 AT_ N.

ME ON iHE BA515 OF SAIIffACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5)' Mi05E NAME( S) IS/ ARE SUB502IBm TO I CERTIFY UNDER PQVALtt OF PERJIIRY UNDFA 7HE LAWS OF 1HE STAiE OF CAl1FORNIA 1HAT THE FORECqNC P7 BOOK OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT 7HE RE UEST OF OLU REPUBLIC

iHE Ni1HIN MSIRUNQJT, AND AG( NOWlEDGFD TO NE 7HAT HE/ SHE/ 7HEY ENEWiED 1HE SAAIE IN HIS/ NER/ 7HEIR PA GRAPH IS iRUE AND CORRECT.      PTLE COMPANY.

Al17HORIZED CAPACITY( IES), AND iHAT BY HIS/ NQt/ IFF IIR SICNANRE( 5) ON IHE WSiRUNENT IHE PFRSON( S), OF
µ 7,E5S MY HAN6

S 7HE FN11TY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH 1HE PERSON( S) AC7ED, IXELll1ED 1HE

INSiRUMEHT. I CQ2IIFY UNUER PENALtt OF PER,& iRY IINDER 1HE LAWS OF iNE STAIE OF CPLFOfiNIA 7HAT iHE
FOREGOWG g

AN PARAGRAPH IS 1RUE AND
CORRECT. NAME( PRINp: 

BY: WIINESS NY HANO: PNNGPAL COUNtt Of BU5NESS:       S7EYE BESTOLARIDES AS95TANT/ OEPUtt

RECOROQi NY CONMIS90N NUNBER:   ASSESSIX2- RECOROQt- COUNIY

IXII2K MY CONMI590N E% PIRES:   SAN, pAWW COUNTY.

CAl1FORNIA9GNANRE: NAA1E(
PRINT): PRINqPAL COUNTY OF BU9NESS:    E7 MPT FROM FEE PFR GOVFRNA7ENT CODE 27388. 1;

DOCUAIENT NY COMMI590N NUMBER: RECORDm IN CONNEC110N VA7H A CONCIIRRENT iRAN3ER SUBJECT

TO MY CONMISSION EXPIRES: THE IMP09¶ ON OF OOCUMENTARY iRANSFER

TA%SHEET 1 oF 1

251



SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
TF ACT 3994

7HIS MAP W0.5 PREPARED BY ME IX2 UNOER MY DIREC110N ANO IS BASED UPON A FlE1D A1RYcY IN
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

CONFORNANCE MTH 7HE REO IREMEN7S OF THE SIIBDINSION MM ACT ANO LOCAL ORDINANCE AT 7HE VILLAGE T
REWEST OF RIVER IA. ANDS DEVELOPIIQlT, LLC. ON JUNE 25, Y018. I HER Y STATE ALL 7HE

MONUMENTS AIiE OF 7HE CHARACTER AND OCWPY 1HE POSI710N5 INDICAIED OR iHAT THEY W1LL BE
A PORPON OF ftANCHO EL PESCADFRO, BONG

SET IN iHOSE P09PON5 BEFIXiE DECEMBER St, 2023, AND 1HAT 7HE NONUMENTS ARE, OR THAT 7HEY
p SUBDINDION OF PMCEL 4 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 MGP 52),

MLL BE, SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE 7HI5 SUR EY TO BE RE7flACFD, M1D THAT THIS FlNAL NAP
CITy OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAW N COUNTY, CAIJFORNIA

SUBSTAN7IALLY CONFORMS TO 7HE CONDI7ICNALLY APPROYED iENTATIVE MAP.       
SEP1Qd6ER 2018

REFERENCES
DAIED iHiS AY OF 201

LqNp
RECORO OF SURYEY FlLED AlIGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 142. AS CORflEC1ED BY CQt71FlCAlE

y N M, oG
R)  OF COfiREC110N RECORDED JULY 15, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUNBER 2005- 171264, S. J. C. R.( 35 SURVEYS 142)

Jy4     ' Pi R2)  iRACT 7876, FlLED MARCH 31, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS PND PIATS, PAGE 56, S. J. C. R( 42 MhP 56)

DYLAN CRA` hFORD, P. LS. NO 7788 rc  n 
N G 1 N fZ 7 N G R3) GRANT D RECOMED NARCH 30, 2001, AS DOClIA1QlT NUNBER 2001- 046177, SdGR.

R4)  GRANT D RECOR ED JANUARY 17, 2016, AS OOWNQJT NUMBQt 2016- 004077, SJ.C. R,

C\

fpeFr
RS) GRANT D RECORDED JUNE 3, 2016, AS DOQIAIENT NUNBER 2016- Ofi3962, S. dC.R

R6  GftANT D RECORDED JJNE 7, 2016, AS DOQIAIENT tNNBFR 201fi- 064006, S. J. C. R.

N7)  GRANT D RECOR ED JJNE 6, 4005, AS DOQIAIENT Nt11ABER 2005- 134736, SJ. GR

CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
RB) 

7RACT 3828, FlLED AUWSTB24,' 2 16161NIBOq( 42 OF NMS AND PU7S, PAGE 65, 7A5 CORREC47EDNBY CER71FlCAlE

R9)  OF CORREC710N RECIX2 E0 AUq15T 71, 2016, AS DOCUMFNT NIIMBER 2016- 102979, SJ.C. R.( 42 ldhP fi5)
I, LAKAENCE GOSSETT, HEREBY STATE iHAT I HAVE E% AMINm iHIS FlNAL 1AM OF' 7RACT J994, Po fR R10) 7RACT 3832, FlLED AUIXIST 24, 2016, IN BOqC 42 OF 11APS AND PLA1S, PAGE 66, S. J. C. R.( 42 N& P 66)
ISLAND$ STAGE 2A, NLLAGE Y, qTY OF LAIMROP, CAL1FIXtNIA, AN THAT iHE AIBOIN90N SHOIhN

HEREON COMPLIES WI1H ALL 7HE PROVI90NS OF CNAPIER 2 OF THE CALIF0.4NIA SUBDIVI90N MAP ACT,   R11) 7RACi J834, FlLED DECAIBER 21, 2016, IN BOq( 42 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 71, SJ. C. R.( 42 N& P 72)

AS AMENOED, AND iHA7 THIS FlNAL MM IS 1ECHNICALLY CORRECT.  NFlLED MAP ENTI7LED' CAllFORNIA IRF2IGATED FARNS, UNIT N0. PESCADFRO Cq.ONY BONC RECLAMATION
R12) ISTRICT N0. 20fi2, SURVEYED MftIL AND NAY 1929 BY OHA1 AND RAAB, DATED NOY4ABFA 7, 1929, FlIED IN

DAiED 1HI5 DAY OF 201    THE OFFICE OF THE SAN JOAWM CWNtt SURYEYOR

QQpiF55/ o,y+      RI3) PARCEL NAP Ofi- 03- PN, FlLEO OCTOBER 2J, 2006, IN BOOK 24 OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGE 51, S. J. C. R.( 24 PM 51)

Cy R14) TRACT 3856, FlIID NARCH 15, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF NMS AND PLAiS, PAGE 84, SJ. C. R( 42 AIhP 84)

LAWRfNCE GOSSETT, P. E 31695 R15) 7RACT J893, FllID JUNE 1, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 86, SJ. CR( 42 N& P 86)
No. 31695 R16) 7RACT J895, FlLED JJNE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLA15, PAGE 89, S. J. C. R.( 42 MhP 89)

R17) TRACT 3838, FlLID N 4E118FR 9, 2017, W BOON 43 OF NPPS AND PLATS, PAGE 12, SJ. C. R.( 43 NdP 12J

C` Ov

J R1B) 1RACT 7875, FlLED SEPIEMBQ2 21, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLA15, PAGE 100, S. J. CR.( 42 MdrP 100)

R19) 7RAC1 3831, FllEO JANUARY 23, 2018, IN 600K 43 OF NAPS AND PLA75, PACE 1fi, S. dC. R.( 43 NGP 16)

R20) 1RACT 39I1, FlLED FFBRUARY 7, 2018, IN B001C 4J OF NAPS AND PLA1S, PAGE 19, S. iC.R.( 43 N& P 19)

NOTES R21) CRANT D RECOR ED JUNE], 2016, AS DOCUMENT NlIA1BER 2016- 063963, S. JC.R

1.  RIp1T TO FARM STATEIAFNT:
R22) 7RACT 3908, STAGE YA, LARGE LOT FlNAL NAP, FlLED SEPTEAIBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 Of NAP AND PLA1S,

PFR CITY OF LAIHROP MUNICIPAL CODE OF ONDINANCES, TIItE 15, piAP7ER 15. 4& 04, 7HE qtt OF N7HROP PERNITS PAGE 52, SdC. R( 43 1A& P 52)       

OPERF110N OF PROPERLY CONDIICIED AGRICULIURAL OPERA710NS 1N1HIN 7HE CIIY LIMI15. INCLUOING MOSE 1HAT UTILIZE

CHQAICAI FERPIJZERS AND PESTIpDES YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFlED iHAT iHE PROPQttt YOU ARE PURCHASINC NAY BE

LOCATED CLOSE TO AGRIWLNRAL LANDS ANO OPQtA710N5. YIXl NAY BE SU& ECT TO INCONVENIENCE Ok DISCONFORT

AP19NG FRON iHE LAWFUL AND PROPER USE OF AGRICULNRRL CHFMICALS AND PESTIpDES AND FR 1 O7HFR

AGRICULTURAL AC7IN71ES, INCLUDING N7IHOUT IJMITATIONS, QILTIVATION, PLONING, SPRAnNG, IPRIGA110N, PRUNING,  
IJNE AND CURVE TABLES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON SHEETS 3 THROUGH 50NLY

HARb£ STINC, BURNINC OF AGftICULNRAL WAS1E PRODUCTS, PROiECTION W CROPS ANO ANIMAlS FRW DEPREDATION, AND

07HQt ACPN7I6 NHIQi NAY CENERAIE UST, SL01, NOIg, ODOR, ROOQJTS ANO PESIS. BE AWARE AL50, 7HA7 iHIS

PROPQ2tt AIAY BE LOCAiED ADJACQJi TO AGRIWLTURAL OPERA710N5 WTSIDE THE G7NS JURISOIC7ION. CONSEQIIFH7LY,    IJNE TABIE CURVE TABLE

DEPENDING ON THE LOCATION OF YOUR PROPFRTY, IT MAY BE NECESSPRY 7HAT YOU BE PRFPARm TO ACCEPT SUW
INCa1VENIEIlCES OR DISCONFORT AS NOR4P1 AND NECESSARY ASPECT OF LIVING IN AN ACRIWLNRALLY AC71YE REpQV. IJNE OIREC110N IENCiH CUftVE e RADIUS DFLTA LENGTH

2.  A SqLS REPOflT EN117LED' GEOIECHNICAL D LORAPON, RII ER ISLNNDS PHASE 1, LAhiROP, CAIIFORMA', REFQ2ENCm AS

PROJECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 AND DAIED JULY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN PRFPARED FOR 1H15 PROJECT BY ENCEO,       L1 N44U9' 47' W 34. 04'     CI 1455. 00 9tl6' 45' 206. 01'

INCORPORAIED, JOSEF d TOOILE, G. E N0. 26T7, ANO IS ON FlLE N11H 7HE CITY OF lA7HROP.

3.  1RACT 3994, RIVEk 14AN 5, STAGE 2A, NLLAGE T, CONTAINS 51 RESIOENPAL LOTS, AND 6 LEiIERm PARCELS N828' 09' E 60. 23'     C2 1500. 00 8' 06' 45' 212J8'

CONTAINING 12. 94 ACFES, MORE OR LESS N0.UDING ROA WAYS iHAT ARE BONG OEUICAIED BY iHIS FlNAL MAP; AND
PARCEIS I TNRWGH 5 CONTAINING 5. 97 ACRES, MORE OR 1E55, ALL! S SHOWN ON iHIS FlNAL IIAP( PLEASE REFER TO

L3 N49' 71' 35' E 34. 98'     G}   1455. 00 5' S6' 47'  151. 01'

iHE AREA TABLE BELOW:    L4 N6V8' SB' E 60. 05 C4 47. 00 45' 45' 3Y 37. 54

LS N4029' S9' W 35. 74'     CS 65. 00 94' 46' 16' 107. 51

TRACT3994AREASUMMAflY
L6 N49 5' OYE 41. 7Y C6 47. 00 45' 45' 3Y 37. 54'

LOiS 7 THRWGH 51 S. BB ACS
L7 N45' 00' 00' W 4243'     C7 S1. 00 9Pq}' S6' 84. 85'

PMCELS A THRWpi F 0.76 AC4
Ce 87. 00 1512' 13'  23. 09'

PARCELS 1 7HROf1CH 5 5. 97 AC2 C9 113. 00 15 2' 13'  29. 98

S1REEf DEDICAlIONS 6. 30 ACt C10 2163. 00 3' 22' 35' 1D. 46'

TOTAL 1891 ACf CI1 I455. 00 299' 5Y SS. DO

4.  BASm ON INFORMA710N CONTAINED IN IHE PRELLwINMY 7171E flEPORT, QROQ2 NUMBER 1614019918- KB( VQi90N 2),
DATED SEP1ElABQ2 11, 2018, PRONDm BY OLD REPUBl1C II1LE WINPANY.

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS
PURSUANT TO SECiION 66436 OF THE CAl1FORtllA SUBDINSION MAP ACL 7HE SCNAIU S OF 1NE fOLLOW1NG PARTIES HAVE BEEN
ouirrEo:

I.  REd. N11ED ISLAN S LAND COMPANY, RESERVATION FOR OIL, GAS, MINQtALS, AND O1HEA

HYIIROCARBON AIBSTANCES L11NG 9ELOW A EP1H OF 500 FEET, PER OQ1NQlT NUNBER 2001- 046177, SJ. CR. SHEET 2 oF 11

252



ftIVER ISIAND9 ZV, LLG
RIVER ISLW S DEV, LLC PARCEL I TRACT 3994L0Y 2 N 2016- 004077 IR41
DN 2016- 063962( ft5)  

a R     RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
r z IRII VILLAGE T

A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BONG

cAL1FW, LLc
A SUB IVIDION OF PARCEL 4 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),   

PARCEL 2d
CIIY OF UTHROP, SAN JOPWIN CWNTY, CAl1FORNIA

sEa a a zoie

3 DN 2001- 046177 IR3)

CALIFW, LLC TRACT 39 IRi)

LOT I
C

N 2016- 063963

IR211

N NG1N E{ Z1NG

OCo9i
F9 OPARCEL 15

PARCEL 17 0'  250'  WO'      10W'

R221 SGIF: 1'= 500'

CALIFt4. U_C
1R221

S\\   2005- 134736 1R71
S

q,
91  

7RACY 17 IRII

cALIFIA. LLG  qp   I     9

Gy AND

OTHFRT
OF RECORD. RBFFFASTO SHEETI4cFOFPARGEL 4

9 7HE BWNDARY OF TflACT 1994N 2001- OG6177 IR3)       1     PARGEL 14 2 G4l1FIA, LLC
TRAG( 12 Iftll

PARCEL 11
1R221

P

R221

I

ph,\       

F'9 PARCEL 24

R221 Fy  DN 2001- 046177

PARCEL 70 TRACf 3230

90$\      
TRARR39( RII

iRlli R,,,  
LEGEND s, nwoucH s oN j

I f OO YONUNENT TO BE SEf PEA( RY2)

NONUMQJT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNLESS O7HQiwISE N01ED

PARCEL 2

IR221 I I 5/ 8 R AR VA7H CRP S AAIPEO' PLS 7788' PQt( R22).

I UNLE55 O1HQi' MSE NOIID

CALIFIA, LLG     \\    90 PARCEL 12

I
I MONUNENT TO BE SET PQt iRACT 38} 4( RII)

PARCEL 2       \\    F9   R221
E 9 I

BOUNDMY   
DN 2001- O46177( R31    \     p  I

iRACT 19( RI I PARLEL 9 9y I LOT IJNE IXi RIGHT- OF- WAY L1NE

RZZ s EASEMENT IJNE

99'
@y,

q` 
PARCEL 13 PARCEL 3 I

I
CENiFR LINE

R221 Rlli
TfL1cT 3912 I 200. 00'( Rt)     MFASURm AND REWRD DATA PER REFIIiENCE( R1)

SEE DETAIL B I
R2o1 1  

R DFNOlES REFERENCE( Rl)- SEE REFFRENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

ON SHEET 5 I I
pNEFISIANOSPAFKWRY N- N)       MONUMENT TO MONUMQlT

2 R) RADIAL BEAWNG

I n TOTAL
PARCEL 7

ppRC' cL e

I   
2 8 BOUNDARY

rALIM. LLc         
1a22i

o i il i TTf',    
B

RZZ  
PARCEL 4 I- TRAC 303d. I DN DOQINENT NUNBER

PARCEL 15       \       

TRACT3908 R22 111R! S2LIJ-.........    o. a. or tcivaecoeo
DN 20o1- Od6177 IR31            

rtucr zo ien SEE SHEET 4
I I o  - -  _.. .,..._, rr  . NON MONUMETlT

I.. l. l_ l. l'     MApINqDPIVE     '     O7 EASQdENT REFERFNCE NUMBQt- SEE TMIS 9iEEf

S

Y\      PARCEL 5 I
r

CALIFlA, LLC qO,
y_---`       

ft22)              

m

PARCEL 6

IN 2001- 046177( R31

1RACT 21 ( Ri)    
LA1 7

TRAGT 3232

c- auvw, uc 1R107
EASEMENTS

PARCEL 5

IN 2001- 04 61 77 IR3l

O 60' 1NDE ROAOWAY EASEIAENT M FAVOR OF tlTY OF LA7HROP PQt 199 O. R. 212,7R!' c 2z iRi       
S. J. GR.( SIEWART ROAD).( OES N07 AFFECT THE SUBJECi PROPERT' n

G4LIFU, LLC        
I fi0 YA E flOMWAY E/ SEMENT IN FAVIXi OF tltt OF LAIHROP PER 199 O. fl. 335,

BASIS OF BEARINGS PARGEL 13
1, 1

ACAOElAVOPNE
OO

SJC. R( SIEWMT ROAD( DOES N0T AFFECT 1HE Sl1B, ECT PROPERIY).

DN 2001- obcl77 IR31

O 60' N1DE ROADWAY EASEAIENT IN FAVOR OF L7TY OF lA1HRUP PER 408 O. R. 95,1HE BEARING OF NOR1H BEIIYEEN FOUND NONIIMQJTS ALONG DELL O550 FIVE pS SHOWN ON 1RACT 3908,      TRAC{ 23 IRI1        
7Rp 7 3828 3 S. dC. R.( COHEN ROAD).( OOES NOT AFFECT iHE SIIBJECT PROPERII.

STAGE 2, LARGE LOT FlNAL AIAP, FlLED SEPTE] dBQt 20, 2018, IN BOOK 0.7 OF MAPS ANO PLA15, AT PAGE 1 I    Ry

52, OFFlqAL RECOROS OF SAN JDAQUIN COUN7Y, WAS TA1 N fS IHE BASIS OF BF.AflINGS SHOWN ON TNIS 17
MAP( ZONE 3, NA083). A1L ISTANCES SHOVNI HFAEON ARE CROUND DISTANCFS.    1 1 I TN.4CT 3a27

42 M6P 51l

z i
NOTES a I       

w

7. SEE SHEE' f 2 FOR AI7DI710NA NOTES, REFFRfNCES, AND 1HE LINE TABLE& CURYE TRBLE OF CWR56

o

I   ---- IANESI EONVE-  

W

SHOWN ON SHEETS 3 THROIIGH 5 ONLY. 

I
LQ

3LLc
1 TRAGT 3293 TFATCT 3226 l

DN 2016- 064006 I     R15 uIRB  

B6) I JJ LLi SHEET 3 oF 11

253



i      

j o TRAL739 z TRACT 3994
Z

tR201

i w RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

PARGEL 13 PARGEL 3
Y VILLAGE T

lancr aeoa iez2  Txnncr asoa tezzi
SOLANODRIVEI A POR710N OF flANCHO EL PESCADERO, BE1NG

A SUB IVI ION OF PARCEL 4 OF IRACT 3908( 43 MhP 52),

Cltt OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAWW COUNTY, CrWFORNiA
R= 2100. 00'       I SEPTENBER 2018

A= 507' 38'

L= 187. 92'( M- Y)     I

NOS' 0738' E fl

a__
R zion, ao.            

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY e      ,   RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
E N G 1 N+ i 1 N G

zs4s' L_ b 80''-      
FlSf 1047. 71'( N- N)( R22)    

y(     
FASf 1087. OY( N_ M)( Rfl)  

MXR2       '     686. 10•-_'__—'—'_'_'_
l_'—'-

286' _—__'- 75' i_ N

IJ N322' 35' ER        i I

I    .  

O
o'   S0'  100'      100'

FlSf 6B6. IQ NB611 09' W FAST 16627 I
5 _

JP 3Y     C10
I20. 27

o 7HIS SHEET SHOKS 7HE BWNDARY OF INACT 3994

p m

i
fiONG PARCEL 4 OF 7RACT 3948( R22)

z

N69' 40' 09' W R I    % WATER LILY DRIVE
NOTES

III 1 1. SEE SHEET 3 FOR L£ GEND AND BA515 OF BEAWNGS.

2 SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOI710NAL NOIES, REFQiENCES, ANO

w

I Q TNE LlNE AN CUR` E TA9LE5 FOR 91EE1S 3 THROUGH 5

ONLY.

P     
I

I
U _ TRAGT 383dIRIII

m$

i o
O

PARGEL a

Tancr aeoa ezz    s
PARCEL 4 e N  

TRACT 3908( R22)   I   I      .---- -—--
18. 91 AC i   \.   HOLBORN DRIVE

S

i
j..__

V

QN I

I l
N0323' 42' E R EAST `--.

NO6' 45' 09' E R     NO3' 30' 07' E R

45
FAST 675. Otl( M- M)( R16)

s
a= zass. 00'  MARINA DRIVE

ca e= a•aoo = na. a easrsn. ou

ICS N42' 15'] 0' W R

N52' 70' 46' E R
N87' S0' 03' W R   `—'-"

SI
c`

il
TRAC( 3832

45'
yy

RIO)

PARCEL 5

pTRAC 3908 1R22)

j
BALSAM COUR7

A

i
I

SHEET 4 oF 1 1

254



TRACT 3994
8 rrwcr aa3a iein RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

i      VILLAGE T

MON A POfiTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

PER( RI4)      R SUBDMDIIXJ OF PARCEL 4 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

Epg7_ _ EAST 579. 02'( M- NJ( R77)       SEE BELOW LEFT
Cltt OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

45. OD' . gPTENBER 2018

i
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

I
HOLBORN

N
N G 1 N+ z 1 N G

Teaa aaae
m z ¢   DRIVE

OI IRldl

g g _    
wm

o g p T 3834 NOTES
tn      IR111

I
i rn w I. 54E SHEET 3 FOR LECEND AND BA515 OF BEARINGS.

m i p 2 SEE SHEET 2 FOR PDM7IONAL NO7ES, REFEAENCES, AND

PARCEL 4 THE LINE ANO CUR4E TABLES FOR 9iEE75 3 1HROUGH 5

TRAGT 3902 IR221 QVLY.

PLUMAS

DRIVE
I

T EhST 675.00 IM' N)( R16)

R

p

45.
00r_

NON

w I-
V'  

PFR( R16)   
MARINADRIVE

g S          
c    

8 0        ensr sn. 00'     i

m I o      ¢    
ai Z NB750' 30 R

TRhCT 3912

w      ( R2o1 IW Y

PARGEL 6 I

TRACT 3903 IR221 N p     
n 

g     $

7ARc'cL 3

rRacr a9oa iRzz  DRIVE
Rimaaz

I

I
45. 0

i
ON

PER( R16)

I

w RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
I I

I
BALSAM

w 45. 00'      EAST 1087. 02'( M- MJ( R11) COURT

EAST 1047. 31'( M- N)( R22) 
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

ww
EAST 186. 22'      

I

4$. 00   4S 3

yel
7RAC 3231IRIII P

PARCEL d

lRACf 39a8 IR221 c al
z

i z

g 8  '  MON

g   0
8

WADR

VEILY
PEft( R16 95_pp_

d
N n

MON 7RAGT 3895

m    PER( R16)      R161

I U

O
a

DETAIL A

SEE ABOVE RIGHT
NOT TO SCALE

FRON SNEET 3)    SHEET 5 oF 11

255



i TRACT 3994
i RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

PARCEL 13 I      `-"--- I
VILLAGE TPARCEL 3

7RACT 3912
A POflPON OF RANCHO El PESCADERO, B NG

A SUB INDION OF PARCEL 4 OF IRACT 3908( 43 NhP 52),

qtt OF U7HROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNtt, Cl L1FORNIA

SEP7EMBER 2018

RIVER ISLAtJ S PARKNlAY

RIVERISLANDSPARKWAY
N

NG1N# i1NG

1
PARCELF PARCELA I

O o'   w'  tar sao

scn r= iar

PARCELE  ' 

P CEL1 17 18 19 20 21 22 Z3 24 25 26 27 28 29
30      '      

I I SHEET INDEX

10 1 i   --
GflINNELL COURT GRINNELL STREET

r'

1
47 31

PARCELB
LEGEND

1
16 15 14 13 12 11     

49 46
32 1

BOUNDARY

PARCEL 5 ioi uNe
7ARCEL 8   '    

S0 45 33     '  o
TRACT 3034

I
W S NG ROADWAY EASENENT

1 S 6 7 8 9 10   '   O y O sH i NUUBFR

51 44     ?     q     '  o I1 iiiii// iiiii RESTf21C7E0 ACCESS

1 O MIDDLEBURY DfliVE vi
43 w 35     '     yIEET 11NIT I1NE

rl
i

4z     ¢     36           r-_

1 2.   3 4 0'    O U

41 37     '  
PARGEL D '    PARCEL 2

I

PARCEl3
40

I
PARCEL4

39

y
1 1 1       I

MARINA DRIVE PARCEL C MARINA DRIVE

a w_`

I

i

TRACi 3832

PARCEL 5

I       
1`

1 I

SHEET 6 OF 11

256



p      _     
easr z o. ar u- u)    _  

SEE SHEET 10
o

a_ou( a- u    

55. ar  -- -       ,. ar T,. a      TRACT 3994
GRINNELLSTREET g 1° 4

i     i    ni iM  ,      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
8, o asr, so. oucn i i ua i

i
cti 9J VILLAGE T

i       ti s. 00'    s. 00'     

a `°'    

5' P. U. E.       
A POR110N OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINC

30• 07  `       g       
47        o-

30. 00   30. 00'   

31
q SUBDINDION OF PARCFL 4 OF TRACT 3908( 43 N& P 52).

og I 4, 888 SF.      ''   n 4, 887 SF.     I e I
5, 792 SF. 

CITY F U7HROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNtt, CALIFIX2NIA

I I     I I SEP7ENBER 2018

I     s7 1oo. Otl cn5i foo. ao'    I            ^ I
I

I I I    aa.'

8     4, 700 S. F.      

0

4. 700 S. F.          i:       32 x3
aJ00SF.     NG1N fZ1NG

Fasr too.ao'      Fasr iao. 00'    I
i

Y   

N

I 10' P. LLE I ensr iao.oU
o•   xo••      

g I 50
g

45 I$       I

LL

s Oa     4,700 SF.      g      4, 700 SF.     a g       33 g   I$
4,700 SF.

Fnsr, 00.oa sr, ao. ou    i

a 

m        $       
LEGEND

I I FASf 100. OU w o I O NONUMENT TO BE SET PER( flP2)

51 44 I n s o

10' P. LLE
o ¢  ^     O° STANDARD tltt OF lA7HROP NONIINEHT MEf1 STAYPm' PLS TIBB'

T I 4, 700 SF.       4, 700 S. F.     I Y I 34 I

I I      $      
a I 4,) 00 S. F.    o MONUMFNT TO BE SET PEft( fll1)

sr ioo. oa rasr oo. ar M
m     

I
I I   

e

w
MONIINENT TO BE SEf PFR,( RI7)

I I o    

n     

I     700. 00' 

MIDDLEBURY i s i o "     I E
m

FWND 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLAS7IC PWC' PLS 7788' PQ2( R12J,

I I"' g I g g     O I
ll'! E35 O1HEftWISE NOIED

DRIVE aaoo s. F.      35
g g

O    "!'  
I I~          I 4. 700 SF.  o SEf 3/ 4' IRON PIPE N1TH PLASIIC PLUG' PLS 7/ 8B"

I FAST t00.0U I z
F SET 3. 00' W11NE55 CORNER( W. C.) UNLE55 OiHERYA NO7ED. NEASUREU

I I      I FAST 100. OU
o g O O p ONG L0T IINE, RADIAL LWE OR PERPFNDIWLAR TO SiREET CFN7ERLINE

o O I w
AS NOTEU. 7/ 4' 24' IRQV PIPE W/ PUS11C PWG' PLS 7788'

W

1, 700 SF.     
I
a   

Y I
98 200.'( R1) NEASLIRm AND RECORD DATA PER P6ERENCE( R1J

W 10' P. U. E.   
1.,         z i

4, 700 SF.       
R1)    OENOIES RFFQ2ENCE( R1)- SEE REFQiENCE 115f ON SHEEf 2

1 aQar

N- N)   NONUMENT TO MONUMENT

H I I
o pp I M- 8J NONUMENT TO BOIINDARY

W g      PARCEL 2 g$ 41 I     
37 g i i)     ioiu.

Y I 0. 61 AC 4, 700 S. F.     I p
r I

4, 700 SF.I I I B)     BWNDARY

j 1. 00'_        
FAST P. U. E PUBIJC U71Lltt EAS'E11ENT

I I
U6 100. 00'       SD. E STORM DRAIN FASE1dENT

o
I

N

i q       $    r
o \   w. E wau¢ a5euwr

I
4, 700 S. F.     i

a

l n   . W/     \  10' P. U. E LOT fJNE

I i. ar y/$     Qd       RIGHT- 0 F- WAY 11N E

I I o         /$        
BOUNDMY

I I' 
3o. ao'    =

h 

1       '

I I 0e e. s2o s. F.       
I IR,qG7

ueNT urg

1    —     38341R111 cai kuNE

8, 1489SF.    \\ i SD. E        --- iii ii ii RESiWC7ED ACCESS

J————   ____     
1 Oo, d 2a5y°

c{   ` T P. U. E. y9

o-  

45'      a5'

I

g     '
f 

Q

FASf 79. Otl FlST 100. Otl eF' 4adJyg• 48•_ 7' L
0 /    

FAST 59. 3C    °+

g         g NOTES
i Fwsr aso. ou   i     

1. 1. 17' BRP55 ISK STAMPED' PIS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

DETAIL B DETAIL A o    M 9DEWALK 1. 00' INTO 1HE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALINJG PROLONGA7IIXJ OF

55. 00'     SEE SHEET 11 3 p, pp•    SEE SHEET 11 25.Op•    45. 00'  EAST SIOE LOT L1NES, OR AS NOTE.

410. 00'( N- B)    67i00'( N- N)( R16)   
2 5/ 8' REBAR IH7H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LDT

PARCEL C CORNEAS, UNLESS OTHEAYASE NOIED.

MARINA DRNE
0"-"'

2308 SF.     o   
o

SEE SHFET 2 FOR AODITIONAL NOlES MID RfFERENCES

o, 4. SfE SHEET 3 FOR BA95 OF BEARINGS.

Y^  S SEE SHFFT 11 FIXt L1NE ANO WRYE TABLES

FlSf 977. 00'(' o 0
PARCEL 5

0(  

Ja°
7RACf 39081R22) a ,,

v

N8750' 03' R 45'       

NBT50 03' R 

m

SHEET 7 oF 11I I

257



SEE SHEET 10

ar M-  TRACT 39940
55. 00•  — z42oo.       — 55. 00.   

o—

GRINNELL STREET i RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

i Easr zaz. oa o" s VILLAGE T
0

I'^      y _
27. 00'___ 47. 00'_     47. 00' _ _ 47_00__ __ 47. 00'___ 27. 00'  

j      °' 
A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOFAO, BEING

r
o-, 

I -- 
A SUBDINDION OF PMCEL 4 OF 1RACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

qtt OF LAiHFOP, SAN JOAWIN COUNtt, CAfIFONNIA

I SEPTEMBEft 2018

o o $ o o I I
16       15      14      13       12      11

004. 940 S. F.   4. 747 S. F.  4, 747 SF.  4. 747 S. F.  4. 747 SF.€  4,940 S. F. o            g

5' P. LLE

g N
NG7N fZ1NG

o S   "'    EAST EAST EAST EAST EpST EAST       S  

O
I ni NIe 0'   10'  40'       80'

szoo'       azao'      a. aa•      a. 00•      n.00'       azoo'       
e,

i
5 P. U. E LEGEND

5
0

6
0

7     `
0

8   '
0

9
0     ,

O
I OO MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

4, 940 S. F.   4, 747 S. F.  4, 747 S. F.  4, 747 S. F. 
W

4, 747 S. F.   4, 940 SF.      Qo SET STANOMD ptt OF UIHROP IAONIIMENT' hflL STwPm' Pt5 7788'

o

z

v

I'   

MONUMENT TO BE SET PQ2( RI1J
30. 00'   y _ 30. 00'

C
s ___ ______ _____ _____

z_____ __-\

y6
I

MONUNFHTT09ESETPEA( R77)

o z. aa'    a. 00'      n.00'      a. 00'      a. 00'    v.00' ``

p I EIST 242. 00'      I n
FWND]/ 4' IRON PIPE W PtA57IC PWG' PLS 7788' PER( R22J,

H I I       
UNLESS OIHFRNISE NOTED

W

N n

W o SEf 3/ 4' IRON PIPE ritlH PUS C PLUC' PLS 7798'

FlST 352_ OU( M- M) pp'  

55. 00'-   24200' o SEf J. 00' YA7NESS CORNER( W.C.), UNLESS OIHERWISE NOIED, MEASUREOALONG L0T LINE, RA IAL LWE OR PERPENDICULAR TO S7REEf CENTERLINEw

MIDDLEBURY DRIVE g w as Noho. a/ a•. 24' IRON% PE W/ PIASIIC PLUG' PLS T788'
hi i       

N b easr xaz. ov 1 200. 00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PQ2 REFERENCE( R1)

I R1)    OENOlES REFQ2ENCE( RI)- SEE REFQiENCE L15T ON SHEET 2

30. 00' T 30. 0p'      N- M)   NONUMENT TO MONUMQVT

I I   
M- B)   NONUMENT TO BOUNOARY

I          p TOTAL

I
F- 5 P. I1. E I

I 8)     BWNDARY

P. U. E.   PUBIJC UtILJtt EASENFNT

I I       W SD. E STOftM ORA1N EASQAENT

o     o   PARz

nc3
w.E wa i easeuar

g$       LOT 11NE
el        Ie W

z
v'       

I    ' z¢       
RIGHT- OF- WAY LWE

i      I I      i       BOUNDARY

I I U EpSfMENT L1NE
I 5 P. U. E.{

I I CENIEflL1NE
I          I

I I ii RESiRIC7E0 ACCESS

I I

0

I

w.w  ,>  --------

1------------------------  ,  
o. 00 

I NOTES

vg' 
I FASf 242. 00'     I 1. 1. 77' BRASS ISK S ANPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCNEIE

ol I o
90EWAlK 1. 00 INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGRiION OF

SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOiED.

2 5/ 8' REBAR W17H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

O
55. 00'___ 24200'       _

O_  CORNEpS, UNLE55 O7HQ2' MSE NOIID.
FAST J52. 00( M- IAJ 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI110NAL NOlES AND REFERFNCES

MARINA DRIVE
4. E SHEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.

5. SFE SHFET 11 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES.

FAST 977. OU( T)

PARCEL 5

TRAC7 3908 1R221

SHEET 8 oF 1 1

258



N NO2' 41' 43' E R i SEE SHEET 10

t     R_ Z, os.. ElST 240. 31'( M- N)   TRACT 3994
1;?Q''   i$  

d_ 24f43' LG0848'- M—,
O——   

185. 71'       55. 00-
0—

io ig RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

ria'
4

Yr!"
NO2' 41' 43' ER iR

G R IN

TN
E L C O+ RT

in VILLAGE T
b h

PARCEL E
O1          = Zu6. 00 d= 2' 41' 47' L= 109. 89'    

A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCADEIiO, BEINGn jB I
448 SF. r A SUBDINDION OF PARCEL 4 OF 1NACT 3908( 43 N& P 52),

1
o-

30. 00 I Citt OF UTHFOP, SAN JOAIXIIN COUNTY, CAl1FqiNIA

T--' SEP7ENBEli 2018

I I
I       

j
I       ..

i N
y N

NG1N+ Z7NG

SI$       

O
o'   20''

PARCEL5 I         
1. 82 AC I 

LEGEND
5' P. U. E+ I

OO uONUNQIT TO BE SET PQt( R22)
I

j i O s r srar+or o an oF umear uowuuwT x u srueam' a s nee'

a MONUNENT TO BE T PQ2( RI1)I
NO3' S2' 23' E R

o
o---

1----------------- °  
30. 00' 

I
uorruuwT Ta ee r PQt( an)

PARCEL 8 0

RACT 3908 Ift22)     R- 257& 00 G= 3' S2' 23' L= AL56' I FlST 185. 31' I

FWND 7/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PU S71C PLUG' PLS 7788' PFR( RY2),

x' o m
UNLESS O7FffRNiSE NOTED

n NO3' S3' S9' E R MIDDLEBURY DRIVE o s r a a IRON PIPE K11H PlAS11C PLUG' PLS T788"
e

I I.,

n

w
FlST 240_31'( N- N)  2 SET J. 00' Hi1NES5 COflNFR( W. C.). UNLESS OTHFRPoSE NO7FD NEASURED

H
R= 2568. 00' p= 7' SJ' S9' L= 174. 79        —— 185. 31'      .      — 55. 00——( n ALONG LOT L1NE. RADIAL L1NE OR PEItPENDICULAR TO SIREEf CENIERUNE

p I Io
W AS NOlEO.]/ 4' z 24' IRON PIPE W/ PU S11C PWG' PLS 7788'

R= 2598. 00' d= 3' S5' S3' L= 77B. 01' I EASf 185. 31'       a 200. 00( R1) MEASURED AND flECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1J
6  _ 

5___    
p6 q7 C4 U 76Q00'  

B I R1)    DENOIESRffQ1ENCE( R1]- SEERffERQICEl1STON5HEEf2
N0355' 33' E R

L70
N 30. pp'   N- M)   NONUMENT TO MONIINFNT

PARCEL D
o i

o-      

M- 8)   NOM1l1ENT TO BOUNDARY

1. 485 SE

z     --
s    - m TOT

ry 7. 018 SF.     $ 
4, 811 SF.  n 4. 8135. F.  4.779 SF.        

I B)     BWNDARY

y    P. U. E PUBIJC UTWtt EASENENT5' P. U. E-- I
I s>     

S. O. E STOHM DRAIN EASEMENT

g     0 W.E WALL EASQAENT

P
W

4& 82'       g ( n LOT 11NEn 48. 82'       48. 15'   I r'   8
z N'{ 7'' W 7J. 01'       I'    

RICHT-0E- WAY 11NEp NB7' 47' 26' W N88' 49' 17' W N89' 47' 25' W I        W

N
PARCEL4 z    ¢   BOUN ARY

1. 38 AC z 

EAgTAENT UNE

I         CEN7EHLINE

iiiiiiiiiiii RESiRIC7ED ACCESS

I
N59' 21' 09' E R a

NOJ23' 42' E R 30. 00'
a--- ------------------ L------------------

o..

A i NOTESa•  
T

1. 1. 1T BRA55 DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

N       
R= 2799. 00' 4= J' 2S' 42' L= 165. 85' i FASf 185. 31'

9DEWALK 1. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROIONGAlION OF
N0.S2fi' S7' E R

I
OE LOT 11NES, OR AS NOIED.

RI I n 2 5/ 8' REBAR INTH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAN L0T

R= 2829. 00' p= J' 2fi' S7' L= A0. 30'       ——

1.

3FpS 240.} t( N- N)    ——.——    J, Cg.E SHFETU2 FOR A D ONAL NOT ES AND REFERENCES
o'       4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.i MARINA DRIVE S SEE SF ET 11 FIXt 11NE AND CURVE TABLES

N4275' 30 R   
23

R= 2B59. 00 p= J' 3007 L= 174. 74 F/ST 977.Otl( B)( n
0.S' 30' 07' E R

PARCEL 5
C24

7RACT 3908 IR22)     

SHEET 9 oF 1 1

259



I _ 
R= 2100. 00' d= 5' 0)', 78' L= 1B7. 92'( M- Y)( R22)   FlSf 1047. 31( N- M)( R22)    TRACT 3994

Nosvras• e RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
m i VILLAGE T

i

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY A POR110N OF RANCHO EL PESCAUERD, BEING

I A SUBDM ION OF PMCEL 4 OF 1RACT 3908( 43 MhP 52),
PARCELA qTY OF U7HROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt, CAl1fORNIAQ N0.S21 75' E R
11, q33 SF. SEP7Qd8ER 2018

R= 4I63. 00' d= 3' 22' 75' L= 127. 46' FASf 686. tU( T)
o

l LYB
NB9' 30' 51' W ElSf 971. OU( T)      

37. 00'    s_____ w
J7.,    ,

1 NB775' 59' W 9& 81' 47. 00'  235. 00'       20.00'   47. 00'      47. 00'      47. OV
Neasz' zz' w 4. ao( T)   s I 3' BY 3'      3 W

O

I
w.'     i         

m N
NG7N 8iZ1NG

b

PARCEL 8 a       PARCELI r lo        8 g  9       20 w
7RACT 3908 fR22)      c= o• aras      a. ea ac I^ 4. 747 SF.   4, 747 SF.    4. 747 S. F.   

o•   xo  + a       eo

t' 2fe. s       W r scsic: i. s a.

P yy 1'
152    ? I'

J a.      i       o 0 0

a5
i z,       z z z

PARCELE     °
NOIVB' S7' ER EASEMENT  ------- 70_ P_ U. E

LEGEND

2448SF.           
ElKl, o

Cb _______________________   .

l__-___---_     --___   1 _____

h N6g"       
C9 210. 31 20. 00'   47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 00      NONUNENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

55

9

50      I 1 FASf 860. 99( n Qo SEI STMlOARD tltt OF LA1HftOP MONUNENT NEl1 STANPm' PLS 77BB'

N6551' 29' E fl
I

I I$

N69' 40' 09" R 3 9, MONUAIENT TO BE gT PER( R11)
C25_ L  6 FiIST 240. J1'( M- M)    F/ Sf 3520tl( M- N)  

A= 2' 4Y43 L= 10B. 48 N- NT-   
M O M I Y E H T TO B E S E T P E A( R 1 7)

i R= 2306. 00' I GFiINNELL COURT w ' s GRINNELL STREET
N024143' E R I I     ] i I FWND J/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASIIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PEft( R12),

I SEE SHEET 9 a o SEE SHEET 8
on+ rs ns r+otm

o T 3/ 4' IRON PIPE YATH PIASIIC PWG' Pl5 7/ 88'

SET 3. 00' WI7NESS CORNER( W. CJ, UNLESS O7HERYASE NO7ED, MEASUREU
ALONG LOT LWE, RPDIAL 11NE OR PQtPENDI01LAfi TO S7flEEf CFNiERl1NE

AS NOIED. J/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASIIC PWC 7L5 7788'

200. 00'( R1) NEASUPED AND flECaflD DATA PQt REFEflFNCE( R1)

I
R1)    OENOlES HffQtENff( RI)- SEE REFERFNCE L1ST ON SHEE' f 2

M- M)   NONIIMENT TO MONUNFHT

M- BJ NONUl1ENT TO BOIINDMY

EfSf 1047.3Y( N- MJ( R22J
I r)     rora.

T- 75. 00'     -  
B)     BWNDARY

I P. U. E.   PUBLIC UTILItt EASEMENI

SD. E SriMM DRAW EASENENT

I

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY Si w.e wnu cnsQnar

i or uNe
PARCELA g  

RI( NT-0E- WAYLINE

FASf 686. 17( n
477 S. F.   

SEE SHEET 11   -\
0

NB6' 11' 09' W 120. 27'  BOUNDARY

2 FASr 971. OU( p
FAST 1662T

i     
C7.-------- ----------'----- ----------- o-'-----  ---------- -   Ci       

EAg1dENiuNE

W
47. 00'      47. 00'       47.00'      47. 00'      47. 40'      47. 00'      

37W      
47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 00'   FAST 105. 00'   ` 

i
lj)  \

I I
CENTERUNE

EASOAENT t 30         _ L__-  ..   iiiiiiiiiiii RES7RIC7EI1 ACCESS

8 G C G G 7. 506 SF.       b  - / 45. 00'

w
o o g S o g S 7BY3'

fp 
W

S

w 19    20      21      22      23      24      25      26      27      28      29           _-_   w.    
a

x 4,747 S. F.  4, 747 S. F.  4, 747 S. F.
W 

4, 747 SF.  4,747 SF.  4, 747 S. F.  4, 747 SF.  4, 747 S. F.  x 4, 747 S. F.  x 4, 736 S. F.  i /; q0} 5= 97. 5)•//  

F
NOTES

o       /, p    
R= 50.00'

d.   

ybL1
O o 1. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPm' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

N37' 12' 20' R 10' P. U. E.   7 V7 gDEWALIC 1. 00' INTO IHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PFOLIXJGAlION OF

z z z a z z z z z z

e•  PARCEL B o  n
L C10

N6 13. J34 SF. r 0 SmE LOT 11NES. OR AS NOIED.
o 

6y4.    S       
e J 2 5/ 8' REBAR WI1H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

47.00      47. 00      47. 00'      47. 00'      47.00'      47. 00      47. 00'      47. 00      47. 00'     Jfi. 68    . n' y
R r     -,    w CORNEflS, UNLESS O7HERN15E NO1F11.

FASf 860.99'( p 0  nl 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR MDITIONPL NOIES AND REFERFNCES

GRINNELL STREET 1 4. SEE SHEET J FOR BA515 OF BEAFINGS.

sr sss. ar( u- M) Fasr zso. ar( u- u)   eiaz•    O       ti
s s r n rnR we ano cuav Tne s.

c

8    - - n   8 s
sr io.aa( b

IM   
Q W ez wo¢•"

i. I I Y'PJ I

SEE SHEET 8 o  ~
V

SEE SHEET 7
SHEET 1 O OF 1 1

260



P.°. E TRACT 3994N6071' 28' W R m 
LINEANDCURVETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEETS7THROUGH110NLY I RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

T e       L1NE TABLE i     
VILLAGE T

une oiaEcnwr  rvcni     uric oi cnari  wcni o j
L7 N45U0' 00' W 4243'      l41 N45W' 00' W as. ae    BRANDEIS

A POR71D` 1 OF RANCHO EL PESCAOFRO, BEING

o    A$ UBpINDION OF PMCFL 4 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 NdiP 52),

L2 N44' 09' 47' W 34. 84'      L42 N45' 00' 00' E 35. 36     COURT vg'  .°, j m ^  

Cltt OF LATHflOP, SAN JOAWIN COUN7Y, CAIJFOFNIA

gPTENBEfi 2018

LS N49' 31' 35' E 34. 98'      L43 N45W' 00' W 29. 70'       e yh  
w 

r-
L4 N4029' S9' W 35. 74'      LM N45' 00' 00' W 7536'     o`

O  w la x

L3 N49' IS' OYE 41. 7Y L45 N45 D' 00" E 2828' ab\' 

p,

M/  ;

g

os N49' J1' 35' E 20. 69'   
0 1ti         8 38

g 0 w
N

N G 1 N E fi 1 N G

L7 EAST 17. 31•   
R T       

a       yA S2 P. U. E
WRYE RAONS OELTA LENGIH D

LB N45UO OO W J5. 36       116 S. F.      

m  

ryg

o 

o NOTES
Ct 1455. 00 2V9' SY 55. 00'       pJ I R'    m  O 1, SEE 91EET 2 FOR MOI710NAL NOIES ANO REFDYENCES.

L9 NISOO' 00' E 3i36' 
r L>   $ Cq 2 SEE 91EET 3 Fqi BA95 OF BEARINGS.

ua N4971' 35' E u.zs'        
a. 00 1572' Y 2a. os'      PARCELC     ' ?   y''    O a SEE SHEET 7 FIXi LEGEND.

C3 113. 00 15 2 13' 29. 98'      
2, 308 SF.  a   J

LI1 NI590' 00' E 35. 36' EAST 59. 36'( p       c       

O
L12 N4500' 00' W 3536'       

2598. 00 0' 39' IY 29. 69'  bb  ay

L13 N45V0' 00' E 35. 36'     '   
S3. 00 553Y2Y 51. 76'

0•

Lib N45V0' 00' W 35. 76'
CB 53. OD 35' 46' 29' 33. 09'       EAST 370. 00'( n

ci so.ao  aso' ao' ss. oz'  DETAIL A MARINA DRIVE
U5 N45b0' 00' W 35. 36'

C8 17.00 67VU38' 19. 88' 
NOT TO SCALE

U6 N45' 00' UO' E 75.36'  FflOM SHEET 7)

L17 N45V0' 00' W 35. 3fi'       
6. 00 708' SP 45. 65'    

ue Nasroo' ao• e s.'     
0   '' 0°  20 "' 09

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
LI9 N45D0' 00' W J5.36'     

1 17. 00 2851' 46'  fl56'

L20 N45b0' 00' E 35.36'     
2 50. 00 SU11' 40' 47. 80'     

EAST 166. 27(»

L21 N40R9' S9' W 30. 74'     
3 17. 00 6614 06' 19.65' I      

Ca so. 00 qaia' 23' a2to'
PARCELA s

L22 N4029' S9' W 5. 60' 5 971. 00'( PMCEL A)( n   •

L23 N4022' S5' E J3. 58'     
5 259& 00 1 1' S3'  S4. 72'

I
10'       EAST 105. 00'( LOT 30)( T) yAs

C16 259& 00 7V21Y 47. 01'  l .
L24 N3978' O1" W 25. 21' I   .     o. . f

q7 259& 00 1V2' fl'  16. 99•
I

I            ' 2
L25 N759' 4S' E 44. 91' 3' WAILJ--'  ,     

L26 N4915' OYE  & 84     
8 50. 00 63U9' 46' 55. 12' 1 n E T '

BY 3'

C19 17. 00 6614' O6' 19. 65' 
1 3     W''   

I
L27 N49 5'W' E 15.75'  

N6476' 31' ER o 30
C20 50. 00 B4 J' S2' 73. 51'      I' o

h o

L28 N49' IS' OYE 17. 19'   

z9 Naen   zo. 00'     
cz'  i+ ss. 00 sse' 4T isi. oi'   a

BRANDEIS
m

czz  ass. 00 ave' as sos. m'    I      
COURT

L30 N2' 41 43' E 20. 00      

C2J 47. OD 45' 45' 3Y 37. 54'     F I T  o I a
L31 N4590' 00' W 29. 70'      

W            
m

C24 65. 00 94' 46' 16' 107.51'     W   r \     ! p

3' W T    
p 8

L32 N4574' 28' E J261'      
o

I
it

u3 Nso rao• w zam'     
s zwe. 00 iszos•  szzs h a,

I I      
a eB,   DETAIL C

c2s 2ws. 00 roa sY  s. 2s'     

p  

I PARCEL 2 39 a r+ar ro scue N o
w4 ensT   s. ao•      a     I

e
o,   

rp./
y.       

oN s¢ r ia)

L35 N45U0' 00' E J5.36'       
50. 00 12' S0 54' 19. 94'     z    o SD. E       ,,, r      " FC 72jp,

C28 50. 00 1938' IY 1616'     U I g
160 S. F.     ` 1 T)

L36 NORTH 268'    

y

I      

u  Nat7i' n' w 24.& Y
p'

r$.'
ryh °     

PARCEL C

ue easr 2o. o0'      k  z. aoe sv.

79. 00'   t00. 0U'

L39 N45" 00' 00' E 35. 36'  j s

s
FAST 179. 00'( n

L40 N41' 45' 3YE 15. 0Y

EAST JJ0. 00'( 1)

MARINA DRIVE

DETAIL B
NOT TO SCALE

FROII SNFE' f 7)

SHEET 11 oF 11

261



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District ofRiver Islands Development
Page 10

EXHIBIT B

T12ACT 3994 AND VI LAGE " T" AREA

262



w

I g0

wzza

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

i
f _-_     t..,_ T____ ,,

j_I
w(  '  ;_'  !    I     !

o        ;     :     ;

V LLAG CC
W    ;

r--- I___;..___- a--! a.::. v:,_:_.i...;'
w t.,:

o     r--_  ;  ,--,  , ,;   _,,

PROPOSED COMMUNITY PARK o I
z- I i I    

I I
I_   I

J W i   }.  -I I ._ R..    t _....

i       I_Y      

o         ;_        a

SQLANO DRIVE

i---  _- i--

i___ I______ I__!_ 1__ 1-.

TqFFT
RIVER ISLANDS PARKVJAY

V I LLAG E T

i--._ l—_-- i-    '
BUCHANANCOURT 1,... I_._ K L——_— J--!

z GRINNELLCOURT GRINNELLSTREET WATER! ILYDaiVE      _  __

m

TRACT 3995 TRACT 3994'      
Z           I

Iw I-- -- I_.
MID LEBURY DRIVE W N

J_._.

i....._......___...._.....O O

J"       

TRACT 3994
V

j i__;._._'_:_'._
1_'_!'_ 

J.-'`
TRACT 3995

i

MARINA ORIVE

i---i-.--    j I   ;

i   '   ;   ,

U
I

0

I—--——;— 
i   •   `      r

i I

I    ` i            I    ' `/ 
V

ES
I(  3ALSAPv1 COUP, T

i_ ` I
i

i q      I
1

I

d   +         +t__--;.. -;—-- —`--

it` 1
i

f 7 I      ,   , -.-
1:.., -____:_

i -•:,,_,...-.-'     AMESBURY- -

COURT    _.

l.  '      
t 4      I

4 ._,  ._}

t            #-  
i

L e   ,   _ i__; -
v,-

HARTFOR

r';, _ ,  C,OUt2T__-;

1- k
y , 7 t`!0   `      +   i

i

j      +' v- t    _
m,     __.

r''    '—

EXHIBIT 
Bn

O VILLAGE T

VICNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

263



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East. District of River Islands Development

Page 11

EXgIIBIT C

CITY INSiTRANCE REQiTIREIl IENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and$ 2, 000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endor'sements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising

out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

264



Page 1 of 2

DATE( MMIDDIYYYY)

D'     CERTIFICATE O LIABILITY INSlJF2ANCE 09/ o/ zoia

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT

NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of Cali£ornia, Inc. PHONE FA7(

AIC No Ext: 
1- 877- 945- 7378 AIC No: 1- 886- 467- 2378

c/ o 26 Century Blvd
E- MAIL

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS: certiPicates@willis. com

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER( S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#       _

INSURERA: 
United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED INSURERB: Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13604

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart xd
INSURER C:

Lathxop, CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: w 93934z REVISIOfV NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITS

LTR I SD WVD POLICYNUMBER MMIDDIYYYY MMIDDIYYYY

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR PREM SES Ea occu Dnce    

A MED EXP( Any. one person)    S

Y
ATN- SF1811649P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONAL& ADVINJURY     1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERALAGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY E   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER:  

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY
COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE g 2, 000, 000

A

x EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE
BTN1814514W 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y I N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNERIEXECUTIVE       E. L. EACH ACCIDENT S

OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED?      N A

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE S

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT 3

B Excess Liability 1000024047 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

itE: Tract 3994 River Islands- Stage 2A Village T.

The City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

are Additional Insureds as respects the General Liability policy.

The Insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be Primary Insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATIOfd DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIOPIS.

The City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 1988- 2016. ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)     The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sx x: 16707142 aaTCH: 858908

265



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

ADDITIONAL REIVIARK SCf-IEDULE Page z ot 2

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

Willis Insurance Services of Cali£ ornia, Inc.       
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

o£ ficers, employees, and agents. Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers,
employees, or agents shall be in excess of the insurance aP£ orded to the Named Insured by this policy and shall Not

Contribute to any loss as respects the insured' s operations.

ACORD 101.( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16707142 SATCH: 858908 CERT: W7439342

266



POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Organization( s)   Location( s) Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions an.d members thereof, its

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:   1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     
project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional

in the performance of your ongoing operations for        insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the Iocation( s) 
has been completed; or

designated above.
2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only
than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 OO Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

267



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of
these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;
Section III— Limits Of Insurance: 

whichever is less.
If coverage provided to the additional insured is

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we

Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

268



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC
Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE
Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:     

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or  " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are pertorming work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10. 07 Page 1 of 1

269



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been. notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

U.SIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

270



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development
Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHASILITATION 1VIAP

271



I  

a  

M

i ..... rsa_,

8

LEOEND

EXHIBIT" D"
ROADWAY TO BE FULL REPAIRED. PAVED AND OPEN TO OENERAL PUBIJC

ROADNVAY, T, BEREPAIREDASAIl- WEA7 RE ROD, YVEHICLEA Y
ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT

COA AUNRYATSOIlT1iRNERBENDPROJECTAREJI

RNER ISLANDS
an oF urneor s, v io aocm cou rr cauFue' i

F a r:,-,:

272



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 13

EXHIBIT E

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

273



r" )  l_ L

ENGINEE RING

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September 4, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 94

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE T( 103 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Survey Mounments( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $      3, 000. 00  $ 3, 000. 00

2 Signing and Striping ( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $     17, 500. 00  $ 17, 500. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $ 20, 500. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor' s cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village T.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9a588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 2D9. 571. 2466

T: 25502- River Islands Phase 94- Vllage TIEXCEL\ Cosl Estlmate\ Cost To Complete 2018- 09- 04 Village T Bond Estimate. xls\ Improvements

274



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 14

E 3IBIT F

VILI AGE " T" IMPROVEIVIEN' I'S ENGIlaTEEIZ' S STIIVIATE

275



C ,—

ENG1NE i 1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE March 7, 2018

VILLAGE T( 103 LOTS)    Job No.: 25502- 94

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 277, 800 SF    $    0. 45  $ 125, 010. 00

2 3" AC Paving 30, 100 SF    $    1. 50  $  45, 150. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 119, 500 SF    $    2. 25  $ 268, 875. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 30, 100 SF    $    0. 90  $  27, 090. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 119, 500 SF    $    1. 20  $ 143, 400. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       3, 930 LF    $  15. 00  $  58, 950. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 4, 840 LF    $  15. 00  $  72, 600. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 43, 500 SF    $    5. 00  $ 217, 500. 00

9 Driveway Approach 103 EA    $ 600. 00  $  61, 800. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 19 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  47, 500. 00

11 Survey Monuments 13 EA    $ 300. 00  $   3, 900. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 5,320 LF    $    5. 00  $  26, 600. 00

13 Dewatering ( budget)     5, 320 LF    $  40. 00  $ 212, 800. 00

Subtotal Street Work 1, 311, 175. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( type A inlet)    26 EA   $       2, 400. 00  $  62, 400. 00

15 Catch Basins( type A in/ et over type I manhole base)   7 EA   $       2, 800. 00  $  19, 600. 00

16 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type 11 manho/ e base)   7 EA   $       5, 000. 00  $  35, 000. 00

17 Field Inlet 2 EA   $       1, 200. 00  $   2, 400. 00

18 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 330 LF    $  34.00  $  45, 220. 00

19 18" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 120 LF    $  46.00  $  51, 520. 00

20 24" Storm Drain Pipe 640 LF    $  65. 00  $  41, 600. 00

21 30" Storm Drain Pipe 260 LF    $  80. 00  $  20, 800. 00

22 36" Storm Drain Pipe 520 LF    $  95. 00  $  49, 400. 00

23 42" Storm Drain Pipe 240 LF    $ 120. 00  $  28, 800. 00

24 Manholes( type I)      4 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

25 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $       1, 700. 00  $   5, 100. 00

26 Stub& Plug 2 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 375, 840. 00

SANITARY SEWER

27 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3, 600 LF    $  28. 00  $ 100, 800. 00

28 Manholes 15 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  60, 000. 00

29 SewerService 103 EA   $ 600. 00  $  61, 800. 00

30 Plug& Stub 2 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

31 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $       3, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 233, 600. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON; CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 83d0 • F: 209. 57L2466

T:125502- River Islands\Phase 94- Viilage TIEXCEL\ Cost Es6mate 2018- 03- 07 Stage 2B Village T Engineer' s Estimate. xlsxlVILLAGE T

276



f- L L

ENGINEE RING

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

32 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 4, 640 LF    $  32. 00  $ 148, 480. 00

33 Water Plug& Stub 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

34 Water Service 103 EA    $       2, 000. 00  $ 206, 000. 00

35 Fire Hydrants 9 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  36, 000. 00

36 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 404, 480. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTIOId COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       2, 325, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $  22, 573. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIOGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T:125502- River IslandslPhase 94- Village TIEXCEL1Cost Estimate\ 2018- 03- 07 Stage 28 Village T Engineer' s Es6mate. xlsx\ VILLAGE T

277



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 15

E IBIT G

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARAl>T' I'EE

INTE1tIM PUBLIC ACC SS WI' Y' HIl T IE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMEN' AREA

278



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP CALIFORNIA95330

7EL: ( 209) 879- 790a

June 26, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Letter of GuaranEee- Construction of River Islands Parkway from DeII' Osso
Drive ta the Stage 2B Boundary( Lakeside East District)— Tract 3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions ofRiver Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( also known as
the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is providing
the funding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Parkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee for
construction of the River Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage ZA is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subdivision map
propased by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
for the full construction of River Islands Parkway, we are providing you this Letter of Guarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot finaI map.

The engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
Islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 2018) of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 338, 004( attached as Exhibit" A"). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in the amount of$450, 000, which amount is equal ta 180°/a of this
engineer' s esrimate of the unfinished improvements, in- Iieu of a 100% performance bond and

50% labor and materials bond. The funds aze currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreernent, dated as ofDecember 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as ofNovember 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Parkway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for your reference( Exhibit" B").

279



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop•-- Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of3

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until July$, 2019, or until such time River Islands Parkway through

Stage 2A is fully constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first. If this portion of River Islands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2419 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than September 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be constructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadline noted above.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside manies in the improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for constniction or reconstniction of the applicable portion
of River Islands Pazkway. In snch event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Pazkway. Undl the completion of the River
Islands Parkway and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestment of the funds provided to it and will provide the Authority

with its records as to any such investment eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Addirionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in wriNng that the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient tv gay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Pazkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of
the shortfall. In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction af the
unfinished portions ofRiver Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Parkway improvements remain incomplete on September 30,
2020, the Authority shall immediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested hy the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements.

In addition, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until the
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of$ 526,400( 10% of the full cost of the

Improvements), or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter ofguarantee in
that same amount of$ 526, 400 to guarantee the quaiity and condition of the full Improvements
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

280



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guazantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. hould you have any questior s

regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 209) 79- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb Moniz, Exe tiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures;    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full improvements from O' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvednents from O' 17e11

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Deil' Osso, River Islands Development, I.LC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terrns and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

By:
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

Date

281



ri, '  

ENGINE{ sfI1NG

ENGINEER' S OPOfVION OF PR08A LE COST March 6, 2018

RI1iER ISL+ NDS- S7AGE 2A Job No.: 255Q3-01

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CIN OF LATHROP, 5AN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Descrlption Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF   $ 0. 45  $      279, 765. 00

2 T' AC Paving 316,800 SF   $ 3. 50  $    1, 108, 800. p0

3 11" Aggregate Base 316, 800 SF   $  9. 65  $      522, 720. 00

4 12" Lime Treatment 316, 800 SF   $  1. 10  $      348, 480. 00

5 Vertical Curb and Gut#er ( wRh Ae cushJon)       9,600 LF    $ 15. 00  $      144, 000. 00

6 Type F Median Curb( wifh Ae cushton)    9,100 LF    $ 18. 00  $      163, 800. 00

7 Roundabout Concrete 2,400 SF   $ 5. 00 S 12, 000. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 SF   $ 5.00  $      36T, D00. 00

9 Handicap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500. 00  $ 50, 000. 00

10 Survey Monuments 7 EA   $       300. 00  $ 2, 100. 00

11 BaRicades 1 EA   $     1, 500. 00  $ 1, 5d0. 00

2 Traffic Signing 8 Striping 4, 710 LF    $ 5.00  $ 23, 550. OQ

i3 Dewatering( Budget}     4, 710 LF    $       75. 00  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal Street Wo lc S 3,398, 965. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( typa A tntet}   24 EA S 2,400.00  $ 57. 600. 00

15 15" Stotm Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF S 34. Q0  $ 37, 740_00

16 1 B" Storm Drain Pipe 220 LF S 46.00  $ 1 d, 1 Z0. 00

17 24" Storm Orain Pipe 78D LF   $ fi5.U0 S 50, 700_00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, OOQ.00  $ 9, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 165, 160. 00

SANITARY SEWER

19 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 50 LF    $       950. U0  $ 7, 500. Q0

2d Manhales 24 LF    $     4,OUQ. 00  $ 96, 000, 00

29 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3,000. 00  $ 6, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 109, 500, 00

NIA' i R$ UPPLY

22 8" Water Line pncluding aU appurtenartces)  74Q LF    $ 32.00  $ 23, 680. 00

23 10" Water Une ( including a! J appuRanances) 280 LF S 40. 00  $ 11, 200. 00

24 20" Water Line ( fncfudingall appurtenances)       4, 630 LF    $       1Q0. 00  $      463, 000. 00

25 Fire Hydrants 16 EA S 4,000. 00  $ 64, 000. 00

26 Water Service 6 EA   $     2, OQ0. 00  $ 12, 000. 00

27 Water Plug& Stub 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000, 00

28 Connect4o Existing Water 1 EA   $     4, 000. 00  $ 4, 000. 00

Subtatal Water Supply 586, 880. 00

62 0 STONERIDGE titALL ROAfl SUITE 330, PLFJiSANTON, CA 94588 • P 925 223. H340 • F 269. 571. 2A66

T•1255o7. ftiver Islondswhaeo a1. Rfvor IalarWa ParhwBytWord ExceilColt EaUm te 201A- 03-08 RWBr Itlanda Pa# wny- SWge 2A Cos1 Eslimuto4mprovrmenta

282



ENGIN6ERING

Ite n Description Quantity Untt Untt Price Amount

RECYCLHD WATER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line pncluding al! sppurtenances)       80 LF    $ 45.U0  $ 3, 800. 00

30 12" Recycled Water Drain Line ( Jnduding a! f appurtenances) 150 LF    $ 55.00  $ 8,250. D0

31  • 16" ReCyGled Water Line ( including alf appurtenances)    4, 650 LF    $ fi5.00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycied Water Plug 8 SWb 4 EA   $     1, 008.00  $ 4, 000. 00

33 Conned to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5, 000.00  $ 5,0OO. OD

Subtotal Recycled Water 323, t00.OQ

N4N- POTABLE WATER

34 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( inciuding an appurtenances)    850 LF   $ 35. 00  $       22, 750. 00

35 16" Non- Potable Water Line ( lnclud ng an appurtenances) 4,660 LF   $ 8D. 00  $      372, 800. OD

36 Non- Potable Water Service 6 LF    $     2,000. 00  $ i2, 000. 00

37 Non- Potable Water Plug& Stub 7 EA S+     1, 000. 00  $ 7, Q00. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Patable Water 1 EA   $     3, OQ0. 00 S 3, 000. 00

Subtotal Irrigation Water 417, 550. 00

LAKE FlLL LINE

39 16" Lake Fi0 Line( tncluding a!1 appurfsnances)    4,820 LF    $ 5Q. 00  $      241, Ofl0. 00

40 3" Aeration Line( nduding at1 eppurlenences)      4,820 LF S 4.00  $ 19, 280. 00

41 Lake FiA Stub& Plug 3 EA   $     1, OOU. 00  $ 3, 000. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, OOO. QO S 1, 000. 00

Subtotal Lake Fill Line 2fi4, 280. 0a

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST S 5, 263, 435. OQ

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest i7, 004) s 5, 264, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on es6mated current const uction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MAL! ROAD. SUITE 330 PLEASANTON CA 90586 • P 925 223. 833D • F 209 571. 2466

T125503- Rlver Ialands Pfvaae Oi- Rlv lalsndf PErhwa} nYNxd 8 Exca( Coat EeUmalet2018-03-08 River lalenCs Parkwoy- Stage 2A Cotl HSOmmeUmprovameM9

283



L

CNG4NEERTNG

ENGINEER' S BON ESTIMATE June' t3. 2018

COST TO COMPI. E' E Job No 25503- 01

R1VER ISLAPIDS- STAGE 2A

RIdER ISLAWDS PARKWdY

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

Item DescripUon 6uantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer B Water Raising Iron( a5% Completiont LS S 54, 400. U0 3 54. 440. 00

2 Fin21 AC Lift( 9096 Cempfetion) i LS S 2A6, 604. 00 3 246, 604 00

3 Final Signing. Striping& Monument( 096 Completlon)     L5   $    37, 060 00  $ 37, 0 0 00

TOTA! COST TO COMPI. ETE 5 338, 004. 00

Notes

1) Eslimate for coat to complete based on contrador' a cost to complete summary sheat and backup doeur fentslar Stage 2A River Isfands Parkway

OeIPOsso Drive to Stage 2A128 Levee) dated. lune 12, 2018.

6? GD.°. TOtJERIDGE f, 1ALL RGi. Q S111T 330.? LE:. SpNTCN Ca g 5??    ? 9 5.? 3. E340 • F 20S 5i 1= a6E

T 255417Lvm IalnndsWhase 8t Rtiat klanda PatkwaylWard 8 EneeflCu+ t m Cw qflNe1 015- 06 17 Supa 7A RIP Bu EstlmatoVmpovortmnts

284



Y-

C
1

PARlC `

R
R

r-  ',      

S HOOL

r

r       / 
jS'

r  

y
RIO/ ER ISL 4ND P RKVVAY

s
P    

l

v,       '---------:

o

a
0

PAR) C W
0

s

t
1

r

v

HI IT 

RiVER ISLp iVDS PARt CVNAI

Ti4G

JULY 201

285



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands Development

Page 16

EXHIBIT H

AIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWA' WITHIN THE STAGE 2A DE LOPMENT AREA

286



FtI IER ISLANDS PU LIC FINlANCING AUTHORI° TY

731lN. STEWART ROAD

LATHR P, CALIF RNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

April 23, 2018

C; lenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

L,athrop, CA 95330

Subject: Substitution of Secarity—YJn nished Improv ments withen Stage 1B of River

Islands t Lathrop(" Set- Aside Letter")

Dear Glertn:

As you are aware, River Islands Development, LLC (" Developer") has recently substantiaqy
completed improv ments within most of the tracts( villages} of the East\ 1i11age District of River

lslands, as well as Village G within the Community at South River Bend area. All but one of these
tracts have perforrr ance and labor and materials bonds that have been posted by the Developer with
associated Subdivision Improvement Agreements andlor Encroachment Permits{" Previous

Security"). Tract 3835( Village N) has not yet associated with a final map filin and therefare, cioes
not have performance bonds posted. Howevec, since a map is imminent for this area, this Set- Aside
Letter would cover this tract as well.       

RIPFA is providing the set-aside letter in behalf of the Developer since RIPFA has provided the
public funding for the constructian ofthe improvements with issuance of bonds and resulting
proceeds from RIPFA Community Facilities Districts( CFDs), including CFD 2015- 1. Construction

of the improvemencs has been performed either by the Developer through an acquisition agre ment
with R1PFA or by public bid of Reclamation District 2026, a member agency of RIPFA. The City
entered into a Joint Community Facilities Agreement( JCFA) with RIPFA in Novemb r 20I5, which
provides the process to which the City accept these improvement for public use.

Since the Previous Securiey covered all or a majority of ehe value of improvements necessary to be
constructed, the Developer feels it is unnecessary to carry the cost to maintain the cost of the
Previous Security, since only thermoplastic striping remains For full completion and ultimate City
acceptance of the improvements. As a result, the Developer has requested the Authority p ovide
alternative security for the remaining unfinished improvements in lieu of Previous Security
previously provided to the Ciry. We believe that that this" set- aside" letter will provide adequate
guarantee to the Citj+ for items listed below.

This Set- Aside Letter would be substituted for security previously provided and in- lieu of security
reyuired for lillage 1V as follows:

287



ond 6 erformance l. abor& lVVfla     emaining       e- AsB c

ond l escription
yyumbgr II nd Amount Sand Amo nt

Imprmvements      ecurity

Va9uc tnount

6' ract 38a0, et. al.( Vil9age G)  SUl Il2468      775, 000. 40 775, 000 6, 440 SI 1, 59Z

Tract 3 73, et. I.( iiillage A)  U11246 2    2, 742, 000. 00 52, 7 2, 000. 00

raeQ 3828, et. 1.( ViUage F)      06 1483      356, 160. 00 178, 0 0
a 7, 992

7' ract 3826, et. al. ( Villages D& E) 06814 4    1, 119, 720A0 559, 60 S4, 3fi5 57,§ 7

Tr ct 3 32, et. al.(!/ itlages J& IC) 06 1485   2, 070, 80. 00       1, 035, 240 S1, 430 2, 574

Tract 3834, et. 1.( Vifla e M)     0681491    2, 237, 040. 04       $ 1, 118, 520 51, 905 3, i29

Tract 3 36, et. al.( l iila e O)     0681 92 S65b, 040AU S328, 020 445 4, 329

Tsaet 3 29, et. al.( ViOlage E!)     06 1490 g44, Q84 Z22, Z4Q S1, Z0 3, 276

d' ract 3 3, et. al.( ViEla e Q)     0681s02 S19Q, OQ 95, A00 51, 905 3, 429

Traet 3835( Vdllage l  1VlA p/ p N    S4, b73 5, 411

Total Amount of SeQ- Aside 1. etter 52, 9

This Set- Aside Letter would providc security for I 0°fo of the value of total remaining thermoplastic
striping for all affected tracts.

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, RIPFA shall hold the funds as stated herein in a

restricted account untit Deeember 3 i, 2018, or until such time that all seriping within the traets are
comp(eYed and the final improvements accepted, whiehever comes first. Should all pFthe
improvements not be accepted by the City by December 3 l, 20l 8 and fhe deadline is not xt nded by
the City, RIPPA shall cause one oFthe following to occur:

1.       R1PFA shail use the funds set aside in the Improv ment Fund to complete the remaining
thermoplastic striping under existing contracts to perform the work within I 80 days; or

2.       R1PF,4 shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the improvement Fund and, by
Janvary 15, 20I9, provide these funds to perform the work.

R1PFA shall retain the discretion to choose between fhe two opiions as outlined above. As
confirmation of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee, please sign and daee this letter

as shown on the next page. Should you have any questions regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please
contact me at number shown.

Sincerely,

effr      . Shields, Director

River lslands Public Financing Authority

cc:      S tsan Dell' Osso, Project Dir etor, River Islands Developrrzent, LLC

Wiiliam C. Scott, Chief Finance Officer, River Islands Development, LLC
John Peck, Construction Manager, River Islands Development, I. LC
Michael Krill, Controller, River Islands Developtnent, LLC

288



Accept in Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of this Letter of Guarantee:

s:% lY(  f

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7       

Date

289



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS
0

1/ 
n

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)   

October 8, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3994; Escrow No. 1614019918

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" R1D"), and the City of
Lathrop (" Cif,y') in connection with the above- referenced escrow(" Escrov'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as "you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " Closing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" O cial Records").

One original Final Map for Tract 3994, executed and acknowledged by the City.

The document(s) listed above are referred to as the " Recordation Documents." The

Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to above.  The date on
which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is the
Recordation Date.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by

1

290



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

both RID and City (" Seftlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each
entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 39,803.44, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 076 multiplied by
12.94 acres (or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions are set
forth below.  ( Note: Parcels 1- 5 reserved forfuture use.)

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " C/osing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellossoCa riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar( a riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatore( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarrete( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciames(a ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( qQebhardt(a ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is

accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4.  You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete

the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

2

291



JOINT ESCF201PV INSTI UCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RI\/ ER ISLAfVDS T Li4THI OP)

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebliardt to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Adslitionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow

agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

3

292



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

293



294



ITEM 4. 9
i
I   --    --------- —

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  11 WITH 4LEAF,

INC. FOR PLAN CHECK SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving Task Order No.
11 with 4Leaf, Inc. for Plan Check Services in

the Building Division

SUMMARY:

On September 21, 2015 City Council approved a Master Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc.
4Leaf)  for professional services.    Task Orders have been approved to provide

various professional services within the Building Division.

In order to keep up with current Land Development projects,   residential,

commercial and industrial;  staff requested a proposal from 4Leaf to provide plan

check services.

Staff is requesting City Council approve Task Order No.  11 with 4Leaf to perform

plan check services on a time and material basis with a not to exceed amount of

150, 000.   The cost of providing plan check services is fully funded by developers
from revenue received from plan check fees.

BACKGROUND:

On September 21,  2015 City Council approved a Master Agreement and Task
Orders No. 1 and 2 with 4Leaf for professional services in the Building Division.  The

Master Agreement with 4Leaf allows staff to issue task orders to align with

increased construction activity that exceeds staff resources.   The ability to use the
services of outside consultants makes it possible to keep minimal permanent staff
without having to resort to layoffs if construction slows down.

Below is a summary of Task Orders approved to date:

Task Order No.       Date A roved Descri tion

1 09/ 21/ 15 Staff Au mentation

2.     09/ 21/ 15 Plan Check Services

3 07/ 18/ 16 Plan Check Services

4 10/ 17/ 16 Plan Check Services

5 12/ 05/ 16 Ins ection Services

6 06/ 19/ 17 Plan Check Services

7 06/ 19/ 17 Ins ection Services

8 01/ 29/ 18 Chief Buildin Official

9 06/ il/18 Chief Buildin Official

10 06/ 21/ 18 Buildin Ins ector Services

295



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 11 WITH 4LEAF FOR PLAN CHECK SERVICES

4Leaf currently handles complex structural plan check for major commercial,
industrial and residential projects, and the customers in that niche have been very
satisfied with the services rendered.     StafF has projected the current rate of

construction activity to continue during the FY 2018/ 19.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Consultant plan check services allow the City to quickly process complex structural
plan checks for major commercial, industrial and residential projects.    '

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Economic Growth by facilitating Land Development
projects.

FISCAL IMPACT:       

Contract services for plan review was included in Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 budget.  The

cost for Task Order 11 will be fully funded from plan check fees collected from
developers.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Task Order No.  il with 4Leaf,  Inc.  for Plan Check

Services in the Building Division.

B.  Task Order No. il for Plan Check Services in the Building Division

296



CITY NI NAGEIa' S REPORT P/ GE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPRO/ E TASK ORDER NOm 11 1NIT1- I 4LEAF FOR PLAN CHECIC SERVICES

APPROVALS:

lo -- l -- 

Michael King Date

Assistant Public W ks Director

Cari James Date

Director of Fi ance

o - -  S

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

o z `  

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

297



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 11 WITH 4LEAF, INC. FOR PLAN CHECK

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

WHEREAS,   on September 21,   2015 City Council approved a Master

Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc. ( 4Leaf) for professional services; and

WHEREAS, Task Orders have been approved to provide various professional

services within the Building Division; and

WHEREAS,  in order to keep up with current Land Development projects,
residential,  commercial and industrial;  staff requested a proposal from 4Leaf to

provide plan check services; and

WHEREAS, stafF is requesting City Council approve Task Order No.  11 with

4Leaf to perform plan check services on a time and material basis with a not to

exceed amount of $ 150, 000; and

WHEREAS,  the cost of providing plan check services is fully funded by
developers from revenue received from plan check fees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop Approves Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf, Inc. for Plan Check Services in the

Building Division.

298



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8t" day of October
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSEfVT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

a.TTEST:  APPROi/ ED AS TO FOEZM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

299



e ;   

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 11

PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED

SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 WITH 4LEAF, INC. TO PROVIDE

PLAN CHECKING SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 11 dated for convenience this 8th day of October 2018
is by and made and entered into by and between 4LEAF, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  on September 21,  2015,  CONSULTANT entered into a Master

Agreement with the CITY, and parties approved an extension of the term to June 30, 2019

pursuant to an amendment dated July 18,  2016  (" AGREEMENT")  by which the
CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Interim Building Division Professional Services;
and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Interim Building Division Plan Check Services,  which are required by this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Interim Building Division Plan
Check Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Aqreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this project,
unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Interim Chief Building Official Consultant
Services in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided

in Exhibit " A" to this Task Order.   CONSULTANT agrees to diligently
perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its

profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 5

300



CITY OF LATHROP — Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf Inc. for Plan Check Services in the

Building Division

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Task Order No. 11 is October 8, 2018, and it

shall terminate no later than June 30, 2019.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
detailed in Exhibit A up to a total sum not to exceed $ 150, 000 for the

Building Division Plan Check Services.  CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30)  days of receipt of

billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 in the Master
Consulting Agreement Dated September 21, 2015.

5)       Maximum Hours

The maximum number of hours by any single 4Leaf employee pursuant to
this agreement shall not exceed 960 hours during the fiscal year.  All hours
worked will be reported to CaIPERS as required.   CONSULTANT will

provide required reporting information.

6)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall

receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services rendered
prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

7)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT,
while engaged in carrying out and complying with any terms and conditions
of this agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the

CITY.   As an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for

controlling the means and methods to complete the scope of work
described in this Task Order No.   11 to the City's satisfaction.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any
manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

Page 2 of 5

301



CITY OF LATHROP — Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf Inc. for Plan Check Services in the

Building Division

8).      Consultant to Advise Citv of Anv Potential Conflict of Interest

CONSULTANT agrees not to assign personnel to work in direct conflict with

the work performed to CITY and advise CITY of any potential conflict
immediately upon discovery of such potential or actual conflict of interest.

9)       Consultant to Provide Personnel with the Tools for Providinq
Services Rendered Pursuant to This Aqreement

Parties agree that CONSULTANT shall supply tools to personnel for
providing the services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  For example,

CONSULTANT shall maintain an office for assigned personnel outside of

City Hall.

Provided,  however,  since CITY has several empty offices and cubicle
spaces,  excess cell phones,  excess computers,  and excess tablets,

CONSULTANT personnel may be allowed by CITY to temporarily use
some of CITY office resources.   CONSULTANT expressly agrees that
CONSULTANT personnel' s use of any such City resources shall not
exonerate Consultant from purchasing and paying for any tools necessary
for Consultant to provide services to CITY under this Agreement.

CONSULTANT further agrees that CONSULTANT shall not claim that any
use by CONSULTANT' s personnel of CITY resources should be

considered evidence that CONSULTANT' s personnel is an employee

during the term of this Agreement instead of an employee of

CONSULTANT.

10)     Staff Direction

CONSULTANT will not supervise CITY staff but will provide professional

direction in their daily responsibilities based on building code standards.

11)     Traininq

CONSULTANT shall be trained on any specialty area they are providing
professional consulting services to the City.  CITY will not provide or pay
for CONSULTANT training.

Page3of5

302



CITY OF LATHROP — Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf Inc. for Plan Check Services in the

Building Division

12)     Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 4 of 5

303



CITY OF LATHROP — Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf Inc. for Plan Check Services in the

Building Division

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

I l  --

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Senior Civil Engineer

Michael King Date

Accepted By:
Reso No.     City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Craig Tole, Director
4 Leaf Inc.

2110 Rheem Drive, Suite A

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Fed ID # 94- 3393574

Bus License # 20088

Signature Date

Print Name and title)

Page 5 of 5

304



EX iI IT"   "

4LEAF', INC.

ENGINEERING• CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMGNT

BUILDING INSPECTION• PLAfV CHECK

201- 20 FEE SCHEDULE & 4SIS OF CHARGES

For the City of Lathrop

All Rates are Subject to Basis of Charges

Plan Check Service Fee for 1 Review and two Hourly rate for onsite and/ or greater
2) subsequent rechecks than 3 reviews offsite( with

authoriaation from Director):

Life Health Safety,
Structural, ADA 125/ hour structural

Requirements and Title 24 70% of City fee

Energy Requirements 90/ hour non- structural

Plan Checks

Plumbing/
Mechanical/ Electrical Only 40% of City fee 90/ hour non- structural

Plan Checks

Structural Only o

Plan Checks
40/ of City fee 125/ hour structural

Additional Buildin Department Services

Senior Combination Building Inspector .................................................................$ 95/ hour

Commercial Building Inspector ..............................................................................$ 90/ hour

Residential Building Inspector ...............................................................................$ 80/ hour

Training Building Inspector.....................................................................................$ 60/ hour

Code Enforcement..................................................................................................$ 85/ hour

Senior Permit Technician........................................................................................$ 65/ hour

PermitTechnician...................................................................................................$ 60/ hour

On- Site Plan Review Engineer.................................................................................$ 120/ hour

On- Site Non- Structural Plans Examiner..................................................................$ 90/ hour

FireReview.............................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Inspector of Record( including DSA or OSHPD) ......................................................$ 135/ hour

Public Works Inspector...........................................................................................$ 145/ hour

Interim Chief Building Official.................................................................................$ 130/ hour

CASpInspection......................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Off- Site Project Manager........................................................................................$ 160/ hour

Principal- in- Charge .................................................................................................$ 185/ hour

Hourly overtime charge per inspector.................................................................... 1. 5 x hourly rate

Mileage( for inspections performed within the City) ............................................. IRS Rate+ 20%

BASIS OF CHARGES

All invoicing will be submitted monthly.

Proposal to Provide Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Building Division Page 1 of 2

June 4, 2018

305



4LEAF, INc.

ENGINEERING• CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

BUILDING INSPECTION• PLAN CHECK

Work is subject to 4- hour minimum charges unless stated otherwise. Services billed in 4- hour

increments.

4LEAF assumes that these rates reflect the 2018- 2020 contract period. 3% escalation for 2020 and 2021

is negotiable per market conditions.

Overtime and Premium time will be charged as follows:

Regular time( work begun after SAM or before 4PMJ 1 x hourly rate

Night Time( work begun after 4PM or before SAMJ 1. 125 x hourly rate

Overtime( over 8 hour M- F or SaturdaysJ 1. 5 x hourly rate

Overtime( over 8 hours Sat or 1518 hour SunJ 2 x hourly rate

Overtime( over 8 hours Sun or HolidaysJ 3 x hourly rate

Overtime will only be billed with prior authorization of the Chief Building Official, Public Works Director,

or other responsible designated City personnel.

All work with less than 8 hours rest between shifts will be charged the appropriate overtime rate.

Mileage, driven during the course of Lathrop Inspections will be charged at cost plus 20%.

Payment due on receipt. All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1. 5% interest charge.

Client shall pay attorneys' fees, or other costs incurred in collecting delinquent amounts.

Client agrees that 4LEAF' s liability will be limited to the value of services provided.

Proposal to Provide Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Building Division Page 2 of 2

June 4, 2018

306



ITE 1 4. 10
CITY MAN 4GER' S REPOFZT

OCTOBER , 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGl1LAR MEETIIVG

ITEM:       2018 WIIlITER FfOLIDAY AND 2019 CITY COUf`ICIL

R7EETIiVG SCHEDULES

RECOMMEMD/ TION:     Con ieleration of Pro sosed 201  lNinter Floliday Closure
ancl 2019 City Council Meeting Schedules

AC KG ROl11ef D:

On October 16,  2017,  the City Council adopted Resolution 17- 4307,  updating the City
Council Handbook to revise the regular City Council meeting schedule from two to one
meeting per month. At that time, the City Council adopted the entire 2018 City Council
regular meeting sehedule, including the special meeting, November 19, 2018, due to the

Veteran' s Day holiday. Also on October 16, 2017, under a separate item, the City Council
approved the City Hall closure during the Christmas and New Year' s holidays. This allowed
staff to be with their families during the holiday week.

In preparation for the holiday season,  staff anticipates that business and development

activity will slow down during the holidays as it has in the past,  specifically the days
between Christmas Eve and New Year' s Day.  It is also anticipated that many employees
will request time off during this time.   In order to accommodate anticipated requests and
allow employees to spend time with their families,  Council may consider closing City
facilities on December 26, 2018 and December 27, 2018. All employees will be required to
work on Friday, December 21, 2018, and will receive Friday, December 28, 2018 as their
regular 9/ 80 Friday off. The closure would be a one- time occurrence due to the way the
holidays fall during this year and will not affect the required utility and maintenance
operations of the City. This closure will also allow time for our IT Department to perform
required system maintenance and much needed upgrades to software and server

programs without interrupting the course of regular business.

Therefore, tonight staff is requesting Council consideration of the following City Council
meetings and Holiday closure schedule, as follows:

ecember 201

December 26 - 27, 2018 - City Facilities Closure

June 2019

June 17, 2019 - City Council Special Meeting for FYs 19- 20 and 20- 21 Budget Hearings

iVovernber 2019

November il, 2019 - Cancellation of Regular Meeting due to Veteran' s Day Holiday
November 18, 2019 - City Council Special Meeting

If Council approves the calendar depicted on the next page, City Hall would be closed at 5
p. m. on Friday, December 21, 2018, and would reopen at 8 a. m. on Wednesday, January
2, 2019.  Should the need arise, a Special City Council Meeting can be called at anytime in
order to conduct the City' s business. The noticing of a Special City Council Meeting would
be provided in accordance with State law.

307



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 HOLIDAY & 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULES

Additionally,  on- call emergency utility services will be available to the general public
during the holiday closure by calling  ( 209)  992- 0028.  The calendars below depict the

proposed schedule:

s       .  r:       ,       n. ..     
rs Ts

e_..     
E

F. ;,   , 4     . ,
y 

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 16

Dec- 18 Regular

Meeting

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

Christmas Christmas Proposed Proposed 9/ 80

Eve Holiday Day Holiday Closure Closure Friday Off

30 31

New Year' s

Eve Haliday
i

1 2 3 4 5

New Year' s

i Day Holiday
i

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

Jan- 19 Regular

Meeting

20 i 21 22 23 24 25 26

i j Martin

Luther King

Jr. Holiday

27 28 29 30 31

308



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 HOLIDAY & 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULES

e t; F m3"'
3`    

K*'::

Regular Scheduled Meeting

Regular Holiday- City Offices Closed ( maybe different for utilities, maintenance,

and recreation facility schedules; non- 9/ 80 schedulesJ/ or 9/ 80 day off

Proposed City Offices Closure ( may not apply to utilities, maintenance, and
recreation facilities schedules)

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The holiday closure schedule in December allows the City to accommodate the large
number of anticipated time- off requests and allow employees to spend time with their

families.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Equal to regular salaries, approximately $ 23, 600 per day. All employees will be required
to work on Friday,  December 21,  2018 and will receive Friday,  December 28,  2018 as

their regular 9/ 80 Friday.

ATTAC H M E NT:

A.  2019 City Council Meeting Schedule

309



CITY R IANAC9E( t'S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTO ER , 20]. 8 CITIf COUNCIL REGUL R MEETIiVG

018 HOLIDAY 8c 2019 CITY COUNCIL IMEETING SCHEDl1LES

APPROVALS:

a/ a%
T resa Vargas Date

City Clerk

i
Cari J    es Date

Dire j o of Finance &
Admlr a strative Services

io-   - r  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

310



ATTACgIMEIVT A

LATHROP CITY COUNCIL

2019 REGULAI Ii IEETING SCHEDULE

Lathrop City Council holds regular meetings on the
2nd

Monday of each month, at 7: 00
p. m., located at City Hall, Council Chambers, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA.
Study Sessions and Special Meetings are scheduled as needed. ( NOTE: This schedule is

subject to changefor various reasons and notification will be given in advance.)

JANUARY JULY

January 14, 2019 July 8, 2019

FEBRUAISY AUGUST

February 11, 2019 August 12, 2019

MARCH SEPTEMBER

March 11, 2019 September 9, 2019

APRIL OCTOBER

April 8, 2019 October 14, 2019

1VIAY NOVEMBEI

May 13, 2019 T e;==- z,'29 3( cancelled/ Veteran' s

Day Holiday)
November 18, 2019*

JUI TE

I ECENiBER

June 10, 2019

June 17, 2019 ( Tentative Budget December 9, 2019

Hearings)

Adjusted for holiday

311



312



I
ITEM 4. 11       

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: FUNDING FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II

AND A UTILITY OPERATOR I/ II/ III IN THE

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution to Approve Funding for a
Maintenance Worker I/ II and a Utility
Operator I/ II/ III position

SUMMARY:

The Public Works Department is responsible for the daily maintenance of city streets,
parks and buildings, as well as the operation of the City' s water systems.  Due to the

City' s current growth plan, staff is requesting funding for one ( 1) Maintenance Worker

I/ II and one ( 1) Utility Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works Department.

BACKGROUND:

The Public Works Department is responsible for the daily operations and maintenance
of the City' s parks, streets, buildings and water systems.   As the City grows, it is

necessary to expand staff in order to keep up with the daily needs of the City' s
growing infrastructure.   Based on current and future construction trends, there is a

need for an additional full time Maintenance Worker I/ II and an additional full time

Utility Operator I/ II/ III to meet the demands of the City' s daily operations.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council fund one ( 1) Maintenance Worker I/ II and one ( 1) Utility
Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works Department.   This will allow staff to

maintain daily servicing operations for the City' s infrastructure.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff request City Council approve a budget amendment in fiscal year 2018/ 19 to
fund the Maintenance Worker II in the amount of $71, 000 and the Utility Operator
III in the amount of $96, 000 as follows:

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 70- 410- 11- 00       $ 23, 430 2560- 50- 61- 410- 11- 00     $ 4, 800

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 80- 410- 11- 00       $ 23, 430 2570- 50- 63- 410- 11- 00       $ 7, 680

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2080- 50- 10- 410- 11- 00       $ 24, 140 5620- 50- 50- 410- 11- 00     $ 9, 600

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2390- 50- 66- 410- 11- 00       $ 3, 840 6010- 50- 30- 410- 11- 00     $ 17, 280

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2500- 50- 21- 410- 1i- 00       $ 3, 840 6050- 50- 32- 410- 11- 00     $ 1, 920

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2510- 50- 20- 410- 11- 00       $ 14, 400 6080- 50- 34- 410- 11- 00     $ 32, 640

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution

313



CITY M 4IVAGEft' S REPORT P 4GE 2

OCTO ER , 2018 CITY COUIeICIL REGULAI NIEETIIVG

FUIVDIIVCa FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II AND dlTILITY OPERATOR III

APPROV 4LS:

10- 3- 18

Michael Ki Date

Assistant Public Works Director

3    
Cari Ja Date

Finance Di ctor

l  '  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

b3•rg

5 en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

314



RESOLUTION 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO FUND

A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II AND A UTILITY OPERATOR I/ II/ III IN THE

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the City is expanding and additional staffing is needed to keep
up with that growth; and

WHEREAS,  the Public Works Department is responsible for the daily
maintenance of City streets,  parks,  building and the operation of the City' s water
systems; and

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended fund one  ( 1)  Maintenance Worker I/ II

and one ( 1) Utility Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works Department;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the funding to add one ( 1) Maintenance Worker I/ II and

one ( 1) Utility Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works Department; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approve the following amendments to the adopted Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 Budget:

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 70- 410- 11- 00       $ 23, 430 2560- 50- 61- 410- 11- 00     $ 4, 800

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 80- 410- 11- 00       $ 23, 430 2570- 50- 63- 410- 11- 00       $ 7, 680

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2080- 50- 10- 410- 11- 00       $ 24, 140 5620- 50- 50- 410- 12- 00     $ 9, 600

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2390- 50- 66- 410- 11- 00       $ 3, 840 6010- 50- 30- 410- 11- 00     $ 17, 280

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2500- 50- 21- 410- 11- 00       $ 3, 840 6050- 50- 32- 410- 11- 00     $ 1, 920

Increase Appropriation Increase Appropriation

2510- 50- 20- 410- 11- 00       $ 14, 400 6080- 50- 34- 410- 11- 00     $ 32, 640

315



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of October, 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPIZOVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

316



ITEM 4. 12       ;

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AGREEMENT WITH    CONDOR EARTH FOR

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Authorizing an Agreement
With Condor Earth to Provide Engineering
Support Services

SUMMARY:

The Public Works Department currently has two open engineering positions and staff
is actively recruiting to fill them.  In order to keep up with current Land Development
projects and Capital Improvement Projects ( CIPs), stafF requested a proposal from

Condor to provide engineering support services.

Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution approving an Agreement with Condor
in the amount of$ 50, 000 to provide engineering support services. The City will utilize
salary savings to fund the Agreement. 

BACKGROUND:

The Public Works Department is made up of four divisions, Administration, Building,
Engineering,  and Operations  &  Maintenance.    The Engineering division provides
engineering review and project management services for CIPs and Land

Development.   This includes project plan review,  permit processing,  construction

inspection and public assistance.  The division also works closely with the Community
Development Department and the City Engineer to process Land Development
projects by providing conditions of approval associated with Building and Planning
permit applications.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

In order to keep up with current Land Development projects and Capital

Improvement Projects ( CIPs), it is necessary to hire a consultant for this position on
an interim basis while recruiting. The external recruiting environment for this position
is very competitive and staff estimates it may take up to 6 months to recruit for this
position.

317



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUMCYL REGULAR MEETING

AGREEMENT WITH CONDOR FOR ENGINEERII G SUPPORT SERVICES

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGEiVDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Economic Growth and Community Values by allowing
Land Development projects and CIP' s to continue during the recruitment process.

FISC L IMPACT:

The cost of the agreement is not to exceed $ 50, 000 and will be paid for using salary
savings within the approved Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 budget.

AY' TACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Authorizing Agreement with Condor Earth to Provide Engineering
Support Services

B.  Agreement with Condor Earth

318



CITY MANAGER' S fZEPOItT PAGE 3

OCTOBEf , 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR lMEETING

AGREEMENT WITH CONDOR FOI ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES

APPROi/ ALS:

1    l o -- 2 --- Q,

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

1 b

Cari James Date

Director of  ' na ce

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

319



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH CONDOR EARTH TO PROVIDE

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department currently has two open engineering
positions and staff is actively recruiting to fill them; and

WHEREAS, in order to keep up with current Land Development projects and
Capital Improvement Projects ( CIPs), it is necessary to hire a consultant on an interim
basis while recruiting; and

WHEREAS, staff requested a proposal from Condor to provide engineering
support services; and

WHEREAS,  stafF requests City Council adopt a resolution approving an
Agreement with Condor in the amount of $ 50, 000 to provide engineering support       
services; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds exist within the approved Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

budget, the City will utilize salary savings to fund this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of City of Lathrop
Authorizes an Agreement with Condor Earth to Provide Engineering Support Services.

320



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:    

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED ee S TO FORM:

A--

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

321



C P ENT
e   °

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND CONDOR EARTH

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 8ht day of October, 2018, is by and
between Condor Earth  (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a California

municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is specially trained,  experienced,  and competent

provide Engineering and Administration Support; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT was selected by the CITY as the most qualified to
perform these services; and is specially trained, experienced, and competent to provide
Engineering and Administration Support; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering and Administration
Support services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in conformance with the scope of work

submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit  " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,

and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit " A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 50, 000 to provide

Engineering and Administration Support services as set forth in Exhibit " A" and
incorporated herein by reference, notwithstanding any contrary indications which
may be contained in CONSULTANT' S proposal.   CONSULTANT shall be paid

within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to
Paragraph 5 below.

322



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Attachment " A", Scope of Work, unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY's
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.

Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is October 8, 2018, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2019.

4)       Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in Attachment   " A"   to City' s satisfaction.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs.

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section (2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessaryto enable CITYto monitorthe

performance of this Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel.      

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY' S request.

Page 2

323



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative: Stephen Medina, CONSULTANT shall

not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior written approval by the
CITY.

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Public
Works Director.     CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S Public Works

Director.

9)      Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance

shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meet these requirements provided that

the program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 3

324



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of

CONSULTANT,      including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

Page 4

325



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with

a Best' s rating of no less than A:VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy- must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must . provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage,   so long as commercially available at

reasonable rates.

Page 5

326



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 except with

concurrence of the CITY.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  ( a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)       Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv.

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that (b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Page 6

327



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed underthis Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in

accordance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY,  its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Standard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under

this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of

practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANT will perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral or written
reports of the findings made.

Page 7

328



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

12)    Licenses.

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.     

13)    Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty (30) days written notification to other party.  In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services

performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes,  and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundinq.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)    Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by tfie United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

Page 8

329



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone: ( 209) 941- 7430

Fax: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:      Condor Earth

188 Frank West Circle, Suite I

Stockton, CA 95209

Phone:     ( 209) 934-0518

Fax: 209) 234- 0538

Attn:      Brad Peterson, Project Director

17)    Miscellaneous.

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

Page 9

330



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

Page 10

331



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non- prevailing party.

18)    General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub- consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor' s Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)    Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written "Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

20)    Cost Estimates.

Any statements of estimated construction costs or future operation and

maintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professional opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and other factors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

Page 11

332



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOR EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT SERVICES

21)    CADD Documents.

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting ( CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CONSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk or
other electronic media, in accordance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professional work product.       Only the original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANT' S professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer or altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT

makes no warranties, either express or implied, of the merchantability, applicability,
compatibility with CITY' S computer equipment or software,  or fitness for any
particular purpose for the electronic media or that the electronic media contain no

defects or are virus free.

Modification or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other than the project subject to this
Agreement shall be at CITY' S sole risk.   CITY agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the prior written
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)    Siqnatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12

333



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONDOFi EARTH — ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT ERVICES

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

D '- '

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Accepted By:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Condor Earth

188 Frank West Circle, Suite I

Stockton, CA 952069

Fed I D # 94- 2908050

Lathrop Bus License # 20535

Robert J. Job, President Date

Page 13

334



EX- iI IT`   '

CONDOAt EARTH

y
188 Frank Vest Circle, Suite I

Stockton, CA 95206

209. 234. 0518

c       Fax 209. 234. 0538

ww v. condorearth. com

Condor Proposal No. 7569D

September 6, 2018

Michael King, PE
Assistant Public Works Director

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject:    Proposal for Staff Augmentation Services

Engineering and Administration Support

Dear Mr. King:

Condor Earth( Condor), is pleased to provide the following hourly rates for engineering support services.
We understand that the City desires full- time engineering support to assist with implementing the Citywide
Capital Improvement Program( CIP), along with supporting development services.

Condor proposes to provide these services at the following hourly rates:

Engineering 5upport: $ 85/ hour— Trial Period( first 20 working days)-$ 95/ hour thereafter.

Acceptance ofthis Proposal by the City means that the City agrees to keep assigned professional in positions
as described herein, to notify Condor if the assignment will change and to not assign supervisory duties to
any staff under this agreement. Overtime is billed at 1. 3 times the base rate ( Saturday work is overtime)
and Double- Time is billed at 1. 7 times the base rate( Sundays and Holidays).

If the City is no longer in need of our assigned professionals, the City will provide a 2- week notice of
ternunation. The 2- week notice is not required during the trial period.

Condor appreciates the opportunity to submit this Proposal. Please contact us if you have any questions.

Respectfully submitted,

CONDOR EARTH

Brad Peterson

Project Director

X: Projcc[ b000 q17569 City of LathropV569D Staff Augmentation Scrviccs\ Con[ racts_ Proposals_ CE P 20180905 City of Latluop StafiAug Srvcs. docx

335



336



ITEM 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER THE 2019 S7MSCP DEVELOPMENT FEE

ANNUALAD) USTMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.   Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.   Adopt a Resolution Approving an Annual

Adjustment to the San 7oaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space

Plan ( S) MSCP) Development Fee for 2019.

SUMMARY:

On August 23, 2018, the San Joaquin Council of Governments  ( SJCOG) approved

the annual adjustment to the San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat

Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) development fees.  The development

fees were calculated using a formula method which is adjusted annually  [ Fee  =

Category A ( acquisition) + Category B ( assessment & enhancement) + Category C
land management & administration)].  Each component of the formula is adjusted

using a specific mechanism which relates to the individual component in the fees.
The new fee calculations will become efFective on January 1, 2019.

Projects which participate under the SJMSCP benefit from a pre- determined

streamlined processing of the project rather than navigating through a very long
and cumbersome regulatory process led by local jurisdiction staff outside the
habitat plan.  By opting for plan participation, the project can choose a number of

ways to provide mitigation for the impacts of the project through the plan:

1.  Pay a fee;
2.  Redesign the project to avoid/ minimize impacts;

3.   Provide land in lieu of the SJMSCP fee which the project will negotiate the

easement/ fee title costs; or

4.  Any combination of the above options.

Alternatively, the project proponent may choose to not participate in the SJMSCP
and fulfill mitigation requirements on their own with state and federal permitting
agencies.

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution approving an annual

adjustment to the San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and
Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) development fees for 2019.

337



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2019 SJMSCP DEVELOPMENT FEES

BACKGROUND:

On November 6, 2001, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 01- 194, establishing
the SJMSCP.   The plan established a procedure to mitigate the impacts of new

development on undeveloped land within the cities of Lathrop,  Escalon,  Tracy,
Ripon, Manteca, Lodi, Stockton, and San Joaquin County.   Each city and the County
adopted the SJMSCP and the recommended fee schedule at that time.   A Habitat

Conservation Map ( Attachment 2)  identifies those areas within the City of Lathrop
that are subject to a specific habitat fee category.

With recommendation from the SJCOG staff,  Financial Subcommittee and Habitat

Technical Advisory Committee,  SJCOG approved the annual adjustment to the

development fees on August 23,   2018 and is requesting each participating
jurisdiction to adopt the annual adjustment to the SJMSCP development fees. Since

its adoption,  the developer paid SJMSCP fees have been adjusted annually on
January

15t
of each year.  The following table shows the habitat category,  the

current 2018 fees and proposed 2019 fee adjustments.

The final calculation of the 2019 SJMSCP development fees shows an approximate

overall decrease of 30. 9%  in the Multi- purpose,  Agriculture and Natural habitat

classifications from 2018. Also, the rarely impacted Vernal Pool Upland and Wetted
habitat classifications decreased 13. 5% and 24. 7% respectively.

Table 1:  History of SJMSCP Fees since 2015

20
YEAR 2015   ' 2016      2017  { .  2018   ``      

19      -

Proposed)

Multi- purpose 7, 281 7, 807 8, 905 9, 701 6, 700

Agriculture 14, 543 15, 596 17, 808 19, 400 13, 399

Natural 14, 543 15, 596 17, 808 19, 400 13, 399

Vernal Pool 42, 784
46, 869 66, 437

72 523 54, 576

rasslands

Vernal Pool 85 631 116 871

wetted
90, 273 109, 737 101, 033

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council consider all information provided and
submitted,  take and consider all public testimony and,   if determined to be

appropriate, adopt a resolution approving the annual adjustment to the San Joaquin
County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan development fees
for 2019.

338



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2019 SJMSCP DEVELOPMENT FEES

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

The proposed Resolution promotes Economic Growth by supporting and

encouraging development by providing a streamlined process for mitigating

biological impact,  and promotes Team Work between the public,  development

community, Council, County and City staff by working together to share the same
vision.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fee adoption has no fiscal impact to the City.  Developers may participate in the
SJMSCP plan or opt out and fulfill mitigation requirements with state and federal

permitting agencies.

A7' TACH M ENT:

1.  Resolution to approve the 2019 San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat
Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) development fee.

2.  SJMSCP Habitat Conservation Map
3.  2019 Habitat Fee Table

339



CITY MANAGEIZS REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGUL/ AR MIEETING

2019 S MSCP DEVELOPMEIVT FEES

APPE20VALS:

z-

k Cag at Date

rincip Planner

9- 27- la

rk M is er Date

mm it ev lo ent Director

L// I
Cari James Date

Finance Di ctor

Z

Salvador IVavarrete Date

City Attorney

la 'Z'

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

340



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

APPROVE THE ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO THE SAN 70AQUIN COUNTY

MULTI- SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION AND OP.EN SPACE PLAN

SJMSCP) DEVELOPMENT FEE FOR 2019

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lathrop adopted Ordinance No.
01- 194 establishing the authority for collection of a Development Fee for the San
Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP)

for all new development pursuant to the SJMSCP within the City of Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, a Fee Study" dated ] uly 1, 2001 was prepared which analyzed

and identifies the costs, funding, and cost- benefit of the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the SJMSCP development fee is to finance the

goals and objectives of the SJMSCP that include,  but are not limited to preserve

land acquisition, preserve enhancement, land management, and administration that

compensate for such lands lost as a result of future development in the City of
Lathrop and in San Joaquin County; and

WHEREAS, after considering the fee study and the testimony received at the
public hearing, the Lathrop City Council approved said report;  and further found

that the future development in the City of Lathrop will need to compensate
cumulative impacts to threatened, endangered, rare and unlisted SJMSCP covered

species and other wildlife and compensation for some non- wildlife related impacts

to recreation, agriculture, scenic values and other beneficial open space uses; and

WHEREAS, an Updated Fee Study" was prepared in 2006, 2011 and 2016

which analyzed and identified the costs and funding of the SJMSCP; and

WHEREAS, the SJMSCP development fees are divided into three categories:

Category A  -  Acquisition;  Category B  -  Enhancement;  and Category C  -  Land

Management/ Administration; and

WHEREAS, the SJMSCP development fees for the different habitat types is

shown on Attachment 3 of the staff report; and

WHEREAS,  to ensure that the SJMSCP development fees keep pace with
inflation, annual adjustments are made to the fees based on the method previously
adopted by the Lathrop City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the method of annual adjustments was modified in 2011,  in

2016 and again in 2018; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 adjustment resulted in a minor change to category A"
with an adjustment to the easement to fee title percentage used in the fee model.

Resolution No. 18-       Page 1 of 3

341



NOW, THEREFORE, I7' IS FiEREBI( FtE OL\/ ED, by the City Council of the
City of Lathrop, as follows:

1.  The City Council finds and declares that the purposes and uses of the
development fee,  and the determination of the reasonable relationship
between the fees' uses and the type of development project on which the

fees are imposed,  are all established in Ordinance No.  01- 194,  and

remain valid, and the City Council therefore adopts such determinations.

2.  The 2019 development fee for the three habitat types - natural land and

agricultural lands,  vernal pool habitat,  and multi- purpose open space

conversion,  shall be as set forth in Attachment 3 of the staff report,

incorporated by reference herein.

3.   The fee provided in this resolution shall be effective on January 1, 2019,

which is at least sixty ( 60) days after the adoption of this resolution.

Resolution No. 18-       Page 2 of 3

342



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18-       Page 3 of 3

343



T

r'-          
w Q .    

Q w p LAND CATEGORY I PAY ZONE$
i N

a

c R    

v    '      

NOEP YOZONE

z >

J       

a z p Q-      
i

BOWMAN RD Z4 Y
K

o BOWMAN RD r

F\   
O       

CATEGORV B i

m
R

BEE
1' N

PAV ZONE

AN
SPACES

Y A BRIGGS RD F 
S i

CATEGORYC
U

CARLIN RD

1

AG. HABITAT OPEN SPACES jO

PAYZONEBIAprkulNrall      ,

I...   ,_

U

MANI A RD       ' ,.`      

ROTH RD

I       -  

COE PA? ZONE B( Nary

N„ ITAT I
CATEGORV E

VERNAL POOLS
FREWERTRD LOVELACE I 

I 1  ..._. 

i

PAVZONEC

I'-...-.       ?       
Zc I

Q
CATEGORYF I '.

s       

PRIORAGREEMENT

l.     
G----'"     

m     .``

f—     _     . 

l

t

J

N  

NINGAREABOUNDARVI

Q m
I ._       

IPLAN
URBANE% PANSIONAREA j

4J
w

1

Im O
CITY LIMITS

I
Z PARCELLINE

UNDINE RD DE LIMA RD   p N N   p

I Q m i

I
t       DOS REIS RD     ' Q Z N

z..___— i   
i     ,._. __

i    .   O   .   .      
v

I            
H ST EXETER DR

I
J  . ., Z

THOMSEN RD

ST

cn     ,. i'` ..       

HASTWGS D

i     -- -  

d NORTHGA
A

J     /       m   ', 
L

m

I '—   ' O SF
Z

LINOE n

y,

yRo

vico w V
N

MINGOWY             Ii C

F     i z
1-,       V  

Q'

a a, z

9° 
p     p'

I
Y P p

CROM

j        U R
a i C Q

e;  
i K w

OFC? q AV      .  .      _;_'_       
G NFST( F w      v Q'  _    

wz a
PV

l
i     

7 a y D

O Q i      STE,
yqRTRp       '

MADR'
aR   

STqT

DANI

Q

Q BRONZAN RD STATE O Oi

i Q O/      U  

Q       ,-     50Pr%       , t  

CANAC Bl        P

P WOODWARD RD WOODW

v` 0,

0

fiqM      
ARBOR AV PE2 ACa.

r.,       
e. ma.,..   a, ro ,....

ny TOLERI RD
e..,>.. e.,  

H

O

U0
TRacv p.       

x'    s-  

I E
O

a\P

P   

o..  

o«., e. ,,.__

1

SCADERO AV
a       -..       

AV

y Q  I

c.       o w I

N
0

Z IIS ANT LWE, RD.—__      f.      Q   _..._      ___..  . __  .    I rV
i     __       _       

N

I I

i ,     
CITY OF LATHROP i,      

J               o o   a,       ,

x.

55EVWz[ er e. e

I.  
S4tponCn  .  

r. II— .— .—. 

344



o.: 3    "

SjCOG, Inc.

55 East Veber Avenue • Stockton, C, A 9 202• ( 209) 235- 0600 • F;\ ( 2(19) 235- 0 38

San joaql iri Courrty M1 lti-Species Habitat Coriservatiori 
Open Space Plart (SJMSCP)

R, i rrt fZ::.-

CH\ II:

n, 3
2019 U dated Habitat Fees*

E t;

An,,,,,      
Habitat Type Fee Per Acre

rr. ini.

Multi- Pui-  ose O en S ace 6, 700
M n t•r rt:  

mE.   Natural 13, 399
ESC.41('.

L 41} i1   AQi- iculture l 3, 399
Ll l1l

M11 4h  Vernal Pool - u lands 54, 576
RIIY

Vernal Pool - wetted l 01 , 033

ti,i,      
I Ic i. lanu in I.?( 11' I Uc n hcril. 2019

iim c, i n. i

i, r.

2018 Endowment Fees with In- lieu Land**
Enhancenrent

und TOTAL PF.R

Type of Preserve
Cosdacre

Management ACRE

Cosdacre ENDOWMENT

Agricultural Habitat Lands 3, 727. 00 821. 75 1, 5-18. 7

latural Lands 3, 727. 00 821J5 1, 5 18. 7i

Vernal Pool Habitat

ernnl Pool Grnsslnnds 14, 814. 00 2, 503. 33 17, 317. 33

ernal Pool [ t etted 61, 994. 00 2, 457. 61 64, 451. 61

Effective Januarv l. 2019— December 31, 2019 in lieu of fees to be used as the endowment fi r[ hc

dedicated land preserves( Categor} B+ C) based on impacted acres.

VELB Mitigation

A special fee category shall apply when removal of the Valley Elderberry Long- horned Beatle
VELB) habitat of elderberry shrubs occurs.  The fee shall be paid to SJCOG, Inc. or a VELB

mitigation bank approved by the Pennitting Agencies.  The current fee, as established in the VELB
Conservation Fund Account managed by the Center for Natural Lands Management, and approved by
the USFWS, is $ 1, 800 per VELB Unit( one unit= one stem over 1" in diameter at ground level which

is removed). Fees shall be established by the JPA during preconstruction surveys( i. e., counts of stems
to be removed with and without exit holes shall be completed during preconstruction survey s) and
shall be paid to the JPA prior to round disturbance or stem removal, whichever comes first.

345



346



ITEM 5. 2
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO

UPDATE THE WEST LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN

REIMBURSEMENT FEE

RECOMMENDATION:       Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopt Resolution Approving the 2018 West

Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) Reimbursement

Fee Update

SUMMARY:

The WLSP Reimbursement fee was established to reimburse River Islands and its

predecessors for costs incurred in the preparation of the 1996 West Lathrop Specific
Plan ( WLSP) and its Environmental Impact Report ( EIR), the cost of annexation, and

litigation costs incurred to defend these approvals, together with interest.

Pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 3. 21. 040, the WLSP fee updates annually
to include interest recognition, administrative expenses, and other costs incurred.

The update also serves as a tool to recalculate the costs and acreages based on
payments already made for properties in Mossdale Village.    The updated fee is

proposed to be $ 2, 612 p'er acre.

The WLSP fee becomes due when a property owner wishes to develop properties in
the Mossdale Village area.

BACKGROUND:

On June 17, 2003, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 02- 208, adding Chapter
3. 21, " West Lathrop Specific Plan Reimbursement Fee," to the Municipal Code.  The

Council subsequently adopted resolution No. 03- 1488 establishing the West Lathrop
Specific Plan Reimbursement Fee at the amount of $ 1, 038 per acre.   The fee was

established to reimburse River Islands and its predecessors for costs incurred in the
preparation of the 1996 West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) and its EIR, the cost of

annexation,  and litigation costs incurred to defend these approvals together with
interest.  The fee is paid by developers seeking City approvals in the Mossdale Village
portion of the WLSP area.

The Ordinance requires th'is fee to be updated annually to include administrative and
other costs that may have been incurred since the last update as well as interest.

The update is also to recalculate the costs and acreages based on payments already
made for properties in Mossdale Village.  The WLSP fee was last updated in 2013 and
set at $ 2001 per acre.     

ti r

The updated calculation of' the WLSP Reimbursement Fee for 2018 has been prepared
by the Finance Department, and the updated WLSP fee is proposed to be $ 2, 612 per

acre.

347



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

WLSP REIMBURSEMENT FEE

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The WLSP Reimbursement Fee Ordinance ( LMC 3. 21. 040) requires that the fee be

reviewed and updated annually.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City incurs costs for staff to implement and update the fee, which costs are

funded through the inclusion of a 1%   administrative charge in the WLSP

Reimbursement Fee.

ATTAC H M E NT:

A.  Resolution Approving the West Lathrop Specific Plan Reimbursement Fee Update.

348



CITY M/ N 4C; ER' ftEPORT PQ C; E 3

OCTOBER 8, 201 CITY COUIVCIL REGl1LAR MIEETING

1fVLSP ltEIMBUfSSEMENT F E

PPROVALS:

A   +%  - z +

v Sandra Frias Date

Budget Manager

V, 66 d' 7-  •  '"    j z'+  S

Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director

l
Cari Jame Date

f

Finance Di ector
t

l v -  t--l

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

o• L iB

Step n Salvatore Date

City Manager

349



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE WEST LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN REIMBURSEMENT
FEE UPDATE

WHEREAS,  on June 17, 2003, the City Council of the City of Lathrop adopted
Ordinance No. 02- 208, adding Chapter 3. 21 entitled the West Lathrop Specific
Plan ( WLSP)  Reimbursement Fee to the City of Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the WLSP Reimbursement Fee is paid by the owners of property
or other persons seeking City approvals in the Mossdale Village portion of the
WLSP area to recover costs incurred by River Islands and its predecessors for
the preparation of the 1996 WLSP,  the 1996 WLSP Environmental Impact

Report ( EIR), the cost of the annexation, and the litigation costs incurred to

defend these approvals, together with interest; and

WHEREAS, on ] une 17, 2003, the City Council adopted Resolution No.  03-

1488 approving the WLSP Reimbursement Fee and setting the amount of the
fee at $ 1, 038 per acre; and

WHEREAS, the WLSP Reimbursement Fee Ordinance requires that the WLSP

Reimbursement Fee be updated annually to include administrative and other
costs that may have been incurred since the last update along with interest
costs; and

WHEREAS, the City has updated the costs incurred by River Islands along
with interest and incorporated payments already received for properties in the
Mossdale Village area; and

WHEREAS, this action is exempt from California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA")  requirement because this is not a  " project"  pursuant to Section

15378, subdivision ( b)( 4) j;

NOW, THEREFORE,; BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop finds that the updating of the Reimbursement Fee by this resolution
does not require environmental review pursuant to Section 15378, subdivision

b)( 4) as the updating of a fee is not a project for purposes of CEQA; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby sets the WLSP
Reimbursement Fee beginning on October 8, 2018 at $ 2, 612 per acre.

1

350



PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 8th

day of October 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO F RM:     ATTEST:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

2

351



352



ITEM 5. 3   

CITY iV1ANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AUTHORIZE TERRAVERDE TO CONDUCT A

COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS FOR PHASE II OF

THE CITY OF LATHROP' S  SOLAR ENERGY

PROJ ECT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Authorizing TerraVerde
Energy,   LLC to Conduct a Competitive Bid

Process for Phase II Project Installation,

Procurement,  and Financing for the City of
Lathrop' s Solar Energy Project GG 12- 14 and
Approve the Minimum Projected Cost Savings

for Phase II

SUMMARY:

In 2012, City Council authorized the creation of the Solar Energy Project CIP GG 12-
14 to fulfill a long- standing City goal to conserve energy and produce future cost
savings for the City' s general fund and utility rate payers.  Phase I of the project has

been completed and included the installation of solar equipment at the Water

Treatment Facility and at the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin.

In order for the City to take the next step in exploring the opportunity to generate
cost savings through the implementation of solar energy, TerraVerde must issue a
Request ' for Proposal ( RFP) to solicit solar proposals for Phase II.   Phase II includes

the installation of solar equipment at the Community Center, City Hall, and additional
panels at the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin.  Staff recommends City Council
authorize TerraVerde to issue an RFP for Phase II.

In order to solicit the most cost- effective proposals,  staff recommends that City
Council adopt the following minimum projected electricity cost savings objectives that
any proposals received must achieve in order to be awarded a contract with the City:

Year 1 Savin s minimum 29, 918

Years 1- 5 Cost Avoidance
695, 563

cumulative minimum

Years 1- 25 Cost Avoidance
2, 352, 545

cumulative minimum

BACKGROUND:

In 2012, City Council authorized the creation of the Solar Energy Project CIP GG 12-
14 to fulfill a long- standing City goal to conserve energy and produce future cost
savings for the City' s general fund and utility rate payers.

353



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AUTHORIZE TERRAVERDE TO CONDUCT A COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS FOR

PHASE II OF THE CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR ENERGY PRO7ECT

In February, 2013, City Council hired TerraVerde at no up- front cost to the City, to
develop and evaluate optimum locations, size, configurations, costs, and savings for
solar arrays at City Facilities. The project feasibility study, included as Attachment B,
recommended that the most appropriate financial mechanism for the City was a
Power Purchase Agreement ( PPA) which allows the City to pay for electricity that is
generated by the solar power provider at a fixed price, with an escalator, over a 20
year period.   The benefits of a PPA include:  no upfront costs,  no capital outlay
required, no debt, no maintenance and responsibility costs, and an option to " buy-
out" the Solar Power Provider after 6 years.

On October 13, 2013, City Council authorized TerraVerde to conduct a competitive
bid process for solar project installation, procurement, and financing.   Furthermore,

City Council amended the TerraVerde contract to pay TerraVerde a development fee
only if the City entered into a PPA.

In June 2014,  TerraVerde issued a RFP pursuant to Government Code Section

4217. 12 for the four previously approved City facilities which included City Hall, the
Community Center/ Senior Center, the Water Treatment Plant, and the South Harlan
Road Storm Drain Basin.  Through this process TerraVerde and the City selected
Borrego Solar, Inc., parent company to Lathrop Solar 1.

On November 3, 2014, Council approved the contract with Lathrop Solar 1, LLC, to

construct the solar project on all four selected sites.
4

On September 24, 2016, NRG Energy Inc., purchased the solar project, and wired

the City $ 9, 320 per month representing the City' s expected monthly cost savings for
the solar project.

On October 17, 2016, Council approved the City Manager to execute the Solar Power
Purchase Agreement Amendments in order to allow the project to be sold to NRG

Energy Inc.

On February 6,  2017,  Council approved the Amended and Restated Amendment

which clarifies that all power generated by the Phase I facilities will be sold to the
City of Lathrop through a single PPA.

Lastly, the City Council directed City staff to work with TerraVerde to develop a plan
for generating savings through the installation of solar array facilities and energy
storage systems.  The new solar array project,  potentially paired with a battery
storage system, will be conducted through a PPA at the Community Center, City Hall,
and the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin.

354



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AUTHORIZE TERRAVERDE TO CONDUCT A COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS FOR

PHASE II OF THE CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Implementing solar energy methods in the City of Lathrop will help to reduce overall
electricity costs and generate measures to produce future savings for the City' s
General Fund and utility ratepayers.  

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City at this time.   However, in the event the City
approves TerraVerde to conduct a competitive bid process and, from that process,
receives qualified bids that meet the approved minimum bid criteria, and the City
then chooses not to go forward with the project, the City will be subject to a service
fee of $ 20, 000. 00 to TerraVerde.   This fee does not apply if the City is unable to
secure financing for the project and elects not to proceed solely for that reason.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Authorizing TerraVerde Energy, LLC to Conduct a Competitive

Bid Process for Phase II Project Installation, Procurement, and Financing
for the City of Lathrop' s Solar Energy Project GG 12- 14 and Minimum
Projected Cost Savings for Phase II

B.       Feasibility Study

355



CITIf M 4R9p GER' S REPOIZT Page 4

OCTO EI 8, 2018 CITY COUiVCIL f EGdJLp R NIEETIRIG

Q UThIOIaIZE TE1 ItAVERDE TO COIVDUC'T A COMPETITI!/ E BID PIZOCESS FOR
PHASE II OF THE CYTI( OF L.' THIZOP' S SOLAIt EMERGY PRO) ECT

i4PPROi/ AILS:

o -,-

Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

lo - 3-' 1

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

I
Cari Jame Date

Finance Direc or

l   _l S
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

356



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING TERRAVERDE ENERGY, LLC TO CONDUCT A

COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS FOR PHASE II PRO7ECT INSTALLATION,

PROCUREMENT, AND FINANCING FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR

ENERGY PROJECT GG 12- 14 AND ADOPT THE MINIMUM PROJECTED

COST SAVINGS FOR PHASE II

WHEREAS, in 2012, City Council approved the creation of the Solar Energy
Project Capital Improvement Project GG 12- 14 to fulfill a long- standing City goal to
conserve energy and produce future cost savings for the City of Lathrup' s general
fund and utility rate payers; and

WHEREAS, in February, 2013, Council hired TerraVerde Renewable Partners,
LLC, now TerraVerde Energy, LLC, at no up- front cost to the City of Lathrop to develop
and evaluate optimum locations, sizes, configurations, costs, and savings for solar

arrays at City facilities; and

WHEREAS, on October 13, 2013, Council authorized TerraVerde Energy, LLC,
to conduct a competitive bid process for solar array installation, procurement, and

financing.  Furthermore,  Council amended the initial contract to pay TerraVerde
Energy,  LLC, a development fee contingent on the City of Lathrop entering into a
Power Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS,  in  ] une 2014,  TerraVerde Energy,  LLC,  issued a Request for

Proposals pursuant to Government Code Section 4217. 12 for installation,

procurement,  and financing for the four previously approved City facilities which
included City Hall, the Community Center/ Senior Center, the Water Treatment Plant,
and the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin. Through this process TerraVerde and

the City selected Borrego Solar, Inc., parent company to Lathrop Solar 1; and

WHEREAS, on November 3, 2014, Council approved the contract with Lathrop
Solar 1, LLC, to construct the solar array project on all four selected sites; and

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2016, NRG Energy, Inc., purchased the solar

array project, and wired the City $ 9, 320 per month representing the City' s expected
monthly cost savings for the solar array project; and

WHEREAS,  on October 17,  2016,  Council authorized the City Manager to
execute the Solar Power Purchase Agreement Amendments in order to allow the

project to be sold to NRG Energy, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2017, Council approved the Amended and Restated
Amendment which clarifies that all power generated by Phase I facilities will be sold
to the City of Lathrop through a single Power Purchase Agreement; and

357



WHEREAS,  Phase I of the Solar Energy Project has been completed and
included the installation of solar equipment at the Water Treatment Facility and at
the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin; and

WHEREAS,  Phase II includes the installation of solar equipment at the

Community Center, City Hall, and additional panels at the South Harlan Road Storm
Drain Basin; and

WHEREAS,  in order for the City to take the next step in exploring the
opportunity to generate cost savings through the implementation of solar energy,
TerraVerde must issue a Request for Proposal ( RFP) process to solicit solar proposals

for Phase II; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends City Council authorize TerraVerde to issue an
RFP for Phase II; and

WHEREAS,   in order to solicit the most cost- effective proposals,   staff

recommends that City Council approves the following minimum projected electricity
cost savings objectives that any proposals received must achieve in order to be
awarded a contract with the City:

Year 1 Savings ( minimum)     29, 918

Years 1- 5 Cost Avoidance
695, 563

cumulative minimum)

Years 1- 25 Cost Avoidance
2, 352, 545

cumulative minimum)

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop to authorize TerraVerde Energy, LLC to Conduct a Competitive Bid Process
for Phase II Project Installation, Procurement, and Financing for the City of Lathrop' s
Solar Energy Project GG 12- 14; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
Approves the Minimum Projected Cost Savings for Phase II as referenced above.

r

358



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8t'' 

day of October 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

359



c    

erra er e
ENERGY

City of  ath rop

R

Pro Forma

Feasibility Study

Scenarios Included in this Pro Forma:

1- NEM 2. 0: Power Purchase Agreement and Battery: Savings to Provider

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 1 of 7 PROJECTION

360



Summary of Results
erra er e

EN ERGI(

1- NEM 2. 0: Power Purchase Agreement and Battery: Savings to Provider 0. 1500 0. 00% $      29, 918  $     695,563  $   2, 352,545 n/ a

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 2 of 7 PROJECTION

361



Project Portfolio
erra er e

ENERGY

1- 15557 STh St 383861373 1004464325 A- 10 TOU A- 6 NEM 126,567 50

2- 15707 STh St 383861917 1003858968 A- 6 A- 6 NEM 55, 695 28

f3- 18800 Christopher Way 423136017 1010260334 A- 1 E- 19 R NEM+ AES 1, 817, 743 454

i!4- 390 Towne Centre Dr 9809281411 1009485169 A- 10 TOU A- 10 NEM+ AES 372, 233 162

Portfolio Totals 2, 372, 238 694

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 3 of 7 PROJECTION

362



Savi ngs
erra er e

ENERGY

1- 15557 STh St 383861373 126,567 103, 771 82Y 68 $    21, 680 $  0.2089 382

2- 15707 SThS[ 383861917 55, 695 44, 255 79%       29 $    11,568 $  0. 2614 224

ft3- 18800Chris[ opherWay 423136017 1, 817, 743 1, 771, 085 97%      900 $   306, 919 $  0. 1733 3, 914 800 20%      250 $     5, 981 $    7. 48

4- 390TowneCentreDr 9809281411 372, 233 321, 995 87%      211 $    43, 892 $  0. 1363 1, 266 644 51      120 5 8,976 $   13. 94

Totals 2, 372, 238 2, 241, 106 94%     1, 208  $  384, 060  $  0. 1714 5, 786 1, 444 25%      370  $   14, 957  $  10. 36

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 4 of 7 PROJECTION

363



Dashboard
erra er e

EN ERGY

Scenario: q1- NEM 2. 0: Power Purchase Agreement and Battery: Savings to Provider

Total Solar Project Size 1. 21 MW, DC Gross Project Benefit 9, 613, 959

Annual Solar Yield 1, 855 kWh/ kW Operating Expenses 623, 690)

Year- 1 Solar Production 2, 241, 106 kWh Power Purchase Agreement( PPA) Payments 6, 413, 341)

Annual Solar Degradation Factor 0. 50%       Payments to 3rd Party Provider Z24, 384)

Total Storage Project Size 370 kWh Total Net Benefit 2, 352,545

Year- 1 Demand Reduction 1, 444 kW

Number of PG& E Accounts 4

Savings from Solar Production 0. 1714/ kWh

Savings from Demand Reduction 10. 36/ kW

Estimated Utility Energy Cost Escalator 3. 00%

Average 20- year REC Price 0.0039/ kWh

PPA Rate 0. 1500

PPA Annual Escalator 0. 00%

Battery Savings to Provider 65%

Asset Management Services, Solar( PPA)  0. 0100/ kWh

Asset Management Services, Storage 400/ battery
Asset Management Services Escalator 3. 00%

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 5 of 7 PROJECTION

364



Cash Flow
erra er e

ENERGY

Projecc City ot La[ hrop

Scenario:! fl- NEM?. 0: Power Purchase Agreemenc and Baaery: 5avings m Grovitler

r'171 '4i7LW"

Suhrotal:

Ann al5oiar SolarSavings Slorage5avings Subrotal: Baaery Asse[      Mnual

Produc[ ion pe kVJh AnnualDemantl pe kW Savingshom Savingshom MnualGross Paymen[ s[ o Management Operaling Ne[ Benef[ 5 Ne[ Benefts NetBenef[ s CumulativeNet RenewableEne gyCerti( cates Cumulative

Year      ( kWh)     Produced fteducuon( kW) Redured Solar Srorage Benefi[ s PPAPayments Prwider Serv Expenses      ( Solar)     ( Srorege)    ( Total)     Benefi[ s       ( RECs)       CashPasition Term

2019 5     - 5     -     $     -  5     -  S 5     -  5     -  $ 

Ce  -  

5 5     -  5     -  5     -  $   5 5 0

1020 2, 241, 306 $   0. 1] 14 1, 444 5 10. 36 S 334, 060 $   14, 957 $  399, 017    5  ( 336, 166 5   ( 9, 722) 5   ( 23, 211) $  ( 369, 099).   S 75, a83 5 4, 435 $   29, 918 5 29, 918 5 1, 600)   5  ' 28, 318 1

2011 2, 229, 900 5 0. 1765 1, 444 $    10. 62 5 393, 609 5 15, 379 $ ' q08, 933    $  ( 339, 485J 5   ( 9, 964) 5   (? 3, 90]) $  ( 368, 356)   5 36, 035 5 4, 541 5 40, 577 $   70, 495 5 7, 883 5  ' 76; 777 2

2072 2, 218, 751 $   0. 1818 1, 44A 5 10. 89    $  403, 385 S 15,] 30 $ 419, 095'    S  ( 332, 813 5   ( 30, 211) $   (] 4, 625) 5  ( 36], 649J   $   96, 796 $    4, 650 $   51, 416 5 121, 941 5 7, 9R    ' S'  136, 345 3

2023 2, 207, 657 5 0. 18] 3 1, 440 $    11. 15 5 413, 409 5 16, 100 S 479, 509    $  ( 331, 149 $   30, 465) $   ( 25, 363) S  ( 366, 977)   5 57, 771 $    d. 761 S 61, 532 $  184, A73    $   7, 961 5 306, 638 4

2024 2, 196, 619 5 0. 1939 1, 444 $    11. 43 5 423, 682 5 16, 500 $  440, 187    $  ( 329, 493) $   10, 725) 5   ( 26, 124) $ ,( 366, 34?)   5 68; 966 S A, 875 S 73, 840 $  _ 258, 313    $   8, 000 S 288, 479 5

2025 2, 185, 636 5 0. 1987 1, 444 $    11.] 1 5 434, 211 5 36,910 $  451, 121    $  ( 327, 895) $   ( 30, 992) 5   ( 26, 908) 5  ( 365, 765)   5 80, 385 5 4, 991 5 85, 376 $  343, 6B9    $   6, 440 5 380, 295 6

20? 6 2, 179, 708 $   0. 2046 1, 44A 5 12. 00 5 455, 001 5 17, 330 $;  467, 331 5  ( 326, 706 5   ( 11, 265) 5   ( 27, 715) 5 :( 365, 186)   $   9?, 035 $    5, 130 $   97, 145 $,  ; 440, 834    $   8, 080 S 485, 520       7

202]      2, 163, 834 5 0. 194]      1, 444 $    10. 64 S 4'_ 1,: 17 5 15,362,$'  436, 573    $  ( 324, 575 $   ( 9, 985) $   ( 28,541,$ '( 363, 107)   5 69,W3 5 G, 393 $   ] 3, 466 $... 514, 300    $   8, 120 S 567, 105. 8

20'_ 8 2, 153, 015 $   0.'_ 005 1, 4a4 5 10. 90 5 431, 678 5 15, 144 $'  667. 422 5  322, 952) 5   30, 233) 5   ( 29, 403)' S"'( 362, 589)   $   & 1, 336 $    G, 49] S 89, 833 $' ; 599, 133 S 8, 160 5 6G0, 098 9

2029 2, 142, 250 5 0.] 065 1, A44 5 1118 5 442, 405 5 16, 135 $'  458, 590    $  ( 371, 33] 5   ( 30, 488) 5   ( 30,285j'$','( 3fi2, 130)   5 91, 836 5 4, 603 S 96, 63 5' ; 695, 563    $   8, 200    $  769,728'       ] 0

2030 2, 131, 539 5 0. 2327 1, 449 5 11. 05 5 453, 399 5 16, 536 5'  469, 935 5  ( 319, 731 5   ( 10, 748) 5   ( 31, 194) 5 '( 361, 673)   5 303, 550 5 4, 712 5 308, 262 $' E03, 825 5 fi, 641 5 879,631'       11

1031 2, 120, 881 $   0. 2191 1, 444 5 11. 14 S 464, 6G6 $   16, 9a7 $  . 481, 613 5  ( 318, 137 $   ( 11, 015) 5   ( 32, 130) $  ( 361, 277)   $   115, 517 S O, B24 5 170, 336 $  924, 161 5 8, 282    $ ' 1, 008, 249 12

203]      2, 130, 2]] 5 0. 2257 1, 434 5 12. 03 S 476, 213 5 17, 368 $  493, 581.    5  ( 316, SA3) 5   11, 289) $   ( 33, 093) $  ( 360, 926)   5 121,] 39 5 4, 938 5 132, 657 $ 1, 056, 817 5 8, 323    ' S 1, 149,2? 8 13

2033 2, 099, 725 $   0. 2324 1, 444 5 12. 33    $  488, 047 5 1],] 99 $ . 505, 846 5  ( 314, 959) 5   ( 11, 570) S   ( 36, 086 $  { 360; 615)   5 140, 177 5 5, 055 S 145, 232 $ 1, 702, 049    $   8, 364    . 5 1, 302, 8I4 14

2034 2, 089, 227 5 0. 2394 1, 444 5 12. 63 5 500, 175 S 18, 242 $  : 518, 416:    $  ( 313, 389) 5   ( 11, 857) $   ( 35, 309) 5  ( 360; 350   5 152, 89] S 5, 175 S 158, 067 $ 1, 360, 11fi 5 8, 405    $ ' 1, 469, 295 35

2035 2, W8,] 80 5 0. 2466 1, a44 5 12. 95 S 512, fi00 $   18, 695 5 -- 531, 199 5  ( 317, 811 5   ( 12, 152) $   ( 36, 162j 5  ( 36, 131),   $   165, 8] 1 $    5,? W 5 1] 1, 168 5 1, 531,] Ba 5 6, ed7    , S.. 1, 647, 311 16

2036 2, 068, 386 $   0. 2540 1, 44a S 13. 27    $  525, 342 $   19, 160 $  . 544, 502 5  ( 310, 258) 5   ( 12, 45a) 5   ( 37, 297) $  ( 359, 959)    $   1] 9, 121 5 5, 6? 2 5 189, 543 5 1, 715, 817 5 8, 489    $ . 1, 84( 1, 363 1]

203]      2, 058, 0a5 5 02616 1, 444 $    13. 60 S 538, 397 5 19, 636 $ - 558, 033    $  ( 308,] 0]) 5   ( 12,] 63) 5   ( 38, 364) $  ( 359, 834)   S 192, 648 5 5, 550 S 198, 199 $ 1, 914, W6    $   8, 531    .$ . 2, 047, 072 38

2038 2, 09],] 54 5 0.? 695 1, 4a4 5 13. 94 5 551, 776 S   ] 0,124 5  571, 900    $  ( 307, 163 5   ( 13, OB0) $   ( 39, 515) $  ( 359, 759)   S 206, 460 5 5, 681 S 212, 141 5 2, 126, 367    $   8, 5] 3    $ 2, 267, 786 19

2039 2, 037, 51" 0 5 0. 2]] 5 1, 444 5 14. 28 S 565, 488 5 30, 624$  586,112 5  ( 5, 621 5   ( 13, 405) 5   ( 40, 701)$ ( 359,] 33)   5 270, 563 5 5, 815 $  276, 3] 8 S 2: 352, 545 5 8. 615    $ ], 5017] 9 20

4l,) 55, 605 i8, 875 9,268, 754 $  345, 205 $ 9, fi13, 959    $ ( 6, 413, 341J $  ( 224, 384) $  ( 633, 690) $ ( 7, 261, 414)    $ 2, 253, 219 $   99, 326 $ ], 352, 565 $ 7, 35], 545    $ 150, 234    $ 2, 507, 779,

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 6 of 7 PROJECTION

365



Disclaimers and Assumptions
erra er e

ENERGY

1) Projections of future savings are calculated based on patterns of previous electrici[ y usage with billing data from July 2018, and assume tha[ historical
usage patterns hold at the same level over the life of the project.

2) Projections based on stated assumptions. Final solar project size and costs will be based on site audit results.

3) PG& E is In the process of developing new definitlons for time of use periods and the associated rate schedules in their 2017 generel rate case. The estimated

impact[ o savings from this transition is reFlected in this pro forma and uses rate schedule es[ imates proposed in the pending PG& E general rete case
proceedings for grendfathered and post- grendfathering rete schedules( estimates are based on the PG& E settlement case). Proposed TOU rate schedules will

be validated when the PG& E ra[ e case is finalized which is anticipated in late 2018.     

4) Projections are subject to tariff eligibiliry over[ he life of the installation. This analysis uses PG& E retes published June 2018.

5) This analysis assumes the electrical service will not require significant upgrades. Possible interconnection upgrade cos[ s may be incurred as a resul[

of the solar interconnection. Final determination on upgrade costs will be based on the final Supplemental Review repor[ ed by PG& E once available.     

6) Projections are based on interconnection of all si[ es under NEM 2. 0 tariff. Remaining capacity under NEM 2. 0 is subject[ o availabiliry.

7) Net Operating Benefit does not include repaymen[ of any client capi[ al that may be invested.

8) Some meters included in this portfolio are recommended to switch to a lower-[ iered tariff than currently assigned by PG& E. This ra[ e switch needs to be

confirmed with the utility.

9) This analysis assumes PG& E SGIP s[ ep 2, and a value of$ 0.40/ Wh

10) Only 8 months of elec[ rici[ y usage data is available for[ he Chris[ opher Way meter. The remaining 4 months were estimated by averaging values from the
S mon[ hs provided.

11) There is po[ ential for NEM- A at the Sth Street location, tha[ needs to be further evaulated.

i.  I
i     '   '

I

i       .
r

8/ 29/ 2018 Page 7 of 7 PROJECTION

366



ITEM 5. 4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8,' 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP PK 19- 02 FOR PARK

IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG, MOSSDALE,

AND VALVERDE PARKS

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Discuss and Consider the Adoption

of a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP
PK 19- 02 for the Installation of Outdoor

Fitness Equipment at Sangalang Park,

Mossdale Park,    and Valverde Park,    and

Authorizing Related Budget Amendments

SUMMARY:

Council is asked to consider the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PK 19-

02,  as well as the approval of a buget amendment to allocate funding for the
installation of outdoor fitness equipment at Sangalang, Mossdale, and Valverde Parks.

The funding for the placement of this equipment could be provided by Measure C
funds.

BACKGROUND:

In early 2018 the City of Lathrop opened Basin Park as part of the Lathrop Road
widing project.  One of the most popular features of this new location has been the

outdoor fitness equipment.    Due to the popularity of this equipment staff has
prepared a proposal for the installation of similar equipment at Mossdale, Sangalang,
and Valverde Parks the largest and most used Parks within the City. The equipment
placed at the Basin Park site includes:

Leg Press Machine Cross Country Ski

Upper Body Station Lower Body Station

Accessible Chest Press Static Combo

Lat Pull / Verticle Press

An estimate of the costs for the purchase at each location are listed below:

Purchase of Equipment 40, 000

Installation 20 000

Sub Total 60, 000

10 % project contingency 6 000

Total per location 66, 000

367



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG PARK, MOSSDALE PARK, AND

VALVERDE PARK

The total purchase,  design and installation of the outdoor fitness equipment at

Mossdale, Sangalang, and Valverde Parks would be approximately $ 198, 000.

With the availability of additional funds within Measure C for one time purchases,
staff prepared this proposal for review and consideration.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting City Council consider a budget amendment of $ 198, 000 from the

General Fund  ( 1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10),  to be reimbursed by Measure C when
approved by the Measure C oversight committee, for the creation of CIP PK 19- 02 for
the installation outdoor fitness equipment at Mossdale,  Sangalang and Valverde
Parks.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values by maintaining and improving a community
resources throughout the City.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The creation of CIP PK 19- 02 for the placement of Outdoor Fitness Equipment at

Mossdale, Sangalang, and Valverde parks and budget amendment of $ 198, 000 from

Measure C funds for the purchase and installation of outdoor fitness equipment at

Sangalang,  Mossdale,  and Valverde Parks to be reimbursed by Measure C when
approved by the Measure C oversight committee.

Budget Amendment

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 General Fund)       $ 198, 000

Allocation of funds to CIP PK 19- 02

Increase Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PK 19- 02 198, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 02 198, 000

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PK 19- 02 and Authorizing Related
Budget Amendments.

368



CITY MAN/ AGER' S REPORT PA GE 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITI( COUMCYL REGULi4R NiEETYl1lG

P 4RK IMPROVEMEMTS OR SAP+IGAL. i4NG PARK, MOSSDALE PARIC, i4ND

i/ i4L/ E9tDE PAI K

APPIZOV 4LS:

5 Oc 
Ken eed Date

Senior Construction Manager

Iq — 18

Michael King C'      Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

Zo l

Zachary Jo   -    Date

Director o and Recreation

1 11
Cari J Date

Director f inance

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l-•
S hen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

369



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PK 19- 02
FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF OUTDOOR FITNESS

EQUIPMENT AT MOSSDALE,  SANGALANG,  AND VALVERDE PARKS AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS,  City Council considered the creation of Capital Improvement
Project  ( CIP)  PK 19- 02 Installation of Outdoor Fitness Equipment at Mossdale,

Sangalang and Valverde Parks; and

WHEREAS, City Council also considered a budget amendment of $ 198, 000

from the Measure C fund for the installation of Outdoor Fitness Equipment at these
locations; and

WHEREAS, stafF is requesting City Council authorize the budget amendment
for the Installation of outdoor fitness equipment at Mossdale,  Sangalang and
Valverde Parks transferring  $ 198, 000 from the General Fund Reserves to CIP PK
19- 02 as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 198, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 198, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 02 198, 000

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of the Installation of Outdoor Fitness Equipment at
Mossdale, Sangalang, and Valverde Parks, CIP PK 19- 02; and

370



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8T" day of October
2018, by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

371



372



ITEM 5. 5

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP PK 19- 03 FOR MOSSDALE SOUTH

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK.

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Discuss and Consider the Adoption

of a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP
PK 19- 03 for Mossdale South Neighborhood

Park,     and Authorizing Related Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

Council is asked to consider the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PK 19-

03 for the development of Mossdale South Neighborhood Park.  Based on a review of

recent construction costs construction of this location is estimated between $ 500, 000

700, 000.  Staff is requesting the approval of a budget amendment of $ 20, 000 for

the creation of design options for this location.  Completed design options will allow

staff to bid the project,  develop construction contracts,  and return to Council to

discuss the options and the approval of the contracts for the construction of Mossdale

South Neighborhood Park.

If approved, this proposed improvement project could be funded from existing funds
within the Culture and Leisure Capital Facility Fee Fund ( 2260).

BACKGROUND:

The West Lathrop Specific Plan established a network of parks dispersed throughout
the entire Mossdale Village area.  The Mossdale Landing East Urban Design Concept,
which was originally adopted in February 2004, identified two neighborhood parks to
the north of the project, Mossdale Commons and The Green, the 20 acre Mossdale

Landing Community Park on the corner of Towne Centre and Golden Spike Trail, the
River Park South improvements that include the dog parks,   as well as an

approximately 4- acre site on the corner of Inland Passage and Golden Spike Trail.
This site is currently undeveloped and includes storm water pump station M- 6.

In accordance with the Mossdale Landing East Design Concept, this neighborhood
park should be designed for mostly passive uses and was intended to include a
covered picnic area with barbecue,  landscaped walking paths, open turf area with

trees, a play structure for both toddlers and larger children, with an option for half-
court basketball.  Based on a review of the construction costs associated with recent

park construction and improvement projects staff estimates the design and

construction costs,  including a 10%  contingency,  to be between  $ 500, 000  -

700, 000.  This expense would be covered by Culture and Leisure CFF funds.

The on- going maintenance expenses associated with the construction of Mossdale
South Neighborhood park will be approximately $  12, 000 annually.   This expense

would be subsidized by General Fund reserves.

373



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE Z

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PK 19- 03 MOSSDALE SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD PARK AND

BUDGET AMENDMENT

Staff requests Council review and provide direction on the creation of CIP 19- 03.

Approval of a budget amendment of $ 20, 000 for the creation of design options for

this location.   Completed design options will allow staff to bid the project, develop
construction contracts, and return to Council to discuss the options and the approval

of the contracts for construction of Mossdale South Neighborhood Park.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values by creating a park and providing landscaping
and fitness alternatives that are aesthetically pleasing and enjoyable for our
community

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests City Council authorize a budget transfer of $ 20, 000 from the Culture

and Leisure CFF 2260 to the General CIP Fund 3010 to create CIP PK 19- 03 for the

development of design concepts for the construction of Mossdale South Neighborhood

Park.  Staff requests the following budget amendment:

Transfer Out ( Culture & Leisure CFF Funds)

2260- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 20, 000

Transfer In ( General CIP)

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 20, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 03      $ 20, 000

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PK 19- 03 Mossdale South

Neighborhood Park and Related Budget Amendment.

B.  Mossdale South Neighborhood Park Location Map

374



CI' TY M/ PVAGEI2' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUlVCIL MEETING

CREATE CIP PK 19- 03 MOSSDAL SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD PQrRK AND

UDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

G - 5 - , olg
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

l-
achary Jo s Date

Parks and Recreation Director

ic — Z.—Q
Michael King Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

Cari Ja Date

Director Finance

Z ?—! j

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l
Ste n J. Salvatore        Date

y Manager

375



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF TI-IE CITY COUNCIL OF l'HE CITIr OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATIOfl OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PIaOJECT PK 19- 03

FOR THE DESIGN AND CONSTFtUCTION OF MOSSDALE SOUTH

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK ARID RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMEIVTS

WHEREAS,  City Council considered the creation of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) PK 19- 03 Mossdale South Neighborhood Park; and

VIIHEREAS, City Council also considered a budget amendment of $20, 000

from the Culture and Leisure CFF for development of design concepts for the
construction of Mossdale South Neighborhood Park;

WHEREAS, staff is requesting City Council authorize the budget amendment
for the Mossdale South Neighborhood Park transferring  $20, 000 from the General

Fund Reserves to CIP PK 19- 03 as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 20, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 20, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 03 20, 000

NOW, THEitEFOftE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of Mossdale South IVeighborhood Park, CIP PK 19- 03;
and

376



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
8th

day of October
2018, by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPRO\/ ED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

377



378



ITEM 5. 6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP PK 19- 04 FOR CITY- WIDE PARK

IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Discuss and Consider the Adoption

of a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP
PK 19- 04 for the Installation of Additional

Amenities at Various City Parks,     and

Authorizing Related Budget Amendments

SUMMARY:

Council is asked to consider the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PK 19-

04,  as well as the approval of a budget amendment to allocate funding for the
installation of the following:

2 Large concrete barbecues at shelters at Mossdale and Valverde Parks

4 Trash receptacles and one pet waste station at Mossdale Park

2 Park benches, picnic table, and waste receptacle at Park West

3 Trash receptacles and one pet waste station at Basin Park

1 Trash receptacle at shelter at Sangalang Park
1 replacement of water fountain with pet fountain at Sangalang Park

The funding for these proposed improvements could be provided by Measure C funds.

BACKGROUND:

With the availability of additional funds within Measure C for one time purchases,
staff prepared this proposal for the installation various park amenities to address

needs throughout our park system.  The items requested are listed below for review

and consideration.

Concrete Barbecues

Mossdale Community Park includes three small barbecues that serve the picnic sites
at this location.   None of the current barbecues are adjacent to the rentable shelter

at this location.  This additional barbecue would be placed adjacent to the rentable

shelter for the renters of that facility.

Valverde Park includes three large picnic sites that are available for rental.  Over the

past two years we have replaced the barbecues at two of these locations.   This

barbecue would be placed by the third, Site 2, adjacent to the playground to replace
a smaller barbecue that was recently removed.

379



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CITY- WIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS

Park Benches, Table, Trash receptacles and Pet Waste Stations

Mossdale Community Park
Install one additional trash receptacle adjacent to the new picnic shelter, install three

additional trash receptacles along the walkway along the levee edge of the park, and
install one pet waste station on the path as it approaches the levee.

Basin Park

Install two trash receptacles adjacent to the existing benches along the southern side
of the park as well as a pet waste station at the middle south walkway.

Sangalang Park
Install one additional trash receptacle adjacent to the new picnic shelter.

Park West

At Park West, install two benches along the walkway along Sheltered Cove Way the
western edge of the park and one picnic table and waste receptacle on the interior

pathway adjacent to this location.       

Pet Friendly Water Fountain at Sangalang
We are looking to replace one existing water fountain by the playground at Sangalang
park with a water fountain that includes a pet watering station.

An estimate of the costs associated with the purchase and installation of these items
is listed below:

Mossdale Concrete Barbecue 3, 300

Mossdale Trash receptacles 4 6 000

Mossdale Pet Waste Station 300

Basin Trash rece tacles 2 3, 000

Basin Pet Waste Station 300

Park West Picnic Table 3, 200

Park West Park Benches 2 3, 300

Park West Trash rece tacle 1, 500

San alan Park Trash rece tacle 1, 500

San alan Park Water Fountain w/ Pet 3, 870

Valverde Concrete Barbecue 3, 300

Sub Total 29, 570

10% Contin enc 2, 960

Total Estimated Ex enses 32, 530

If approved by Council, funding for these one time expenditures could initially be paid
from the General Fund and reimbursed by Measure C once approved by the Measure
C oversight committee.

380



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CITY-WIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting City Council consider a budget amendment of $ 32, 530 from the

General Fund  ( 1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10),  to be reimbursed by Measure C when
approved by the Measure C oversight committee, for the creation of CIP PK 19- 04 for
the installation of the various park amenties as listed in this report.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values by maintaining and improving community

resources throughout the City.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff is requesting that the City Council consider a budget amendment for a total of
32, 530 to create CIP PK 19- 04 for the installation of additional park amenities

discussed in this report.

Budget Amendment

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 32, 520

Allocation of funds to CIP PK 19- 04

Increase Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PK 19- 04 32, 530

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 04 32, 530

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PK . 19- 04 and Authorizing Related
Budget Amendments.

381



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIfVG
PARK IMPROVEMENTS

APPROVALS:

D ( 
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

Michael Kin--     Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

C.,    2.0'

Zachary J e  Date

Dir ctor of Parks and Recreation

r 1     ( 
d l

Cari James Date

Director of Fi a e

v

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

i        fd-Z- l
Ste h'en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

382



RESOLUTION NO. 18.- .

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PK 19- 04

FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ADDITIONAL PARK AMENITIES AT VARIOUS     •
CITY PARKS, AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  City Council considered creation Capital Improvement Project
CIP) PK 19- 04 installation of additional amenities at various city parks; and

WHEREAS, City Council also considered a budget allocation of $ 32, 530 from

the General Fund for these one- time expenses for the installation of concrete
barbecues at Mossdale and Valverde Parks,  additional trash receptacles and pet

waste stations at Mossdale, Sangalang and Basin Parks, and two benches a table

and trash receptacles at Park West,  and the replacement of an existing water
fountain at Sangalang Park with a fountain that includes a pet fountain;

WHEREAS, stafF is requesting City Council authorize the budget amendment
for the installation of additional park amenities in the local parks transferring

32, 530 from the General Fund Reserves to CIP PK 19- 04 as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 32, 530

Increase Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 32, 530

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 19- 04 32, 530

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of the Installation of Additional Amenities, CIP PK 19-
04; and

383



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8t" 

day of October
2018, by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPltOVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

384



ITEi S. 7

CITY M 4NAGEIt' S REPORT

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGIJLAR MEETING

ITENI CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS APPLICA BLE TO
CITY OFFICIALS

RECONIMERIDATION:     Adopt a Resolution A, pproving An Ethics Policy
Applicable To Elected And Appointed Officials, City

Nianager, City e4ttorney And Department Heacls

BACKCROUND:

The 2017- 2018 Grand Jury Final Report recommended that the Lathrop City Council
develop and adopt an ethics policy that governs the behavior of its elected and
appointed officials and senior staff. Council instructed the City R,ttorney to draft an
Ethics Policy for Council consideration. The proposed resolution is attached hereto

as Attachment A.

Grand ] ury Finding 4. 1: " The City of Lathrop does not have an ethics policy for its
elected and appointed officials and senior staff such as the City Manager,  City

Attorney,   City Clerk and their subordinate employees not represented by a

bargaining unit.  Failure to have an ethics policy could lead to poor judgement,
public misconception and lack of trust."

Grand  ) ury Recomrriendation 4. 1:  " By October 31,  2018,  the Lathrop City

Council develop and adopt an ethics policy that governs the behavior of its elected
and appointed officials and senior staff."

PROPOSED CITI( OF L THROP CODE OF ETHICS:

APPLICABLE TO ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS,  CITY NIANAGER,

CITY  4TTORNEY,  AND DEPARTMENT HEAD   NOT IZEPRESENTED BY A

BAI GArINIIVG UNIT

PFtEAMBLE

The City of Lathrop has adopted this Code of Ethics to promote and maintain the
highest standards of personal professional conduct in the City' s government.  All

elected and appointed officials,  as well as city manager,   city attorney,  and

department heads not represented by a bargaining unit, hereinafter referenced as

City Officials", are required to subscribe to this Code, understand how it applies to
their specific responsibilities,  and practice its eleven core values in their work.

Because we seek public confidence in the City' s services and public trust of its
decision- makers,  our decisions and our work must meet the most demanding
ethical standards and demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in following
this Code.

385



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS APPLICABLE TO CITY OFFICIALS

CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF LATHROP SHALL:

1.  Be trustworthy, acting with integrity.

2.  Make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking

into account the long- term financial needs of the City, especially its financial
sta bi I ity.

3.  Accomplish the goals and responsibilities of one' s individual position, while

respecting the role as a member of a team.

4.  Use the City' s powers and resources for the benefit of the public.

5.  Review ethics training materials, as required by California Government Code
53235 et. seq., within 30 days of taking office and at least every two years

thereafter.

6.  Review sexual harassment training material,   as required by California

Government Code § 12950. 1 and  § 53237 et.  seq., within 30 days of taking

office and at least every two years thereafter.

7.  Not solicit city employees for personal funds for political campaigns.

8a Adhere to the standards set forth in the City of Lathrop Conflict of Interest
Code as mandated by Government Code 81000 et.  seq.,  which is brought

forth by the City Clerk biennially for review and approval.

9.  Comply with all State and Federal laws regulating Lathrop City Officials.

10. Not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a
person not entitled to receive such information,  unless a majority of the
Council has authorized its disclosure or information is appropriately disclosed
for the purpose( s) of making a confidential inquiry or complaint to the district
attorney or grand jury concerning a perceived violation of law,  including

disclosing facts necessary to establish the illegality or potential illegality of a
Council action that has been the subject of deliberation during a closed
session.

11. Recognize that statements made may be perceived as reflecting the views
and positions of the City.  City Officials have a responsibility to identify
personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the City.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends City. Council consider adopting the proposed resolution and Code
of Ethics.

386



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS APPLICABLE TO CITY OFFICIALS

COUNCIL GOAL( S) ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This adoption of a Code of Ethics intends to further the goal of Community Values.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.  A resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop adopting an ethics
policy applicable to elected and appointed officials, City Manager, City
Attorney, and Department Heads not represented by a bargaining unit.

387



CITY MAN14CaE12' S REPORT P/ AGE 4

OCTOBER 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MIEETING

CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS PPLICABLE TO CITY OFFICIALS

PPROVALS:

Ir -- - g

Salvador IVavarrete Date

City Attorney

g' P

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

388



Attachment A

RESOLUTIOIV MO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DOPTING d4N EYHICS POLICY e PPLIC/ BLE TO @LECTED AND AaPPOINTED

OFFICIALS, CITY MAfVAGER, CITY ATTORNEY AMD DEPARTMENT HEADS
NOT REPRESENTED BY A BAf GAINIIVG UNIT

WHEREAS, the 2017- 2018 Grand Jury Final Report recommended that the
Lathrop City Council develop and adopt an ethics policy that governs the behavior of
its elected and appointed officials and senior staff not represented by a bargaining
unit"; and

WHEREAS, Council instructed the City Attorney to draft an ethics policy for
Council consideration at its October 8, 2018 City Council Meeting; and

NOW, THEREFORE,  E IT RESALVED, that this City of Lathrop Code of
Ethics, attached hereto as " Exhibit A", is hereby adopted by the City Council of the
City of Lathrop to be effective immediately; and

FURTHER RESALVED that this resolution shall only apply to the City of
Lathrop elected and appointed officials, City Manager, City Attorney, and Department
Heads not represented by a bargaining unit.

Resolution No.

389



PAS ED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of October, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORI I:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No.

390



Exhibit A

CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS

APPLICABLE TO ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, CITY MANAGER,

CITY ATTORNEY, AND DEPARTMENT HEADS NOT REPRESENTED BY A

BARGAINING UNIT

PREAMBLE

The City of Lathrop has adopted this Code of Ethics to promote and maintain the
highest standards of personal professional conduct in the City' s government.  All

elected and appointed officials,  as well as city manager,  city attorney,  and

department heads not represented by a bargaining unit, hereinafter referenced as

City Officials", are required to subscribe to this Code, understand how it applies to

their specific responsibilities,  and practice its eleven core values in their work.

Because we seek public confidence in the City' s services and public trust of its
decision- makers, our decisions and our work must meet the most demanding ethical
standards and demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in following this Code.

CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF LATHROP SHALL:

1.       Be trustworthy, acting with integrity.

2.       Make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking
into account the long- term financial needs of the City, especially its financial
stability.

3.       Accomplish the goals and responsibilities of one' s individual position, while

respecting the role as a member of a team.

4.       Use the City' s powers and resources for the benefit of the public rather than
any personal benefit.

5.       Review ethics training materials,  as required by California Government
Code § 53235 et. seq., within 30 days of taking office and at least every two
years thereafter.

6.       Review sexual harassment training material,  as required by California
Government Code § 12950. 1 and § 53237 et. seq., within 30 days of taking
office and at least every two years thereafter.

7.       Not solicit city employees for personal funds for political campaigns.

8.       Adhere to the standards set forth in the City of Lathrop Conflict of Interest
Code as mandated by Government Code 81000 et. seq., which is brought

forth by the City Clerk biennially for review and approval.

9.       Comply with all State and Federal laws regulating Lathrop City Officials.

Page 1 of 2

391



10.     Not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a
person not entitled to receive such information, unless a majority of the
Council has authorized its disclosure or information is appropriately

disclosed for the purpose( s) of making a confidential inquiry or complaint
to the district attorney or grand jury concerning a perceived violation of
law,  including disclosing facts necessary to establish the illegality or
potential illegality of a Council action that has been the subject of
deliberation during a closed session.

11.     Recognize that statements made may be perceived as reflecting the views
and positions of the City.  City Officials have a responsibility to identify
personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the City.

Page 2 of 2

392


	2018-10-08 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2018-10-08 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Council and Special CFD No. 2006-1 BOD Meeting of August 13, 2018 and Regular Meeting of September 10, 2018
	2018-10-08 Item 4.3 2018-2019 Requests for Fee Waiver from Lathrop Lions Club, Lathrop Little League, Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters, and Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club
	2018-10-08 Item 4.4 ISU Sale to Louise Avenue Partners
	2018-10-08 Item 4.5 Stage 2B Precise Plan Line for River Islands Parkway
	2018-10-08 Item 4.6 FM & SIA for 38 Lots in Tract 3938 Village Q within East Village District of River Islands
	2018-10-08 Item 4.7 FM & SIA for 50 Lots in Tract 3989 Village U within Lakeside East District of River Islands
	2018-10-08 Item 4.8 FM & SIA for 51 Lots in Tract 3994 Village T within Lakeside East District of River Islands
	2018-10-08 Item 4.9 Task Order No. 11 with 4Leaf, Inc. for Plan Check Services
	2018-10-08 Item 4.10 2018 Winter Holiday and 2019 City Council Meeting Schedules
	2018-10-08 Item 4.11 Funding for a Maintenance Worker I_II and a Utility Operator I_II_III Position in the Public Works Department
	2018-10-08 Item 4.12 Agreement with Condor Earth for Engineering Support Services
	2018-10-08 Item 5.1 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider the 2019 SJMSCP Development Fee Annual Adjustment
	2018-10-08 Item 5.2 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Update the West Lathrop Specific Plan Reimbursement Fee
	2018-10-08 Item 5.3 Authorize Terraverde to Conduct a Competitive Bid Process for Phase II of the City of Lathrop's Solar Energy Project
	2018-10-08 Item 5.4 Create CIP PK 19-02 for Park Improvements at Sangalang, Mossdale, and Valverde Parks
	2018-10-08 Item 5.5 Create CIP PK 19-03 for Mossdale South Neighborhood Park
	2018-10-08 Item 5.6 Create CIP PK 19-04 for City-Wide Park Improvements
	2018-10-08 Item 5.7 City of Lathrop Code of Ethics Applicable to City Officials



